
 
 

City Council Agenda May 16, 2023 
 

Page 1 of 5 

 

 
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 
CITY HALL, 291 N. MAIN STREET 
PORTERVILLE, CALIFORNIA 
MAY 16, 2023, 5:30 PM 

 

  
The City of Porterville is allowing for and encouraging electronic participation at City Council 

Meetings. Porterville City Council Meetings will be live streamed on YouTube at 
https://www.youtube.com/channel/UC5KuhSrNMNL9nwHJVtnJvvA 

 
Alternatively, this meeting will also be available via Zoom using the following information 

 
Topic: City of Porterville – City Council Meeting of May 16, 2023 

 
Please use the following link below to join the webinar: 

https://us06web.zoom.us/j/82629411102?pwd=cGNOK0tvOVZkclp1V2ZlcTAzUUZGUT09 
 

Or via Telephone:   1-669-900-6833      Webinar ID: 826 2941 1102 Passcode: 256568 
 
Call to Order 

 

Roll Call 
 

  
ORAL COMMUNICATIONS  

This is the opportunity to address the City Council on any matter scheduled for Closed 
Session. Unless additional time is authorized by the Council, all commentary shall be limited to three 
minutes. 

 

  
CITY COUNCIL CLOSED SESSION: 

 

A. Closed Session Pursuant to: 
 

    
1 - Government Code Section 54957.6 – Conference with Labor Negotiator.  Agency 
Negotiator: John Lollis and Patrice Hildreth.  Employee Organizations:  Porterville 
City Employees Association and Management and Confidential Series. 

 

    2 - Government Code Section 54956.95 – Liability Claim: Claimant: Reginaldo 
Cornejo.  Agency claimed against: City of Porterville. 

 

    3 - Government Code Section 54956.95 – Liability Claim: Claimant: Stephanie 
Navarrete.  Agency claimed against: City of Porterville. 

 

    
4 - Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(3) – Conference with Legal Counsel – 
Anticipated Litigation – Significant Exposure to Litigation: Four (4) cases in which 
facts are not yet known to potential plaintiff. 

 

    5 - Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(4) – Conference with Legal Counsel – 
Anticipated Litigation – Initiation of Litigation: Two (2) cases.  

 

    6 - Government Code Section 54957 - Threat to Public Services or Facilities: 
Consultation with Jake Castellow, Porterville EOC Incident Commander. 

 

 

https://www.youtube.com/channel/UC5KuhSrNMNL9nwHJVtnJvvA
https://us06web.zoom.us/j/82629411102?pwd=cGNOK0tvOVZkclp1V2ZlcTAzUUZGUT09


 
 

City Council Agenda May 16, 2023 
 

Page 2 of 5 

6:30 P.M. RECONVENE OPEN SESSION AND REPORT ON REPORTABLE ACTION 
TAKEN IN CLOSED SESSION  

 

  
Pledge of Allegiance Led by Vice Mayor Carrillo 

 

Invocation 
 

  
ORAL COMMUNICATIONS  

This is the opportunity to address the Council on any matter of interest, whether on the agenda 
or not. Please address all items not scheduled for public hearing at this time. Unless additional time 
is authorized by the Council, all commentary shall be limited to three minutes. 

 

  
REPORTS  

This is the time for all committee/commission/board reports; subcommittee reports; and staff 
informational items. 

 

    

  I. City Commission and Committee Meetings 
 

    1. Parks & Leisure Services Commission - May 4, 2023 
 

    2. Library & Literacy Commission - May 9, 2023 
 

    3. Arts Commission - April 25, 2023 
 

    4. Animal Control Commission - May 11, 2023 
 

    5. Youth Commission - May 10, 2023 
 

    6. Transactions and Use Tax Oversight Committee (TUTOC) 
 

    

  II. Staff Informational Reports 
 

    1.  Water Conservation Phase IV Status Update - April 2023 
 

  
CONSENT CALENDAR  

All Consent Calendar Items are considered routine and will be enacted in one motion. There 
will be no separate discussion of these matters unless a request is made, in which event the item will 
be removed from the Consent Calendar. All items removed from the Consent Calendar for further 
discussion will be heard at the end of Scheduled Matters. 

 

1.  City Council Minutes of April 14, 2023, and May 02, 2023. 
Re:  Considering approval of the City Council Meeting draft Minutes of April 14, 2023, and 
May 02, 2023. 

 

2.  Purchase of Personal Protective Equipment 
Re: Consideration to approve the purchase of two sets of turnouts from Curtis at a not to 
exceed cost of $7,974.81. 

 

3.  Authorization to Advertise for Bids - Main Street Reconstruction Project (Putnam 
Avenue to Morton Avenue) 
Re: Consideration to approve staff's recommended Plans and Project Manual for the Main 
Street Reconstruction Project located between Putnam Avenue and Morton Avenue; and 
authorize staff to advertise for bids on the project. 

 



 
 

City Council Agenda May 16, 2023 
 

Page 3 of 5 

4.  Authorization to Distribute Request for Qualifications - Emergency Operations Center 
& Public Safety Headquarters 
Re: Consideration to authorize staff to distribute Design Services Request for Qualifications 
for the Emergency Operations Center & Public Safety Headquarters located at 41 W. 
Thurman Ave.  

 

5.  Authorization to Award Freedom Fest Fireworks Contract 
Re: Consideration to authorize progress payments up to one hundred percent (100%) of the 
contract amount of $25,000 to Zambelli Fireworks. 

 

6.  Authorization to Apply and Receive Financing for the Consolidation of Del Oro Water 
Company 
Re: Consideration to authorize the application to receive financing from the California State 
Water Resources Control Board for planning, design, and construction of the Grandview 
Gardens and East Plano consolidation. 

 

7.  Approval of State Senate Bill 1 (SB1) Project List for Fiscal Year 2023-2024 
Re: Consideration to adopt the draft Resolution for the SB1 project list for Fiscal Year 2023-
2024; authorize the City Clerk to record the attached draft Resolution; and authorize staff to 
submit the project list package to the California Transportation Commission to secure the 
City's FY 2023-2024 RMRA apportionment. 

 

8.  Consideration of Funding Recommendations and Reopening Request for Proposals for 
2021 Permanent Local Housing Allocation (PLHA)  
Re: Consideration to award Turning Point of Central California $154,234.50 for the 
Navigation Center, $154,234.50 for Emergency Housing, and $67,950.00 for permanent 
supportive housing (PSH); and award Central California Family Crisis Center $153,163.00 
for operational support for emergency housing; and authorize staff to reopen RFP for the 
remaining $52,701.50 for PSH program operations. 

 

9.  A Resolution Approving the Application for State Off-Highway Vehicle Grant Funds 
Re: Consideration to adopt a draft Resolution approving the application for State Off-
Highway Vehicle grant funds in the amount of $1,730,535, of which $730,535 would be a 
local match.  

 

10.  Authorization of Street Closures for KJUG Free Summer Concert Series 
Re: Consideration to authorize the street closures for the KJUG Concerts on May 24, 2023, 
June 6 or 7, 2023, and June 21, 2023. 

 

11.  Authorization of Street Closure for Military Banner Ceremony 
Re: Consideration to authorize the temporary closure of Main Street between Thurman 
Avenue and Cleveland Avenue for the Military Banner Ceremony on Friday, May 26, 2023, 
between the hours of 9:00 a.m. and 3:00 p.m.  

 

12.  Parks and Leisure Services Commission Meetings 
Re: Consideration to approve the Parks and Leisure Services Commission's request for a 
hiatus during the months of July and August 2023, with the Commission being available to 
meet if necessary.  

 

13.  Cancellation of Public Hearing to Consider Annexation 
Re: Consideration to cancel the Public Hearing previously scheduled for the consideration 
of the annexation of APNs 261-015-013, 261-015-015, and 261-015-016. 

 



 
 

City Council Agenda May 16, 2023 
 

Page 4 of 5 

14.  Rescinding and Replacing Resolution No. 16-2023 Concerning Class A Driver's License 
Incentive Pay 
Re: Consideration of rescinding and replacing Resolution No. 16-2023 regarding incentive 
pay for employees in certain classifications for attaining and retaining a Class A Driver's 
License. 

 

15.  Cancellation of July 4, 2023, City Council Meeting 
Re: Consider cancellation of the first Council Meeting in July due to the Independence Day 
holiday. 

 

16.  Status and Review of Local Drought Emergency 
Re: Considering approval of the continuance of the Declaration of Local Emergency. 

 

  
A Council Meeting Recess Will Occur at 8:30 p.m., or as Close to That Time as Possible 
  
PUBLIC HEARINGS  

 

17.  Public Hearing to Consider the Transition to Phase III of the City's Water 
Conservation Plan 
Re: Consideration of the transition from Phase IV to Phase III of the City's Water 
Conservation Plan. 

 

SCHEDULED MATTERS  
 

18.  Consider Resolutions of Opposition to Assembly Bill 1090 (Jones-Sawyer) and State 
Senate Bill 94 (Cortese) 
Re: Consideration of Resolutions of Opposition to Assembly Bill 1090 (Jones-Sawyer) and 
Senate Bill 94 (Cortese). 

 

19.  Bid Results - Tule River Parkway, Phase 3 Project 
Re: Consideration to award the Tule River Parkway, Phase 3 Project located along the Tule 
River between Main and Plano Streets, to American Paving Co. in the amount of $2,536,720; 
plus ten percent (10%) contingency, and an additional $1,091,564 in Local Transportation 
Funds.  

 

20.  Status and Review of Declaration of Local Flood Emergency 
Re: Review of the Declaration of Local Emergency made on March 13, 2023, concerning the 
significant weather event and impacts or likely impacts relative to increased flow of the Tule 
River; and consider the draft License Agreement for the City's exclusive use of the Porterville 
Army National Guard Armory for one (1) year, from May 5, 2023 to May 4, 2024. 

 

  
AB 1234 REPORTS  

This is the time for all AB 1234 reports required pursuant to Government Code § 53232.3. 
  

 

    1. Military Banner Program Committee - April 25, 2023 
 

    2. Local Initiatives Navigation Center (LINC) Committee - May 3, 2023 
 

    3. Easter Tule Groundwater Sustainability Agency (ETGSA) - May 4, 2023  
 

    4. Tulare County Water Commission - May 8, 2023  
 



 
 

City Council Agenda May 16, 2023 
 

Page 5 of 5 

    5. Tulare County Association of Governments One Voice Trip to Washington DC - 
May 9-12, 2023  

 

    6. Social Services Transportation Advisory Council - May 9, 2023  
 

    7. Transit Forum - May 10, 2023  
 

    8. CalVans Board - May 11, 2023 
 

    9. Tulare County Economic Development Corporation Board - May 11, 2023 
 

    10. Tulare County Association of Governments (TCAG)/ Tulare County 
Transportation Authority (TCTA) Board - May 15, 2023  

 

    11. Tulare County Regional Transit Authority (TCRTA) - May 15, 2023 
 

ORAL COMMUNICATIONS  
 

OTHER MATTERS  
 

  
CLOSED SESSION  

Any Closed Session Items not completed prior to 6:30 p.m. will be considered at this time. 
 

  
ADJOURNMENT - to the meeting of June 6, 2023, at 5:30 p.m.  

 

 
In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act and the California Ralph M. Brown Act, if 
you need special assistance to participate in this meeting, or to be able to access this agenda and 
documents in the agenda packet, please contact the Office of City Clerk at (559) 782-7464.  
Notification 48 hours prior to the meeting will enable the City to make reasonable arrangements to 
ensure accessibility to this meeting and/or provision of an appropriate alternative format of the agenda 
and documents in the agenda packet. 
 
Materials related to an item on this Agenda submitted to the City Council after distribution of the 
Agenda packet are available for public inspection during normal business hours at the Office of City 
Clerk, 291 North Main Street, Porterville, CA  93257, and on the City’s website at 
www.ci.porterville.ca.us. 



 
 
 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA – MAY 16, 2023 
   
  
SUBJECT: 1.  Water Conservation Phase IV Status Update - April 2023 
    
SOURCE: Public Works  
    
COMMENT: The City has continued to implement an active water conservation approach, 

conserving and providing flexibility to the community. The City transitioned 
from Phase III to Phase IV of the City's Water Conservation Plan as of October 
1, 2022. The Water Conservation Plan applies to all municipal water users 
within or outside the city limits. 
 
The Phase III plan limits outdoor watering to two days per week, with "odd" 
addresses allowed to water on Tuesday and Saturday and "even" addresses 
allowed to water on Wednesday and Sunday.  Outdoor watering is prohibited 
between the hours of 5 a.m. to 10 a.m. and 5 p.m. to 10 p.m., with no watering 
allowed Monday, Thursday, or Friday. Watering outdoor landscaping is 
prohibited during and within forty-eight (48) hours after measurable rainfall, 
which is now defined as greater than 0.01 inch. 
 
Effective October 1, 2022, the City transitioned to Phase IV of its Water 
Conservation Plan. The Phase IV plan limits outdoor watering to one day per 
week, with "odd" addresses allowed to water on Saturday and "even" addresses 
allowed to water on Sunday. Outdoor watering is prohibited between the hours 
of 5 a.m. to 10 a.m. and 5 p.m. to 10 p.m., with no watering allowed Monday 
through Friday. Watering outdoor landscaping is prohibited during and within 
forty-eight (48) hours after measurable rainfall, which is now defined as greater 
than 0.01 inch. 
 
Violations of prohibited activities are considered infractions and are punishable 
by fines of up to $500 for each day the violation occurs. Any peace officer or 
employee of a public agency charged with enforcing laws and authorized to do 
so by ordinance may issue a citation to the violator. The City will respond to 
enforcement by issuing a Notice of Violation for all witnessed occurrences, and 
staff will process all reported issues. Enforcement statistics for April 2023 show 
that ten (10) notices of violations were issued for water wasting, and no 
administrative citations were issued. 
 
Water production for April 2023 reflects a nineteen percent (19%) decrease 
from the 5-year average. The monthly production for April was 198 million 
gallons, which is a thirty-nine percent (39%) decrease compared to April 2013 
at 325 million gallons. Residential consumption for April 2023 was seventy-six 
(76) gallons per capita per day (GPCD). 
 
Compliance with individual water supplier conservation requirements is based 
on cumulative savings. Cumulative tracking means that conservation savings 
will be added together from one month to the next and compared to the amount 



of water used during the same months in 2013. City Staff will evaluate 
conservation totals in two formats: 1) Calculate the cumulative conservation 
totals for production as compared to production in 2013, and 2) Calculate 
cumulative conservation totals in relation to GPCD in efforts to evaluate 
population growth impacts on production as compared to 2013. The cumulative 
total production for the City of Porterville's conservation efforts will be 
reflected from June 2015 through April 2023. Porterville's cumulative total 
production conservation through April 2023 is twenty (20%). The cumulative 
total of GPCD for the City of Porterville's conservation efforts will be reflected 
from June 2015 through April 2023. Porterville's cumulative total GPCD 
conservation through April 2023 is twenty-five percent (25%). 
 
Under the February 2, 2016, emergency regulation, the City of Porterville 
received a revised conservation standard of twenty-eight percent (28%) with an 
additional two percent (2%) reduction for climate adjustment, making the City’s 
conservation standard twenty-six percent (26%). After reviewing the Water 
Board's Self-Certification criteria for drought impacts on water supplies, the 
City of Porterville Council approved maintaining a self-imposed standard of 
twenty-six percent (26%). The continuation of the current conservation goal 
keeps a standardized message that the City has worked to develop in public 
outreach, provides resiliency and capacity to ensure three years of supply under 
drought conditions, and meets the minimum twenty percent (20%) conservation 
standard defined in the City's Urban Water Management Plan, and assists the 
City in meeting the requirements of the Sustainable Groundwater Management 
Act (SGMA). 
 
The State Water Board requires monthly reporting to track what agencies are 
doing and how they perform throughout the year. Proposed permanent 
regulations will require agency reporting to continue monitoring the 
performance of urban water conservation with a preparedness to implement 
conservation standards as necessary. California Governor Gavin Newsom 
signed Executive Order N-10-21 on July 8, 2021, urging all Californians to 
voluntarily reduce their water use by fifteen percent (15%) compared to their 
prior-year levels due to excessive drought conditions. Water production for the 
City system shows a twenty-two percent (22%) decrease from April 2022 to 
April 2023. California Governor Gavin Newsom issued another Executive 
Order N-7-22 on March 28, 2022, to address drought conditions after the driest 
first three months of a year in recorded history. EO N-7-22 requires that each 
water supplier implements, at a minimum, the shortage response actions 
adopted under section 10632 of the Water Code for a shortage level of up to 
twenty percent (Level 2). The City of Porterville's Water Conservation Plan 
Phase IV meets the requirements for this shortage (Level 2). California 
Governor Gavin Newsom signed Executive Order N-3-23 on February 13, 
2023, stating the state has experienced one of the wettest three-week periods on 
record. With this order, California Governor Gavin Newsom removed the need 
to voluntarily reduce water use by fifteen percent (15%), as stated in the 
previous Executive Order N-10-21.  

    
RECOMMENDATION: Information Only 
    
ATTACHMENTS: 1. Monthly Production Status April 2023 



2. Monthly Production Status GPCD April 2023 
3. Drought Response Phase IV Flyer 

  
Appropriated/Funded:  
  
Review By:  
  Department Director:  

Michael Knight, Public Works Director  
 
Final Approver: John Lollis, City Manager 

 
 



0

100

200

300

400

500

600

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12

M
ill

io
n

 G
al

lo
n

s/
M

o
n

th

Monthly Production Status & Cumulative Total June 2015 Through 
April 2023 Production Comparison to 2013 & 5 Year Average

2013

2019

2020

2021

2022

2023

5 Year AVG



0.00

25.00

50.00

75.00

100.00

125.00

150.00

175.00

200.00

225.00

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12

G
al

lo
n

s
 P

e
r 

C
ap

it
a

 D
ay

Month

Monthly Production Status & Cumulative Total June 2015 Through
April 2023 Gallon Per Capita Day Comparison to 2013 & 5 Year Average

2013

2019

2020

2021

2022

2023

5 Year AVG



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The City of Porterville has adopted Phase IV of its Drought Response Plan.  
As part of the Phase IV plan, the City has restricted watering days to one day 
per week, based on address. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Mandatory  
Odd/Even Watering 

Schedule 

 

Excessive water 

runoff prohibited 
 

 

The washing of 

sidewalks and driveways 

is prohibited 

 

Vehicles shall only be 

washed on designated 

watering days and with 

hoses equipped with a 

shut-off nozzle 

 

Ornamental water 

features are prohibited 

unless the fountain uses 

a recycling system 

 
WATERING PROHIBITED 

BETWEEN THE HOURS OF 

5:00 – 10:00 AM 

5:00 – 10:00 PM 

NO WATERING  
MONDAY  THROUGH 

FRIDAY. 

 
 

 

ODD NUMBER ADDRESSES 

If your address ends with an  
“odd” number, 1, 3, 5, 7, or 9, 
your watering day is Saturday only. 
 
 

 

 

EVEN NUMBER ADDRESSES 
 
If your address ends with an 
“even” number, 0, 2, 4, 6, or 8, 
your watering day is Sunday only. 

OR 

 

 



 

  Item No.  1. 

 
 
 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA – MAY 16, 2023 
   
  
SUBJECT: City Council Minutes of April 14, 2023, and May 02, 2023. 
    
SOURCE: Administrative Services  
    
COMMENT: Staff has prepared the draft minutes for April 14, 2023, and May 02, 2023.  
    
RECOMMENDATION: That the Council approve the draft Minutes of  April 14, 2023, 

and May 02, 2023. 
    
ATTACHMENTS: 1. 2023-04-14 Draft Minutes 

2. 2023-05-02 Draft Minutes 
  
Appropriated/Funded:  
  
Review By:  
  Department Director:  

Patrice Hildreth, Deputy City Manager 
 
Final Approver: Patrice Hildreth, Deputy City Manager 

 
 



 
 

Page 1 of 1 

MINUTES 
SPECIAL CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

CITY HALL, 291 N. MAIN STREET 
PORTERVILLE, CALIFORNIA 

APRIL 14, 2023, 11:00 AM 
 
Call to Order at 11:00 a.m.  

 

Roll Call: Council Member Donald Wehyrauch, Council Member Raymond Beltran, Council 
  Member Greg Meister, Vice Mayor Kellie Carrillo, Mayor Martha A. Flores  
The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Council Member Meister.  

 

Invocation – a moment of silence was observed.  
 

  
ORAL COMMUNICATIONS  
None.  

 

 
SCHEDULED MATTERS  

1. CONSIDERATION OF LICENSE TO USE STATE MILITARY PROPERTY  
   

Recommendation: That the City Council approve the draft license to use State Military 
Property between the City and the California Military Department for the 
use of the Porterville Army National Guard Armory as a temporary 
evacuation point and shelter.  

 
City Manager Lollis introduced the item and presented the staff report.  
  

COUNCIL ACTION: MOVED by Council Member Meister, SECONDED by Vice Mayor 
Carrillo that the City Council approve the draft license to use State Military 
Property between the City and the California Military Department for the 
use of the Porterville Army National Guard Armory as a temporary 
evacuation point and shelter located at 29 N. Plano Street. The motion 
carried unanimously. 
  

Documentation: M.O. 01-041423 
Disposition: Approved. 

 

 

 

  
ADJOURNMENT  

The Council adjourned at 11:55 a.m. to the meeting of April 18, 2023, at 5: 30 p.m.  
 

 
 
 
 Fernando Gabriel-Moraga, Deputy City Clerk 

SEAL 
 
 
Martha A. Flores, Mayor  

 



 
 

Page 1 of 11 

CITY COUNCIL MINUTES 
CITY HALL, 291 N. MAIN STREET 

PORTERVILLE, CALIFORNIA 
MAY 2, 2023, 5:30 PM 

 
 
Call to Order at 5:30 p.m.  

 

Roll Call: Council Member Greg Meister, Council Member Raymond Beltran,  
Council Member Donald Weyhrauch, Vice Mayor Kellie Carrillo  
Mayor Martha A. Flores  

 

  
ORAL COMMUNICATIONS  
None.  

 

  
CITY COUNCIL CLOSED SESSION: 
  

A. Closed Session Pursuant to: 
   

1 - Government Code Section 54957.6 – Conference with Labor Negotiator.  Agency 
Negotiator: John Lollis, Patrice Hildreth, and Yuliana Andrade.  Employee Organizations: 
Porterville City Firefighters Association, Management and Confidential Series, Porterville 
City Employees Association, and All Unrepresented Management Employees.   

  
2 - Government Code Section 54956.95 – Liability Claim: Claimant: Josephina 
Garcia.  Agency Claimed Against: City of Porterville.   

  
3 - Government Code Section 54956.95 – Liability Claim: Claimant: Efrain Garcia.  Agency 
Claimed Against: City of Porterville.   

  
4 - Government Code Section 54956.95 – Liability Claim: Claimant: Michael 
McElhaney.  Agency Claimed Against: City of Porterville.   

  
5 - Government Code Section 54956.95 – Liability Claim: Claimant: Jaime 
Martinez.  Agency Claimed Against: City of Porterville.   

  
6 - Government Code Section 54956.95 – Liability Claim: Claimant: Daniella 
Swanson.  Agency Claimed Against: City of Porterville.   

  
7 - Government Code Section 54956.95 – Liability Claim: Claimant: Brandon 
Wilson.  Agency Claimed Against: City of Porterville.   

  
8 - Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(1) – Conference with Legal Counsel – Existing 
Litigation: Rae Dean Strawn v. Bruce Sokoloff et al., U.S. District Court, Eastern District, 
Case No. 1:22-CV-1245-AWIEPG.   

  
9 - Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(3) – Conference with Legal Counsel – Anticipated 
Litigation – Significant exposure to litigation: Six (6) cases in which facts are not yet known 
to potential plaintiff.   

  
10 - Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(4) – Conference with Legal Counsel – 
Anticipated Litigation – Initiation of litigation: One Case.    

 



 
 

Page 2 of 11 

 
11 - Government Code Section 54957 – Threat to public services or facilities: Consultation 
with Jake Castellow, Porterville EOC Incident Commander.    

 

6:37 P.M. RECONVENE OPEN SESSION AND REPORT ON REPORTABLE ACTION 
TAKEN IN CLOSED SESSION  
  
City Attorney Lew reported action pertaining to A-2, A-3, A-4, A-5, A-6, and A-7, as follows: 
 
A-2. On a MOTION made by Council Member Beltran, and SECONDED by Vice Mayor Carrillo 

the City Council unanimously denied the claim filed by Josephina Garcia. 
  

Documentation: M.O. 01-050223 
Disposition: Claim denied.  
 
A-3. On a MOTION made by Council Member Beltran, and SECONDED by Vice Mayor Carrillo 

the City Council unanimously denied the claim filed by Efrain Garcia. 
  

Documentation: M.O. 02-050223 
Disposition: Claim denied.  
 
A-4. On a MOTION made by Council Member Beltran, and SECONDED by Vice Mayor Carrillo 

the City Council unanimously denied the claim filed by Michael McElhaney.  
  

Documentation: M.O. 03-050223 
Disposition: Claim denied.  
 
A-5. On a MOTION made by Council Member Meister, and SECONDED by Council Member 

Beltran the City Council unanimously denied the claim filed by Jaime Martinez.  
   

Documentation: M.O. 04-050223 
Disposition: Claim denied.  
 
A-6. On a MOTION made by Council Member Weyhrauch, and SECONDED by Council 

Member Beltran the City Council unanimously denied the claim filed by Daniella Swanson. 
  

Documentation: M.O. 05-050223 
Disposition: Claim denied.  
 
A-7. On a MOTION made by Council Member Meister, and SECONDED by Mayor Flores the 

City Council unanimously denied the claim filed by Brandon Wilson.  
  

Documentation: M.O. 06-050223 
Disposition: Claim denied.  

 

  
The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Council Member Weyhrauch  
  



 
 

Page 3 of 11 

Invocation – a member of the public came forward and gave an invocation.  
 

  
PRESENTATIONS 

  
Public Works Flood Fighters  
Presentation of Audit for Fiscal Year 2021-2022 - Jeffrey Peek, CPA, CliftonLarsonAllen, 
LLP 

 

  
  
ORAL COMMUNICATIONS  

 Brock Neeley, Porterville, spoke in favor of AB 1090 and SB 94 and provided the Council 
with information.  

 Yolanda Bocanegra, Flag Day Committee Representative, stated that the annual Flag Day 
Ceremony is at risk of not being able to continue due to lack of interest, leadership, and 
physical and monetary donations, and requested the City’s assistance.  

 Josh Flowers, Strathmore, stated that he hopes Council will take a serious stance in addressing 
the ongoing homeless situation in the city.    

 Sergio Gonzalez, Porterville, voiced concerns regarding the Santa Fe Railroad.  
 Kristy Martin, Porterville Chamber of Commerce, shared updates on upcoming events such 

the ribbon cutting for RWM Home Loans, First Friday Coffee sponsored by ITC, ribbon 
cutting for the Eagle Mountain Casino, Buisness After Hours at Valley Strong; and recognized 
City of Porterville Development Assosciate Alida Verduczo as their Ambassador of the 
Month.  

 Gail Nuckols, Porterville, voiced concerns regarding water usage in the area of Westwood 
across from the casino.    

 Ed McKervey, Porterville, voiced opposition to AB 1090 and SB 94, stating law and order 
needed to be restored in the city.  

 Bob Nuckols, Portervillle, spoke of unsafe road conditions in the area of the Sports Complex. 
 Adonis Nuckols (via teleconference), Porterville, voiced concern with residents parking on 

Scranton Road along the Sports Complex.  
  
REPORTS  

 

    

  I. Staff Informational Reports 
   

1.  Charitable Car Washes Quarterly Report Calendar Year 2023   
  

2.  Code Enforcement Quarterly Report FY 2022-2023 (January - March 2023)   
  

3.  Street Performance Measure Quarterly Report FY 2022-2023 (January - March 2023)   
  

4.  Building Permit Activity Quarterly Report FY 2022-2023 (January - March 2023)   
  

5.  Ohv Park Quarterly Report FY 2022-2023 (January - March 2023)   
  

6.  Golf Course Quarterly Report FY 2022-2023 (January - March 2023)   
  

7.  City Commission And Committee Attendance Quarterly Report FY 2022-2023 (January 
- March 2023)   

  
8.  City Council Member Appointments Attendance Quarterly Report FY 2022-23 (January 
- March 2023)   

 



 
 

Page 4 of 11 

  
CONSENT CALENDAR  

 
COUNCIL ACTION: MOVED by Council Member Meister, SECONDED by Vice Mayor 

Carrillo that the City Council approve Items Nos. 1-16. The motion carried 
unanimously. 
  

 

1. CITY COUNCIL MINUTES OF NOVEMBER 15, 2022, AND APRIL 18, 2023.  
    

Recommendation: That the Council approve the draft Minutes of November 15, 2022, and 
April 18, 2023. 
  

Documentation: M.O. 07-050223 
Disposition: Approved. 

 

  

2. PURCHASE OF A POLICE ALL TERRAIN VEHICLE   
   

Recommendation: That the City Council authorize staff to purchase a Polaris Ranger Crew 
XP1000 in the amount of $44,971.49 plus the applicable sales tax, from 
Polaris Government and Defense Sales.  
  

Documentation: M.O. 08-050223 
Disposition: Approved. 

 

  

3. PURCHASE OF A PUBLIC SAFETY FACILITY WELLNESS DOG  
   

Recommendation: That the City Council: 
1. Approve the purchase of a new Public Safety Facility Wellness Dog and 

related training from Top Dog Training Center for the amount of 
$15,750 (plus tax), and 

2. Authorize the Chief of Police to enter into an agreement with Top Dog 
Training Center to acquire said service dog and training. 

  
Documentation: M.O. 09-050223 
Disposition: Approved. 

 

  

4. AUTHORIZATION TO PURCHASE SPECIALIZED EQUIPMENT – 
ELECTRIC BLOWER BYPASS VALVE  



 
 

Page 5 of 11 

Recommendation: That the City Council: 
1. Authorize the purchase of a new electric blower bypass valve for a not-

to-exceed amount of $26,074 which includes taxes, shipping and a ten 
percent (10%) contingency from Kaeser Compressors;  

2. Direct the Finance Director to initiate a Purchase Order to Kaeser 
Compressors for a not-to-exceed amount of $26,074 which includes 
taxes, freight and a ten percent (10%) contingency;  

3. Direct the Finance Director to make payment to Kaeser Compressors 
upon receipt of an invoice approved by the Public Works Director. 

Documentation: M.O. 10-050223 
Disposition: Approved.  

 

 

5. AUTHORIZATION TO NEGOTIATE CONSULTANT AGREEMENT - 
PARKS MASTER PLAN  
   

Recommendation: That the City Council authorize staff to negotiate a scope of services and 
contract with QK, Inc. 
  

Documentation: M.O. 11-0502223 
Disposition: Approved. 

 

  

6. ACCEPTANCE OF FINAL SUBDIVISION MAP - THE VILLAS AT SIERRA 
MEADOWS, PHASE 3 (SMEE HOMES, INC.)  
   

Recommendation: That the City Council: 
1. Approve the final subdivision map of The Villas at Sierra Meadows, 

Phase 3; 
2. Accept all offers of dedication shown on the final map or by separate 

deed document; and 
3. Authorize the City Clerk to file said map with the County Recorder. 
  

Documentation: M.O. 12-050223 
Disposition: Approved. 

 

  

7. CONSIDERATION OF REFUSE ENCLOSURE & PARKING STALL 
CONSTRUCTION/INSTALLATION AND USE AGREEMENT BETWEEN 
CITY OF PORTERVILLE AND SEQUOIA IMAGING GROUP LLC DBA 
CALIFORNIA MEDICAL IMAGING CENTER  
   

Recommendation: That the City Council 
1.  Approve the Refuse Enclosure and Parking Stall 

Construction/Installation and Use Agreement Between the City of 
Porterville and Sequoia Imaging Group LLC dba California Medical 
Imaging; and 



 
 

Page 6 of 11 

2.  Authorize the Mayor to sign the agreement. 
  

Documentation: M.O. 13-050223 
Disposition: Approved. 

 

  

8. APPROVAL OF AIRPORT LEASE AGREEMENT - LOT NO. 8  
   

Recommendation: That the City Council: 
1. Approve the Lease Agreement for Lot No. 8 at the Porterville Municipal 

Airport between the City of Porterville and REACH Air Medical 
Services, LLC; and  

2. Authorize the Mayor to sign the Lease Agreement on behalf of the City. 
   

Documentation: M.O. 14-050223 
Disposition: Approved. 

 

  

9. INTENT TO SET A PUBLIC HEARING TO TRANSITION TO PHASE III OF 
THE CITY'S WATER CONSERVATION PLAN  
   

Recommendation: That the City Council direct the City Clerk to notice a Public Hearing to 
discuss the transition from Phase IV to Phase III of the City's Water 
Conservation Plan at its meeting on May 17, 2023. 
  

Documentation: M.O. 15-050223 
Disposition: Approved. 

 

  

10. FINANCIAL STATUS REPORTS  
   

Recommendation: That the City Council accept the Financial Status Reports as presented. 
  

Documentation: M.O. 16-050223 
Disposition: Approved. 

 

  

11. QUARTERLY INVESTMENT PORTFOLIO  
   

Recommendation: That the City Council accept the quarterly Investment Portfolio Summary 
Report. 
  

Documentation: M.O. 17-050223 
Disposition: Approved. 

 

  

12. COMMUNITY CIVIC EVENT - TULARE COUNTY JUNIOR LIVESTOCK 
SHOW AND COMMUNITY FAIR - PORTERVILLE FAIR - MAY 17-21, 2023 
    



 
 

Page 7 of 11 

Recommendation: That the City Council approve the Community Civic Event application 
from the Tulare County Jr. Livestock Show and Community Fair, to hold 
the Porterville Fair from May 17 to May 21, 2023, subject to the restrictions 
and requirements contained in the Application and Agreement, Exhibit A, 
Exhibit B, and Exhibit C.  
  

Documentation: M.O. 18-050223 
Disposition: Approved. 

 

  

13. COMMUNITY CIVIC EVENT - PORTERVILLE AREA COORDINATING 
COUNCIL - SPORTS CUTS BARBER BATTLE - MAY 7, 2023  
   

Recommendation: That the City Council approve the Community Civic Event application 
from the Porterville Area Coordinating Council to hold the Sports Cuts 
Barber Battle on May 7, 2023, subject to the requirements and restrictions 
contained in the Application and Agreement, Exhibit A, Exhibit B, and 
Exhibit C. 
  

Documentation: M.O. 19-050223 
Disposition: Approved. 

 

  

14. AMENDMENT TO EMPLOYEE PAY & BENEFIT PLAN – PORTERVILLE 
CITY FIREFIGHTERS ASSOCIATION  
   

Recommendation: That the City Council approve the draft Resolution amending the Employee 
Pay and Benefit Plan pertaining to the Porterville City Firefighters 
Association employees. 
  

Documentation: Resolution No. 19-2023 
Disposition: Approved. 

 

  

15. RESOLUTION APPROVING ONE-TIME FLOOD FIGHT HAZARD PAY 
FOR APPLICABLE EXEMPT EMPLOYEES  
   

Recommendation: That the City Council approve the draft resolution approving one-time 
flood fight hazard pay for applicable employees in Management and 
Confidential Series and Unrepresented Management Employees. 
  

Documentation: Resolution No. 20-2023 
Disposition: Approved. 

 

  

16. STATUS AND REVIEW OF LOCAL DROUGHT EMERGENCY  
   



 
 

Page 8 of 11 

Recommendation: That the City Council receive the report of status and review of the 
Declaration of Local Emergency and determine the need exists to continue 
said Declaration. 
  

Documentation: M.O. 20-050223 
Disposition: Approved. 

 

 

 
PUBLIC HEARINGS  

 

17. ASSEMBLY BILL 481 - USE OF MILITARY EQUIPMENT ANNUAL 
REVIEW  
   

Recommendation: That the the City Council, per the requirements of Assembly Bill 481: 
1.  Allow public comment and questions concerning the annual report and 

the funding, acquisition and use of the equipment; 
2.  Review and renew PPD Policy 704 – Military Equipment (Attachment 

1); 
3. Review the AB 481 Military Equipment Annual Report 2022 

(Attachment 2); and 
4.  By opting not to modify or rescind, affirm Ordinance No. 1892. 
  

City Manager Lollis introduced the item and Police Chief Jake Castellow presented the staff 
report. 

 
Mayor Flores opened the Public Hearing at 7:41 p.m. and closed it at 7:42 p.m. when no 

one came forward to speak.  
   
COUNCIL ACTION: MOVED by Mayor Flores, SECONDED by Vice Mayor Carrillo that the 

City Council renew PPD Policy 704 - Military Equipment; and reaffirmed 
Ordinance No. 1892. The motion carried unanimously. 
  

Documentation: M.O. 21-050223 
Disposition: Approved. 

 

 

 
SCHEDULED MATTERS  

 

18. CONSIDER RESOLUTIONS OF OPPOSITION TO ASSEMBLY BILL 1090 
(JONES-SAWYER) AND STATE SENATE BILL 94 (CORTESE)  
   

Recommendation: That the City Council consider Resolutions of Opposition to Assembly Bill 
1090 (Jones-Sawyer) and Senate Bill 94 (Cortese). 
  

City Manager Lollis introduced the item and presented the staff report. 
 
Council Member Weyhrauch made a motion to continue this Scheduled Matter related AB 

1090 and SB 94, to the next council meeting, to allow more time for council to gather more 
information before making a determination. The motion died for lack of a second.   



 
 

Page 9 of 11 

 
Council Member Meister made a motion to put forward a resolution of opposition to AB 1090 

and SB 94. The motion died for lack of a second.  
  
COUNCIL ACTION: MOVED by Council Member Meister, SECONDED by Council Member 

Weyhrauch, that the City Council continue the item to the next City 
Council meeting. 
 
AYES:           Meister, Beltran, Weyhrauch   
NOES:           Carrillo, Flores 
ABSTAIN:    None  
ABSENT:      None 
  

Documentation: M.O. 22-050223 
Disposition: Consideration Continued.  

 

  

19. STATUS AND REVIEW OF DECLARATION OF LOCAL FLOOD 
EMERGENCY  
   

Recommendation: That the City Council:  
1. Receive the report of status and review of the Declaration of Local 

Emergency and determine the need exists to continue said Declaration; 
2. Provide direction on the function and hours of the Armory TEP after 

noon on May 5, 2023; and 
3. Ratify the emergency expenditures of $77,396.67 for a trailer-mounted 

6" dewatering and sewage pump, and $5,436.00 for local trucking 
services of riprap material for the Public Works Department. 

  
City Manager Lollis introduced the item and presented the staff report. 

  
COUNCIL ACTION: MOVED by Council Member Weyhrauch, SECONDED by Council 

Member Meister that the City Council continue the Declaration of Local 
Emergency; transition the Armory Temporary Evacuation Point to a twelve 
hour shelter starting May 5, 2023 at noon, along with the removal of the 
on-site mobile shower and portable restroom facilities on the premises; 
bring back the item to the 2nd council meeting in June; and ratify the 
emergency expenditures of $77,396.67 for a trailer-mounted 6” dewatering 
and sewage pump, and $5,436.00 for local trucking services of riprap 
material for the Public Works Department. The motion carried 
unanimously. 
  

Documentation: M.O. 23-050223 
Disposition: Approved. 

 

 

  
 
  
AB 1234 REPORTS  

 



 
 

Page 10 of 11 

 
1.  Mighty 190 Committee - April 19, 2023  
Vice Mayor Carrillo stated that she had been unable to attend the meeting.   

   
2.  Tulare County Taskforce on Homelessness - April 19, 2023  
Mayor Flores reported on those in attendance, approval of minutes, discussion and review of 
the ByLaws; and updates on Homekey, Mobile Shower Units, and local efforts to address 
homelessness.   

   
3.  San Joaquin Valley Special City Selection Committee - April 20, 2023  
Council Member Weyrauch reported on the approval of minutes and appointments to the 
governing board.  

   
4.  Porterville Area Development Authority (PADA) Board - April 21, 2023  
Council Member Weyhrauch reported on the approval minutes; the reorganization of the 
Board of Directors; action items regarding the reimbursement of eligible expenses for the 
Tertiary Treatment Facility and the Storm Drain Recharge Basin in the area of the new 
casino; and updates on the local road’s improvements and Tule River Active Transportation 
Plan Update.   

   
5.  Tulare County Regional Transit Agency (TCRTA) Board - April 21, 2023  
Council Member Weyhrauch reported the introduction of an amended agenda, reports from 
the Executive Committee and Sustainability Committee; spoke of several reports related to 
employee recognition, grants and grant management, regional fare collection, transit 
operations; and the approval of minutes and a discussion regarding the professional services 
agreement for an Interim Director.   

   
6.  Tulare County Economic Development Corporation (TCEDC) Board - April 26, 2023 
Mayor Flores reported on the approval of minutes, approval of financials, and updates on 
the project and client services.  

   
7.  Internal City Audit Committee - April 26, 2023 (Cancelled)   

  

ORAL COMMUNICATIONS  
 Brock Neeley, Porterville, noted the hypocrisy surrounding AB 1090 and SB 94. 

 
OTHER MATTERS  

 Council Member Beltran lauded the Public Works Department for their efforts during the 
flood fight; spoke of the recent spring clean-up event; and thanked the committee volunteers 
for their service to the community. 

 Council Member Weyhrauch lauded city staff for their contributions to the city; encouraged 
all employees to focus on their personal health and wellness; and spoke of a  recent event 
where a staff member had deescalated a situation.  

 Council Member Meister thanked staff for their hard work; and spoke of how certain policies 
directly impacted the city.  



 
 

Page 11 of 11 

 Vice Mayor Carrillo thanked the flood fighters for their efforts; stressed the importance of 
mental health and wellness for the departments; stated she is looking forward to the Casino 
Grand Opening; and acknowledged Mayor Flores for her experience and attendance to the 
various committees and events.  

 Mayor Flores spoke of her attendance to the Imagine Arts ribbon cutting, the Memorial Quilt 
Unveiling in Visalia, CA, the Arbor Day Celebration, and the Leadership Porterville 
Fundraising Event. Mayor Flores also spoke of several upcoming events such as the 
Commission Pageant, a Zeronox event, the Cinco De Mayo Parade, and a trip to Washington 
D.C.  

 City Manager Lollis spoke of Administrative Professionals Day and said he appreciates staff 
for all that they do; invited the Council to an upcoming staff luncheon; and spoke of City 
Attorney Julia Lew’s upcoming birthday.  

  
CLOSED SESSION  
None.   
  
ADJOURNMENT –  
The Council adjourned at 9:29 p.m. to the meeting of May 16, 2023, at 5:30 p.m.  
  

 
 
 
 
 Fernando Gabriel-Moraga, Deputy City Clerk 

 
SEAL 
 
 
 
 
Martha A. Flores, Mayor  

 



 

  Item No.  2. 

 
 
 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA – MAY 16, 2023 
   
  
SUBJECT: Purchase of Personal Protective Equipment 
    
SOURCE: Fire  
    
COMMENT: The Porterville Fire Department is currently in the process of hiring one new Fire 

Captain to fill a vacancy at that rank within the Department. This firefighter is new 
to the City and has not been issued Personal Protective Equipment (PPE). 
Pursuant to National Fire Protection Association (NFPA) Guidelines, each 
firefighter responsible for responding to structure fires is required to have two 
custom fitted sets of Personal Protective Equipment (PPE) for structure fires.  
 
The Department has a standard uniform PPE specification, based on the Globe 
Custom turnout. Curtis is the only supplier that distributes Globe Customs in this 
area, and has provided a quote to provide two sets for a cost including tax of 
$7,249.83, as well as a ten percent (10%) contingency for a total price not to 
exceed 7,974.81. The Department must have this equipment in hand before the 
firefighter can be onboard.  Funds are available for this purchase in the Fire 
Department's General Fund budget.  

    
RECOMMENDATION: That the City Council approve the purchase of two sets of 

turnouts from Curtis at a cost of $7,249.83, with an added ten 
percent (10%) contingency of $724.98, for the total purchase to 
not exceed $7,974.81  

    
ATTACHMENTS: 1. Curtis Quote 
  
Appropriated/Funded:  
  
Review By:  
  Department Director:  

Bryan Cogburn, Fire Chief 
 
Final Approver: John Lollis, City Manager 

 
 









 

  Item No.  3. 

 
 
 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA – MAY 16, 2023 
   
  
SUBJECT: Authorization to Advertise for Bids - Main Street Reconstruction Project 

(Putnam Avenue to Morton Avenue) 
    
SOURCE: Engineering and Project Management  
    
COMMENT: The Plans and Project Manual have been prepared for the Main Street 

Reconstruction Project between Putnam Avenue and Morton Avenue. The 
project will consist of the removal and replacement of the existing asphalt and 
base and the 6" cast iron water main. The project also includes the installation 
of new barrier curb and gutter, detectable warnings, conduit for fiber optic line, 
and installing video detection at the intersection of Main Street and Putnam 
Avenue and Main Street and Morton Avenue. Purple pipe will be installed 
along the stretch of road in order to prepare for the future use of reclaimed 
water throughout the City. 
 
The Engineer's Estimate of Probable Cost for the project is $1,661,187.23. An 
additional $166,118 is necessary for construction contingency (10%) and 
$166,118 is required for construction management, surveying, quality control 
and inspection services (10%), equating to a total construction cost of 
$1,993,423.23. 
 
Funding for this project is provided from Road Maintenance Rehabilitation 
Account (SB1/Special Gas Tax Funds) in the amount of $1,548,748. Up to an 
additional $1,000,000 in Local Transportation Funds is available as approved in 
the 2022/2023 Fiscal Year Budget making this a fully funded project. 

    
RECOMMENDATION: That the City Council: 

1. Approve staff's recommended Plans and Project Manual; 
2. Authorize staff to advertise for bids on the project;and 
3. Authorize the City Engineer to negotiate construction 
surveying services with one of the firms as approved by Council 
MO #04-041922. 

    
ATTACHMENTS: 1. Locator Map 

2. Engineer's Estimate 
  
Appropriated/Funded:  
  
Review By:  
  Department Director:  

Javier Sanchez, Engineering & Project Management Director 



 

  Item No.  3. 

 
Final Approver: Patrice Hildreth, Deputy City Manager 

 
 



N

TULARE

N

180

245

63

198

137

190

99

43
65

190

190
137

198

Know what's below.
before you dig.Call

R

W THURMAN AVE

N 
M

AI
N 

ST

E HARRISON AVE

E MORTON AVE

E PUTNAM AVE

E CLEVELAND AVE

N 
 2

ND
  S

T

N 
 3

RD
  S

T

N 
  4

TH
  S

T

N 
HO

CK
ET

T 
ST

N

N 
  D

 S
T

Ó

L:\Projects\2019\190121\ACAD\Improvements\ST\190121-CV-PHASE ONE.dwg, 5/5/2023 5:18:54 PM, Client Submittal, Plotted by MAG



PREPARED BY:  MARCO GONZALEZ

Date: 5/5/2023

ITEM

NO.
DESCRIPTION QTY UNIT PRICE AMOUNT

1 Mobilization & Demobilization 1 L.S. $96,100.00 $96,100.00

2 Prepare and Maintain Traffic Control Plan 1 L.S. $20,000.00 $20,000.00

3 Demolition & Excavation 1 L.S. $50,000.00 $50,000.00

4 Remove Existing Traffic Loop Detectors 12 EA $400.00 $4,800.00

5 Perform Utility Potholing 1 LS $10,000.00 $10,000.00

6 Remove Existing 6" Cast Iron Water line 1 LS $2,500.00 $2,500.00

7 Construct City Std.  Barrier Curb & Gutter 1226 LF $55.00 $67,430.00

8 Construct City Std.  Barrier Curb 870 LF $45.00 $39,150.00

9 Protect and Reconstruct Decorative City Catch Basin to 
Grade

12 EA $2,500.00 $30,000.00

10 Furnish and Install Detectable Warning Surface 681 SF $50.00 $34,050.00

11 Furnish and Install Banner Poles 2 EA $15,000.00 $30,000.00

12 Sheeting & Shoring 1 LS $15,000.00 $15,000.00

13 Furnish and Install 4" PVC Conduit 1402 LF $100.00 $140,200.00

14 Furnish and Install Utility Box and Sweeps 9 EA $1,200.00 $10,800.00

15 Furnish and Install 12" PVC C900 Purple Pipe 871 LF $200.00 $174,200.00

16 Furnish and Install 12" Gate Valve 2 EA $6,000.00 $12,000.00

17 Furnish and Install 12" Cap Assembly 2 EA $2,500.00 $5,000.00

18 Furnish and Install 2" City Std Irrigation Water Service 1 EA $5,000.00 $5,000.00

19 Bore 4" Conduit at Decorative Crosswalk 8 EA $500.00 $4,000.00

20 Decorative Paver Crosswalk Replacement 7 EA $2,500.00 $17,500.00

21 Signing, Striping, and Pavement Markings 1 LS $15,000.00 $15,000.00

22 Trench Pavement Restoration 400 SF $10.00 $4,000.00

23 Intersection Pavement Cold Planing (1.5" depth) 8659 SF $0.50 $4,329.50

24 Full Width Pavement Cold Planing (4.5" min. depth) 53709 SF $1.60 $85,934.40

25 Furnish and Place Hot Mix Asphalt Overlay 1710 TON $100.00 $171,000.00

26 Furnish and Place 10" Plug Pavement Patch at New 
Concrete

2096 SF $5.00 $10,480.00

27 Furnish and Install Paving Mat 4,500 SY $15.00 $67,493.33

28 Adjust Water Valve to Grade 4 EA $800.00 $3,200.00

29 Adjust Manhole Frame and Cover to Grade 0 EA $1,500.00 $0.00

30 Signing, Striping, and Pavement Markings 1 LS $20,000.00 $20,000.00

31 Furnish and Install Video Detetction Cameras and 
Appurtenances (Putnam & Main, Morton & Main)

2 EA $175,000.00 $350,000.00

32 Reconstruct Existing Survey Monuments 5 EA $2,200.00 $11,000.00

$1,510,167.23

$151,020.00

$1,661,187.23

Subtotal:

10% Contingencies:

Total:

100% Submittal

PRELIMINARY OPINION OF PROBABLE CONSTRUCTION COSTS

Job # 190121 PHASE 1

LOCATION: PORTERVILLE BRANCH

CLIENT/PROJECT: CITY OF PORTERVILLE/ MAIN STREET IMPROVEMENTS PROJECT

ENGINEERING   PLANNING LAND SURVEYING  GIS/GPS  ENVIRONMENTAL SCIENCES

901 E. Main Street, P.O. Box 3699 Visalia, CA 93278 (559)733-0440 Fax (559) 733-7821



 

  Item No.  4. 

 
 
 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA – MAY 16, 2023 
   
  
SUBJECT: Authorization to Distribute Request for Qualifications - Emergency Operations 

Center & Public Safety Headquarters 
    
SOURCE: Engineering and Project Management  
    
COMMENT: The City is proposing the development of an Emergency Operation Center 

(EOC) & Public Safety Headquarters at 41 W Thurman Avenue; the former site 
of the City's library. The EOC & Public Safety Headquarters will serve as the 
critical coordination hub during emergency incidents and a centralized location 
for emergency response and recovery operations in Porterville and the greater 
southeastern Tulare County Area. The location's proximity to Fire Station 71 
and the Porterville Police Department makes it ideal to function as a public 
safety administrative building as well. The design will also incorporate a 
memorial area to honor Fire Captain Ramon "Ray" Figueroa and Firefighter 
Patrick Jones, who both tragically lost their lives during the catastrophic 
Library fire on February 18, 2020. 
 
With these concepts in place, staff proceeded with the preparation of a draft 
Request for Qualifications for design services for this project. The architectural 
and engineering firms interested in the project shall submit a statement of 
qualifications that will be reviewed and rated by a selection panel. The highest 
ranking firms, typically two to three firms, may be asked to participate in an 
interview panel and ranked again. 
 
Staff will then present the results of the ranking to City Council for approval 
and to direct staff to negotiate a fee with the highest ranking firm or the firm 
determined by Council. The chosen firm will meet with staff to fine tune the 
scope and deliver a fee. If the fee is acceptable, staff will then seek the 
Council's approval to execute a Service Agreement so that the firm can 
commence with the needed design work for the Emergency Operations Center 
& Public Safety Headquarters Project. 
 
In July of 2022, the City received notification that an appropriation in the 
amount of $10 million dollars in State funding was approved as part of the 
California Assembly Bill 178, the Budge Act of 2022, for the development of 
this project. 

    
RECOMMENDATION: That the City Council authorize staff to distribute Design Services 

Request for Qualifications for the Emergency Operations Center 
& Public Safety Headquarters. 

    



 

  Item No.  4. 

ATTACHMENTS: 1. Draft Request for Qualifications 
2. Locator Map 

  
Appropriated/Funded:  
  
Review By:  
  Department Director:  

Javier Sanchez, Engineering & Project Management Director 
 
Final Approver: John Lollis, City Manager 

 
 



 

 
 

REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS 
 
 

Design Services – Emergency Operations Center (EOC) & Public 
Safety Headquarters 

May 2023 
 
 
 

PREPARED BY: 
ENGINEERING & PROJECT MANAGEMENT DEPARTMENT 

on behalf of the Fire & Police Departments 
May 2023 

 
 
 
 
  



I INTRODUCTION AND OBJECTIVES: 
  
The City of Porterville (hereinafter referred to as ''CITY'') is requesting statements of 
qualifications (SOQs) from qualified architectural and/or engineering firms for the purpose of 
developing plans and specifications for an Emergency Operations Center (EOC) & Public Safety 
Headquarters to be located at 41 W Thurman Avenue; the former site of the City’s library.  
 
The City endeavors to design and construct a EOC & Public Safety Headquarters that will serve 
as the critical coordination hub during emergency incidents and a centralized location for 
emergency response and recovery operations in Porterville and the greater southeastern Tulare 
County area. The building will also serve as the public safety administrative building with the 
location’s proximity to Fire Station 71 and the Porterville Police Department and should 
incorporate a traffic management system or be traffic management system capable.  
 
The design will also incorporate a memorial area to honor Fire Captain Ramon “Ray” Figueroa 
and Firefighter Patrick Jones who both tragically lost their lives during the catastrophic Library 
fire on February 18, 2020. The City wishes to receive full construction documents within 9-12 
months of contractual agreement. 
 
This document identifies the general project scope and procedures for Consultant involvement 
in this process. Responding consultants must have relevant experience and the ability to 
provide the requisite professional services to complete all necessary and required materials and 
equipment to meet all applicable Federal, State and Local codes. The completed project must 
be complete and usable and in compliance with all Federal, State and Local codes and 
regulations regarding Emergency Operation Centers.  

 
II EXAMINATION OF SOQ DOCUMENTS: 
 

By submitting an SOQ, each CONSULTANT represents that it has thoroughly examined and 
become familiar with the work required under this RFQ and that it is capable of performing 
quality work to achieve the objectives of CITY. 

 
III ADDENDA/CLARIFICATIONS: 
 

Any CITY changes to this RFQ will be made via written addendum. No verbal modification shall 
be binding.  

 
IV SOQ REQUIREMENTS: 
 

SOQs for this project will be accepted at this office until 4:00 p.m., on Wednesday, June 21, 
2023. Three (3) copies of the SOQ shall be submitted in a sealed envelope, plainly marked 
“Statement of Qualifications for Emergency Operations Center.” Cost proposals shall not be 
submitted until requested by the CITY. SOQs shall be addressed to: 

 
   Sarah Weaver, Project Manager 



   Engineering & Project Management Department 
   City of Porterville 
   291 N. Main Street 
   Porterville, CA 93257 
 

The City reserves the right to reject any and all SOQs, which do not meet the requirements of 
this RFQ and/or any portion of the requirements of this project. 

 
V PRE-CONTRACTUAL EXPENSES: 
 
 Pre-contractual expenses are defined as expenses incurred by the CONSULTANT in:  

1) Preparing and reproducing its SOQ in response to this RFQ; 2) submitting its SOQ to CITY; 3) 
negotiating with CITY any matter related to this RFQ and CONSULTANT's SOQ; 4) other matters 
prior to the date of award of a Contract. 

  
 CITY shall not be liable for any pre-contractual expenses incurred by CONSULTANT in the 

preparation of SOQs. Pre-contractual expenses shall not be included in the cost proposal. 
 
VI  EXCEPTIONS/DEVIATIONS: 
 

Any exceptions to the requirements of this RFQ must be included in the CONSULTANT's SOQ. 
Such exceptions must be included as a separate element of the SOQ entitled “Exceptions and 
Deviations.” 

 
VII CONSULTANT REPRESENTATIVE:  
 

The CONSULTANT shall assign a responsible representative and an alternate, both of whom 
shall be identified in the SOQ. The CONSULTANT's representative shall remain in responsible 
charge for the duration of the project. Should the CONSULTANT's primary representative be 
unable to continue with the project, the CONSULTANT's alternate representative shall become 
the primary representative. No personnel changes will be acceptable without prior approval by 
CITY. CITY reserves the right to reject any changes in personnel at any time during the course of 
this project. CITY also reserves the right to terminate the contract if, in the opinion of CITY, 
substantial changes in project management may jeopardize the successful completion of this 
project to the satisfaction of CITY. 

 
VIII  LOCAL AGENCY REPRESENTATIVE: 
 
 Sarah Weaver, Project Manager, shall be the Contract Administrator and contact person for all 

communications with CITY.  
 
IX  INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS:  
 
 The CONSULTANT shall maintain and provide current copies to CITY of the following 
 minimum insurance coverage for the duration of this project:  



 Full liability under Worker’s Compensation laws of the State of California 
 General comprehensive liability (bodily injury and property damage)* 
 Professional liability insurance (errors and omissions)* 
 Automotive liability Insurance* 
 

*All must provide a combined single limit (CSL) of not less than $2 million per occurrence. 
     
X  INDEMNIFICATION: 
 

The CONSULTANT shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless CITY, its elected and appointed 
officers, employees agents from and against any and all claims, including attorney's fees and 
reasonable expenses for litigation or settlement, for any loss, damages, bodily injuries, and loss 
of property caused by negligent acts, omissions, or willful misconduct by the successful 
CONSULTANT and its subconsultants arising out of performance requirements of the Contract. 
 

XI  SUBCONTRACTING: 
 

Only those firms identified in the Contract as subcontractors or subconsultants shall be allowed 
to perform work for this project. Any amendments to this requirement shall be made in writing 
by prime CONSULTANT to CITY. CITY has the right to reject any requested amendments at any 
time during the course of this project. 
 

XII  FEDERAL, STATE, AND LOCAL LAWS: 
 

The CONSULTANT shall comply with all federal, state, and local laws, rules, regulations, 
ordinances, and statutes.  

 
XIII  SOQ EVALUATION CRITERIA: 
 

Evaluation criteria used to select the CONSULTANT shall include, but not be limited to, the 
following:  
 
A. Transmittal Letter; 
B. Firm(s) experience with similar projects and references;   
C. Firm(s) key personnel qualifications/certifications and experience, especially the project 

manager and individuals performing services; 
D. Firm(s) understanding of the project requirements; 
E. Project schedule. Firm(s) must detail ability to provide the required services in a timely 

and cost-effective manner to meet the required schedule; 
F. Firm(s) policy in providing Equal Employment Opportunity; and  
G. Firm(s) approach to provide the best product for CITY.   
 
The attached CITY’S Consultant Selection Rating Form shall be used to rate each firm. 
 

XIV  CONSULTANT SELECTION AND INTERVIEWS: 



CITY selection committee, consisting of the Contract Administrator and at least two additional 
staff members familiar with the project requirements, will review all SOQs and rank 
CONSULTANTs according to their demonstrated competence and professional qualifications as 
assessed by their response to this RFQ and the evaluation criteria contained in the CITY’S 
Consultant Selection Rating Form. The top three (3) highest ranked CONSULTANT(s) may be 
invited for oral interviews with CITY team to determine the top rated firm.  However, in the 
event one proposal is clearly superior to all other proposals, The City of Porterville reserves the 
right to eliminate the oral interview process and present their recommendation to the City 
Council based solely on the proposals.  The Engineering & Project Management Director shall 
make a recommendation to the City Council to award a contract to the top rated firm. 
 
The City Council, at its sole discretion, may choose to accept staff’s recommendation, or may 
choose to award a contract to another consulting firm, or may choose not to award a contract 
as this time. The Contract will be a written Service Agreement between the Consultant and the 
City setting forth the scope of work, responsibilities, deliverables, schedule, ownership of work, 
insurance requirements, compensation, method of payment, and other points. A sample 
Service Agreement is included in this RFQ package. Please indicate on the transmittal letter the 
firm’s ability to comply with the Service Agreement provisions, including insurance coverage. 
 
Interviews are tentatively scheduled for July 10, 2023. Each participating firm will be contacted 
via telephone for verification of interview date and time. Failure to be available at the time of a 
scheduled interview shall be considered non-responsive and shall be cause for elimination from 
any further consideration. CITY reserves the right to begin negotiations and enter into a 
Contract without interviews or further discussion. 

 
XV  COST PROPOSAL: 
 

The cost proposal shall not be submitted until requested by the CITY. Negotiations with the top-
ranked candidate(s) may begin immediately. If an agreement cannot be reached within ten (10) 
working days, CITY may begin negotiations with the next selected candidate(s) and proceed. If 
necessary, this process will continue until either an agreement is reached or CITY elects to re-
advertise for new SOQs. CITY reserves the right to reject any and all proposals prior to award of 
a Contract. All cost proposals not opened shall be returned to their respective firms.  
     

XVI  CONTRACTS/AGREEMENTS: 
 

The successful CONSULTANT shall enter into upcoming Contracts with CITY that are based on 
the contents of this RFQ, the CONSULTANT's SOQ and cost proposal, and CITY Contract. Where 
two or more CONSULTANTs desire to submit a SOQ (joint venture), only one CONSULTANT shall 
be listed as prime CONSULTANT. All others shall be listed as subconsultants. The chosen 
CONSULTANT is expected to be presented at the City Council meeting scheduled for Tuesday, 
July 18, 2023. Issuance of this RFQ and receipt of SOQs does not commit CITY to award a 
Contract. CITY reserves the right to postpone award of a Contract for its own convenience, 
accept or reject any or all SOQs received in response to this RFQ, and cancel any or all portions 
of this RFQ and resulting Contract.  



XVII  COMPENSATION: 
 

A. All items of work required for completion of the project/s to result from this RFQ shall 
be paid for following the cost proposal format specified in each task order request. 
Costs for any and all items not specifically listed, but required to complete the work for 
projects (including all exceptions and deviations stated included in CONSULTANT's SOQ), 
shall be included as part of the total cost proposed. No additional compensation shall be 
paid for such items. No additional compensation shall be given for any reproduction 
costs, except those in excess of the requirements stated in this RFQ. Only a change in 
scope or any significant task addition or increase shall receive consideration for 
additional compensation. 

  
B. lf the CONSULTANT feels that any work it has been directed to perform is beyond the 

scope of the Contract and constitutes extra work, it shall notify CITY in writing within ten 
(10) days. CITY will review such notice and, if justified, authorize additional 
compensation to the CONSULTANT on a fair and equitable basis. 

 
C. Monthly progress payments will be made to the CONSULTANT only upon submittal of 

invoices to CITY. Said invoice shall indicate the percentage completion of each task, as 
well as the overall percentage completion of the entire project. In addition, an updated 
schedule showing tasks and their degree of completion shall be provided. 

 
XVIII  OWNERSHIP OF REPORTS AND DOCUMENTS: 
 

Originals of all documents, letters, drawings, design calculations, estimates, specifications, and 
other documents and data produced under the terms of the Contract shall become the 
property of CITY. CITY shall retain all rights in copyright. Copies may be made and retained by 
the CONSULTANT for its records, but shall not be furnished to others without the written 
consent of CITY for a period of three (3) years from the date of acceptance, by CITY, of all 
requirements of this project. 
 

XIX  SOQ FORMAT AND CONTENT: 
 
 SOQs shall be brief and include a concise address of the following information:  
  
 A.  Firm Experience: 
 

1. A brief list of similar projects completed in the last ten (10) years, indicate the 
specific relationship if other than principal and each firm's responsibilities. 
Descriptions of pertinent experience should include a summary of work 
performed, adherence to schedules, the duration of each project, and the name, 
title, and phone number of clients that may be contacted for reference. 
Particular attention should be paid to past projects that prove experience in 
Design of Emergency Operations Centers, Police or Fire Facilities as well as other 
similar facilities. 



 
2. Other information that might aid CITY in ascertaining proposing firm's 

qualifications. 
 

 B. Consultant Team: 
 

Name of prime consulting firm, subconsultant(s), names of principals, associates, project 
manager, and key personnel, their proposed level and areas of responsibility, and their 
qualifications/certifications in those areas. The CONSULTANT's Project Manager and key 
personnel will be an important factor considered by CITY. 

 
1. Any changes to personnel assigned to this project shall be made in writing to 

CITY. CITY reserves the right to reject any proposal for modified personnel. 
 
2. If subconsultants are used, names of subconsultant's key personnel for the 

project, their professional experience, qualifications/certifications, and training, 
which are applicable to this project, and the scope of services that will be 
provided by each subconsultant. 

 
3. The office location from which the CONSULTANT(s) shall operate along with 

telephone and/or cell number of the project manager. 
 
 C. SOQ Format: 
 

1. SOQs shall contain no more than twenty (20) pages, excluding cover sheet, table 
of contents, index sheets, and resumes, double-sided, font size no less than 10 
pt., and single or double-spaced. Cover letters will be counted as part of the 
twenty sheets. The City encourages the use of recycled materials. 

 
  2. SOQs should include, but not be limited to, the following: 

a. Page numbering; 
b. Table of Contents, if applicable; 
c. Section dividers with tabs, if applicable; 
d. Identification of offering firms, including name, address, and telephone 

number of each firm; 
e. Prime CONSULTANT organizational chart, which includes subconsultant(s) 

with names and titles of personnel to be used for this project; 
f. Acknowledgment of receipt of RFQ addenda, if any; 
g. Concise, complete response addressing each of the items, ‘a’ through ‘p’, 

as shown in the City’s “Consultant Selection Rating Form”; and 
h. Exceptions to or deviations from the requirements of this RFQ, separating 

technical exceptions from contractual exceptions. Any alternative 
approach proposed by the CONSULTANT shall be thoroughly explained 
and shall meet the objectives of CITY. 

 



CITY OF PORTERVILLE 
REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS (RFQ) FOR DESIGN SERVICES FOR EMERGENCY OPERATIONS 

CENTER (EOC) & PUBLIC SAFETY HEADQUARTERS 
 

The City of Porterville (hereinafter referred to as ''CITY'') is requesting statements of 
qualifications (SOQs) from qualified architectural and/or engineering firms for the purpose of 
developing plans and specifications for an Emergency Operations Center (EOC) & Public Safety 
Headquarters to be located at 41 W Thurman Avenue; the former site of the City’s library.  
 
This document identifies the general project scope and procedures for Consultant involvement 
in this process. Responding consultants must have relevant experience and the ability to provide 
the requisite professional services. to complete all necessary and required material and 
equipment to meet all applicable Federal, State and Local codes (including codes and regulations 
regarding Emergency Operation Centers).  
 
SCOPE OF DESIGN SERVICES: 
 
The consultant will respond directly to the Engineering and Project Management Director or their 
designee on the project. The selected consultant will perform, but not be limited to the following 
tasks: 
 

1. Meet with City staff to ascertain the full scope of design work and determine the level 
and amount of information and drawings available to the consultant to assist in the 
preparation of the formal “scope of service”. Said scope shall be prepared and 
transmitted to the City for review and concurrence. The consultant shall include their 
“fee” for all work described in the scope of services and, if acceptable to the City, the 
scope of services and associated fee shall form the basis for the Consulting Services 
agreement. A brief description of some of the work needed is listed below. 

a. Final design plans and specifications for the development of an EOC & Public 
Safety Administration Building. 

i. The plans and specifications must meet all Federal, State and Local codes 
(including codes and regulations regarding Emergency Operation Centers). 

ii. Boundary and topography survey to establish property corners and design 
grades. Prepare legal descriptions and plat maps. 

iii. Plans and specifications shall be complete and Code compliant 
(construction ready) for all aspects of the project deliverables including but 
not limit to landscape & irrigation, foundation, plumbing, building 
structure, internal & external concrete/asphalt improvements and 
amenity improvements, etc. 
 

2. Field Surveys necessary for the establishment of property corners including descriptions 
and recording of said property corner establishment. Topography survey as needed to 
properly establish open space grades, building foundation, and floor elevations cognizant 
of the surrounding topography. Said topography survey shall be provided in such detail 



that the information will be used to establish landscape, hardscape and irrigation 
systems. 

 
3. Compile background data necessary and perform services required to prepare 

conceptual, preliminary and final plans, specifications, contract documents, special 
provisions, and special details needed for a complete and thorough project.   

 
4. Prepare an Engineer’s Estimate of Probable Cost Report. 

 
5. Provide clarifications and answer questions as needed during the construction bid 

process. 
 

6. Coordinate early consultation and ongoing meetings with City staff and staff at other 
agencies. 
 

7. Prepare the “Drawings of Record” and furnish the City with a digital set for the record. 
 

8. Provide other consulting services as available through the selected firm. 
 
DESIRABLE QUALIFICATIONS OF THE CONSULTANT: 
 
The City is seeking a qualified consultant to provide plans, specifications, and related 
documentation for an EOC & Public Safety Headquarters.  The desired consultant shall have the 
following qualifications: 
 

1. Experience in design and construction support of similar facilities or other experience 
relevant to this type of project. 

 
2. The Consultant’s proven ability to expeditiously and accurately produce the required 

product in a concise and useable format. 
 
3. The “design team” should be comprised of professionals with the requisite design 

expertise to prepare complete “construction ready” plans, specifications, shop drawing 
review, and construction assistance. 

 
4. The “design team” should include the proper mix of professionals (architectural, 

engineering, landscape, fire sprinkler, cost estimation, etc.). 
 
LOCAL AGENGY RESPONSIBILITIES: 
 
The CONSULTANT will report to the CITY’s Contract Administrator. The CONSULTANT shall not 
proceed with any work until the CITY provides the Notice to Proceed to the CONSULTANT. 
 
The CITY’s Contract Administrator will directly handle the project management and monitoring 



of the CONSULTANT’s work to ensure it is complete, accurate, and consistent with the terms 
and conditions of the CONSULTANT contract. The Contract Administrator and designees will 
also inspect, review, and discuss project progress, comply with Federal, State and Local policies 
and regulations, and other requirements to further the prosecution of the contract work with 
the least delay. 
 
The CITY’s Contract Administrator shall be responsible for the following: 
 

o Serve as the CITY’s primary contact person for the CONSULTANT 
o Monitor the CONSULTANT’s progress and provide direction 
o Review billings and determines whether costs billed are reasonable in relation to 

the work performed during billing period 
o Approve the CONSULTANT’s progress payments 
o Identify other CITY personnel for CONSULTANT to contact, if needed 

 
All records and documentation produced by the CONSULTANT become property of the CITY. 
 



C
O

N
S

U
L
T

A
N

T
 S

E
L
E

C
T

IO
N

 R
A

T
IN

G
 F

O
R

M
 

P
ro

je
c
t 
N

a
m

e
: 
  
  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
D

a
te

: 
P

ro
je

c
t 
N

u
m

b
e
r:

 

E
v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n
 F

a
c
to

r 

R
a
ti
n
g
 F

a
c
to

r 
N

u
m

e
ri
c
a
l R

a
n
g

e
 &

 
W

e
ig

h
tin

g
 B

a
s
e
d
 o

n
 

Im
p
o
rt

a
n
c
e
 o

f 
F

a
c
to

r 

F
IR

M
 

F
IR

M
 

F
IR

M
 

F
IR

M
 

S
c
o
re

 
S

c
o
re

 
S

c
o
re

 
S

c
o
re

 
a
. 
 C

a
p
a
b

ili
ty

 t
o

 p
e
rf

o
rm

 a
ll 

o
r 

m
o
s
t 
a
s
p
e
c
ts

 o
f 

th
e
 p

ro
je

c
t.
 

0
-1

0
 

b
. 
 R

e
c
e

n
t 
e
x
p

e
ri
e

n
c
e
 i
n
 p

ro
je

c
ts

 c
o
m

p
a
ra

b
le

 t
o
 t

h
e
 p

ro
p
o
s
e
d

 p
ro

je
c
t.

 
0
-1

0
 

c
. 
 F

ir
m

’s
 r

e
p
u
ta

tio
n
 f

o
r 

p
ro

fe
s
s
io

n
a

l i
n
te

g
ri
ty

 a
n
d
 c

o
m

p
e
te

n
c
e
. 

0
-5

 

d
. 
 K

e
y 

p
e
rs

o
n

n
e

l’s
 p

ro
fe

s
s
io

n
a
l 
b
a
c
k
g
ro

u
n
d
 a

n
d
 c

a
lib

e
r.

 
0
-7

 

e
. 
 A

d
e
q

u
a
te

 q
u
a
lif

ie
d
 p

e
rs

o
n
n
e

l a
va

ila
b

le
 f

o
r 

a
s
s
ig

n
m

e
n
t 
to

 t
h

e
 p

ro
je

c
t.

 
0
-5

 

f.
  
R

e
c
e
n
t 
e
x
p

e
ri
e

n
c
e
 i
n
 s

p
e
c
ia

liz
e
d
 a

re
a
s
 o

f 
e
x
p
e
rt

is
e

 a
s
s
o
c
ia

te
d
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 p

ro
je

c
t.
 

0
-5

 

g
. 
 D

e
m

o
n
s
tr

a
te

d
 a

b
ili

ty
 t

o
 m

e
e
t 
s
c
h
e
d
u
le

s
 o

r 
d

e
a

d
lin

e
s
. 

0
-1

0
 

h
. 
 D

e
m

o
n
s
tr

a
te

d
 a

b
ili

ty
 t

o
 c

o
m

p
le

te
 p

ro
je

c
ts

 w
ith

o
u
t 

h
a
v
in

g
 m

a
jo

r 
c
o
s
t 
e
s
c
a
la

ti
o
n

s
 o

r 
  
  
 o

ve
rr

u
n
s
. 

0
-7

 

i. 
 Q

u
a
lif

ic
a
tio

n
s
 a

n
d

 e
x
p
e
ri

e
n
c
e
 o

f 
o
u
ts

id
e
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a
n
ts

 r
e
g
u
la

rl
y 

e
n
g
a

g
e
d

 b
y 

th
e
  

  
  
c
o
n
s
u

lta
n

t 
u
n

d
e
r 

c
o
n
s
id

e
ra

tio
n

. 
0
-1

0
 

j.
  
Q

u
a
lit

y 
o
f 

p
ro

je
c
t 
p
re

vi
o

u
s
ly

 u
n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
. 

0
-1

0
 

k
. 
 F

a
m

ili
a
ri
ty

 w
ith

 a
n
d

 p
ro

x
im

it
y 

to
 t

h
e
 g

e
o
g
ra

p
h

ic
 l
o
c
a

tio
n

 o
f 

th
e
 p

ro
je

c
t.
 

0
-5

 

l. 
 C

a
p
a

b
ili

ty
 o

f 
a
 b

ra
n
c
h
 o

ff
ic

e
, 

w
h

ic
h
 w

ill
 d

o
 t
h

e
 w

o
rk

 t
o
 p

e
rf

o
rm

 in
d
e
p
e
n

d
e
n

tl
y 

o
f 

th
e
  

  
  
h
o
m

e
 o

ff
ic

e
, 
o
r 

c
o
n
ve

rs
e

ly
, 

its
 c

a
p

a
b

ili
ty

 t
o
 o

b
ta

in
 n

e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

 s
u

p
p
o
rt

 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 h

o
m

e
  

  
  
o
ff

ic
e
. 

0
-3

 

m
. 
 D

e
m

o
n
s
tr

a
tio

n
 o

f 
a
n

 u
n

d
e
rs

ta
n
d

in
g
 o

f 
th

e
 p

ro
je

c
t’s

 p
o
te

n
ti
a
l 
p
ro

b
le

m
s
 a

n
d
 t
h
e

 C
it
y’

s
  

  
  
  
s
p
e
c
ia

l 
c
o
n
c
e
rn

s
. 

0
-5

 

n
. 
 D

e
g
re

e
 o

f 
in

te
re

s
t 
s
h

o
w

n
 in

 u
n

d
e
rt

a
k
in

g
 t

h
e
 p

ro
je

c
t.
 

0
-3

 

o
. 
 E

v
id

e
n
c
e
 t
h

a
t 
c
o
n
s
u

lta
n

t 
is

 a
n

 e
q

u
a
l 
o
p

p
o
rt

u
n
it
y 

e
m

p
lo

ye
r.

 
0
-2

 

p
. 
 P

ro
x
im

it
y 

o
f 

fi
rm

’s
 o

ff
ic

e
 t
o
 p

ro
je

c
t.

 
0
-3

 

T
O

T
A

L
 S

C
O

R
E

:

R
A

N
K

IN
G

: 

P
:\

p
u

b
w

o
rk

s\
T

e
m

p
la

te
s\

C
O

P
 F

o
rm

s\
C

o
n

su
lt
a
n

t 
S

e
le

ct
io

n
 R

a
tin

g
 F

o
rm

.d
o

c
H

ig
h

e
s
t 
P

o
s
s
ib

le
 S

c
o
re

 =
 1

0
0

 



Rev. 2013-02-19 

SERVICE AGREEMENT 
DATE:  
 
PARTIES: City of Porterville, a California municipal corporation, hereinafter referred to as "CITY"; and 
(insert name), hereinafter referred to as "CONSULTANT". 
 
RECITALS: CITY has undertaken a project on which it is seeking assistance from CONSULTANT.  Said 
project which will hereinafter be referred to as "project" is described as follows: 
 
Project Name:  
 
Description of Project: In general, Consultant to provide (plans and specifications) (services) for the 
(proposed project). Details are summarized in the Scope of Services as Attachment “A”. 
  
IN CONSIDERATION OF MUTUAL COVENANTS AND AGREEMENTS HEREINAFTER set forth the 
parties hereto do contract and agree as follows: 
 
SECTION 1. CONTRACT SERVICES: 
 

CONSULTANT hereby agrees to provide the following services and materials, in a timely manner 
as described:. 
 
SECTION 2. PAYMENT: 
 

In consideration for said services and materials, CITY shall pay CONSULTANT on a time and 
materials basis (and/or not to exceed _____________ Dollars ($                ))..  
 

TIME OF PAYMENT: Progress payment requests shall be submitted by the 25th of each month.  
CONSULTANT should receive payment within 45 days of the date the bill is received. 
 
SECTION 3. COMPLETION DATE: 
 

The services to be performed by CONSULTANT will be commenced upon execution of this 
agreement and all “work directives” shall be completed by (date). In the case of ongoing testing and results 
protocol, the CONSULTANT shall submit results as required to CITY, State and/or Federal governing 
agencies. 

 
SECTION 4.  FAMILIARITY WITH PROJECT: 
 

CONSULTANT certifies and agrees that it is fully familiar with all of the details of the project required 
to perform its services.  CONSULTANT agrees it will not rely upon any opinions and representations of 
CITY unless CITY is the only available source of said information. 

 
SECTION 5.  INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR: 
 

It is expressly understood that CONSULTANT is entering into this contract and will provide all 
services and materials required hereunder as an independent contractor and not as an employee of CITY. 
CONSULTANT specifically warrants that it will have in full force and effect, valid insurance covering: 
 

(i) Full liability under worker's compensation laws of the State of California; and 
(ii) Bodily injury and property damage insurance in the amount not less than Two Million 

Dollars ($2,000,000) per occurrence; and  
(iii)     Errors and Omissions insurance of Two Million Dollars ($2,000,000) minimum per 

occurrence, if deductible for Errors and Omissions insurance is Fifty Thousand Dollars 
($50,000) or more, the City may require a Surety Bond for the deductible; and 

(iv)  Automotive liability in the amount not less than Two Million Dollars ($2,000,000) per 
occurrence; fully protecting CITY, its elected and appointed officers, employees, agents 
and assigns, against all claims arising from the negligence of CONSULTANT and any 



Service Agreement 
Page 2 of 3 
 
 

 

injuries to third parties, including employees of CITY and CONSULTANT.   
 
(v) To the fullest extent permitted by law, and subject to California Civil Code Sec 2782.8, 

CONSULTANT agrees to indemnify, including cost to defend, City, its elected and 
appointed officers and employees, from and against any and all claims, demands, costs, 
or liability that arise out of, or pertain to, or relate to the negligence, recklessness, or willful 
misconduct of Consultant and its employees or agents in the performance of services 
under this contract, but this indemnity does not apply to liability for damages arising from 
the sole negligence, active negligence, or willful acts of City; and does not apply to any 
passive negligence of the City unless caused at least in part by Consultant.  City agrees 
that in no event shall the cost to defend charged to Consultant exceed Consultant’s 
proportionate percentage of fault. However, if one or more defendant/s is unable to pay its 
share of defense costs due to bankruptcy or dissolution of the business, the Consultant 
shall meet and confer with other parties regarding unpaid defense costs and reallocate as 
allowed by law or stature. This duty to indemnify shall not be waived or modified by 
contractual agreement or acts of the parties.   

    
SECTION 6.  WORKMANSHIP AND MATERIALS: 
 

Every part of the work herein described shall be executed in a professional manner with competent, 
experienced personnel. Finished or unfinished material prepared under the agreement, prepared by 
CONSULTANT, shall become property of CITY. CONSULTANT hereby warrants that any materials 
prepared under this agreement shall be fit for the intended use contemplated by the parties. 

 
SECTION 7.  ASSIGNMENT OF CONTRACT: 
 

It is acknowledged by the parties that CITY has entered into this contract with the express 
understanding that CONSULTANT will perform all work.  CONSULTANT shall not, without the written 
consent of CITY, assign, transfer or sublet any portion or part of this work, nor assign any payments to 
others. 
 
SECTION 8. AFFIRMATIVE ACTION. 
 

CONSULTANT will not discriminate against any employee, or applicant for employment as required 
by applicable Federal and State law. 
 
SECTION 9.  CONFLICT OF INTEREST CODE: 
 

CONSULTANT agrees to comply with the regulations of CITY’S “Conflict of Interest Code.”  Said 
code is in accordance with the requirements of the Political Reform Act of 1974. 

 
 CONSULTANT covenants that it presently has no interest, and shall not have any interest, direct 
or indirect, which would conflict in any manner with the performance of service required hereunder.  The 
term "conflict" shall include, as a minimum, the definition of a "conflict of interest" under the California Fair 
Political Practices Act and the City of Porterville Conflict of Interest Code, as that term is applied to 
consultants. 
 
SECTION 10.  TERMINATION: 
 

Either party for just cause may terminate this contract by giving seven (7) days written notice to the 
other party.  Upon termination by CITY, CITY shall be relieved of any obligation to pay for work not 
completed including profit and overhead.  CONSULTANT may be entitled to just and equitable 
compensation for satisfactory work completed, except CITY can withhold damages incurred as a result of 
the termination. 



Service Agreement 
Page 3 of 3 
 
 

 

SECTION 11.  ENTIRE CONTRACT: 
 
It is understood and agreed that this Service Agreement represents the entire Agreement between 

the parties.  Should it be necessary to institute legal proceedings to enforce any and all of the covenants 
and conditions of this Agreement, the prevailing party shall be entitled to recover attorneys’ fees and costs.  
 
SECTION 12.  DISPUTES; VENUE: 
 

If either party initiates an action to enforce the terms hereof or declare rights hereunder, the parties 
agree that this Agreement is entered into and is to be performed in Tulare County, California.  
CONSULTANT hereby waives any rights it might have to remove any such action pursuant to California 
Code of Civil Procedure Section 394. 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Service Agreement on the date and year first 
above written. 
 
 
CITY OF PORTERVILLE    CONSULTANT 
 
By                                                              By       
  
 
 
Date                                                           Date       
 
 



PROPOSED SITE

PORTERVILLE CITY HALL

ENGINEERING DIVISION
CITY OF PORTERVILLE

291 NORTH MAIN STREET
PORTERVILLE, CA. 93257

(559) 782-7462

PROPOSED EOC PROJECT

E MORTON AVE

W HARRISON AVE

E THURMAN AVE

W CLEVELAND AVE

E OLIVE AVE

N
 M

A
IN

 S
T

N
 H

O
C

K
E

T
T

 S
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1
CHECKED BY

AutoCAD SHX Text_2
DRAWN BY

AutoCAD SHX Text_3
OF

AutoCAD SHX Text_4
SHEET

AutoCAD SHX Text_5
SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text_6
1" = 250'

AutoCAD SHX Text_7
5/10/2023

AutoCAD SHX Text_8
SW

AutoCAD SHX Text_9
GG

AutoCAD SHX Text_10
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_11
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_12
0'

AutoCAD SHX Text_13
SCALE: 1" = 250'

AutoCAD SHX Text_14
125'

AutoCAD SHX Text_15
250'



 

  Item No.  5. 

 
 
 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA – MAY 16, 2023 
   
  
SUBJECT: Authorization to Award Freedom Fest Fireworks Contract 
    
SOURCE: Parks and Leisure Services  
    
COMMENT: The inaugural Freedom Fest community event took place in 2011 in partnership 

between the City and the Tule River Tribe, with each party contributing 
$15,000 in seed money in support of the event. Freedom Fest has grown to an 
estimated annual attendance of approximately 12,000. Event activities include 
music, family entertainment, Porterville Fire Department spray zone, food, craft 
and information booths, and culminating in a fireworks show. In 2013, the City 
Council contributed $10,000 and the Tribal Council $7,500 to assist with the 
continuation of the event and to help in meeting the increased expenditure costs 
as the event expanded. Now approaching its twelfth year, staff is requesting that 
Council approve the expenditure of $25,000 to Zambelli Fireworks for the 
fireworks show portion of the 2023 Freedom Fest. Council's approval will allow 
staff to issue a purchase order to secure its services. A fifty percent (50%) 
deposit of $12,500 is required to execute the contract for services with the 
remaining balance due three days after the fireworks display. The expenditure 
will come from the Freedom Fest account out of the General Fund, from which 
there is currently a balance of $20,267.   It is further recommended that with 
regard to indemnification, the vendor be required to add the City as an 
additional insured to their liability coverage. 
 
Additional fireworks vendors submitted proposals that were not comparable to 
the proposed display.  The fireworks vendor from last year’s event, Fireworks 
& Stage FX America, proposed the same display from 2022 with an increased 
cost of $10,000 for a total fee of $35,000.  A third vendor, Pyro Spectaculars, 
did not produce a quote that was comparable to the total number of shots/ shells 
in the proposed display.  Garden State Fireworks did not have an available 
pyrotechnic operator in California on the day of the event, and Expo Shows did 
not respond to a request for a proposal. 

    
RECOMMENDATION: That the City Council authorize progress payments up to one 

hundred percent (100%) of the contract amount of $25,000 to 
Zambelli Fireworks, as well as the contract provisions subject to 
the City Attorney's approval, including requiring the vendor to 
add the City of Porterville on to its liability coverage as an 
additional insured. 

    
ATTACHMENTS: 1. Zambelli Fireworks Proposal 

2. Fireworks & Stage FX America Proposal 



 

  Item No.  5. 

3. Pyro Spectaculars Proposal 
  
Appropriated/Funded:  
  
Review By:  
  Department Director:  

Donnie Moore, Parks and Leisure Services Director 
 
Final Approver: John Lollis, City Manager 

 
 



 
 

 

 

2023 Porterville Freedom Fest 

Fireworks Celebration 
                                                       

 

 
 

Zambelli Fireworks 
 

John Hagan 
800-322-7142 

502-220-7944 

jhagan@zambellifireworks.com 

 Shafter, CA 

 
                                       

 
 
 



 

 
FIREWORKS PROPOSAL 

 

Porterville Freedom Fest 

2023 Fireworks Celebration 

 
Show Date: Saturday July 1, 2023 

 
Show Budget Options:    $25,000 - 20-minute display. 
              
Insurance Liability Coverage:  $10 Million dollars per incident clause to cover 
the Fireworks Display. Zambelli uses the highest insurance premium in the 
industry, only offered to “AAA” rated companies.  
 
State, Local and Federal Permits: Zambelli Fireworks will secure all necessary 
state, local and federal permits / required licenses.  

 
   Transportation Liability Coverage:  $5 Million dollars as required by United 

States Department of Transportation.  (DOT) 
 
   Workers Compensation:  Pyrotechnicians will meet all of the requirements of 

the Workers Compensation Laws of California. 
 

Site Security and Fire Protection: Customer will assist in providing site security 
and make arrangements with the Authorities Having Jurisdiction.  

  
 Transportation:  Fireworks and equipment will be delivered by qualified CDL 

drivers with Haz-Mat endorsed licenses as required by US DOT. 
 

Personnel:  Zambelli Certified Pyrotechnicians and Trained Assistants; no 
subcontractors used. 

 
Safety Procedures:  Zambelli Fireworks adheres to all safety regulations.     
NFPA 1123 code will be strictly enforced.  
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 
2023 Porterville Freedom Fest 

SYNOPSIS FOR A TWENTY MINUTE DISPLAY 

================================================================= 

DEVICE DESCRIPTION                                                                        QUANTITY 

================================================================= 
ZAMBELLI MULTI SHOT DEVICES (CAKES) 

QUANTITY TWO EACH:        

35 Shot Rainbow Dahlias w/Assorted Colored Tails      70  

35 Shot Variegated Moons w/Titanium Reports and Tail     70  

35 Shot Gold Brocade Waterfalls w/Gold Tails      70   

35 Shot Green and Purple Moon Fan Box w/Green Tail      70  

35 Shot Rainbow Crossettes w/Assorted Color Tails Fan Box     70 

35 Shot Dragon Egg Color Pearl W/ Color Tails Fan Box     70 

QUANTITY TWO EACH: 

36 Shot Super Brocade w/Gold Tails Fan Box      72   

36 Shot Rainbow Crossettes w/Assorted Color Tails Fan Box     72  

36 Shot Variegated Chrysanthemum w/Palm and Silver Tails Fan Box    72  

36 Shot Thunder Tourbillions w/Red and Blue Mines Fan Box     72   

36 Shot Gold Brocade Waterfalls w/Gold Tails Fan Box     72 

36 Shot Colorful Falling Leaves          72  

QUANTITY TWO EACH: 

 100 Shot Variegated Chrysanthemum w/Palm and Silver Tails    200   

 100 Shot Red Crackling and Green Glittering w/Purple Mines    200   

 100 Shot Silver Crackling Flowers w/Silver Tails     200    

QUANTITY TWO EACH: 

 400 Shot V-shaped Repeater W/Palm and Silver Tails     800 

 400 Shot V-shaped Repeater W/Comets and Reports     800  

 408 Z Shaped Colorful Pearl Zipper      816   

 136 Shot W-Shaped Brocade Crown       272 
TOTAL NUMBER OF MULTI EFFECT SHOTS                      3,340 

  

TWO AND A HALF INCH DIAMETER SHELLS  

Two and Half Inch Zambelli Specialty Shells     100  

Two- and Half-Inch Palm Shells       100    

Two- and Half-Inch Tourbillion Shells      100 

Two- and Half-Inch Dahlia Shells      100 

Two- and Half-Inch Chrysanthemum Shells      100 

Two- and Half-Inch Serpent Effect Shells      100 

TOTAL NUMBER OF TWO AND HALF INCH DIAMETER SHELLS BODY                   600 

 

THREE INCH DIAMETER SHELLS  

Three Inch Zambelli Specialty Shells      50  

Three Inch Palm Shells       50    

Three Inch Tourbillion Shells       50 

Three Inch Dahlia Shells       50 

Three Inch Chrysanthemum Shells      50 

Three Inch Serpent Effect Shells       50 

TOTAL NUMBER OF THREE INCH DIAMETER SHELLS BODY   300 

 

FOUR INCH DIAMETER SHELLS  

Four Inch Zambelli Specialty Shells      30  

Four Inch Palm Shells        30    

Four Inch Tourbillion Shells       30 

Four Inch Dahlia Shells       30 

Four Inch Chrysanthemum Shells       30 

Four Inch Serpent Effect Shells       30 

TOTAL NUMBER OF FOUR INCH DIAMETER SHELLS BODY   186 

     

ZAMBELLI GRAND FINALE  

Two- and Half-Inch Assorted Color Finale Display Shells     150  

Three Inch Titanium Salute Report Shells       150  

Four Inch Assorted Color Finale Display Shells        36 

TOTAL NUMBER OF GRAND FINALE SHELLS        336 

   
TOTAL NUMBER OF SHOTS/ SHELLS IN THE DISPLAY 5,562 



 

 

SAMPLE 



City of Porterville

Presents

Celebrate Freedom

A Fireworks Extravaganza

July 1st, 2023

Produced by

"The Difference is Quality"



City of Porterville
Celebrate Freedom

July 1st, 2023

Announcement Barrage Bombardments

Program A Program A

Aerial Titanium Flash Salutes Multiple Shot Barrages: provide

3" 30 fabric and texture to your display

keeping an excellent and exciting
Color & Multi-Color Finale Shells pace. Our high-powered devices

2.5" 30 provide an exciting ground-to-sky 

pyrotechic tableau:

Aerial Show Presentation Total Shots 5250

Color & Multi-Color Aerial Shells

3" 50 Aerial Grand Finale

4" 50

Color & Multi-Color Finale Shells

Flitter, Glitter, Electric Color & 2.5" 150

Color Changing Shells 3" 100

3" 40 4" 32

4" 40

Aerial Titanium Flash Salutes

Distinctive & Unique Aerial Shells 2.5" 50

3" 30

4" 30

Grand Totals
Streaking Comets & Tiger Tails

3" 10 Aerial Shell Counts

2.5" 230

Premium Aerial Shells 3" 290

3" 30 4" 182

4" 30

Units of Fire (from Bombardments)

5250

Total Shots 5952

Program Price

Total Program Price Inclusive of

Insurance, Operator and 

Transportation

Cost $35,000



Fireworks America Products
"The Difference Is Quality"

Fireworks America has sought to affiliate itself with world renown-award winning 

manufacturers, both foreign and domestic. In every show you will find only the highest

quality of products, designs, and variety which will far surpass those of our competitors.

Product Definitions Are:

Standard: Aerial Shells include: One color products and multiple colored products such
as Chrysanthemums, Peonies, Hearts, Rings, Red, Green, Blue, Yellow, Purple, Orange,
Variegated, etc. Our variety is unmatched and as such we can guarantee over 40
varieties in this category.

Compare to our competitors "Color", "Fancy", some  "Extra Fancy", "Standard"

or  "Japanese Style Deluxe" Shells.

Classic: Aerial Shells include: Flitter, Glitter, Electric Color, Color Changing Transformation,
Penny Glitter, Glitter & Color, Magnesium Red Electric, Red to Blue, Comets, etc.
Our variety is unmatched and as such we can guarantee over 50 varieties
in this category.

Compare to our competitors "Extra Fancy", "Floral", "Classic" or

"Japanese Style Super Effect" Shells

Select: Aerial Shells include: Distinctive and Unique Aerial Shells such as Spiders, Multiple 
Reports, Strobes, Multiple Effect Shells, Domestic Glittering Comets, Double Hearts,
Crackling Effects, Double Ring Shells, Saturn Shells, Tourbillion Shells, Waterfalls,
Special Pattern Shells, Weeping Willow Shells, Shell of Shells, Coconut Palms, and
Serpentine Shells, etc..

Compare to our competitors "Special" or "Japanese Style Special Effect"  Shells.

Premium: Aerial Shells include: Crossettes, Serpents, Whistles, Whistles and
Reports, Serpents and Strobes, Fish and Whistles, Tourbillions to Reports, 
Thunder and Rainbow, Serpents and Stars, Nishiki Kamuros, and many other
American Made Specialty Shells.

Our competitors cannot compare with our Domestically-Made Superstars.

Comets Bombardments Vivid Colors



City of Porterville
Show Concept, Services List,

and Miscellaneous Details

Services List:

Fireworks America to Provide:

1)  Permit Filings as Required 1)  A Suitable Firing Site

2)  Storage and Delivery of fireworks 2)  Adequate Security for Firing Site

3)  All Equipment to produce the display 3)  Permit Fees

4)  Insurance Aggregate amount of 4)  Standby Firefighter Fees, if req'd

      $10,000,000  (Combined Single Limits) 5)  Sound System and Playback

5)  Worker's Compensation Insurance 6)  Adequate Permit Time as 

      (Statute) listed below.

Minimum Time Required

Fireworks America will provide permitting services on your behalf.  There are

minimum times required to pull these permits.  Contracts and deposits must

be signed and back to us prior to starting these services.  Here are the

minimum permit times.

Land Based Shows based require a minimum of 30 days to permit based
on Local and State Ordinance, FAA and other requirements.

Please plan your show accordingly.

Operators and Assistants:

Fireworks America will provide the services of a State Licensed Pyrotechnic

Operator and experienced crew to fire your display.  The entire crew will be

covered under Fireworks America's Worker's Compensation Insurance.

Payment Terms:

Method of Discharge:

The show will be fired Manually / Hand Fired.

City of Porterville to Provide:

50% deposit is due on Contract Execution, Balance Net 10 days after display.































 

  Item No.  6. 

 
 
 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA – MAY 16, 2023 
   
  
SUBJECT: Authorization to Apply and Receive Financing for the Consolidation of Del Oro 

Water Company 
    
SOURCE: Public Works  
    
COMMENT: The City provides public water services both to the City's residents (within City 

limits) and community residents outside City limits.  As a result of local water 
quality impacts, the State Water Resources Control Board (Water Board) has 
sought out and encouraged the consolidation of surrounding private water 
systems. In this regard, the City has been in active communications to support 
consolidating two Del Oro Community Water Systems.   
 
Del Oro was awarded a Funding Agreement to support these actions in January 
2015, to address the water quality and quantity issues faced by the Grandview 
Gardens District and Del Oro East Plano water systems. The Planning Grant 
will develop the design, environmental, and legal documents necessary to 
consolidate with the City's water system. 
 
The Grandview Gardens system is bounded by W. Merill Avenue on the north, 
N. Westside Street on the west, N. Douglas Street on the east, and W. North 
Grand Avenue on the south. The Del Oro East Plano system is located east of S. 
Plano Street, and south of E. Worth Avenue, identified as Paul Street. The area 
served by the water company encompasses roughly ninety-nine (99) parcels 
within the water company service boundary. 
 
Grandview Garden was annexed into the City on April 7, 2015, by Resolution 
No. 38-2015. Provisions for efficiently providing government services in a 
manner consistent with the City's Annexation and Municipal Services 
Objectives, Policies, and Procedures are detailed in Resolutions No. 74-2014 
and 75-2014. The East Plano Water System on Paul Street is not within City 
Limits. However, it is located within the City's Urban Development Boundary 
(UDB) and will require Annexation or Extraterritorial Service Agreement to 
Serve. 
 
The Water Board has acknowledged the following steps to respond in the 
consolidation process necessary to enter into a Funding Agreement with the 
City to bridge the gap from planning to construction to City Standards with the 
City as the lead agency. City staff has tentatively coordinated discussions of 
what a funding application would consist of; the funding for the planning 
review, design review, and construction of improvements to the water supply 
facilities of the City necessary to meet water quality requirements and system 
demands. The proposed improvements include new distribution mains to 



 

  Item No.  6. 

provide water service to each customer served by the Del Oro Water Company, 
water meters, and fire hydrants. Pending the City Council's approval and 
authorization to proceed, Water Boards has provided a Preliminary Funding 
Award Notification for the Project for $8,123,000.   
 
After receiving a Preliminary Funding letter from the Water Board, a 
Resolution authorizing the application for a funding agreement and identifying 
the City's authorized representative by title is required. The funding agreement 
will also require a Resolution certifying that its decision-making body reviewed 
and considered an environmental determination to be completed by the City 
after the Funding Agreement has been issued for the Water Supply Project. 
 
The staff recommendation is that the Council receive the Preliminary Funding 
Award Notification Letter for the City of Porterville, Grandview Gardens, and 
East Plano Consolidation with the City under the Expedited Drinking Water 
Grant Funding Program for improvements, including distribution mains to 
provide water service to each customer served by the Del Oro Water Company, 
water meters, and fire hydrants, with the completion of the identified 
Resolution, authorizing the Mayor or designee, the Public Works Director, to 
apply for and receive financing from the California State Water Resources 
Control Board for Planing, Design, and Construction of the Grandview Gardens 
and East Plano consolidation with the Porterville Project. 

    
RECOMMENDATION: That the City Council: 

1.  Approve the Preliminary Funding Award Notification Letter 
with the State Water Resources Control Board to consolidate the 
Del Oro Water Systems; Grandview Gardens, and East Plano 
(Paul Street), onto the City’s water distribution system; 
2. Adopt the draft Resolution authorizing the Mayor or Designee, 
the Public Works Director, to apply for and receive financing 
from the California State Water Resources Control Board for the 
planning, design, and construction of the Del Oro Systems; 
Grandview Gardens and East Plano Water Consolidation Project; 
3. Direct the City Attorney as General Counsel to provide a legal 
opinion letter in regards to the proposed project once a funding 
agreement is received; and 
4. Authorize the Mayor or Designee, the Public Works Director, 
to execute the funding agreement with the State Water Resources 
Control Board and any other necessary documents to effect the 
transaction. 

    
ATTACHMENTS: 1. Draft Resolution  

2. Preliminary Funding Award Notification 
3. Resolution No. 38-2015 
4. Resolution No. 74-2014 
5. Resolution No. 75-2014 
6. Location Map 

  



 

  Item No.  6. 

Appropriated/Funded:  
  
Review By:  
  Department Director:  

Michael Knight, Public Works Director  
 
Final Approver: John Lollis, City Manager 

 
 



Page 1 of 2

RESOLUTION NO. ____-2023

A RESOLUTION OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PORTERVILLE 
AUTHORIZING THE PORTERVILLE CITY MAYOR OR DESIGNEE TO APPLY FOR 

AND RECEIVE FINANCING FROM THE CALIFORNIA STATE WATER 
RESOURCES CONTROL BOARD FOR THE PLANNING, DESIGN AND 

CONSTRUCTION OF THE GRANDVIEW GARDENS AND EAST PLANO 
CONSOLIDATION WITH PORTERVILLE PROJECT

WHEREAS, the City of Porterville provides public water services to the City of Porterville 
(City); and

WHEREAS, the State Water Resources Control Board (State Water Board) encouraged 
the Del Oro Water Company to consolidate its Grandview Gardens and East Plano water systems 
with the City; and

WHEREAS, the proposed improvements include distribution mains, meters, and fire 
hydrants to provide water service to each customer served by Del Oro Water Company’s 
Grandview Gardens and Del Oro Water Company’s East Plano water systems.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of Porterville 
as follows:

SECTION 1: The City’s Public Works Director (the “Authorized Representative”) or 
designee is hereby authorized and directed to sign and file, for and on behalf of the City, a Financial 
Assistance Application for a financing agreement from the State Water Resources Control Board 
for the planning, design, and construction of the Grandview Gardens and East Plano Consolidation 
with Porterville Project (the “Project”).

SECTION 2: This Authorized Representative, or his/her designee, is designated to provide 
the assurances, certifications, and commitments required for the financial assistance application, 
including executing a financial assistance agreement from the State Water Resources Control 
Board and any amendments or changes thereto.

SECTION 3: The Authorized Representative, or his/her designee, is designated to represent 
the City in carrying out the Entity’s responsibilities under the financing agreement, including 
certifying disbursement requests on behalf of the Entity and compliance with applicable state and 
federal laws.



Resolution No. ___-2023

Page 2 of 2

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 16th of May, 2023.

_________________________________
            Martha A. Flores, Mayor 

Attest:
John D. Lollis, City Clerk

By: __________________________________
       Patrice Hildreth, Chief Deputy City Clerk



State Water Resources Control Board 

May 8, 2023 

Michael Knight 
Public Works Director 
City of Porterville 
291 North Main Street 
Porterville, CA 93257 

PRELIMINARY FUNDING AWARD NOTIFICATION; CITY OF PORTERVILLE; 
GRANDVIEW GARDENS AND EAST PLANO CONSOLIDATION WITH PORTERVILLE 
PROJECT (PROJECT); EXPEDITED DRINKING WATER GRANT (EDWG) FUNDING 
PROGRAM– ROUND 1; PROJECT NO. EDWG-5410010-019C 

Dear Mr. Knight: 

Your request for funding from the Division of Financial Assistance (Division) for the 
Project has been given preliminary approval. The Project has been reviewed by Division 
staff and determined to be eligible for funding per the EDWG Program Guidelines 
(EDWG Guidelines), as adopted by the State Water Board on March 8, 2023. 
Therefore, the Division has transferred the application to the EDWG Program. Funding 
is contingent upon submittal of the requested information and the development and 
execution of a grant agreement. The purpose of this funding is to replace the water 
distribution systems in Del Oro Grandview Gardens District and Del Oro East Plano 
District, and to consolidate these water systems into the City of Porterville. The Project 
has an overall cost estimate of approximately $8,123,000. 

Pete Stamas has been assigned as the Project Manager for this Project. You will be 
contacted by your assigned Project Manager to ensure that all conditions and 
requirements are addressed prior to execution of the grant agreement. We encourage 
your prompt response to any requests from our staff because unreasonable delays or 
failure to respond could result in withdrawal of this preliminary funding award. 

The Division understands the importance of the Project and wants to ensure its 
successful and timely completion. To proceed with the process of developing a grant 
agreement, please provide the following documents within thirty (30) calendar days of 
this letter: 

• Adopted Authorized Representative Resolution (applicants are encouraged to
provide a draft resolution in accordance with the template prior to adoption to
ensure it is acceptable)

https://www.waterboards.ca.gov/board_info/agendas/2023/mar/030823_7_guidelines.pdf


Mr. Knight - 2 -

• Draft Technical, Managerial, and Financial (TMF) Assessment Form

• Environmental Application Package for the EDWG Funding Program (if the
California Environmental Quality Act [CEQA] process is complete) or the CEQA
Planning Exemption Certification Form (if the CEQA process is not yet complete)

• Scope of Work

• Self-Certification Form

• Other information or documentation requested by the Project Manager

Additional information and forms are available on the EDWG Program Page. The City of 
Porterville must provide the requested documents within thirty (30) calendar days 
following the date of this letter. Failure to provide the requested documents within this 
timeframe may jeopardize funding under the current round or result in removal from the 
EDWG Program. 

Once the aforementioned documents are received in a form satisfactory to the Division, 
a grant agreement will be prepared for the Project. No reimbursement of eligible project-
related costs will be issued until the grant agreement is executed, subject to the terms 
and conditions of the grant agreement. 

The grant agreement will require that certain conditions be met prior to proceeding with 
bid solicitation and construction activities. Proceeding with the bid solicitation and/or 
construction prior to receiving authorization from the Project Manager may jeopardize 
funding for the Project. Any costs incurred are at your own risk until the grant agreement 
is executed and the Division has provided necessary approvals to proceed. 

The provision of a grant agreement is contingent upon your timely submission of the 
documents listed above and on the Division’s approval upon completion of review. 

We look forward to working with you on this Project. Please contact the assigned 
Project Manager, Pete Stamas, with any questions at (916) 552-9983 or 
Pete.Stamas@waterboards.ca.gov. 

Sincerely, 

Meghan Tosney, Assistant Deputy Director 
Division of Financial Assistance 

cc: See next page 

https://www.waterboards.ca.gov/drinking_water/services/funding/expedited-grant-funding.html
mailto:Pete.Stamas@waterboards.ca.gov


Mr. Knight - 3 -

cc Adam Forbes 
Visalia District Engineer 
Division of Drinking Water 

Robert Fortino 
Corporate Executive Officer 
Del Oro Water Company 

Eli McFarland 
Water Resource Control Engineer 
Division of Drinking Water 

Reyna Rodriguez 
Water Resource Control Engineer 
Division of Drinking Water 





























 

AnnexaƟon 474  

Del Oro Project Area 

Grandview Gardens 

Del Oro Water Company  

Water ConsolidaƟon Project Area 

LocaƟon Map 

Del Oro Project Area 

East Plano “Paul Street” 



 

  Item No.  7. 

 
 
 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA – MAY 16, 2023 
   
  
SUBJECT: Approval of State Senate Bill 1 (SB1) Project List for Fiscal Year 2023-2024 
    
SOURCE: Engineering and Project Management  
    
COMMENT: In April 2017, the State Legislature passed and then Governor Brown signed 

Senate Bill 1 (SB1), which was enacted to address basic road maintenance, 
rehabilitation, and critical safety needs on both the State highway and local 
streets and roads system. 
 
The legislation created funding in the Road Maintenance and Rehabilitation 
Account (RMRA), which will be made available for local streets and roads 
projects prioritized for expenditures on basic road maintenance and 
rehabilitation projects. RMRA funding must be used for projects "that include, 
but are not limited to," the following: 
 
a. Road maintenance and rehabilitation 
b. Safety projects 
c. Railroad grade separations 
d. Traffic control devices 
e. Complete streets components, including "active transportation purposes, 
pedestrian bicycle safety projects, transit facilities, and drainage and stormwater 
capture projects in conjunction with any other allowable project 
 
RMRA funds may also be used to satisfy match requirements in order to obtain 
State or Federal funds for eligible projects. 
 
Local agencies are required to submit a yearly project list to the California 
Transportation Commission (CTC) to show where RMRA funds will be spent. 
The project list must be approved by Resolution through the agency's governing 
body. Failure to submit a project list will cause a city to lose that year's 
apportionment. The City will submit an annual report of completion to the CTC 
to show that RMRA funds were spent properly. 
 
Cities can expect to receive approximately $1,000,000 of RMRA funds per 
fiscal year, which for Fiscal Year 2023-2024, the City is expected to receive an 
apportionment of $1,548,748. To receive the RMRA allocation, the City is 
required to sustain a Maintenance of Effort (MOE) by spending at least the 
annual average of its General Fund expenditures for streets and transportation 
purposes during the 2009-2010, 2010-2011, and 2011-2012 Fiscal Years. The 
MOE amount required by the City of Porterville each fiscal year to receive its 
RMRA funds apportionment is $693,653. 
 



 

  Item No.  7. 

For Fiscal Year 2023-2024, staff recommends that RMRA funds be allocated to 
the Main Street Reconstruction Project between Putnam Avenue and Morton 
Avenue that has been listed in the attached draft Resolution as the design is 
complete and will be ready for construction by Summer 2023.  

    
RECOMMENDATION: That the City Council: 

1. Adopt the draft Resolution for the SB1 project list for FY 
2023-2024; 
2. Authorize the City Clerk to record the attached draft 
Resolution; and 
3. Authorize staff to submit the project list package to the 
California Transportation Commission to secure the City's FY 
2023-2024 RMRA apportionment. 

    
ATTACHMENTS: 1. Draft Resolution 

2. Fiscal Year 2023-2024 RMRA Projected Revenues by City 
3. Locator Map 

  
Appropriated/Funded:  
  
Review By:  
  Department Director:  

Javier Sanchez, Engineering & Project Management Director 
 
Final Approver: John Lollis, City Manager 

 
 



Page 1 of 2 
 

RESOLUTION NO. ___ - 2023 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF  
PORTERVILLE ADOPTING A LIST OF PROJECTS FOR FISCAL YEAR 

2023-2024 FUNDED BY SB 1: THE ROAD REPAIR 
AND ACCOUNTABILITY ACT OF 2017 

 
WHEREAS: Senate Bill 1 (SB 1), the Road Repair and Accountability Act of 2017 

(Chapter 5, Statutes of 2017) was passed by the Legislature and Signed into law by the Governor 
in April 2017 in order to address the significant multi-modal transportation funding shortfalls 
statewide; and  
 

WHEREAS: SB 1 includes accountability and transparency provisions that will ensure 
the residents of the City of Porterville, hereinafter referred to as the “City” are aware of the 
projects proposed for funding in our community and which projects have been completed each 
fiscal year; and 
 

WHEREAS: the “City” must adopt by resolution a list of projects proposed to receive 
fiscal year funding from the Road Maintenance and Rehabilitation Account (RMRA), created by 
SB 1, which must include a description and the location of each proposed project, a proposed 
schedule for the project’s completion, and the estimated useful life of the improvement; and 
 

WHEREAS: the “City”, will receive an estimated $1,548,748 in RMRA funding in 
Fiscal Year 2023-24 from SB 1; and 
 

WHEREAS: this is the fifth year in which the “City” is receiving SB 1 funding and will 
enable the “City” to continue essential road maintenance and rehabilitation projects, safety 
improvements, repairing and replacing aging bridges, and increasing access and mobility options 
for the traveling public that would not have otherwise been possible without SB 1; and  

 
WHEREAS: the “City” has undergone a robust public process to ensure public input 

into our community’s transportation priorities/the project list; and  
 

WHEREAS: the “City” used a Pavement Management System to develop the SB 1 
project list to ensure revenues are being used on the most high-priority and cost-effective 
projects that also meet the communities priorities for transportation investment; and  

 
WHEREAS: the funding from SB 1 will help the “City” maintain and rehabilitate 216 

miles of streets/roads, 16 bridges, and add active transportation infrastructure throughout the 
“City” this year and hundreds of similar projects into the future; and 
 

WHEREAS: the 2020 California Statewide Local Streets and Roads Needs Assessment 
found that the “City’s” streets and roads are in an “Poor” condition and this revenue will help us 
increase the overall quality of our road system and, over the next decade, will help bring our 
streets and roads into an “at lower risk” to “good” condition; and  
  



Page 2 of 2 
 

WHEREAS: the SB 1 project list and overall investment in our local streets and roads 
infrastructure with a focus on basic maintenance and safety, investing in complete streets 
infrastructure, and using cutting-edge technology, materials and practices, will have significant 
positive co-benefits statewide. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED as follows: 
 
1.  The foregoing recitals are true and correct. 
2.  The following newly proposed and adopted project will utilize fiscal year 2023-2024 

Road Maintenance and Rehabilitation Account revenues in their delivery.  
 

Main Street Reconstruction 
Reconstruction of roadway section of two-lane minor arterial roadway, .25 mile in 
length and 40 feet in width. 
Located between Putnam Avenue and Morton Avenue 
Estimated Useful Life between 15-20 years 
Revised Anticipated Year of Construction Spring 2024 

 
  
 PASSED, APPROVED and ADOPTED this 16th day of May, 2023. 
 
 

__________________________ 
Martha A. Flores, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
John D. Lollis, City Clerk 
 
 
_________________________________ 
By: Patrice Hildreth, Chief Deputy City Clerk 



ATTACHMENT B

Local Streets and Roads - Projected FY2023-24 Revenues
Based on State Dept of Finance statewide revenue projections

Estimated January 2023 TOTAL Road Mntnc
Sec2103 (5) Sec2105 (3) Sec2106 (3) Sec2107 (3) Sec2107.5 (4) HUTA Rehab Acct TOTALHighway Users Tax Acct (HUTA)(1)  Streets & Highways Code

TULARE COUNTY
DINUBA 248,992           164,883           93,309             198,046           6,000           711,231           621,145           1,332,376           
EXETER 102,601           67,943             41,272             81,608             3,000           296,424           255,953           552,377              
FARMERSVILLE 102,898           68,140             41,377             81,845             3,000           297,260           256,695           553,955              
LINDSAY 125,819           83,318             49,525             100,075           3,000           361,737           313,873           675,610              
PORTERVILLE 620,829           411,115           225,487           493,804           7,500           1,758,735        1,548,748        3,307,483           
TULARE 688,322           455,809           249,478           547,487           7,500           1,948,596        1,717,117        3,665,713           
VISALIA 1,408,027        932,399           505,312           1,119,936        10,000         3,975,674        3,512,523        7,488,197           
WOODLAKE 75,787             50,186             31,740             60,280             2,000           219,993           189,060           409,053              
TUOLUMNE COUNTY
SONORA 51,519             34,116             34,125             40,978             1,000           161,737           128,521           290,257              
VENTURA COUNTY
CAMARILLO 701,135           464,293           295,204           557,678           7,500           2,025,810        1,749,080        3,774,890           
FILLMORE 163,197           108,069           72,395             129,806           4,000           477,466           407,118           884,584              
MOORPARK 358,827           237,616           153,423           285,409           6,000           1,041,274        895,145           1,936,419           
OJAI 75,856             50,232             36,219             60,335             2,000           224,642           189,233           413,876              
OXNARD 1,998,207        1,323,218        832,439           1,589,361        10,000         5,753,225        4,984,811        10,738,036         
PORT HUENEME 219,948           145,650           95,900             174,945           5,000           641,443           548,690           1,190,133           
SAN BUENAVENTURA 1,090,651        722,232           456,538           867,497           10,000         3,146,917        2,720,784        5,867,701           
SANTA PAULA 306,119           202,713           131,592           243,485           6,000           889,909           763,658           1,653,566           
SIMI VALLEY 1,250,072        827,801           522,568           994,299           10,000         3,604,741        3,118,483        6,723,224           
THOUSAND OAKS 1,254,700        830,866           524,485           997,980           10,000         3,618,031        3,130,027        6,748,058           
YOLO COUNTY
DAVIS 642,808           425,670           268,545           511,286           7,500           1,855,809        1,603,577        3,459,386           
WEST SACRAMENTO 523,579           346,716           219,625           416,452           7,500           1,513,872        1,306,143        2,820,015           
WINTERS 73,547             48,703             34,976             58,499             2,000           217,725           183,474           401,199              
WOODLAND 595,917           394,618           249,306           473,989           7,500           1,721,330        1,486,601        3,207,931           
YUBA COUNTY
MARYSVILLE 130,694           86,546             46,712             103,953           3,000           370,905           326,035           696,941              
WHEATLAND 36,863             24,411             16,621             29,320             1,000           108,215           91,959             200,174              

Statewide Total 327,861,000$  217,110,500$  128,363,518$  266,002,500$  2,709,500$  942,047,018$  817,896,000$  1,759,943,018$  

Notes:  
1. The Highway Users Tax is also known as the "Motor Vehicle Fuel Tax", the "Gasoline Excise Tax" and "Article XIX Revenues."
2. Rolling Hills has no public streets and is therefore not eligible for HUTA or RMRA allocations.
3. Str&HwysCode §§ 2103, 2105, 2106, 2107 and RMRA amounts are paid monthly. Includes special payments for snow removal.
4. Str&HwysCode § 2107.5 amounts are typically paid by the State Controller once per year in July.
5. Str&HwysCode § 2103 allocations replace the former Prop42 TCRF revenues. Previously adjusted annually by the BOE until July 2019.

 18 January 2023
CaliforniaCityFinance.com

Page 16 of 16



N

TULARE

N

180

245

63

198

137

190

99

43
65

190

190
137

198

Know what's below.
before you dig.Call

R

W THURMAN AVE

N 
M

AI
N 

ST

E HARRISON AVE

E MORTON AVE

E PUTNAM AVE

E CLEVELAND AVE

N 
 2

ND
  S

T

N 
 3

RD
  S

T

N 
  4

TH
  S

T

N 
HO

CK
ET

T 
ST

N

N 
  D

 S
T

Ó

L:\Projects\2019\190121\ACAD\Improvements\ST\190121-CV-PHASE ONE.dwg, 5/5/2023 5:18:54 PM, Client Submittal, Plotted by MAG



 

  Item No.  8. 

 
 
 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA – MAY 16, 2023 
   
  
SUBJECT: Consideration of Funding Recommendations and Reopening Request for 

Proposals for 2021 Permanent Local Housing Allocation (PLHA)  
    
SOURCE: Community Development  
    
COMMENT: 426-225 

 
As presented to the City Council at its meeting on May 19, 2020, the California 
Department of Housing and Community Development (HCD) announced the 
availability of approximately $195 million in funding for the Permanent Local 
Housing Allocation (PLHA) program Notice of Funding Allocation (NOFA). In 
order to access the funds, the City had to adopt a Five-year PLHA Plan. 
 
On July 21, 2020, City Council adopted the Five-Year PLHA Plan. The plan 
allocates PLHA funding over the next five years, which is estimated to be 
approximately $2,056,524. 
 
On February 26, 2021, the City received the executed agreement for the Five-
Year PLHA plan and Year 1 funding in the amount of $3,425,754. An 
amendment to the 5-Year Plan was submitted with the Year 2 application and 
on December 10, 2021, the City of Porterville was notified by HCD that the 
City’s amendment to the 5-year plan and application for second year funding 
was approved. The City received $532,745 for year 2. Funding for the first two 
(2) years has been awarded via the RFP process and programs are underway. 
 
On February 23, 2023, the City received an executed agreement for the 2021 
(third year) PLHA funding in the amount of $586,270.00, totaling $1,461,769 
for the first three (3) years. 
 
On March 21, 2023, the City Council authorized the distribution of a Request 
for Proposals (RFP) for the PLHA Program, for the third year of the Five-Year 
PLHA Plan. The PLHA program proposes to (1) Provide operating costs for 
navigation centers; (2) Provide operating costs for emergency shelters and/or 
bridge housing programs; and (3) Support Permanent Housing Programs by 
providing operating costs for permanent supportive housing programs. On April 
14th, an addendum to the RFP was issued to allow for administration costs up 
to 5% as an eligible expense. 
 
In response to the RFP, the City received three (3) applications. Applications 
were received from Turning Point of Central California, Inc. (TPOCC) and 
Central California Family Crisis Center, (CCFCC), which were rated and 
ranked by the RFP review committee, resulting in the following funding 



 

  Item No.  8. 

recommendations: 
 
CATEGORY OF FUNDING FUNDING RECOMMENDATION 
Navigation Center $154,234.50 
Emergency & Bridge Housing- PWC $154,234.50 
Emergency Housing-CCFCC $153,163.00 
PSH- Casa de Robles $67,950.00 
Total $529,582.00 
 
Funding recommendations for TPOCC will provide operational support for the 
Porterville Welcome Center for its Navigation Center, Bridge Housing and 
Emergency Housing Operations and for operation support for Permanent 
Supportive Housing (PSH) for the Case de Robles II project. Funding 
recommendations for CCFCC will provide operational support for Emergency 
Housing. 
 
The Permanent Supportive Housing (PSH) program operations category of the RFP is 
undersubscribed by $52,701.50. Staff is seeking authorization to reopen the 
RFP to accept applications for the remaining PSH program operations funding, 
in addition to considering the approval of the funding recommendations as 
presented. 

    
RECOMMENDATION: That the City Council: 

1. Award Turning Point of Central California in the amount of 
$154,234.50 for the Navigation Center, $154,234.50 for 
Emergency Housing and $67,950.00 for PSH operation support. 
The totals include up to 5% of the Administration allocation;  
2. Award CCFCC in the amount of $153,163.00; and 
3. Authorize staff to reopen the Year 3 PLHA RFP for the 
remaining $52,701.50 for PSH program operations. 

    
ATTACHMENTS: 1. PLHA Year 3 Funding Recommendations 

2. PLHA Year 3 RFP & Addendum 1 
3. PLHA Approved 5-Year Plan 

  
Appropriated/Funded:  
  
Review By:  
  Department Director:  

Jason Ridenour, Assistant City Manager  
 
Final Approver: Patrice Hildreth, Deputy City Manager 

 
 



Eligible Category

Dollar % Dollar % Dollar % Dollar % Dollar %
Administration 29,313.50$       5% 6,595.50$   1% 18,731.50$   3% $       25,327.00 4% $   3,986.50 1%
Navigation Center 146,567.50$     25% 0% 146,567.50$   25% 146,567.50$     25% -$  0%
Emergency Housing & Bridge Housing 293,135.00$     50% 146,567.50$   25% 146,567.50$   25% 293,135.00$     50% -$  0%
Permanent Supportive Housing 117,254.00$     20% 0% 64,552.50$   11% 64,552.50$       11% 52,701.50$   9%

TOTAL YEAR 3 PLHA GRANT 586,270.00$     100% 153,163.00$     26% 376,419.00$     64% $     529,582.00 90% $   56,688.00 10%

Available Funding
Central California Family 

Crisis Center
Turning Point of Central 

California, Inc
Total Subscribed Undersubscribed

Funding Recommendations - Year 3 PLHA



 

 

 
 

CITY OF PORTERVILLE 

 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS FOR PERMANENT LOCAL HOUSING 

ALLOCATION (PLHA) THIRD YEAR FUNDING OF 2019-2023 FIVE YEAR 

PLAN 

RFP # No. 22/23-SR1944 
 

 

The City of Porterville is seeking qualified nonprofit organizations and affordable housing developers to 

propose use of PLHA funds for projects that benefit individuals or families that are experiencing 

homelessness as described in eligible activities in this RFP. 

 

Submittal:  One PDF file must be received by:  

Wednesday, April 19, 2023, by 5:00 pm. 

Via the Public Purchase Website:  

www.publicpurchase.com, or 

housing@ci.porterville.ca.us 

 

Document Title: RFP No. 22/23-SR1944 Permanent Local Housing Allocation (PHLA) 

Third Year Funding of 2019-2023 Five Year Plan 

Late proposals will not be accepted and will be automatically disqualified from further consideration.  

All proposals and any accompanying documentation become the property of the City of Porterville and 

will not be returned. 

 

INQUIRIES: 

Proposal forms may be inspected and electronically downloaded at no cost, at the Public Purchase 

website, www.publicpurchase.com. No copies of said documents will be provided by the City. All 

addenda and correspondence during the bid process will be handled electronically through the 

Public Purchase website. Questions regarding this project are due no later than Monday, April 

17, 2023. 
  

http://www.publicpurchase.com/
mailto:housing@ci.porterville.ca.us


 

City of Porterville RFP For Use of PLHA Funds   2 | P a g e  

 

 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS (RFP) 

FOR FIVE YEAR PLHA PLAN 

 

I. PROPOSED PROJECT          
PROJECT TITLE: PLHA Five Year Plan (2019-2023) - Year 3 Funding 

 

GRANTOR: California Department of Housing and Community Development (HCD) 

 

PROPOSAL DUE DATE: April 19, 2023 

 

AMOUNT AVAILABLE: Third year up to $586,270 for single or multiple projects, with the possibility of 

additional funds to be available estimated at $2,056,524 for the five-year plan. 

 

Category Breakdown 2021 

Allowable Administration (5%)  $   29,313.50  

Navigation Center (25%)  $ 146,567.50  

Emergency Housing & Bridge Housing (50%)  $ 293,135.00  

Permanent – Permanent Supportive Housing Operations (20%)   $ 117,254.00  

   $ 586,270.00  

 

 

ADMINISTRATIVE ALLOWANCE: None. Activity Delivery time is allowed. 

 

TIME PERIOD FOR CONTRACT: One-year grant term for operating or supportive service projects. Funding 

in 5yr Plan will be announced when received.  

 

IMPORTANT DOCUMENTS:  

 

Please read the following document located at: https://www.hcd.ca.gov/grants-and-funding/programs-

active/permanent-local-housing-allocation 

• Notice of Funding Announcement: Applicants must ensure that program design meets the 2022 

HCD NOFA  

• Permanent Local Housing Allocation Final Guidelines  

• City of Porterville Permanent Local Housing Allocation Five-Year Plan (2019-2023):  

https://www.ci.porterville.ca.us/departments/community_development/community_development_

block_grant_program_(cdbg)/index.php 

 

OBJECTIVE: In 2017, Senate Bill 2 (the Building Homes and Jobs Act) created the Permanent Local 

Housing Allocation (PLHA) program. The California Department of Housing and Community 

Development (HCD) announced the availability of approximately $195 million in funding for the PLHA 

program Entitlement and Non-entitlement Local government formula component Notice of Funding 

Availability (NOFA). This is the 3rd year NOFA funded from moneys deposited in the Building Homes and 

Jobs Trust Fund (Fund) in calendar year 2021, pursuant to Senate Bill (SB) 2 (Chapter 364, Statutes of 

2017). SB 2 established the Fund and authorizes the Department to allocate 70 percent of moneys collected 

and deposited in the Fund, beginning in calendar year 2019, to Local governments for eligible housing and 

homelessness activities. The intent of the bill is to provide a permanent, ongoing source of funding to Local 

https://www.hcd.ca.gov/grants-and-funding/programs-active/permanent-local-housing-allocation
https://www.hcd.ca.gov/grants-and-funding/programs-active/permanent-local-housing-allocation
https://www.ci.porterville.ca.us/departments/community_development/community_development_block_grant_program_(cdbg)/index.php
https://www.ci.porterville.ca.us/departments/community_development/community_development_block_grant_program_(cdbg)/index.php


 

City of Porterville RFP For Use of PLHA Funds   3 | P a g e  

 

governments for housing-related projects and programs that assist in addressing the unmet housing needs 

of their local communities.   

 

The City of Porterville, as an Entitlement Local government, applied and received 2021 formula allocation 

of PLHA funds in the amount of $586,270. The approximate PLHA five-year formula allocation amount is 

$2,056,524. PLHA funds must be used to carry out one or more of the eligible activities. 

 

The City of Porterville plans to use PLHA funds for three (3) priorities, distributed over three (3) possible 

activities that assist persons who are experiencing homelessness or at risk of homelessness. §301(a)(6) 

Assisting persons who are experiencing or At-risk of homelessness, including, but not limited to, providing 

rapid re-housing, rental assistance, supportive/case management services that allow people to obtain and 

retain housing, operating and capital costs for navigation centers and emergency shelters, and the new 

construction, rehabilitation, and preservation of permanent and transitional housing. 

 

The eligible activities in the City’s five-year plan include:  

 

1. Provide operating costs for navigation centers  

2. Provide operating costs for emergency shelters and/or bridge housing programs. 

3. Support Permanent Housing Programs: 

a. Provide operating costs for permanent supportive housing programs. 

 

II. ELIGIBLE APPLICANTS           

Affordable Housing Developers and Nonprofit organizations are eligible to apply that can demonstrate 

institutional, managerial and financial capability to plan, manage and complete the program as described. 

 

III. LOCAL CRITERIA          
The recipient or sub-recipient must participate with local priority systems that are in place to include the 

following; HMIS for data collection, Coordinated Entry System (CES), and project must be financially 

feasible. Additionally, the activities funded must take place in the city limits of Porterville.  

 

IV.  ELIGIBLE ACTIVITIES         
The applicant may apply for funding for one or more of the eligible activities. 

 

OPERATING COSTS FOR NAVIGATION CENTERS  

PLHA funds can be used for operation costs associated with a new or existing Navigation Center. The 

Navigation Center would serve as a central location for people who are experiencing homelessness to 

connect to services to help them obtain housing or overcome barriers in obtaining housing. 

 

OPERATING COSTS FOR EMERGENCY SHELTERS AND/OR BRIDGE HOUSING PROGRAMS. 

PLHA funds can be used for operating costs needed to run an emergency shelter and/or operating costs for 

a bridge housing beds, leading to permanent housing. This will assist in ensuring that low barrier beds for 

people who have been identified by the local Continuum of Care on Homelessness, the Kings/Tulare 

Homeless Alliance (KTHA) continue to be available. 

 

PERMANENT HOUSING PROGRAMS: OPERATING COSTS FOR PERMANENT SUPPORTIVE HOUSING 

PROGRAMS (PSH) 

Permanent housing is community-based housing, the purpose of which is to provide housing without a 

designated length of stay. PLHA funds may be used for operating costs. PSH can only provide assistance 

to individuals with disabilities and families in which one adult or child has a disability. Supportive services 



 

City of Porterville RFP For Use of PLHA Funds   4 | P a g e  

 

designed to meet the needs of the program participants must be made available to the program participants. 

Placement or retention in housing must not be conditional upon participation in such services. 

 

PSH Targets Chronically Homeless Individuals 

To be eligible, proposed PSH projects must target chronically homeless individuals, as defined by 

HUD. 

 

PSH is Low-barrier and Follows HUD Housing First Approach 

To be eligible, proposed PSH projects must be low-barrier and follow the HUD Housing First 

Approach. 

V.  GENERAL ELIGIBILITY CRITERIA       
Applicants must meet the minimum general eligibility criteria described below: 

• Activities must take place in the City limits of Porterville 

• Organizations must not discriminate on the basis of ethnicity, race, color, creed, religion, gender, 

national origin, age, disability, marital status, sexual orientation, gender identity, or Veteran’s 

discharge status. 

• Applicants must agree to use the CoC’s CES as the sole referral source for each program 

component. The CES is the central access and referral point for all homeless individuals seeking 

housing in City of Porterville. This system will identify the most appropriate housing options while 

also prioritizing the most vulnerable individuals for placement into permanent housing. The system 

will then maintain a steady flow of referrals to all available housing options. To ensure these 

individuals have appropriate access to the program components, a project may need to modify its 

entrance criteria or use reasonable accommodation to admit tenants who would otherwise not be 

able to apply. By agreeing to use the coordinated entry system as the sole referral source, applicants 

agree to make reasonable accommodation to accept the referrals. 

• Applicants must agree to operate projects under the “Housing First” model, meaning prospective 

tenants are not required to agree to participate in services prior to entering the housing nor can 

service participation be a requirement of tenancy. Tenants can be required to adhere to a standard 

market lease, and their tenancy should be supported by eviction prevention strategies, including the 

engagement of services as appropriate. 

• Multiple organizations may apply as a collaborative or joint venture; however, a lead entity must 

be designated. 

• Organizations must be able to demonstrate capacity to start operations within 90 days of contract 

award. 

• Organizations must have adequate financial capacity to perform proposed operations on a 

reimbursement basis 

• Organizations must submit reports and invoices in a timely manner. 

VI. APPLICATION SUBMISSION REQUIREMENTS     

APPLICATION PROCESS 

Applications from this Request for Proposals (RFP) from Qualified Agencies will be accepted beginning 

Monday, March 27, 2023 through Wednesday, April 19, 2023. Agencies funded as a result of this RFP are 

expected to execute contracts with the City of Porterville by July 1, 2023 and begin program operations no 

later than 60 days from contract execution.  

Respondents shall submit a complete RFP application, (including all attachments), to:  

All proposals must be submitted in PDF format electronically to the City of Porterville, via the Public 

Purchase website, www.publicpurchase.com, or via email to housing@ci.porterville.ca.us and titled “RFP 

http://www.publicpurchase.com/
mailto:housing@ci.porterville.ca.us


 

City of Porterville RFP For Use of PLHA Funds   5 | P a g e  

 

No. 22/23-SR1944 Permanent Local Housing Allocation (PHLA) Third Year Funding of 2019-2023 Five 

Year Plan”. 

The City will review and evaluate each qualification and proposal submission. The City reserves the right 

to obtain clarification or request additional information, including an interview. If an interview is required, 

they will be scheduled for April 20, 2023 to April 25, 2023 (excluding weekend). Proposals will be 

evaluated and ranked according to the following criteria: 

Criteria Points 

Understanding of the project and scope of services 40 

Experience in the disciples directly relevant to the 

project and scope of services 

30 

Proposed budget and fee structure 30 

 

Following an evaluation of the proposals, it is expected that the selected agency(ies) will be recommended 

to the City Council for approval. If approved by the City Council, a subrecipient agreement will be executed 

between the City of Porterville and the selected agency(ies). 

 

The City of Porterville, as a unit of local government, reserves the right to reject any and/or all proposals, 

reserve the right to waive any formalities or irregularities in the proposal or evaluation process, and reserve 

the right to award contract(s) in the best interest of the City of Porterville. In addition, the City will not 

reimburse costs associated with the preparation or presentation of the proposals. 

APPLICATION FORMAT 

The submitted proposals should contain the following components:  

• Applicant Information Form (Attachment A)  

• Project Narrative 

o Program Description and Design 

o Management of Program 

o Fiscal Management 

o Diversity and Multicultural Competency  

• Estimated Spending Plan and Revenue Summary Form (Attachment B) 

APPLICANT INFORMATION FORM  

See form in Attachment A.  

 

PROJECT NARRATIVE  

1. Program Description and Design (Limit your response to 3 pages)  

a. Program Description   

i. Provide a short, one or two sentence explanation of the purpose of this program 

and what the funds will be used on. 

ii. Explain why the program is needed.  

b. Provide a detailed description of your entire proposal as below:  

i. Describe the scope of the project, including the number of households that will be 

served annually, the program services and financial assistance that will be offered 

to address housing and supportive service needs. Detail the program activities 

under this service model and how each one will help to achieve one or more of the 

eligible activities listed in the City of Porterville’s PLHA Five-Year Plan. 



 

City of Porterville RFP For Use of PLHA Funds   6 | P a g e  

 

ii. Describe annual outcomes the project expects to accomplish throughout the grant 

period. 

iii. Describe how program services and/or other resources within your agency will be 

used to quickly reduce housing barriers and quickly engage participants in 

successfully maintaining housing stability. 

iv. Describe how your project will achieve geographic dispersion and client choice in 

offering housing placements throughout the City of Porterville. 

v. Describe the project timeline for program start-up, hiring staff, and achieving fully 

operational status. 

vi. If the applicant is partnering with another organization to provide housing and/or 

services to project participants, list the names of the partners and provide 

information on the specific roles and responsibilities of each. 

vii. Describe how you intend to measure program effectiveness in terms of outcomes 

to be achieved. 

c. Participants 

Describe your agency’s experience in the past two years providing services to persons who 

are experiencing homelessness or at risk of homelessness. 

i. Describe how you determined the number of clients to be served with the funding 

requested in this application. 

ii. Describe the population(s) you intend to serve. Explain how the target population 

is identified, qualified and monitored.  How will the project link populations to 

units of non-time limited housing?    

d. Personnel 

i. Describe the overall staffing plan to accomplish activities in the proposed program, 

including project leadership, reporting responsibilities, and daily program 

operations. 

e. Collaboration/Coordination  

Describe any formal or informal coordination, partnerships, or collaborations with other 

organizations proposed in this application. 

i. Will the proposed program use subrecipients and/or subcontractors? If yes, please 

list each partner agency, describe their role as either a subrecipient or contractor, 

describe what services and the frequency of services that will be offered by the 

partner agency, and provide a brief description of the partner agency’s experience 

providing homelessness services.  

ii. Describe the organization’s ability to collect data electronically and your agency’s 

plan to participate in HMIS and/or Coordinated Entry. 

2. Fiscal Management (Limit your response to one page)  

a. Please outline the organization’s initial program budget, including the availability of other 

revenue sources.  Complete the Estimated Spending Plan and Revenue Summary Form 

(Attachment B). If the sections do not apply to your program type or you are not requesting 

funds please enter $0 or N/A. Do not leave sections blank. 

b. As part of the organization’s initial program budget, please identify all personnel who will 

provide direct or indirect support of the organization’s proposed services.  Include each 

position title, the number of staff positions within each position title, and the number of 

Full Time Equivalents (FTEs) within each position title category.  Identify additional fund 

source(s) that pays for each staff member’s salary.  These positions should be the same as 

those listed in the Personnel section of the proposal. 

c. Describe how the organization will assure the proper use and safeguarding of public funds 

and experience using government funds. Does your organization have policies and 



 

City of Porterville RFP For Use of PLHA Funds   7 | P a g e  

 

procedures regarding the financial operations of the organization?  Have recent reviews or 

audits of the organization by a certified public accountant or other financial professional 

identified any weaknesses in the organization’s financial internal controls?  If so, please 

provide the written report identifying the weaknesses and describe how the organization 

has responded to correct weaknesses. 

d. Describe the organizations overall financial condition and the applicant’s ability to fund 

potential cost overruns or other costs not anticipated in the project budget. 

e. Provide copies of the last single audit and 990 filed  

3. Diversity and Multicultural Competency (Limit your response to one page)  

Cultural Competency is defined as: 

• Having a defined set of values and principles, and demonstrating behaviors, attitudes, 

policies and structures that enable the organization to work effectively in cross-cultural 

situations; and 

• Having the capacity to 1.) value diversity, 2.) conduct self-assessment, 3.) manage the 

dynamics of difference, 4.) acquire institutional knowledge, and 5.) adapt to diversity and 

the cultural contexts of the communities being served; and 

• Incorporating the above in all aspects of policy making, administration, practice, service 

delivery and involving consumers and key stakeholders.  

 

a. Explain your agency’s philosophy and the specific efforts that are in place to assure that 

this project will be culturally competent and linguistically accessible for the population that 

will be served. Be sure to include the following information in your response:  

i. Based on your understanding of the target population and subpopulation(s), 

describe how your project will be culturally relevant, sensitive, and linguistically 

accessible for the individuals or households that will be served, including efforts 

related to staffing, outreach and service design (i.e., how the project will help 

reduce barriers to housing and services for individuals of color and those 

households for whom English is not the primary language); 

ii. Describe how the ethno-cultural backgrounds of your project staff and agency 

board reflect that of the identified population to be served and/or how your agency 

is working to broaden staff and board diversity and knowledge around cultural 

competency; and 

iii. Describe any means or efforts that are in place to assess the cultural competency 

of your organization and make changes accordingly.    

 

ESTIMATED SPENDING PLAN AND REVENUE SUMMARY FORM   

See Attachment B. 

 

VII.  RESPONSIVENESS           

All proposals will be reviewed to determine compliance with administrative requirements and instructions 

specified in this RFP.  The Applicant is specifically notified that failure to comply with any part of the RFP 

may result in rejection of the proposal as non-responsive. The City of Porterville also reserves the right at 

its sole discretion to waive minor administrative irregularities. 

  



 

City of Porterville RFP For Use of PLHA Funds   8 | P a g e  

 

ATTACHMENTS  

A – Applicant Information Form  

1. Project title:        

2. Project location:  

3. Number of households served on a given day:        Number of households served annually:        

4. Number of individuals served on a given day:        Number of Individuals served annually:         

5. a. This project is specifically designed to serve the following population:  

(Please be very specific and check only those that apply)  

□ Homeless single adults  

□ Homeless families with children  

□ Homeless young adults (ages 18 - 25)  

5. b. This project is specifically designed to serve the following subpopulation:   

(Please check all that apply)  

□ Homeless households living on the streets  

□ Homeless households living in shelters  

□ Homeless households living in transitional housing  

□ Persons who are chronically homeless  

□ Persons with serious mental illness  

□ Persons with significant drug/alcohol addictions  

□ Persons with chronic medical condition(s)  

□ Persons exiting the foster care system  

□ Persons exiting criminal justice facilities  

□ Persons exiting mental health or psychiatric inpatient facilities  

□ Persons exiting residential chemical dependency treatment facilities  

6. DUNS Number:         

7. Federal Tax ID Number:        

8. Contact Information for Project Applicant:   

Lead Applicant Agency: 

__________________________________________________________________________       

Agency Mailing 

Address:_________________________________________________________________________        

 



 

City of Porterville RFP For Use of PLHA Funds   9 | P a g e  

 

Total Annual Agency Operating Budget (for all activities of the applicant agency from all sources): 

______________  

 

 

 Executive Director  Program Manager  HMIS Data  

Manager  

Finance/Bookkeeper  

Name                              

Title                              

Address (if 

different mailing 

then above)  

                            

Phone                              

FAX                              

Email                              
 

9.  Applicant Type   

       Nonprofit organization   

       Affordable Housing Developer  

10.   Provide the caption, cause number, Court, Counsel, and general summary of any litigation pending or 

judgment rendered within the past three (3) years against the applicant, as applicable.    

  

11.  Indicate the extent, if any, to which the firm, association or corporation or any person in a controlling 

capacity or any position involving the administration of federal, state or local funds; is  currently under 

suspension, debarment, voluntary exclusion, or determination of eligibility by any agency; has been 

suspended, debarred, voluntarily excluded or determined ineligible by any agency within the past three (3) 

years; does have a proposed debarment pending; has been indicted, convicted or has a civil judgment 

rendered against said person, firm, association or corporation by a court of competent jurisdiction in any 

matter involving fraud or misconduct with the past three (3) years.          

 

 

 

 

 

  



 

City of Porterville RFP For Use of PLHA Funds   10 | P a g e  

 

 

B– Estimated Spending Plan and Revenue Summary Form 

Payroll and Personnel Expenses
HUD 

Grants

Program 

Income

Other 

Revenue

Total 

Revenue

Difference 

(Rev. - Exp)

Salary and Wages FTE's Salary Total Expenses

Supervision

Case Managers

Navigators

Support Staff

Fringe Benefits (provide detail)

FICA

Workmans Comp

Insurance

Retirement

Other

Costs related to the provision of services

Space costs

Utilities

Telephone/Communications

Postage/delivery

Office Expenses

Local Travel

Equipment and Furniture

Supplies and materials

Sub-total Personnel Costs

Other Than Personnel Costs

Rental Assistance Expenses

Unit Type FMR # of units

0-BR

1-BR

2-BR

3-BR

4-BR

5-BR

Rental Assistance Total

Other Financial Assistance

Assistance Type FTE's Salary Total Expenses

Rental application fees

Utilities and Utility Deposits

Moving Costs

Security Deposits

Other: ___________________

Other: ___________________

Other: ___________________

Other: ___________________

Sub-total Other Financial Assistance

Sub-total expenses

TOTAL FUNDING REQUESTED

Annual cost

NOTE: Administrative Costs are not allowed, please make sure those costs are not included in your request.

EXPENSES REVENUES



 

 

 
 

CITY OF PORTERVILLE 

Addendum No. 1  

Date of addendum: April 14, 2023 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS FOR PERMANENT LOCAL HOUSING 

ALLOCATION (PLHA) THIRD YEAR FUNDING OF 2019-2023 FIVE YEAR 

PLAN 

RFP # No. 22/23-SR1944 
 

NOTICE TO ALL POTENTIAL RESPONDENTS 

 

The Request for proposals (RFP) is modified as set forth in this addendum. The original RFP documents 

remain in full force and effect, except as modified by this Addendum, which is hereby made part of the 

RFP. Respondents shall take this Addendum into consideration when preparing and submitting its Proposal. 

 

ALLOWABLE COSTS:  

 

The Proposal Allowable costs has been changed as noted herein, and modifies to allow applicants to request 

Administration Costs as part of their request not to exceed 5% of the budget. 

 

 



Michael White Manager, Contracts Services Section

2/23/2023





















 

  Item No.  9. 

 
 
 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA – MAY 16, 2023 
   
  
SUBJECT: A Resolution Approving the Application for State Off-Highway Vehicle Grant 

Funds 
    
SOURCE: Parks and Leisure Services  
    
COMMENT: Staff submitted a State Off-HIghway Vehicle (OHV) Grant application for the 

Fiscal Year 2023-2024 grant cycle in order to continue to receive State funding, 
which in this case would be for the development of a new OHV Park. The 
process entailed an online preliminary application and the ability for the public 
to review and comment on the preliminary application. Preliminary application 
review and comment is conducted on the State OHV website, allowing the 
public the ability to participate. In addition, State OHV personnel review the 
preliminary application and provide comments on its completeness and 
accuracy. Staff is then given the opportunity to revise the preliminary 
application, only for purposes of responding to public and State comments, 
prior to confirming the submission of a final application. 
 
The preliminary Development application is for $1,730,535, of which 
$1,000,000 is the grant request and $730,535 would come from a local match. 
The project would consist of the construction of multiple OHV tracks, parking, 
spectator area, restroom, entry gate kiosk, maintenance building and 
landscaping. The project site of the new OHV Park would be on City-owned 
property approximately two miles southwest of its current location. The local 
match for the proposed grant would come from the sale of the current OHV 
Park. Grant awards will be announced August 7, 2023. 

    
RECOMMENDATION: That the City Council adopt a Resolution approving the 

application for State Off-Highway Vehicle Grant Funds 
    
ATTACHMENTS: 1. Draft Resolution  

2. Locator Map: Proposed New OHV Park 
  
Appropriated/Funded:  
  
Review By:  
  Department Director:  

Donnie Moore, Parks and Leisure Services Director 
 
Final Approver: John Lollis, City Manager 

 
 



Page 1 of 2

RESOLUTION NO. _____- 2023 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PORTERVILLE
APPROVING THE APPLICANT TO APPLY FOR GRANT FUNDS FOR THE STATE 

OF CALIFORNIA, DEPARTMENT OF PARKS AND RECREATION, OFF-HIGHWAY 
VEHICLE GRANT FUNDS

WHEREAS, The people of the State of California have enacted the Off-Highway Motor 
Vehicle Recreation Act of 2003, which provides funds to the State of California and its political 
subdivisions for Operation and Maintenance, Restoration, Law Enforcement, Education and 
Safety for off-highway vehicle recreation; and

WHEREAS, the Off-Highway Motor Vehicle Recreation Division with the California 
Department of Parks and Recreation has been delegated the responsibility to administer the 
program; and

WHEREAS, procedures established by the California Department of Parks and Recreation 
require the Applicant’s Governing Body to certify by resolution the approval to receive grant 
funding from the Off-Highway Motor Vehicle Grant funds; and

WHEREAS, this Project appears on, or is in conformance with, this jurisdiction’s adopted 
general or master plan and is compatible with the land use plans of those jurisdictions immediately 
surrounding the Project;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of 
Porterville hereby:

1. Approves the receiving of grant funding from the Off-Highway Vehicle Grant or 
Cooperative Agreement; and

2. Certifies that this agency understands its legal obligations to the State upon approval 
of the Grant; and

3. Certifies that this agency understands the California Public Resources Code 
requirement that Acquisition and Development Projects be maintained to specific 
conservation standards; and

4. Certifies that the Project will be well-maintained during its useful life; and
5. Certifies that this agency will implement the Project with diligence once funds are 

available and the Applicant has reviewed, understands, and agrees with the Project 
Agreement; and

6. Certifies that this agency will provide the required matching funds; and
7. Certifies that the public and adjacent property owners have been notified of this Project 

(as applicable); and
8. Appoints the Director of Parks & Leisure Services as agent to conduct all negotiations, 

execute and submit all documents including, but not limited to, Applications, 
agreements, amendments, payment requests and so on, which may be necessary for 
completion of the Project.



Resolution No. ____-2023

Page 2 of 2

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 16th day of May, 2023.

      _________________________________
                  Martha A. Flores, Mayor 

Attest:
John D. Lollis, City Clerk

By: __________________________________
       Patrice Hildreth, Chief Deputy City Clerk





 

  Item No.  10. 

 
 
 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA – MAY 16, 2023 
   
  
SUBJECT: Authorization of Street Closures for KJUG Free Summer Concert Series 
    
SOURCE: Parks and Leisure Services  
    
COMMENT: At its meeting on February 21, 2023, City Council authorized the City to 

sponsor the KJUG Concert Series to take place at Centennial Park on May 24, 
June 6 or 7 and June 21, 2022. The free concerts are anticipated to begin at 6:30 
PM and be finished by 8:00 PM. Similar to previous KJUG concerts, City staff 
is recommending the same street closures as in past years to assure the safety of 
attendees. The attachment in the staff report shows the proposed street closures 
and traffic plan. 
 
Additionally, because KJUG has not indemnified the City for past concerts, 
staff proposes to purchase special event coverage for the three concert dates at a 
cost not to exceed $5,000 to be paid out of the Risk Management Fund. 

    
RECOMMENDATION: That the City Council authorize the street closures for the KJUG 

Concerts on May 24, June 6 or 7 and June 21, 2023, and approve 
an expenditure not to exceed $5,000 for special event liability 
coverage to be paid out of the Risk Management Fund. 

    
ATTACHMENTS: 1. Traffic Control Diagram 
  
Appropriated/Funded:  
  
Review By:  
  Department Director:  

Donnie Moore, Parks and Leisure Services Director 
 
Final Approver: John Lollis, City Manager 

 
 



 



 

  Item No.  11. 

 
 
 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA – MAY 16, 2023 
   
  
SUBJECT: Authorization of Street Closure for Military Banner Ceremony 
    
SOURCE: Parks and Leisure Services  
    
COMMENT: The City's annual Military Banner Ceremony is scheduled for Friday, May 26, 

2023, from 12:00 PM to 2:00 PM.  The event will take place in Centennial 
Park, 296 N. Main Street, across from City Hall.  The ceremony will recognize 
seventy-one (71) individuals that will have banners installed in their honor for 
the 2023 display period of the Military Banner Program. 
  
In support of this event, it is requested that the City Council approve a 
temporary closure of Main Street between Thurman Avenue and Cleveland 
Avenue.  This application has been reviewed by all involved City departments 
and staff comments are included for Council’s consideration. 

    
RECOMMENDATION: That the City Council authorize the temporary closure of Main 

Street between Thurman Avenue and Cleveland Avenue for the 
Military Banner Ceremony on May 26, 2023, from 9:00 AM to 
3:00 PM. 

    
ATTACHMENTS: 1. Internal Civic Event Application 
  
Appropriated/Funded:  
  
Review By:  
  Department Director:  

Donnie Moore, Parks and Leisure Services Director 
 
Final Approver: John Lollis, City Manager 

 
 













 

  Item No.  12. 

 
 
 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA – MAY 16, 2023 
   
  
SUBJECT: Parks and Leisure Services Commission Meetings 
    
SOURCE: Parks and Leisure Services  
    
COMMENT: The Parks and Leisure Services Commission has expressed an interest in going 

on hiatus for the months of July and August 2023 as it has done annually for the 
past several years. The Commission would be available to schedule a meeting 
with a seventy-two (72) hour notice should the need arise.  This matter of taking 
a summer hiatus was considered and unanimously approved by the Parks and 
Leisure Services Commission at its meeting on May 4, 2023. 
 
Pursuant to Chapter 19, Article I, Section 19-7 of the Porterville Municipal 
Code, the Commission is permitted to designate its date and time for meetings. 
It states, "The Commission shall hold meetings regularly and shall designate the 
time and place thereof. It shall adopt its own rules of procedure and shall keep a 
record of its proceedings..." 

    
RECOMMENDATION: That the City Council approve the Parks and Leisure Services 

Commission's request for a hiatus during the months of July and 
August 2023, with the Commission being available to meet if 
necessary. 

    
ATTACHMENTS: 1. Chapter 19, Article I 
  
Appropriated/Funded:  
  
Review By:  
  Department Director:  

Donnie Moore, Parks and Leisure Services Director 
 
Final Approver: John Lollis, City Manager 

 
 









 

  Item No.  13. 

 
 
 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA – MAY 16, 2023 
   
  
SUBJECT: Cancellation of Public Hearing to Consider Annexation 
    
SOURCE: Community Development  
    
COMMENT: A Public Hearing notice was posted in the Porterville Recorder on May 6, 2023, 

for the proposed annexation of three parcels (APNs 261-015-013, 261-015-015, 
261-015-016) near the southeast corner of E. River Avenue and Plano Street, that 
was scheduled to be considered by the City Council at its meeting on May 16, 
2023. The legal notice was inadvertently not mailed to the property owners 
within a three hundred (300) foot radius of the subject property as required by 
Porterville Development Ordinance (PDO) Chapter 601.05. Therefore, the 
Public Hearing will need to be cancelled and considered after being properly 
noticed. Staff will notice the Public Hearing in accordance with PDO 601.05 for 
a future meeting.  

    
RECOMMENDATION: That the City Council cancel the Public Hearing previously 

scheduled for the consideration of the annexation of APNs 261-
015-013, 261-015-015 and 261-015-016. 

    
ATTACHMENTS:  

  
Appropriated/Funded:  
  
Review By:  
  Department Director:  

Jason Ridenour, Assistant City Manager  
 
Final Approver: John Lollis, City Manager 

 
 



 

  Item No.  14. 

 
 
 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA – MAY 16, 2023 
   
  
SUBJECT: Rescinding and Replacing Resolution No. 16-2023 Concerning Class A Driver's 

License Incentive Pay 
    
SOURCE: Administrative Services  
    
COMMENT: As the City Council will recall, at its meeting of April 18, 2023, the Council 

adopted Resolution No. 16-2023 approving a Side Letter which established 
incentive pay of 2.5% of base salary for employees in specific job 
classifications within Porterville City Employees Association (PCEA) and 
Management & Confidential Series (MCS) for attaining and retaining a Class A 
Driver's License. 
 
Subsequent to the Council's action, staff was contacted by PCEA's 
representative who inquired about adding the additional classification of Field 
Service Worker II/III - Refuse. Staff sees value in expanding the eligibility for 
said incentive pay as some of the current refuse drivers already possess a Class 
A license. 
 
Council acceptance and approval of the Side Letter Agreement is needed before 
staff executes the letter and it is most commonly demonstrated by Council 
authorization to change or amend, when applicable, those documents that are 
necessary to implement the points of agreement contained in the letter. 

    
RECOMMENDATION: That the City Council adopt the draft Resolution Rescinding and 

Replacing Resolution No. 16-2023 Approving a Side Letter 
between the City of Porterville and Porterville City Employees 
Association and Management & Confidential Series employees 
amending the Employee Pay & Benefit Plan Establishing 
Incentive Pay for Employees Attaining and Retaining a Class A 
Driver's License. 

    
ATTACHMENTS: 1. Draft Resolution 

2. Resolution No. 16-2023 
  
Appropriated/Funded:  
  
Review By:  
  Department Director:  

Patrice Hildreth, Deputy City Manager 
 
Final Approver: John Lollis, City Manager 



 

  Item No.  14. 

 
 



Page 1  
 

RESOLUTION NO. _____-2023 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
PORTERVILLE RESCINDING AND REPLACING RESOLUTION 16-2023 

 APPROVING A SIDE LETTER AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE  
CITY OF PORTERVILLE AND PORTERVILLE CITY EMPLOYEES ASSOCIATION 

(“PCEA”) AND MANAGEMENT & CONFIDENTIAL SERIES (“MCS”)  
AMENDING THE EMPLOYEE PAY AND BENEFIT PLAN  

ESTABLISHING INCENTIVE PAY FOR EMPLOYEES ATTAINING AND  
RETAINING A CLASS “A” DRIVER’S LICENSE 

 

 WHEREAS, the City Council has determined and reiterated that an Employee Pay and 

Benefit Plan, Classification Plan, Personnel System Rules and Regulations, Health Plan and 

Retirement Plan are essential for the proper administration of the City’s affairs, including 

employee recruitment and retention, and for proper supervision of City Employees; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City Council recognizes the necessity of amending and/or changing the 

contents of such plans and regulations from time to time, and of executing instruments to 

implement and to keep the provisions thereof current, and to maintain the relevancy of the same; 

and 

 

WHEREAS, in order to meet the needs of the City, on a regular basis it is necessary that 

City staff utilize trailers in excess of 10,000 pounds to move heavy equipment and other 

materials.  In order to comply with provisions of the California Vehicle Code, employee drivers 

must possess a Class A Driver’s License in order to haul these loads; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City recognizes the additional educational requirements to employees 

who attain and retain a Class A Driver’s License, as well as the legal impacts to these employees 

while off-duty, and desires to provide incentive pay for mutual benefit; and 

 

WHEREAS, there has been concurrence on a Side Letter Agreement between the City, 

PCEA and MCS to amend the Employee Pay and Benefit Plan to establish incentive pay in this 

regard. 

 



Resolution No. ___-2023 

Page 2 
 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Porterville 

that the Employee Pay and Benefit Plan shall be amended to establish incentive pay in specific 

classifications, as follows: 

Porterville City Employees Association Classifications: 
Field Services Worker II/III – Streets 
Field Services Worker II/III – Refuse 
Mechanic II 
Parks Maintenance Worker I/II/III 
Water Utility Worker I/II/III 
 
Management & Confidential Series Classifications: 
Field Services Superintendent – Streets 
Field Services Superintendent – Refuse 
Field Services Supervisor - Water 
Parks Superintendent 
Shop Superintendent 
Water Systems Specialist 
Water Utility Superintendent 

 
Effective April 1, 2023, employees within the job classifications identified above 
are eligible to receive incentive pay of 2.5% of base salary to attain and retain a 
Class A Driver’s License as conditioned herein. 
 
Employees within the job descriptions identified above who currently possess and 
have possessed a Class A Driver’s License and performed duties associated with 
said license since January 1, 2023, shall receive incentive pay of 2.5% of base 
salary retroactively effective to January 1, 2023, as conditioned herein.  
 
The Class A Driver’s License must be maintained in good standing to continue to 
receive this incentive pay.  The intent of making this incentive pay available to 
employees is to provide a mutual benefit between the City and the eligible 
employee.  If the employee is unable to perform the duties that require a Class A 
Driver’s License for a period of time of sixty (60) days or longer due to any 
reason, including for a work-related or non-work-related injury, the incentive pay 
shall be suspended until such time as the employee returns to their performance of 
Class A driving duties.  
 
All other terms and conditions previously negotiated and subsequently approved 
and implemented by appropriate authority shall, unless herein expressly modified 
or eliminated, remain in full force and effect until such time as they are 
subsequently modified or eliminated through the meet and confer process and 
mutually agreed upon by the City and bargaining units. 

 



Resolution No. ___-2023 

Page 3 
 

 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Mayor of the City of Porterville is hereby 

authorized to execute those documents as are necessary to implement the provisions hereof. 

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED this ____ day of May, 2023. 

 

                  ____________________________________ 
       Martha A. Flores, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
John Lollis, City Clerk 
 
 
 
By: ______________________________ 
       Fernando Gabriel-Moraga, Deputy City Clerk 











 

  Item No.  15. 

 
 
 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA – MAY 16, 2023 
   
  
SUBJECT: Cancellation of July 4, 2023, City Council Meeting 
    
SOURCE: Administrative Services  
    
COMMENT: This year, the first Tuesday of July falls on July 4th.  Given that this is the 

Independence Day holiday, staff presents this item for the City Council's 
consideration in cancelling the July 4th Council Meeting.  In the event items 
arise that require Council action, a special meeting can be scheduled. 

    
RECOMMENDATION: That the City Council cancel the first Council Meeting in July 

scheduled for July 4, 2023, due to the Independence Day holiday. 
    
ATTACHMENTS:  

  
Appropriated/Funded:  
  
Review By:  
  Department Director:  

Patrice Hildreth, Deputy City Manager 
 
Final Approver: John Lollis, City Manager 

 
 



 

  Item No.  16. 

 
 
 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA – MAY 16, 2023 
   
  
SUBJECT: Status and Review of Local Drought Emergency 
    
SOURCE: City Manager's Office  
    
COMMENT: 

At its meeting of May 5, 2015, the City Council took action to approve a 
Resolution Declaring a Drought Emergency in the City of Porterville.  At its 
meeting of May 2, 2023, the Council reviewed the status of existence of local 
emergency, and acted to continue its Resolution of local emergency. 
 
Governor Brown issued Executive Order B-29-15 on Wednesday, April 1, 
2015, which established drought-related mandates and restrictions in addition to 
those already stipulated in previous Executive Orders B-26-14 and B-28-14.  Of 
significance, the Governor directed the State Water Resources Control Board to 
impose restrictions to achieve a statewide twenty-five percent (25%) reduction 
in potable urban water usage through February 28, 2016, in comparison to the 
amount used in 2013, and with consideration given to per capita usage as a 
basis.  The Governor further directed the Board to impose additional restrictions 
on commercial, industrial, and institutional properties with significant 
landscaping (cemeteries, golf courses, parks, schools, etc.), to also achieve a 
twenty-five (25%) reduction in potable water usage.  Also of significance, the 
Board was directed to prohibit irrigation with potable water outside of newly 
constructed homes and buildings that is not delivered by drip or micro-spray 
systems. 
 
On November 13, 2015, Governor Brown issued Executive Order B-36-15, 
which extends emergency conservation regulations through October 2016, if 
drought conditions persist through January 2016.  On February 2, 2016, the 
State Water Resources Control Board adopted extended emergency water 
conservation regulations, to be in effect March 1 through October 31, 2016. 
 The City of Porterville benefited somewhat from the extended regulations as 
the City's water conservation rate has been reduced from thirty-two percent 
(32%) to twenty-six percent (26%), due to new water connections that have 
been made and population served (4%), as well as a new climate adjustment 
factor that was considered (2%). 
 
On May 9, 2016, Governor Brown issued Executive Order B-37-16 ("Making 
Water Conservation a California Way of Life"), which directs the State Water 
Resources Control Board to establish new regulations making permanent the 
emergency conservation regulations.  On May 18, 2016, the State Water 
Resources Control Board adopted a statewide water conservation approach that 
replaces the percentage reduction-based water conservation standard with a 



 

  Item No.  16. 

localized "stress test" approach that mandates urban water suppliers act 
immediately to ensure at least a three-year supply of water to their customers 
under continued drought conditions. 
 
On April 7, 2017, Governor Brown issued Executive Order B-40-17, which 
ended the drought state of emergency in most of California, with the exception 
of Fresno, Kings, Tulare and Tuolumne counties where emergency water 
supply and reliability projects are continuing toward addressing diminishing 
groundwater supplies.  The Order maintains monthly reporting requirements 
and prohibitions on wasteful practices. 
 
On May 31, 2018, Governor Brown signed both AB 1668 (Friedman) and SB 
606 (Hertzberg), which set permanent overall targets for indoor and outdoor 
water consumption.  The legislation sets an initial limit for indoor water use of 
fifty-five (55) gallons per-person per-day in 2022, reducing to 52.5 gallons per-
person per-day in 2025, and finally to fifty (50) gallons per-person per-day in 
2030.  The amount of residential outdoor use is yet-to-be determined, but will 
allow for varying regional climates.  In addition, a standard for water loss due 
to leak rates in water system pipes will be established.  As an urban water 
provider, the City will need to submit its plan for compliance for approval by 
the State Water Resources Control Board. 
 
On March 5, 2021, Secretary Vilsack of the United States Department of 
Agriculture federally-designated Tulare County as a primary natural disaster 
area due to ongoing drought conditions.  On April 21, 2021, Governor Newsom 
issued a State of Emergency Proclamation due to drought conditions, including 
Tulare County.  On April 27, 2021, the Tulare County Board of Supervisors 
adopted a Resolution Proclaiming a Local Emergency due to severe drought 
conditions.  On January 4, 2022, the State Water Resources Control Board 
adopted emergency regulations to supplement voluntary water conservation. 
 On March 28, 2022, Governor Newsom issued Executive Order N-7-22, that 
requires the state's largest water providers (including the City of Porterville) to 
put in place "Level 2" of water shortage contingency plans, which the City is 
currently in "Level 4."  On June 10, 2022, the State Water Resources Control 
Board adopted emergency regulations to prohibit the watering of nonfunctional 
or purely decorative grass in commercial, industrial or institutional properties 
with potable water.  On March 24, 2023, due to atmospheric river storms during 
the month of March 2023, Governor Newsom issued Executive Order N-5-23 
that ended the requirement that the state's largest water providers (including the 
City of Porterville) put in place "Level 2" of water storage contingency plans 
(the City of Porterville is currently in "Level 4"), as well as ended the voluntary 
fifteen percent (15%) water conservation target. 

At its meeting on January 17, 2023, the Council considered an emergency 
request from the County of Tulare for assistance to Self-Help Enterprises, Inc. 
(SHE) in the provision of source water for the Emergency Tank Program that 
serves 389 residences across Tulare County where domestic wells have run dry 
due to continued drought.  The County had been providing source water from 
its well at the Bob Wiley Detention Facility, north of Visalia, but the recent 



 

  Item No.  16. 

rainfall had caused damage and the temporary closure of the access road to the 
well.  The Council acted to grant the County's request for emergency assistance 
and provide source water to SHE to continue the Emergency Tank Program, to 
be reviewed at its next regular meeting on February 7, 2023.  On January 20, 
2023, SHE began taking City water for delivery.  The County later reported that 
the access road had been repaired and that the County source well was 
accessible again to SHE beginning on February 1, 2023.  According to the City 
water meter report, approximately 111,500 gallons of water was accessed by 
SHE, with a corresponding cost of $350.  At Council's direction, City staff has 
also been in contact and coordinating with the Eastern Tule Groundwater 
Sustainability Agency (ETGSA) in regard to source water from the ETGSA 
crossing over into other GSA territories and other Sub-basins (e.g. Kaweah) and 
addressing any potential impacts, although it is important to note that the same 
has been happening from the County well that is located in the Kaweah Sub-
basin. 
 

Initially within the city of Porterville, twenty-six (26) residences within the city 
were determined to have dry wells, for which City staff submitted a Mutual Aid 
Request to Tulare County OES to initiate the household tank program for 
identified properties within the city where wells are dry and challenged for 
permanent connection.  The State has committed funding for non-profit 
agencies to continue drought-related activities, which Self-Help Enterprises has 
continued the household tank program locally, through State Cleanup and 
Abatement Account (CAA) emergency funds. 
 
Representatives for the City, County, State (CalOES, DDW, DWR, and SWB) 
and non-profit partners continued to meet in support of the long-term permanent 
water connection project for the entire East Porterville area and the estimated 
1,800 expected future connections.  DWR identified 423 residential units in the 
East Porterville area (381 of which are in the City's Urban Development 
Boundary), that were served by the County's Household Tank Program and 
desired by the State to be connected to the City's water distribution system as 
soon as possible.  DWR has completed a significant City waterline extension 
project to permanently connect those 423 residential units to the City's water 
system (considered Phase I of the project).  To provide initial source water for 
the DWR extension project, CalOES desired to expeditiously connect the new 
well on Olive Avenue to the City's water system instead of being first equipped 
as a filling station.  Given the new well has an estimated water production value 
of 800 gallons per minute, as well as a SWB assumed 1.5 gallons per minute 
per residence, the new well could effectively serve up to five hundred (500) 
single-family residential units.  The City indicated its significant interest that 
the E. Vandalia Avenue area and its eighty (80) residential units be included in 
the water connection project, to which the State was agreeable. 
 
Given CalOES has paid for the development of the new well, and its connection 
to the City's water system, the City will be required under "Drought 
Redundancy and Resiliency Provisions" to make available to the State up to 
three million gallons of water per month without charge for emergency 



 

  Item No.  16. 

purposes.  On May 7, 2022, Tulare County OES notified the City that due to 
deteriorating conditions across the county involving small water systems 
dependent upon the Friant-Kern Canal that may result in the complete lack of 
water or "Do Not Drink" orders, the State and County may have to invoke the 
provision of water from the well. 
 
To proceed with the connection of the new well to the City's water system and 
the 500 East Porterville and E. Vandalia Avenue residential units, the City 
Council approved modifications to the Draft Agreement between the City and 
County at its meeting on April 5, 2016, which the County Board of Supervisors 
subsequently approved at their meeting on May 10, 2016. 
 
A Memorandum of Understanding between the State, County, and City on the 
East Porterville permanent water connection project was approved by the 
Council during a Special Meeting on Tuesday, June 21, 2016, and approved by 
the Board of Supervisors on Tuesday, June 28, 2016.  With the approval of the 
MOU, the State began the permanent connection of approximately forty (40) 
homes that are located along existing City water mains. Subsequently, the State 
officially requested that the City approve the connection of an additional thirty 
(30) residences as part of the first immediate connections, for up to a total of 
seventy (70), which the Council approved at its meeting on August 2, 2016. 
 
In regards to the new well's development and connection to the City's water 
distribution system, the Board of Supervisors awarded the contract for 
equipping and connecting the new well at its meeting on Tuesday, August 16, 
2016, and construction activities commenced the week of October 10, 2016. 
 County staff had previously indicated that the well would be in service and 
connected to the City's system no later than December 2016, however, the well 
was operational and connected to the City's water distribution as of Friday, 
February 17, 2017.  Given the delay in the well's completion and connection, 
DWR requested that the Council consider allowing the connection of residences 
as they become prepared for connection, to which the Council was receptive, 
and a Draft MOU Amendment was approved by the Council at its meeting on 
December 6, 2016, and subsequently approved by the Board of Supervisors at is 
meeting on December 20, 2016.  City staff continued to work with County staff 
toward the transfer of the well's ownership from the County to the City, which 
at its meeting on April 20, 2021, the Council approved the draft Transfer 
Agreement subject to the City Attorney's final form. 
 
As of Friday, March 31, 2017, the date the State established as the final day for 
property owners to complete the registration process to participate in the State-
funded connection program opportunity, of the 1,017 eligible developed 
residential properties identified by the State for connection, 722 completed the 
required Extra-Territorial Services Agreement, leaving 295 developed 
residential properties non-responsive to this unique connection program, 
twenty-three (23) of which were reported as having either dry or diminishing 
capacity wells.  On February 6, 2018, the final residential connection was made 
of the approximate eligible eight hundred (800) residences in East Porterville to 
the City's water system. 



 

  Item No.  16. 

 
City staff continues to coordinate with Self-Help Enterprises and State 
representatives toward the extension of water mains to serve all residential 
properties within City limits and the city's periphery that are currently 
participating in the County's Household Tank Program.  The two main areas of 
focus are N. Cobb Street (northwest of State Route 65 and Pioneer Avenue), 
and S. Cloverleaf Street (southeast of State Route 65 and Olive Avenue).  The 
State has maintained its commitment to grant-fund the necessary infrastructure 
and connection fees, providing an official funding letter to the City on January 
18, 2018, which commits up to $2.81 million in funding until December 31, 
2019.  The authorization to advertise for bids for the water connection project 
was approved by the Council at its July 17th meeting, after which DWR 
reviewed the bid package for compliance and approved in December the 
package for advertisement. Council authorized award of the construction 
contract for approximately $1.82 million at its meeting on January 15, 2019. 
 City staff conducted a pre-construction public outreach meeting with the 
affected residents on the status of the project on Thursday, April 4, 2019. 
 Council authorized the agreement with Self-Help Enterprises Inc. to provide 
the private residential connections at its meeting on July 2, 2019, and 
construction work began on the project.  At its meeting on October 1, 2019, the 
Council accepted the public works segment of the project in the installation of 
water mains as complete, with Self-Help and CSET continuing to collaborate 
on the completion of the individual private connections and abandonment of 
private wells.  City staff has recently been made aware that there may be a 
couple of additional residences whose wells are dry that are located along 
existing City water mains or may require further extension of water mains. 
 Staff is coordinating with State staff on addressing these new isolated needs. 
 
County OES and the State Division of Drinking Water (DDW) have reported to 
the City that the Central Mutual Water Company, located south of the city and 
south of Gibbons Avenue, has had its well run dry and desires an immediate 
emergency connection to the City's water system to serve the forty-one (41) 
connections currently without water.  DDW is wishing to support a financial 
application to upgrade the small water system to City standards (new water 
lines, meters ,etc.), and to sponsor an Urban Development Boundary (UDB) 
Amendment application to Tulare County Local Agency Formation 
Commission (LAFCO), given this area is currently outside the City's UDB but 
within the City's Urban Area Boundary (UAB).  Given several private wells 
have run dry in this area, DDW is also attempting to sponsor their connection to 
the City's water system.  For source water capacity for the connections, DWR 
will include these new connections within the East Porterville water connection 
capacity development projects.  At its Special meeting on August 30, 2019, the 
City Council directed staff to proceed with the immediate emergency 
connection of the Central water system, with the permanent connection of the 
system contingent upon an Agreement with DDW to the sponsorship conditions 
they have offered.  At its meeting on October 1, 2019, the Council directed staff 
to proceed with the amendment of the UDB to facilitate annexation, which a 
public meeting with the affected residents was conducted on Wednesday, 
October 9, 2019.  At its meeting on April 21, 2020, the Council conducted a 



 

  Item No.  16. 

Public Hearing and approved Resolutions of approval of the environmental 
determination and amendment to the UDB to facilitate annexation. At its 
meeting on June 1, 2021, the Council approved the State Water Board funding 
agreement for the development of a City-owned production well, distribution 
mains and water meters to serve each customer, as well as fire hydrants.  On 
July 20, 2021, the City received notification from the State Water Board that the 
Akin/Central Water Consolidation Project funding agreement had been 
formally approved and executed. 
 
DDW has also reported to the City that the Del Oro East Plano water system, 
located on Paul Street (southeast of the intersection of Plano Street and Worth 
Avenue), is experiencing problems with its existing well and have implemented 
severe water restrictions.  The East Plano water system serves fourteen (14) 
residences and approximately forty-five (45) people.  DDW is wishing to 
provide financial support to upgrade the small water system to City standards 
(new water lines, meters ,etc.), and for source water capacity for the 
connections, DDW would need to either pay appropriate fees and/or develop a 
capacity development project.  The Council is aware that the Del Oro 
Grandview Gardens water system (north of W. North Grand Avenue) is also 
experiencing significant issues, and DDW may seek their future consolidation 
with the City's water system as well. 
 
DDW has further reported to the City that the Beverly Grand Mutual Water 
Company water system, located north of West North Grand Avenue, is 
experiencing problems with its existing well and water quality issues, and 
desires its connection to the City's system to serve the thirty-one (31) residences 
the system serves.  DDW is wishing to provide financial support to upgrade the 
small water system to City standards (new water lines, meters ,etc.), and for 
source water capacity for the connections, DDW has agreed to pay appropriate 
fees toward developing a capacity development project, which at its meeting of 
October 3, 2017, the Council approved a purchase agreement with Smee 
Homes, Inc. for the acquisition of property along the Tule River for the 
development of a new municipal well.  At its meeting of October 1, 2019, the 
Council approved proceeding with the consolidation of the Beverly Grand 
water system. 

    
RECOMMENDATION: That the City Council receive the report of status and review of 

the Declaration of Local Emergency and determine the need 
exists to continue said Declaration. 

    
ATTACHMENTS: 1. City of Porterville Resolution Declaring Local Drought 

Emergency: May 5, 2015 
2. United States Department of Agriculture Drought Natural 

Disaster Area Designation: March 5, 2021 
3. State of California State of Emergency Proclamation: April 

21, 2021 
4. County of Tulare Drought Local Emergency Resolution: 



 

  Item No.  16. 

April 27, 2021 
5. State Water Resources Control Board: Emergency 

Regulation - Water Conservation; January 4, 2022 
6. Governor Newsom Executive Order N-7-22: March 28, 

2022 
7. State Water Resources Control Board: Emergency 

Regulation - Water Conservation; June 10, 2022 
8. Governor Newsom Executive Order N-5-23: March 24, 

2023 
9. State Water Resources Control Board Funding Agreement: 

Akin/Central Water Consolidation Project 
  
Appropriated/Funded:  
  
Review By:  
  Department Director:  

John Lollis, City Manager 
 
Final Approver: John Lollis, City Manager 

 
 









EXECUTIVE DEPARTMENT 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

State of Emergency Proclamation 

WHEREAS climate change is intensifying the impacts of droughts on our 
communities, environment and economy, and California must therefore 
improve drought resiliency and prepare to respond to more frequent, 
prolonged, and intense dry periods; and 

WHEREAS much of the West is experiencing severe to exceptional drought 
and California is in a second consecutive year of dry conditions, resulting in 
drought or near-drought throughout many portions of the State; and 

WHEREAS these drought conditions can result in degraded water quality, 
fallowing of productive farmland, setbacks to vulnerable and rural communities 
through job losses and longer-lasting recoveries, significant impacts to tribal, 
commercial, and recreational salmon fisheries, constraints on access to 
traditional lifeways, loss of aquatic and terrestria l biodiversity, and ecosystem 
impacts; and 

WHEREAS drought conditions vary across the State and some watersheds, 
including the Russian River and Klamath Basin, are extremely dry and are facing 
substantial water supply and ecosystem challenges; and 

WHEREAS it is necessary to expeditiously mitigate the effects of the 
drought conditions within the Russian River Watershed, located within 
Mendocino and Sonoma counties, to ensure the protection of health, safety, 
and the environment; and 

WHEREAS experience in the last drought has demonstrated the value of 
preparing earlier for potential sustained dry conditions, the need to improve our 
monitoring and forecasting capabilities, and many other lessons that are 
captured in the Administration 1s Report to the Legislature on the 2012-2016 
Drought; and 

WHEREAS the State and its many partners have strengthened drought 
resilience since the last drought including state investments in water 
management systems, implementation of the Sustainable Groundwater 
Management Act, establishment of the Safe and Affordable Fund for Equity and 
Resilience Program, development of the Administration's Water Resilience 
Portfolio, and continued water conservation by Californians whose current 
statewide urban water use is 16% lower than at the beginning of the last 
drought; and 

WHEREAS state agencies have been actively responding to current 
drought conditions and preparing for the possibility of a third dry year including 
through convenings of the interagency drought team, which was established at 
my direction, to organize, focus, and track changing conditions, coordinate 
state agency responses, and work closely with partners across the State; and 

WHEREAS under the provisions of Government Code section 8558(b), I find 
that the conditions caused by the drought conditions, by reason of their 
magnitude, are or are likely to be beyond the control of the services, personnel, 
equipment, and facilities of any single local government and require the 
combined forces of a mutual aid region or regions to appropriately respond; 
and 



WHEREAS under the provisions of Government Code section 8625(c), I find 
that local authority is inadequate to cope with the drought conditions; and 

WHEREAS to protect public health and safety, it is critical the State take 
certain immediate actions without undue delay to prepare for and mitigate the 
effects of, the drought conditions within the Russian River Watershed, and under 
the provisions of Government Code section 8571, I find that strict compliance 
with various statutes and regulations specified in this Proclamation would 
prevent, hinder, or delay the mitigation of the effects of the drought conditions 
of the Russian River Watershed, located within Mendocino and Sonoma 
counties. 

NOW THEREFORE, I, GAVIN NEWSOM, Governor of the State of California, in 
accordance with the authority vested in me by the State Constitution and 
statutes, including the California Emergency Services Act, and in particular, 
section 8625, HEREBY PROCLAIM A STATE OF EMERGENCY to exist in Mendocino 
and Sonoma counties due to drought conditions in the Russian River Watershed. 

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED THAT: 

1. To further the success of California's water conservation efforts and 
increase our drought preparedness, state agencies shall partner with local 
water districts and utilities to make all Californians aware of drought, and 
encourage actions to reduce water usage by promoting the Department 
of Water Resources' Save Our Water campaign 
(https://saveourwater.com) and other water conservation programs. 

2. To continue coordination with partners across the State for the potential of 
prolonged drought impacts, the Department of Water Resources, the 
State Water Resources Control Board (Water Board), the Department of 
Fish and Wildlife, and the Department of Food and Agriculture shall work 
with regional and local governments, including groundwater sustainability 
agencies, to identify watersheds, communities, public water systems, and 
ecosystems that may require coordinated state and local actions to 
address issues stemming from continued dry conditions, to ensure that we 
can respond to water shortages and protect people, natural resources 
and economic activity. 

3. To continue partnership and coordination with Californian Native 
American tribes, state agencies shall engage in consultation, 
collaboration, and communication with California Native American tribes 
to assist them in necessary preparation and response to drought 
conditions on tribal lands and potential impacts to cultural and traditiona l 
resources within ancestral lands. 

4. To prioritize drought response and preparedness resources, the 
Department of Water Resources, the Water Board, the Department of Fish 
and Wildlife and the Department of Food and Agriculture, in consultation 
with the Department of Finance, shall: 

a. Accelerate funding for water supply enhancement, water 
conservation, or species conservation projects. 

b. Identify unspent funds that can be repurposed to enable projects to 
address drought impacts to people, ecosystems, and economic 
activities. 

c. Recommend additional financial support for water resilience 
infrastructure projects and actions for potential inclusion in the 
upcoming May Revision. 

https://saveourwater.com
https://saveourwater.com


5. To increase resilience of our water supplies during drought conditions, the 
Department of Water Resources shall: 

a. Work with counties to encourage reporting of household water 
shortages, such as dry residential wells, on the website the 
Department maintains for that purpose, to enable tracking of 
drought impacts. 

b. Work with counties, and groundwater sustainability agencies as 
appropriate, to help ensure that well drillers submit required 
groundwater well logs for newly constructed and deepened wells in 
a timely manner. 

c. Work with agricultural water suppliers and agricultural water users to 
provide technical assistance, including implementation of efficient 
water management practices and use of technology such as the 
California Irrigation Management Information System. 

d. Work with urban and agricultural water suppliers to encourage 
timely submittal by water districts and public posting of urban water 
management and water shortage contingency plans and 
agricultural water management and drought plans. 

e. Accelerate updating the land subsidence data it is providing to 
support implementation of the Sustainable Groundwater 
Management Act. 

6. To increase resilience of our water systems during drought conditions, the 
Water Board shall: 

a. Use its authority, provide technical assistance, and where feasible 
provide financial assistance, to support regular reporting of drinking 
water supply well levels and reservoir water levels where the Water 
Board determines that there is risk of supply failure because of 
lowering groundwater levels or reservoir levels that may fall below 
public water system intakes. 

b . Prioritize the permitting of public water systems that anticipate the 
need to activate additional supply wells where water quality is a 
concern and treatment installation needs to proceed to relieve a 
system's potential supply concerns. 

c. Provide annual water demand data, information on water right 
priority, and other communications on water availability on its 
website. 

d. Identify watersheds where current diversion data is insufficient to 
evaluate supply impacts caused by dry conditions, and take 
actions to ensure prompt submittal of missing data in those 
watersheds. 

7. To address the acutely dry conditions in the Russian River Watershed, the 
Water Board shall consider: 

a. Modifying requirements for reservoir releases or diversion limitations 
in that watershed to ensure adequate, minimal water supplies for 
critical purposes. 

b. Adopting emergency regulations to curtail water diversions when 
water is not available at water rights holders' priority of right or to 
protect releases of stored water. 

For purposes of carrying out this directive, Public Resources Code, Division 
13 (commencing with section 21000) and regulations adopted pursuant 
to that Division are suspended in the counties of Mendocino and Sonoma 
to the extent necessary to address the impacts of the drought in the 
Russian River Watershed. The Water Board sha ll identify the projects 



eligible for the suspensions pursuant to this paragraph and maintain on its 
websites a list of the activities or approvals for which these provisions are 
suspended. 

8. To ensure that equipment and services necessary for drought response in 
the Russian River Watershed can be procured quickly, the provisions of the 
Government Code and the Public Contract Code applicable to 
procurement, state contracts, and fleet assets, including, but not limited 
to, advertising and competitive bidding requirements, are hereby 
suspended to the extent necessary to address the effects of the drought 
in the Russian River Watershed, located within Mendocino and Sonoma 
counties. Approval of the Department of Finance is required prior to the 
execution of any contract entered into pursuant to this provision. 

9. To increase the resilience of our natural habitats to protect vulnerable 
species during drought conditions, the Department of Fish and Wildlife 
shall: 

a. Evaluate and take actions to protect terrestria l and aquatic species 
and, wherever possible, work with water users and other parties on 
voluntary measures to protect species. 

b. Work to improve State hatcheries and increase water use efficiency 
on State wildlife areas and ecological reserves to maintain habitat 
for vulnerable species. 

c. Respond to human-wildlife interactions related to ongoing dry 
conditions and increase public messaging and awareness. 

d. Work with commercial and recreational salmon fishing and tribal 
representatives to anticipate and develop strategies to mitigate 
and respond to salmon fishery impacts, with particular emphasis on 
addressing impacts to salmon fisheries in the Klamath Basin. 

10. To support our agricultural economy and food security during drought 
conditions, the Department of Food and Agriculture shall: 

a. Provide technical assistance to support conservation planning, on­
farm water and energy conservation practices and technologies, 
including augmenting the State Water Efficiency and Enhancement 
Program. 

b. Conduct an economic analysis of drought impacts to agriculture, 
including land use, jobs, and rural food economies, expanding on 
existing research done in the last drought to include thorough 
regional analysis especially in the Central Valley, and in the 
implementation of the Sustainable Groundwater Management Act 
and alternative land uses for fallowed land. 

c. Maintain a web page with drought resources for farmers and 
ranchers, including the United States Department of Agriculture and 
other federal and state resources. 

d. Work with federal agencies to assist Klamath Basin farmers and 
ranchers contending with reduced water supplies. 

11. To ensure the potential impacts of drought on communities are 
anticipated and proactively addressed, the Department of Water 
Resources, in coordination with the Water Board, shall develop 
groundwater management principles and strategies to monitor, analyze, 
and minimize impacts to drinking water wells. 

12. To provide critical information on the different drought conditions across 
the State, the Department of Water Resources, in consultation with the 
Department of Fish and Wildlife, the Department of Food and Agriculture, 



and the Water Board, shall develop a California Drought Monitor by 
December 31, 2021, as recommended in the Administration's Report to 
the Legislature on the 2012-2016 Drought. 

13. To prepare for potential salinity issues in the Delta, the Department of 
Water Resources, in consultation with the Water Board, the Department of 
Fish and Wildlife, the Delta Stewardship Council, and the Central Valley 
Flood Protection Board, shall initiate actions necessary to prepare for and 
address potentia l Delta salinity issues during prolonged drought 
conditions. 

14.To prepare for potential impacts of drought conditions on species, the 
Water Board and the Department of Fish and Wildlife shall work with 
federal agency partners to manage temperature conditions for the 
preservation of fish in the Sacramento River downstream of Shasta Dam 
while balancing water supply needs. 

This Proclamation is not intended to, and does not, create any rights or 
benefits, substantive or procedural, enforceable at law or in equity, against the 
State of California, its agencies, departments, entities, officers, employees, or 
any other person. 

I FURTHER DIRECT that as soon as hereafter possible, this Proclamation be filed 
in the Office of the Secretary of State and that widespread publicity and notice 
be given of this Proclamation. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF I have hereunto set 
my hand and caused the Great Seal of the 
State of alifornia t be affixed this 21st 
day of ril 2021 

ATTEST: 



RESOLUTION PROCLAIMING A LOCAL EMERGENCY 
BY THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

COUNTY OF TULARE, STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

IN THE MATTER OF A 
LOCAL EMERGENCY DUE TO ) 
SEVERE DROUGHT CONDITIONS) 

RESOLUTION NO. 2021-0290 

WHEREAS, California's most recent drought spanning from approximately 2012 to 2018 
required the proclamation of a Local Emergency by the County of Tulare from February 2014 to 
November 2019, as well as a Governor's State of Emergency and the combined resources of 
multiple local , state, and federal agencies, commercial entities, and non-profit organizations to 
mitigate; and 

WHEREAS , over 3,000 failed or dry wells - including private domestic, community , and 
agricultural wells - were reported to Tulare County from 2014 to 2017 as a result of the prior 
drought, causing significant health, safety, and economic issues for Tulare County residents and 
businesses; and 

WHEREAS , well over $100 million in emergency relief and permanent infrastructure 
projects were expended to mitigate the effects of the prior drought; and 

WHEREAS , a hydrological year ("water year") runs from October 1 to September 30 of 
the following year; and 

WHEREAS, the current water year beginning October 1, 2020 is, to date, the third-driest 
on record , with potential to become the driest on record without significant additional 
precipitation which is unlikely to occur during the trad itionally dry months; and 

WHEREAS , the United States Drought Monitor shows that 94.51 % of Tulare County is 
currently experiencing "Extreme Drought" (D3) cond itions and the remaining 5.49% is in "Severe 
Drought" (D2) conditions, and the County of Tulare anticipates that these conditions will 
progress to "Exceptional Drought" (D4) conditions as occurred in the prior drought based on the 
current Southern Sierra snowpack measured at only 15% of historical average for April 1st, 
drastically reduced surface water allocations on the State Water Project and Central Valley 
Project, and correspondingly low water levels in local reservoirs ; and 

WHEREAS, surface water supply constraints create a demonstrable and unsustainable 
increase in demand for groundwater which is likely to cause additional dry wells for community 
water systems, private domestic wells, and agricultural wells, creating economic hardships and 
conditions of extreme peril to the health and safety of individuals within Tulare County requiring 
the combined forces of all levels of government to mitigate ; and 

WHEREAS , Cal ifornia Government Code section 8630 empowers the Board of 
Supervisors to proclaim the existence or threatened existence of a local emergency; and 

WHEREAS , Section 1-15-1005 of the Tulare County Ordinance Code defines 
"emergency" to include "the actual or threatened existence of condit ions of disaster or of 



extreme peril to the safety of persons and property within [Tulare] County caused by such 
conditions as air pollution , fire , flood , storm , epidemic, riot, earthquake, or other conditions, ... 
which conditions are or are likely to be beyond the control of the services, personnel , 
equipment, and facilities of [Tulare] County, requiring the combined forces of other political 
subdivisions to combat"; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY PROCLAIMED that a local emergency now exists 
throughout said Tulare County due to drought which has created conditions of disaster and 
extreme peril to the safety of persons and property within the County, and that such conditions 
are or are likely to be beyond the control of the services, personnel , equipment, and/or facilities 
of this County, thus requiring the combined forces of other political subdivisions to combat; and 

IT IS FURTHER PROCLAIMED that this local emergency is proclaimed pursuant to the 
California Emergency Services Act , California Government Code §8550 et seq .; and 

IT IS REQUESTED that the Governor of the State of California find and proclaim Tulare 
County to be in a State of Emergency, and make available any and all material and financial 
support and resources necessary to combat the conditions of disaster, including but not lim ited 
to California Disaster Assistance Act fund ing for emergency protective measures and increased 
funding to relevant programs of the State Water Resources Control Board and Department of 
Water Resources ; and 

IT IS FURTHER REQUESTED that the Governor waive and all regulations and statutes 
that may hinder response to this emergency; and 

IT IS PROCLAIMED AND ORDERED that during the existence of said local emergency, 
the powers, functions, and duties of the emergency organization of Tulare County shall be those 
prescribed by State law, by ordinances and resolutions of Tulare County, and by the Tulare 
County Operational Area Emergency Operations Plan, as approved by the Board of 
Supervisors. 

UPON MOTION OF SUPERVISOR MICARI , SECONDED BY SUPERVISOR 

TOWNSEND, THE FOLLOWING WAS ADOPTED BY THE BOARD OF 

SUPERVISORS, AT AN OFFICIAL MEETING HELD APRIL 27, 2021 , BY THE 

FOLLOWING VOTE: 

AYES: SUPERVISORS MICARI , VANDERPOEL, SHUKLIAN , VALERO AND 
TOWNSEND 

NOES: NONE 
ABSTAIN : NONE 
ABSENT: NONE 

~~~smia~rp__e:w. "fl 

ATTEST: 

BY: 

JASON T. BRITT 
COUNTY ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER/ 
CLERK, BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 



STATE WATER RESOURCES CONTROL BOARD 
RESOLUTION NO. 2022-0002 

 
TO ADOPT AN EMERGENCY REGULATION 

TO SUPPLEMENT VOLUNTARY WATER CONSERVATION

WHEREAS:

1. On April 21, May 10, and July 8, 2021, Governor Newsom issued 
proclamations that a state of emergency exists in a total of 50 counties due 
to severe drought conditions and directed state agencies to take 
immediate action to preserve critical water supplies and mitigate the 
effects of drought and ensure the protection of health, safety, and the 
environment. 

2. On October 19, 2021, Governor Newsom signed a proclamation extending 
the drought emergency statewide and further urging Californians to reduce 
their water use. 

3. There is no guarantee that winter precipitation will alleviate the current 
drought conditions. 

4. Many Californians have taken bold steps over the years to reduce water 
use; nevertheless, the severity of the current drought and uncertainty 
about Water Year 2022 require additional conservation actions from 
residents and businesses. 

5. Water conservation is the easiest, most efficient, and most cost-effective 
way to quickly reduce water demand and extend supplies into the next 
year, providing flexibility for all California communities. Water saved is 
water available next year, giving water suppliers the flexibility to manage 
their systems efficiently. The more water that is conserved now, the less 
likely it is that a community will experience such dire circumstances or that 
water rationing will be required. 

6. Most Californians use more water outdoors than indoors. In many areas, 
50 percent or more of daily water use is for lawns and outdoor 
landscaping. Outdoor water use is generally discretionary, and many 
irrigated landscapes would not suffer greatly from receiving a decreased 
amount of water.



2

7. Public information and awareness are critical to achieving conservation 
goals, and the Save Our Water campaign (SaveOurWater.com), run jointly 
by the Department of Water Resources (DWR) and the Association of 
California Water Agencies, is an excellent resource for conservation 
information and messaging that is integral to effective drought response.

8. SaveWater.CA.Gov is an online tool designed to help save water in 
communities. This website lets anyone easily report water waste from their 
phone, tablet, or computer by simply selecting the type of water waste they 
see, typing in the address where the waste is occurring, and clicking send. 
These reports are filed directly with the State Water Resources Control 
Board (State Water Board or Board) and relevant local water supplier. 

9. Enforcement against water waste is a key tool in conservation programs. 
When conservation becomes a social norm in a community, the need for 
enforcement is reduced or eliminated. 

10. On October 19, 2021, the Governor suspended the environmental review 
required by the California Environmental Quality Act to allow State Water 
Board-adopted drought conservation emergency regulations and other 
actions to take place quickly to respond to emergency conditions.

11. Water Code section 1058.5 grants the State Water Board the authority to 
adopt emergency regulations in certain drought years in order to: “prevent 
the waste, unreasonable use, unreasonable method of use, or 
unreasonable method of diversion, of water, to promote water recycling or 
water conservation, to require curtailment of diversions when water is not 
available under the diverter’s priority of right, or in furtherance of any of the 
foregoing, to require reporting of diversion or use or the preparation of 
monitoring reports.”

12. On November 30, 2021, the State Water Board issued public notice that 
the State Water Board would consider the adoption of the regulation at the 
Board’s regularly scheduled January 4, 2022 public meeting, in 
accordance with applicable State laws and regulations. The State Water 
Board also distributed for public review and comment a Finding of 
Emergency that complies with State laws and regulations.

13. The emergency regulation sets a minimum standard that many 
communities are already doing more but not everyone is taking these low-
cost, easy to implement actions that can save significant amounts of water 
during a drought emergency.

http://www.saveourwater.com/
https://savewater.ca.gov/


3

14. Disadvantaged communities may require assistance in increasing water 
conservation, and state and local agencies should look for opportunities to 
provide assistance in promoting water conservation, including but not 
limited to translation of regulation text and dissemination of water 
conservation announcements into languages spoken by at least 10 percent 
of the people who reside in a water supplier’s service area, such as in 
newspaper advertisements, bill inserts, website homepage, social media, 
and notices in public libraries. 

15. The Board directs staff to consider the following in pursuing any 
enforcement of section 995, subdivision (b)(1)(A)-(F): before imposing 
monetary penalties, staff shall provide one or more warnings; monetary 
penalties must be based on an ability to pay determination, consider 
allowing a payment plan of at least 12 months, and shall not result in a tax 
lien; and Board enforcement shall not result in shutoff. 

16. The Board encourages entities other than Board staff that consider any 
enforcement of this regulation to apply these same factors identified in 
resolved paragraph 15. Nothing in the regulation or in the enforcement 
provisions of the regulation precludes a local agency from exercising its 
authority to adopt more stringent conservation measures. Moreover, the 
Water Code does not impose a mandatory penalty for violations of the 
regulation adopted by this resolution, and local agencies retain their 
enforcement discretion in enforcing the regulation, to the extent authorized, 
and may develop their own progressive enforcement practices to 
encourage conservation.

THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT:

1. The State Water Board adopts California Code of Regulations, title 23, 
section 995, as appended to this resolution as an emergency regulation. 

2. State Water Board staff will submit the regulation to the Office of 
Administrative Law (OAL) for final approval. 

3. If, during the approval process, State Water Board staff, the State Water 
Board, or OAL determines that minor corrections to the language of the 
regulation or supporting documentation are needed for clarity or 
consistency, the State Water Board Executive Director or designee may 
make such changes. 



4

4. This regulation shall remain in effect for one year after filing with the 
Secretary of State unless the State Water Board determines that it is no 
longer necessary due to changed conditions or unless the State Water 
Board renews the regulation due to continued drought conditions, as 
described in Water Code section 1058.5. 

5. The State Water Board directs State Water Board staff to work with the 
Department of Water Resources and the Save Our Water campaign to 
disseminate information regarding the emergency regulations. 

6. Nothing in the regulation or in the enforcement provisions of the regulation 
precludes a local agency from exercising its authority to adopt more 
stringent conservation measures. Local agencies are encouraged to 
develop their own progressive enforcement practices to promote 
conservation.

CERTIFICATION

The undersigned Clerk to the Board does hereby certify that the foregoing is a 
full, true, and correct copy of a resolution duly and regularly adopted at a meeting 
of the State Water Resources Control Board held on January 4, 2022. 

AYE:  Vice Chair Dorene D’Adamo
Board Member Sean Maguire
Board Member Laurel Firestone
Board Member Nichole Morgan

NAY:  None
ABSENT: Chair E. Joaquin Esquivel
ABSTAIN: None

Jeanine Townsend
Clerk to the Board



5

ADOPTED TEXT OF EMERGENCY REGULATION

Title 23.  Waters
Division 3. State Water Resources Control Board and Regional Water Quality 
Control Boards
Chapter 3.5.  Urban Water Use Efficiency and Conservation
Article 2.  Prevention of Drought Wasteful Water Uses

§ 995. Wasteful and Unreasonable Water Uses. 

(a) As used in this section: 
(1) “Turf” has the same meaning as in section 491.
(2) “Incidental runoff” means unintended amounts (volume) of runoff, such as 
unintended, minimal overspray from sprinklers that escapes the area of intended use. 
Water leaving an intended use area is not considered incidental if it is part of the facility 
or system design, if it is due to excessive application, if it is due to intentional overflow 
or application, or if it is due to negligence.  

(b)(1) To prevent the unreasonable use of water and to promote water conservation, the 
use of water is prohibited as identified in this subdivision for the following actions:

(A) The application of potable water to outdoor landscapes in a manner that 
causes more than incidental runoff such that water flows onto adjacent property, 
non-irrigated areas, private and public walkways, roadways, parking lots, or 
structures; 
(B) The use of a hose that dispenses water to wash a motor vehicle, except 
where the hose is fitted with a shut-off nozzle or device attached to it that causes 
it to cease dispensing water immediately when not in use; 
(C) The use of potable water for washing sidewalks, driveways, buildings, 
structures, patios, parking lots, or other hard surfaced areas, except in cases 
where health and safety are at risk; 
(D) The use of potable water for street cleaning or construction site preparation 
purposes, unless no other method can be used or as needed to protect the 
health and safety of the public;
(E) The use of potable water for decorative fountains or the filling or topping-off of 
decorative lakes or ponds, with exceptions for those decorative fountains, lakes, 
or ponds that use pumps to recirculate water and only require refilling to replace 
evaporative losses;
(F) The application of water to irrigate turf and ornamental landscapes during and 
within 48 hours after measurable rainfall of at least one fourth of one inch of rain. 
In determining whether measurable rainfall of at least fourth of one inch of rain 
occurred in a given area, enforcement may be based on records of the National 
Weather Service, the closest CIMIS station to the parcel, or any other reliable 
source of rainfall data available to the entity undertaking enforcement of this 
subdivision; and
(G) The use of potable water for irrigation of ornamental turf on public street 
medians. 



6

(2) Notwithstanding subdivision (b)(1), the use of water is not prohibited by this section 
to the extent necessary to address an immediate health and safety need. This may 
include, but is not limited to, the use of potable water in a fountain or water feature when 
required to be potable because human contact is expected to occur.

(c)(1) To prevent the unreasonable use of water and to promote water conservation, 
any homeowners’ association or community service organization or similar entity is 
prohibited from:

(A) Taking or threatening to take any action to enforce any provision of the 
governing documents or architectural or landscaping guidelines or policies of a 
common interest development where that provision is void or unenforceable 
under section 4735, subdivisions (a) and (b) of the Civil Code; 
(B) Imposing or threatening to impose a fine, assessment, or other monetary 
penalty against any owner of a separate interest for reducing or eliminating the 
watering of vegetation or lawns during a declared drought emergency, as 
described in section 4735, subdivision (c) of the Civil Code; or
(C) Requiring an owner of a separate interest upon which water-efficient 
landscaping measures have been installed in response to a declared drought 
emergency, as described in section 4735, subdivisions (c) and (d) of the Civil 
Code, to reverse or remove the water-efficient landscaping measures upon the 
conclusion of the state of emergency.

(2) As used in this subdivision:
(A) “Architectural or landscaping guidelines or policies” includes any formal or 
informal rules other than the governing documents of a common interest 
development.
(B) “Homeowners’ association” means an “association” as defined in section 
4080 of the Civil Code.
(C) “Common interest development” has the same meaning as in section 4100 of 
the Civil Code.
(D) “Community service organization or similar entity” has the same meaning as 
in section 4110 of the Civil Code.
(E) “Governing documents” has the same meaning as in section 4150 of the Civil 
Code.
(F) “Separate interest” has the same meaning as in section 4185 of the Civil 
Code.

(3) If a disciplinary proceeding or other proceeding to enforce a rule in violation of 
subdivision (c)(1) is initiated, each day the proceeding remains pending shall constitute 
a separate violation of this regulation.

(d) To prevent the unreasonable use of water and to promote water conservation, any 
city, county, or city and county is prohibited from imposing a fine under any local 
maintenance ordinance or other relevant ordinance as prohibited by section 8627.7 of 
the Government Code.



7

(e) The taking of any action prohibited in subdivision (b), (c) or (d) is an infraction 
punishable by a fine of up to five hundred dollars ($500) for each day in which the 
violation occurs. The fine for the infraction is in addition to, and does not supersede or 
limit, any other remedies, civil or criminal.

(f) A decision or order issued under this section by the Board or an officer or employee 
of the Board is subject to reconsideration under article 2 (commencing with section 
1122) of chapter 4 of part 1 of division 2 of the Water Code. 

Authority:  Section 1058.5, Water Code. 
References:  Article X, Section 2, California Constitution; Sections 4080, 4100, 4110, 
4150, 4185, and 4735, Civil Code; Section 8627.7, Government Code; Sections 102, 
104, 105, 275, 350, 491, and 1122, Water Code; Light v. State Water Resources 
Control Board (2014) 226 Cal.App.4th 1463; Stanford Vina Ranch Irrigation Co. v. State 
of California (2020) 50 Cal.App.5th 976. 



EXECUTIVE DEPARTMENT 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

EXECUTIVE ORDER N-7-22 

WHEREAS on April 12, 202 l, May l 0, 2021, July 8, 202 l, and October 19, 
2021, I proclaimed states of emergency that continue today and exist across a ll 
the counties of California, due to extreme and expanding drought conditions; 
and 

WHEREAS climate change continues to intensify the impacts of droughts 
on our communities, environment, and economy, and California is in a third 
consecutive year of dry conditions, resulting in continuing drought in all parts of 
the State; and 

WHEREAS the 21st century to date has been characterized by record 
warmth and predominantly dry conditions, and the 2021 meteorological 
summer in California and the rest of the western United States was the hottest on 
record; and 

WHEREAS since my October 19, 2021 Proclamation, early rains in October 
and December 2021 gave way to the driest January and February in recorded 
history for the watersheds that provide much of California's water supply; and 

WHEREAS the ongoing drought will have significant, immediate impacts on 
communities with vulnerable water supplies, farms that rely on irrigation to grow 
food and fiber, and fish and wildlife that rely on stream flows and cool water; 
and 

WHEREAS the two largest reservoirs of the Central Valley Project, which 
supplies water to farms and communities in the Central Valley and the Santa 
Clara Valley and provides critical cold-water habitat for salmon and other 
anadromous fish, have water storage levels that are approximately l .1 million 
acre-feet below last year's low levels on this date; and 

WHEREAS the record-breaking dry period in January and February and the 
absence of significant rains in March have required the Department of Water 
Resources to reduce anticipated deliveries from the State Water Project to 
5 percent of requested supplies; and 

WHEREAS delivery of water by bottle or truck is necessary to protect 
human safety and public health in those places where water supplies are 
disrupted; and 

WHEREAS groundwater use accounts for 41 percent of the State's total 
water supply on an average annual basis but as much as 58 percent in a 
critically dry year, and approximately 85 percent of public water systems rely on 
groundwater as their primary supply; and 

WHEREAS coordination between local entities that approve permits for 
new groundwater wells and local groundwater sustainability agencies is 
important to achieving sustainable levels of groundwater in critically 
overdrafted basins; and 



WHEREAS the duration of the drought, especially following a multiyear 
drought that abated only five years ago, underscores the need for California to 
redouble near-, medium-, and long-term efforts to adapt its water management 
and delivery systems to a changing climate, shifting precipitation patterns, and 
water scarcity; and 

WHEREAS the most consequential, immediate action Californians can take 
to extend available supplies is to voluntarily reduce their water use by 
15 percent from their 2020 levels by implementing the commonsense measures 
identified in operative paragraph 1 of Executive Order N-10-21 (July 8, 2021 ); 

and 

WHEREAS to protect public health and safety, it is critical the State take 
certain immediate actions without undue delay to prepare for and mitigate the 
effects of the drought conditions, and under Government Code section 8571, I 
find that strict compliance with various statutes and regulations specified in this 
Proclamation would prevent, hinder, or delay the mitigation of the effects of the 
drought conditions. 

NOW, THEREFORE, I, GAVIN NEWSOM, Governor of the State of California, 
in accordance with the authority vested in me by the State Constitution and 
statutes, including the California Emergency Services Act, and in particular, 
Government Code sections 8567, 8571, and 8627, do hereby issue the following 
Order to become effective immediately: 

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED THAT: 

1. The orders and provisions contained in my April 21, 2021, May 10, 2021, 
July 8, 2021, and October 19, 2021 Proclamations remain in fu ll force 
and effect, except as modified by those Proclamations and herein. 
State agencies shall continue to implement all directions from those 
Proclamations and accelerate implementation where feasible. 

2. To help the State achieve its conservation goals and ensure sufficient 
water for essential indoor and outdoor use, I call on all Californians to 
strive to limit summertime water use and to use water more efficiently 
indoors and out. The statewide Save Our Water conservation 
campaign at SaveOurWater.com provides simple ways for Californians 
to reduce water use in their everyday lives. Furthermore, I encourage 
Californians to understand and track the amount of water they use 
and measure their progress toward their conservation goals. 

3. By May 25, .2022, the State Water Resources Control Board (Water 
Board) shall consider adopting emergency regulations that include a ll 
of the following: 

a. A requirement that each urban water supplier, as defined in 
section 10617 of the Water Code, shall submit to the Department 
of Water Resources a preliminary annual water supply and 
demand assessment consistent with section 10632.1 of the Water 
Code no later than June 1, 2022, and submit a fina l annual water 

https://SaveOurWater.com


supply and demand assessment to the Department of Water 
Resources no later than the deadline set by section 10632.1 of 
the Water Code; 

b. A requirement that each urban water supplier that has 
submitted a water shortage contingency plan to the 
Department of Water Resources implement, at a minimum, the 
shortage response actions adopted under section 10632 of the 
Water Code for a shortage level of up to twenty percent (Level 
2), by a date to be set by the Water Board; and 

c. A requirement that each urban water supplier that has not 
submitted a water shortage contingency plan to the 
Department of Water Resources implement, at a minimum, 
shortage response actions established by the Water Board, 
which shall take into consideration model actions that the 
Department of Water Resources shall develop for urban water 
supplier water shortage contingency planning for Level 2, by a 
date to be set by the Water Board. 

To further conserve water and improve drought resiliency if the drought 
lasts beyond this year, I encourage urban water suppliers to conserve 
more than required by the emergency regulations described in this 
paragraph and to voluntarily activate more stringent local 
requirements based on a shortage level of up to thirty percent (Level 
3). 

4. To promote water conservation, the Department of Water Resources 
shall consult with leaders in the commercial, industrial, and institutional 
sectors to develop strategies for improving water conservation, 
including direct technical assistance, financial assistance, and other 
approaches. By May 25, 2022, the Water Board shall consider adopting 
emergency regulations defining "non-functional turf" (that is, a 
definition of turf that is ornamental and not otherwise used for human 
recreation purposes such as school fields, sports fields, and parks) and 
banning irrigation of non-functional turf in the commercial, industrial, 
and institutional sectors except as it may be required to ensure the 
health of trees and other perennial non-turf plantings. 

5. In order to maximize the efficient use of water and to preserve water 
supplies critical to human health and safety and the environment, 
Public Resources Code, Division 13 (commencing with section 21000) 
and regulations adopted pursuant to that Division are hereby 
suspended, with respect to the directives in paragraphs 3 and 4 of this 
Order and any other projects and activities for the purpose of water 
conservation to the extent necessary to address the impacts of the 
drought, and any permits necessary to carry out such projects or 
activities. Entities that desire to conduct activities under this suspension, 
other than the directives in paragraphs 3 and 4 of this Order, shall first 
request that the Secretary of the Natural Resources Agency make a 
determination that the proposed activities are eligible to be 
conducted under this suspension. The Secretary shall use sound 
discretion in applying this Executive Order to ensure that the suspension 
serves the purpose of accelerating conservation projects that are 
necessary to address impacts of the drought, while at the same time 



protecting public health and the environment. The entities 
implementing these directives or conducting activities under this 
suspension shall maintain on their websites a list of all activities or 
approvals for which these provisions are suspended. 

6. To support voluntary approaches to improve fish habitat that would 
require change petitions under Water Code section 1707 and either 
Water Code sections 1425 through 1432 or Water Code sections 1725 
through 1732, and where the primary purpose is to improve conditions 
for fish, the Water Board shall expeditiously consider petitions that add 
a fish and wildlife beneficial use or point of diversion and place of 
storage to improve conditions for anadromous fish. California Code of 
Regulations, title 23, section 1064, subdivisions ( a) ( 1) (A) (i)-(ii) are 
suspended with respect to any petition that is subject to this 
paragraph. 

7. To facilitate the hauling of water for domestic use by local 
communities and domestic water users threatened with the loss of 
water supply or degraded water quality resulting from drought, any 
ordinance, regulation, prohibition, policy, or requirement of any kind 
adopted by a public agency that prohibits the hauling of water out of 
the water's basin of origin or a public agency's jurisdiction is hereby 
suspended. The suspension authorized pursuant to this paragraph shall 
be limited to the hauling of water by truck or bottle to be used for 
human consumption, cooking, or sanitation in communities or 
residences threatened with the loss of affordable safe drinking water. 
Nothing in this paragraph limits any public health or safety requirement 
to ensure the safety of hauled water. 

8. The Water Board shall expand inspections to determine whether illegal 
diversions or wasteful or unreasonable use of water are occurring and 
bring enforcement actions against illegal diverters and those engaging 
in the wasteful and unreasonable use of water. When access is not 
granted by a property owner, the Water Board may obtain an 
inspection warrant pursuant to the procedures set forth in Title 13 
(commencing with section 1822.50) of Part 3 of the Code of Civil 
Procedure for the purposes of conducting an inspection pursuant to 
this directive. 

9. To protect health, safety, and the environment during this drought 
emergency, a county, city, or other public agency shall not: 

a. Approve a permit for a new groundwater well or for alteration of 
an existing well in a basin subject to the Sustainable 
Groundwater Management Act and classified as medium- or 
high-priority without first obtaining written verification from a 
Groundwater Sustainability Agency managing the basin or area 
of the basin where the well is proposed to be located that 
groundwater extraction by the proposed well would not be 
inconsistent with any sustainable groundwater management 
program established in any applicable Groundwater 
Sustainability Plan adopted by that Groundwater Sustainability 



Agency and would not decrease the likelihood of achieving a 
sustainability goal for the basin covered by such a plan; or 

b. Issue a permit for a new groundwater well or for alteration of an 
existing well without first determining that extraction of 
groundwater from the proposed well is (1) not likely to interfere 
with the production and functioning of existing nearby wells, and 
(2) not likely to cause subsidence that would adversely impact or 
damage nearby infrastructure. 

This paragraph shall not apply to permits for wells that will provide less 
than two acre-feet per year of groundwater for individual domestic 
users, or that will exclusively provide groundwater to public water 
supply systems as defined in section 116275 of the Health and Safety 
Code. 

10. To address household or small community drinking water shortages 
dependent upon groundwater wells that have failed due to drought 
conditions, the Department of Water Resources shall work with other 
state agencies to investigate expedited regulatory pathways to 
modify, repair, or reconstruct failed household or small community or 
public supply wells, while recognizing the need to ensure the 
sustainability of such wells as provided for in paragraph 9. 

11. State agencies shall collaborate with tribes and federal, regiona l, 
and local agencies on actions related to promoting groundwater 
recharge and increasing storage. 

12. To help advance groundwater recharge projects, and to 
demonstrate the feasibility of projects that can use available high 
water flows to recharge local groundwater while minimizing flood 
risks, the Water Board and Regional Water Quality Control Boards 
shall prioritize water right permits, water quality certifications, waste 
discharge requirements, and conditional waivers of waste discharge 
requirements to accelerate approvals for projects that enhance the 
ability of a local or state agency to capture high precipitation events 
for local storage or recharge, consistent with water right priorities and 
protections for fish and wildlife. For the purposes of carrying out this 
paragraph, Division 13 (commencing with section 21000) of the 
Public Resources Code and regulations adopted pursuant to that 
Division, and Chapter 3 ( commencing with section 85225) of Part 3 of 
Division 35 of the Water Code and regulations adopted pursuant 
thereto are hereby suspended to the extent necessary to address the 
impacts of the drought. This suspension applies to (a) any actions 
taken by state agencies, (b) any actions taken by local agencies 
where the state agency with primary responsibility for the 
implementation of the directives concurs that local action is required, 
and (c) permits necessary to carry out actions under (a) or (b). The 
entities implementing these directives shall maintain on their websites 
a list of all activities or approvals for which these provisions are 
suspended. 

13. With respect to recharge projects under either Flood-Managed 
Aquifer Recharge or the Department of Water Resources Sustainable 



Groundwater Management Grant Program occurring on open and 
working lands to replenish and store water in groundwater basins that 
will help mitigate groundwater conditions impacted by drought, for 
any (a) actions taken by state agencies, (b) actions taken by a local 
agency where the Department of Water Resources concurs that 
local action is required, and (c) permits necessary to carry out 
actions under (a) or (b), Public Resources Code, Division 13 
(commencing with section 21000) and regulations adopted pursuant 
to that Division are hereby suspended to the extent necessary to 
address the impacts of the drought. The entities implementing these 
directives shall maintain on their websites a list of all activities or 
approvals for which these provisions are suspended. 

14. To increase resilience of.state water supplies during prolonged 
drought conditions, the Department of Water Resources shall prepare 
for the potential creation and implementation of a multi-year transfer 
program pilot project for the purpose of acquiring water from willing 
partners and storing and conveying water to areas of need. 

15. By April 15, 2022, state agencies shall submit to the Department of 
Finance for my consideration proposals to mitigate the worsening 
effects of severe drought, including emergency assistance to 
communities and households and others facing water shortages as a 
result of the drought, facilitation of groundwater recharge and 
wastewater recycling, improvements in water use efficiency, 
protection of fish and wildlife, mitigation of drought-related 
economic or water-supply disruption, and other potential investments 
to support short- and long-term drought response. 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that as soon as hereafter possible, this Order be 
filed in the Office of the Secretary of State and that widespread publicity and 
notice be given of this Order. 

This Order is not intended to, and does not, create any rights or benefits, 
substantive or procedural, enforceable at law or in equity, against the State of 
California, its agencies, departments, entities, officers, employees, or any other 
person. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF I have hereunto set 
my hand and caused the Great Seal of the 
State of California to be affixed this 28th 
day of March 2022. 

I I 
,:, .l · I' 

t ( .1 I 
l~~-~--

GAVIN NEWSOM 
Governor of California 

ATTEST: 

SHIRLEY N. WEBER, PH.D. 
Secretary of State 



State of California
Office of Administrative Law

In re:
State Water Resources Control Board

NOTICE OF APPROVAL OF EMERGENCY
REGULATORY ACTION

Regulatory Action:

Title 23, California Code of Regulations

Adopt sections: 996
Amend sections:
Repeal sections:

Government Code Sections 11346.1 and
11349.6

OAL Matter Number: 2022-0606-03

OAS Makter Type: Emergency (E)

This emergency action by the State Water Resources Control Board adopts a new
regulation which .requires urban water suppliers to submit preliminary supply and
demand assessments to the Department of Water Resources and to implement Level 2
demand reduction actions (actions intended to result in a 10 to 20 percent savings).
The regulation bans the irrigation of non-functional turf with potable water in
commercial, industrial, and institutional. sectors and establishes that such irrigation is an
infraction punishable by a fine of up to five hundred dollars for each day in which. the
violation occurs pursuant to Water Code section 1058.5(d).

OAL approves this emergency regulatory action pursuant to sections 11346.1 and
11349.6 of the Government Gode. Pursuant to Water Code section 1058.5(b}, the
Finding of Emergency in this matter was exempt from Office of Administrative Law
Review.

This emergency regulatory action is effective on 6/10/2022 and, pursuant to Water
Cade section 1058.5(c), will expire on 6/1 Q/2023. The Certificate of Compliance far this
action is due no later than 6/9/2023.

Date: June 10, 2022 ~ ~~„~, ~~-,
Dale Mentink`
Assistant Chief Counsel

For: Kenneth J. Pogue
Director

Original: Eileen Sobeck, Executive
Director
Copy: Garrett Lenahan



STATE OF CALIFORNIA—OPfICEOFADMINiSTRA E~nw 
For use by Secretary of State onlyNOTICE PUBLIC/~TIOIV ~n,

sr~.aootRev.ionor9l ~

~f1L FILE N07ICE FILE NUMBER REGULATORY ACTION NUMBEgR~ g~ ~g EMER~GEi NyC~Y NUMBER
N1Jt~/I$~f~'a" ~~ e~ 

~X ~ ~d ~ S7 ll ~ '~ ~ r ,~ ~ ~~~li~ ~~i" °• _ «<-~For use by Once of Administrative law (OAL) only ~,'.;?~ bffi~e c u ~ ~.e~ ,'~;1 ~,° ~;,;. _
~(fhv S~.~ of ~~~nmi~

~~~~ s~,~, m~j rti r ~a-s~

NOTICE REGULATIONS
AGENCY WITH RULEMAKING AUTHORITY 

AGENCY FILE NUMBER (if any)State Water Resources Control Board

A. PUBLICATION OF NOTICE (Complete for publication in Notice Register)
1. SUBJECT OF NOTICE TITLES) FIRST SECTION AFFECTED 2. REQUESTED PUBLICATION DATE

3. NOTICE TYPE - 4. AGENCY CONTACT PERSON TELEPHONE NUMBER FAX NUMBER (Optional)❑ Notice re Proposed ("—► 
titherRe ulato `Action L_~

OAL USE 
ACTION ON PRppgSFD NOTICE 

NOTICE. R_FGISTER NUMBER '. Pl!BUCATlpN bATE~~~Y HPP~oveaas APp~cvyas t" DisapProvh~+~S~bnnroea ~ MorliheU ~ Witharawn

B. SUBMISSION OF REGULATIONS (Complete when submitting regulations)
1a. SUBJECT OF REGULATION{S) ib. ALL PREVIOUS RELATED OAL REGULATORY ACTION NUMBERS)
Water Demand Reduction Emergency Regulation
2. SPECIFY CALIFORNIA CODE Of REGULATIONS TITLES) AND SECTIONS) (including title 26, if toxics related)

SECTIONS} AFFECTED 
A°oPT

{List all section number{s) 996
`individually. Attach aMeNo

_~cidi~a~al:_sF~eeh_6f~reeded.} __~_._ _--- ____ _._ ----_ ____ --
TITLE(S) REPEAL

23
3. TYPE OF FILING

Regular Rulemaking {Gov. ❑Certificate of Compliance: The agency officer named ~ Emergency Readopt ~ Changes WithoutCode §11346) below certifies that this agency complied with the (Gov. Code, §11346.1 (h}) Regulatory Effect {CaLResubmittal of disapproved provisions of Gov. Code §§11346.2-11347.3 either Code Regs., title 1, §100}or withdrawn nonemergency before the emergency regulation was adopted or
filing (Gov. Code §§11349.3, within the time period required by statute. ❑File &Print ~ Print Oniy11349.4)

Emergency (Gov. Code, ~ Resubmittal of disapproved or withdrawn o ocher {sPe~~~> Wafer Code Section 1058.5§11346.1(b)) emergency filing (Gov. Code, §11346.1)
4. ALL BEGINNING AND ENDING DATES OF AVAILABILITY OF MODIFIED REGULATIONS AND/OR MATERIAL ADDED TO THE RULEMAKING FILE (Cal. Code Regs. line 1, §44 and Gov. Code §11347.1)

5. EFFECTIVE DATE OF CHANGES (Gov. Code, §§ 11343.4, 11346.1(d}; Cai. Code Regs., title 1, §100 )Effective January 1, April 1, July 1, or x Effective on filing with §100 Changes Without Effective otherOctober 1 (Gov. Code §11343.4(a)) ❑Secretary of State ❑Regulatory Effect ❑(Specify)
6. CHECK IF THESE REGULATIONS REQUIRE NOTICE T0, OR REVIEW, CONSULTATION, APPROVAL OR CONCURRENCE BY, ANOTHER AGENCY OR ENTITY

Department of Fnance (Form STD. 399) {SAM §6660) ~ Fair Political Practices Commission ~ State Fire Marshal
Other {Specify)

7. CONTACT PERSON TELEPHONE NUMBER FAX NUMBER {Optional) E-MAIL ADdRESS (Optional)Garrett Lenahan 916 341-5179
8. (certify that the attached copy of the regulations) is a true and correct copy For use by Office of Administrative Law (OAL) onlyof the regulation{s) identified on this form, that the information specified on this form

is true and correct, and #hat I am the head of the agency taking this action,
or a designee of the head of the agency, and am authori2ed to make this certification.

SIGNATURE OF AGENCY HEAD OR DESIGNEE PATE
Eric Oppenheimer °'g7a1ySgnedbyEncOp°~ibe1nef 6/612022J.~te:20]IA6➢614:24:44 -0]'00'

TYPED NAME AND TITLE OF SIGNATORY

Eric Oppenheimer, Chief Deputy Director, State Water Resources Control Board



ADOPTED EMERGENCY REGULATION TEXT

Title 23. Waters
Division 3. State Water Resources Control Board and Regional Water Quality
Control Boards
Chapter 3.5. Urban Water Use Efficiency and Conservation
Article. 2. Prevention of Drought Wasteful Water Uses

996. Urban Drought Response Actions

~a) As used in this section:

(1) "Commercial, industrial and institutionaP' refers to commercial water users, industrial
water users, and .institutional water users as respectively defined in Water Code, section
10608:12. subdivisions (e), {i ,and (j), and includes homeowners' associations, common
interest developments, community service organizations, and other similar entities but
does not include the residences of these entities' members or separate interests.

~2) "Common interest development' has the same meaning as in section 4100 of the
Civil Code.

~3) "Community service organization or similar entity" has the same meaning as in
:section 4110 of the Civi( Code.

~4) "Homeowners' association" means an "association" as defined in section 4080 of the
Civil Code.

(5} "Non-functional turf" means turf that is solely ornamental and not rec~ularly used for
human recreational purposes or for civic or community events. Non-functional turf does
not include sports fields and turF that is regularly used for human recreational purposes
or for civic or community events.

(6} "Plant factor" has the same meaninct as in section 491.

~7) "Separate interest" has the same meaning as in section 4185 of the Civil Code.

(8) "Turf" has the same meaning as in section 491.

(9} "Urban water supplier" has the same meaning as Water Code section 10617.

(10) "Water shortage contingenc rLplan" means the plan required by Water Cade section
10632.

(b) Each urban water supplier shall submit to the Department of Water Resources a
preliminary annual water su~ply and demand assessment consistent with section 10632.1



of the Water Cade no later than June 1 2022 or the effective date of this section whichever
comes later, and submit a final annual water supply and demand assessment to the
Department of Water Resources no later than the deadline set by section 10632.1 of the
Water Code.

(i) The supplier's annual water supply and demand assessment submitted to the
Department of Water`Resources demonstrates an ability to maintain reliable suppix
until September 30, 2023.

Department of Water Resources.

(iii) The supplier's average number of gallons of water used per person per day by

to twenty (20) gercent (Level ~, implement at a minimum the following actions:

(1) Initiate a public information and outreach campaign for water conservation and
promptly and effectively reach the supplier's customers, using efforts such as ema
papermail, bill inserts, customer app notifications, news articles, websites, comma
events radio and television billboards and social media.

potable water befinreen the hours of 10:00 a.m. and 6:00 p.m.

Level 2~

(2 Notwithstanding subdivision (c)(1), urban water suppliers shall not be required to
implement new residential connection moratoria pursuant to this section.

residential customers for the year 2020 is below 55 gallons, as reported to the Board
in the :Electronic Annual Report.



has authority to enforce, as infractions, the prohibitions in section 995 and takes
enforcement against violations.

(e) t1) To prevent the unreasonable use of water and to promote water conservation, the
use: of potable water is prohibited for the irrigation of non-functional turf at commercial,
industrial and institutional sites.

(2~ Notwithstanding subdivision (e)(1~, the use of water is not prohibited by this section
to the extent necessary to ensure the health of trees and other perennial non-turf
plantings or to the extent necessary to address an immediate health and safety need.

(3) Notwithstanding subdivision (e)(1 ~, an urban water supplier may approve a request
for continued irrigation of non-functional turFwhere the user certifies that the turf is a low
water use plant with a plant factor of 0.3 or less, and demonstrates the actual use is less
than 40% of reference evapotranspiration.

criminal

(g) A decision or order issued under this section ~ the Board, or an officer or employee
the Board, is subject to reconsideration under article 2 (commencing with section 1122) c
chapter 4 of part 1 of division 2 of the Water Code.

Authority: Section 105$.5, Water Code.

References: Article X Section 2 California Constitution' Sections 4080 4100 4110 and
4185 Civil Gode~ Section 8627.7 Government Code' Sections 102 104 105 275 350
3.77, 491, 1058.5, 1122. 10608.12, 10617, 10632, and 10632.1, Water Code; Lic~hf v. Sf~
Water Resources Control Board (2Q14) 226 Cal.App.4th 1463; Stanford Vina Ranch
lrrigation Co. v. State of California (20201 50 Cal.App.5th 976



EXECUTIVE DEPARTMENT 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

EXECUTIVE ORDER N-5-23 

WHEREAS on April 21, 2021, May 10, 2021, July 8, 2021, and October 19, 
2021, I proclaimed States of Emergency to exist due to drought conditions; and 

WHEREAS the multi-year nature of the current drought, which began three 
years after the record-setting drought of 2012-2016, continues to have 
significant, immediate impacts on communities across California with vulnerable 
water supplies, farms that rely on irrigation to grow food and fiber, and fish and 
wildlife that rely on stream flows and cool water; and 

WHEREAS the March 3, 2023, snow survey conducted by the Department 
of Water Resources and partner agencies found that most regions of the Sierra 
Nevada are above average for snow water content, and some regions are 
nearing record amounts of snow, and snow and rain has fallen across many 
regions of the state since then, with more precipitation forecasted; and 

WHEREAS improved conditions have helped rehabilitate surface water 
supplies, but have not abated the severe drought conditions that remain in 
some parts of the State, including the Klamath River basin and the Colorado 
River basin, and many groundwater basins throughout the State remain 
depleted from overreliance and successive multi-year droughts; and 

WHEREAS continued action by the State is needed to address ongoing 
consequences of the drought emergency, including groundwater supply 
shortages, domestic well failures, and drought-related harm to native fishes in 
the Klamath River and Clear Lake watersheds; and 

WHEREAS the drought emergency has required a dynamic and flexible 
response from the State, and several provisions in my prior Proclamations and 
Orders have been terminated or superseded already, specifically Paragraphs 4 
and 8 of my State of Emergency Proclamation dated April 21, 202 l, Paragraphs 
2, 4, and 7 of my State of Emergency Proclamation dated May 10, 2021, 
Paragraphs 3, 4, 5, 6, and 10 of my State of Emergency Proclamation dated July 
8, 2021, and Paragraph 9 of Executive Order N-7-22; and 

WHEREAS improved conditions warrant an even more targeted State 
response to the ongoing drought emergency and certain provisions in my State 
of Emergency Proclamations dated April 21, 202 l, May 10, 2021, July 8, 2021, 
and October 19, 2021, and in Executive Orders N-10-21, N-7-22, and N-3-23 
provide authority that is no longer needed to mitigate the effects of the drought 
conditions or direct actions by state agencies, departments, and boards that 
have already been completed; and 

WHEREAS notwithstanding the rescission of certain emergency authorities 
for emergency drinking water action, state agencies have existing legal 
authority and funding to continue expedited work to advance the human right 
to water, and state agencies will continue all ongoing drought resilience 
planning work, including through coordination with local agencies and tribes; 
and 



WHEREAS next winter's hydrology is uncertain and the most efficient way 
to preserve the State's improved surface water supplies is for Californians to 
continue their ongoing efforts to make conservation a way of life; and 

WHEREAS to protect public health and safety, it is critical the State take 
certain immediate actions without undue delay to prepare for and mitigate the 
effects of the drought conditions, and under Government Code section 8571, I 
find that strict compliance with various statutes and regulations specified in this 
Order would prevent, hinder, or delay the mitigation of the effects of the 
drought conditions. 

NOW, THEREFORE, I, GAVIN NEWSOM, Governor of the State of California, 
in accordance with the authority vested in me by the State Constitution and 
statutes, including the California Emergency Services Act, and in particular, 
Government Code sections 8567, 8571, and 8627, do hereby issue the following 
Order to become effective immediately: 

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED THAT: 

l . The orders and provisions contained in my State of Emergency 
Proclamations dated April 21, 2021, May 10, 2021, July 8, 2021, and 
October 19, 2021, and Executive Orders N-7-22 (March 28, 2022), N-3-
23 (February 13, 2023), and N-4-23 (March l 0, 2023), remain in full force 
and effect, except as modified by those Proclamations and Orders 
and herein. State agencies shall continue to implement all directions 
from those Proclamations and Orders and accelerate implementation 
where feasible. 

2. The following provisions of my State of Emergency Proclamation dated 
April 21, 2021, are terminated: 

a. Paragraph 2; 
b. Paragraphs 5-7; and 
c. Paragraphs 9-14. 

3. The following provisions of my State of Emergency Proclamation dated 
May l 0, 2021, are terminated: 

a. Paragraph 1; 
b. Paragraph 3; 
c. Paragraph 5; and 
d. Paragraphs 9-10. 

4. The following provisions of my State of Emergency Proclamation dated 
July 8, 2021, are terminated: 

a. Paragraph 2; 
b. Paragraphs 7-8, except those portions of paragraph 7 

withdrawing provisions of prior orders; 
c. Paragraphs 11-12. 



5. The following provisions of my State of Emergency Proclamation dated 
October 19, 2021, are terminated: 

a. Paragraph 2; 
b. Paragraphs 4-5; 
c. Paragraph 8; and 
d. Paragraph 10. 

6. The following provisions of Executive Order N-10-21 are terminated: 

a. Paragraph 1; and 
b. Paragraph 3 

7. The following provisions of Executive Order N-7-22 are terminated: 

a. Paragraphs 1-3; 
b. Paragraph 6; and 
c. Paragraphs 14-15. 

8. The following provisions of Executive Order N-3-23 are terminated: 

a. Paragraph 1; and 
b. Paragraph 3, except those portions of the paragraph 

withdrawing provisions of prior orders. 

9. Paragraph 6 of my State of Emergency Proclamation dated May 10, 
2021, and Paragraph 9 of my State of Emergency Proclamation dated 
July 8, 2021, are withdrawn and replaced with the following text: 

To ensure critical instream flows for species protection in the Klamath 
River and Clear Lake watersheds, the State Water Resources Control 
Board (Water Board) and Department of Fish and Wildlife shall 
evaluate the minimum instream flows and other actions needed to 
protect salmon, steelhead, the Clear Lake Hitch, and other native 
fishes in critical streams systems in these watersheds and work with 
water users, tribes, and other parties on voluntary measures to 
implement those actions. To the extent voluntary actions are not 
sufficient, the Water Board, in coordination with the Department of Fish 
and Wildlife, shall consider emergency regulations to establish 
minimum instream flows to mitigate the effects of the drought 
conditions. For purposes of state agencies carrying out or approving 
any actions contemplated by this paragraph, Public Resources Code, 
Division 13 (commencing with Section 21000) and regulations adopted 
pursuant to that Division are suspended. Nothing in this Paragraph 
affects or limits the validity of actions already taken in the Klamath and 
Clear Lake watersheds or ongoing under Paragraph 6 of my State of 
Emergency Proclamation dated May 10, 2021, or Paragraph 9 of my 
State of Emergency Proclamation dated July 8, 2021 . 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that as soon as hereafter possible, this Order be 
filed in the Office of the Secretary of State and that widespread publicity and 
notice be given of this Order. 



This Order is not intended to, and does not, create any rights or benefits, 
substantive or procedural, enforceable at law or in equity, against the State of 
California, its agencies, departments, entities, officers, employees, or any other 
person. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF I have hereunto set 
my hand and caused the Great Seal of the 
State of California to be affixed this 24th 
day of March 2023. 

overnor of California 

ATTEST: 

SHIRLEY N. WEBER, PH.D. 
Secretary of State 



 
 

                                                               

    
DRINKING WATER CONSTRUCTION 

LOAN 
 

AGREEMENT NO. SWRCB0000000000D2002017 
by and between  

CITY OF PORTERVILLE (“Recipient”) 
and 

CALIFORNIA STATE WATER RESOURCES CONTROL BOARD (“State Water Board”) 

 
for the purpose of the 

 
AKIN/CENTRAL WATER CONSOLIDATION PROJECT 

5410010-018C AND 5400655-001C (“Project”)  
 

• Section 116760 et seq. of the Health and Safety Code and Resolution Nos. 2019-0065 and 2020-
0022. 

 
PROJECT FUNDING AMOUNT:  $4,787,664 

PRINCIPAL FORGIVENESS COMPONENT:  $4,787,664 
 

ESTIMATED REASONABLE PROJECT COST: $4,787,664 
ELIGIBLE WORK START DATE: JULY 1, 2016  

ELIGIBLE CONSTRUCTION START DATE:  SEPTEMBER 22, 2020 
CONSTRUCTION COMPLETION DATE: OCTOBER 1, 2023 
FINAL REIMBURSEMENT REQUEST DATE: APRIL 1, 2024 

RECORDS RETENTION END DATE: OCTOBER 1, 2059  



 City of Porterville 
Project No.: 5410010-018C/ 5400655-001C 

Agreement No.: SWRCB0000000000D2002017 
Page 2 of 24 

 

3pg18xi20 
 

1. The State Water Board and the Recipient mutually promise, covenant, and agree to the terms, 
provisions, and conditions of this Agreement, including the following Exhibits, which are attached 
hereto or are incorporated by reference: 
• Exhibit A – Scope of Work and Schedule 
• Exhibit B – Specific Funding Provisions 
• Exhibit C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 2019-NOV 
• Exhibit D – Special Conditions 

 
2. The following documents are also incorporated by reference: 

• the Drinking Water System Permit No. 03-12-06P-004;   
• the Davis-Bacon requirements found at:   
https://www.waterboards.ca.gov/water_issues/programs/grants_loans/srf/docs/davisbacon/2020_
dwsrf_governmental_entities.pdf 

3. Party Contacts during the term of this Agreement are: 
 

State Water Board City of Porterville  
Section: Division of Financial Assistance   
Name: Pete Stamas, Project Manager Name:   Monte Reyes, Mayor 
Address: 1001 I Street, 16th Floor Address: 291 North Main Street 
City, State, 
Zip: 

Sacramento, CA 95814 City, State, Zip: Porterville, CA 93257 

Phone: (916) 552-9983 Phone: (559) 782-7499 
Fax:  Fax:  
Email: Pete.Stamas@waterboards.ca.gov Email: montereyes@portervilleca.gov 

 
Each party may change its contact upon written notice to the other party.  While Party Contacts are 
contacts for day-to-day communications regarding Project work, the Recipient must provide 
official communications and notices to the Division’s Deputy Director. 

 
4. Conditions precedent to this Agreement are set forth as follows: 

(a) The Recipient must deliver an opinion of general counsel satisfactory to the State Water 
Board’s counsel dated on or after the date that the Recipient signs this Agreement. 

(b) The Recipient must deliver to the Division a resolution authorizing this Agreement and 
identifying its authorized representative by title. 

(c) The Recipient must deliver to the Division a resolution certifying that its decision-making body 
reviewed and considered the Mitigated Negative Declaration filed by the State Water Board 
for the Akin Water Company Water Supply Project together with the Mitigation Monitoring and 
Reporting Program and reached its own conclusions on whether and how to approve the 
Project, pursuant to Section 15050 (b) of the CEQA Guidelines. 

5. The Recipient represents, warrants, and commits to the following as of the Eligible Work Start 
Date and continuing thereafter for the term of this Agreement, which shall be at least until the 
Records Retention End Date: 

(a) The Recipient agrees to comply with all terms, provisions, conditions, and commitments of 
this Agreement, including all incorporated documents. 

(b) The execution and delivery of this Agreement, including all incorporated documents, has 
been duly authorized by the Recipient.  Upon execution by both parties, this Agreement 
constitutes a valid and binding obligation of the Recipient, enforceable in accordance with its 
terms, except as such enforcement may be limited by law. 

https://www.waterboards.ca.gov/water_issues/programs/grants_loans/srf/docs/davisbacon/2020_dwsrf_governmental_entities.pdf
https://www.waterboards.ca.gov/water_issues/programs/grants_loans/srf/docs/davisbacon/2020_dwsrf_governmental_entities.pdf


 City of Porterville 
Project No.: 5410010-018C/ 5400655-001C 

Agreement No.: SWRCB0000000000D2002017 
Page 3 of 24 

 

3pg18xi20 
 

(c)  None of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement will be or have been made with an 
actual intent to hinder, delay, or defraud any present or future creditors of Recipient. The 
Recipient is solvent and will not be rendered insolvent by the transactions contemplated by 
this Agreement.  The Recipient is able to pay its debts as they become due.  The Recipient 
maintains sufficient insurance coverage considering the scope of this Agreement, including, 
for example but not necessarily limited to, general liability, automobile liability, workers 
compensation and employer liability, professional liability.   

(d) The Recipient is in compliance with all State Water Board funding agreements to which it is a 
party. 

 





 City of Porterville 
Project No.: 5410010-018C/ 5400655-001C 

Agreement No.: SWRCB0000000000D2002017 
Page 5 of 24 

 

Exhibit A 
 

EXHIBIT A – SCOPE OF WORK AND SCHEDULE 

A.1.  PROJECT PURPOSE AND DESCRIPTION. 

The Project is for the benefit of the Recipient and has a Useful Life of at least 40 years.  The funding 
under this Agreement shall be used to provide the residents of two small disadvantaged communities 
currently served by Akin Water Company (Akin WC) and Central Mutual Water Company (Central MWC) 
with a sustainable source of safe drinking water. 
 
A.2.  SCOPE OF WORK. 

The Recipient agrees to do the following: consolidate with Akin WC and Central MWC.  Recipient also 
agrees to construct a new production well, estimated to produce between 1,300 and 1,800 gallons per 
minute, to provide the needed source capacity for the consolidation of Akin WC, the consolidation of 
Central MWC, as well as satisfy the remainder of East Porterville residents’ capacity needs.  

The Recipient agrees to do the following for the Akin WC service area: construct approximately 1,500 feet 
of 8-inch waterline to provide water service to each customer currently served by Akin WC; install 
approximately three new fire hydrants and twenty-six new service laterals and meters; and destroy Akin 
WC’s two existing wells. 

The Recipient agrees to do the following for the Central MWC service area: construct approximately 
1,400 feet of 6-inch waterline to provide water service to each customer currently served by Central 
MWC; install approximately four new fire hydrants and thirty-four new service laterals and meters; and 
destroy Central MWC’s existing well. 
 
Upon Completion of Construction, the Recipient must expeditiously initiate Project operations.  
 
A.3  SIGNAGE 

The Recipient must place a professionally prepared sign at least four feet tall by eight feet wide made of 
¾ inch thick exterior grade plywood or other approved material in a prominent location on the Project site 
and must maintain the sign in good condition for the duration of Project implementation.  The sign may 
include another agency’s required information and must include, prominently displayed, the following 
disclosure statement and color logos (available from the Division):  

                             
 
“Funding for this project has been provided in full or in part under the Drinking Water State 
Revolving Fund, which may include capitalization funding from the United States Environmental 
Protection Agency through an agreement with the State Water Resources Control Board.”  

A.4  SCHEDULE.  

Failure to provide items by the due dates indicated in the table below may constitute a material violation 
of this Agreement.  The Project Manager may adjust the dates in the “Estimated Due Date” column of this 
table, but Critical Due Date adjustments will require an amendment to this Agreement.  The Recipient 

http://www2.epa.gov/sites/production/files/epa_logo_vert_verysmall.gif


 City of Porterville 
Project No.: 5410010-018C/ 5400655-001C 

Agreement No.: SWRCB0000000000D2002017 
Page 6 of 24 

 

Exhibit A 
 

must complete and submit all work in time to be approved by the Division prior to the Project Completion 
Date.  As applicable for specific submittals, the Recipient must plan adequate time to solicit, receive, and 
address comments prior to submitting the final submittal. The Recipient must submit the final 
Reimbursement Request prior to the Final Reimbursement Request Date set forth on the Cover Page. 
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION OF SUBMITTAL CRITICAL DUE 

DATE 
ESTIMATED DUE 

DATE 

EXHIBIT A – SCOPE OF WORK 

A. ADDITIONAL SUBMITTAL(S) TO DIVISION   

1. Final Plans and Specifications   September 1, 2021  

2. Final Budget Approval Package  February 1, 2022  

3. Completion of Construction October 1, 2023 
 

B. REPORTS   

1. Progress Reports  Quarterly 

2. Final Inspection and Certification  October 1, 2023 

3. Project Completion Report  December 1, 2023 

4 As Needed Reports  TBD 

EXHIBIT B – REIMBURSEMENTS, BUDGET DETAIL, AND REPORTING PROVISIONS 

A. REIMBURSEMENTS   

1. Reimbursement Requests  Quarterly 

2. Final Reimbursement Request April 1, 2024  

 
The Recipient must award the prime construction contract and begin construction timely.  The Recipient 
must deliver any request for extension of the Completion of Construction Date no less than 90 days prior 
to the Completion of Construction Date. 
 
A.5  PROGRESS REPORTS.  

The Recipient must provide a progress report to the Division each quarter, beginning no later 
than 90 days after execution of this Agreement. The Recipient must provide a progress report 
with each Reimbursement Request.  Failure to provide a complete and accurate progress report 
may result in the withholding of Project Funds, as set forth in Exhibit B.  A progress report must 
contain the following information:   

1) A summary of progress to date including a description of progress since the last report, 
percent construction complete, percent contractor invoiced, and percent schedule 
elapsed;  

2) A description of compliance with environmental requirements;  
3) A listing of change orders including amount, description of work, and change in contract 

amount and schedule; and 
4) Any problems encountered, proposed resolution, schedule for resolution, and status of 

previous problem resolutions.  
 
 
 

 



 City of Porterville 
Project No.: 5410010-018C/ 5400655-001C 

Agreement No.: SWRCB0000000000D2002017 
Page 7 of 24 

 

Exhibit A 
 

A.6  SPECIAL REPORTS.  

(a) The Recipient must submit a Project Completion Report to the Division with a copy to the 
appropriate District Office on or before the due date established by the Division and the Recipient 
at the time of final project inspection.  The Project Completion Report must include the following: 

i. Description of the Project, 
ii. Description of the water quality problem the Project sought to address, 
iii. Discussion of the Project’s likelihood of successfully addressing that water quality 

problem in the future, and  
iv. Summary of compliance with applicable environmental conditions.  

 
(b) If the Recipient fails to submit a timely Project Completion Report, the State Water Board may 
stop processing pending or future applications for new financial assistance, withhold 
reimbursements under this Agreement or other agreements, and begin administrative 
proceedings. 

 
(c) The Recipient must report Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE) utilization to the Division 
on the DBE Utilization Report, State Water Board Form DBE UR334.  The Recipient must submit 
such reports to the Division annually within ten (10) calendar days following October 1 until such 
time as the "Notice of Completion" is issued.  The Recipient must comply with 40 CFR § 33.301 
and require its contractors and subcontractors on the Project to comply. 
 
A.7  FINAL PROJECT INSPECTION AND CERTIFICATION. 

Upon completion of the Project, the Recipient must provide for a final inspection and must certify that the 
Project has been completed in accordance with this Agreement, any final plans and specifications 
submitted to the State Water Board, and any amendments or modifications thereto.  If the Project 
involves the planning, investigation, evaluation, design, or other work requiring interpretation and proper 
application of engineering, or other professionals, the final inspection and certification must be conducted 
by a California Registered Civil Engineer or other appropriate California registered professional.  The 
results of the final inspection and certification must be submitted to the Project Manager.   



 City of Porterville 
Project No.: 5410010-018C/ 5400655-001C 

Agreement No.: SWRCB0000000000D2002017 
Page 8 of 24 

 

 
Exhibit B 

 

EXHIBIT B – FUNDING AMOUNTS 

B.1  ESTIMATED REASONABLE COST AND PROJECT FUNDS.   

The estimated reasonable cost of the total Project is set forth on the Cover Page of this Agreement and is greater 
than or equal to the funding anticipated to be provided by the State Water Board under this Agreement.  Subject 
to the terms of this Agreement, the State Water Board agrees to provide Project Funds not to exceed the amount 
of the Project Funding Amount set forth on the Cover Page of this Agreement. 

B.2  RECIPIENT CONTRIBUTIONS.   

(a) The loan component of this Agreement is forgiven. The estimated amount of principal that will be due to the 
State Water Board from the Recipient under this Agreement is Zero dollars and no cents ($0.00).  
 
(b) The Recipient must pay any and all costs connected with the Project including, without limitation, any and all 
Project Costs.  If the Project Funds are not sufficient to pay the Project Costs in full, the Recipient must nonetheless 
complete the Project and pay that portion of the Project Costs in excess of available Project Funds, and shall not 
be entitled to any reimbursement therefor from the State Water Board. 

(c) If the Recipient recovers funds from any responsible parties, the Recipient shall immediately notify the 
Division.  The amount of this Agreement may be reduced to reflect the recovered funds.    

 
B.3 VERIFIABLE DATA. 

Upon request by the Division, the Recipient must submit verifiable data to support deliverables specified in the 
Scope of Work.  The Recipient’s failure to comply with this requirement may be construed as a material breach of 
this Agreement.   
 
B.4  BUDGET COSTS 

Budget costs are contained in the Summary Project Cost Table below:    

LINE ITEM  TOTAL ESTIMATED COST PROJECT FUNDING AMOUNT 
Construction $3,194,720 $3,194,720 
Pre-Purchased Material/Equipment $0 $0 
Purchase of Land $0 $0 
Contingency $638,944 $638,944 
Allowances (Soft Costs) $954,000 $954,000 
TOTAL $4,787,664 $4,787,664 

   
The Division’s Final Budget Approval and related Form 259 and Form 260 will document a more detailed budget 
of eligible Project Costs and Project funding amounts. 

 
The Recipient is prohibited from requesting disbursement amounts that represent Recipient’s mark-ups to costs 
invoiced or otherwise requested by consultants or contractors. 
 
Reasonable indirect costs may be allowable upon approval by the Division. 
 
B.5 LINE ITEM ADJUSTMENTS. 
 
Upon written request by the Recipient, the Division may adjust the line items of the Summary Project Cost Table 
at the time of Division’s Final Budget Approval.  Upon written request by the Recipient, the Division may also 
adjust the line items of the Summary Project Cost Table as well as the detailed budget at the time of Recipient’s 
submittal of its final claim. Any line item adjustments to the Summary Project Cost Table that are due to a change 
in scope of work will require an Agreement amendment. The sum of adjusted line items in both the Summary 



 City of Porterville 
Project No.: 5410010-018C/ 5400655-001C 

Agreement No.: SWRCB0000000000D2002017 
Page 9 of 24 

 

 
Exhibit B 

 

Project Cost Table and the detailed budget must not exceed the Project Funding Amount.  The Division may also 
propose budget adjustments.  
 
Under no circumstances may the sum of line items in the budget approved through the Final Budget Approval 
process exceed the Project Funding Amount.  Any increase in the Project Funding Amount will require an 
Agreement amendment. 
 
B.6   REIMBURSEMENT PROCEDURE.  

 (a) Except as may be otherwise provided in this Agreement, reimbursements will be made as follows: 
1. Upon execution and delivery of this Agreement by both parties, the Recipient may request immediate 

reimbursement of any eligible incurred costs as specified below through submission to the State Water 
Board of the Reimbursement Request Form 260 and Form 261, or any amendment thereto, duly 
completed and executed.   

2. The Recipient must submit a Reimbursement Request for costs incurred prior to the date this Agreement 
is executed by the State Water Board no later than ninety (90) days after this Agreement is executed by 
the State Water Board.  Late Reimbursement Requests may not be honored.   

3. Additional Project Funds will be promptly disbursed to the Recipient upon receipt of Reimbursement 
Request Form 260 and Form 261, or any amendment thereto, duly completed and executed by the 
Recipient for incurred costs consistent with this Agreement, along with receipt of progress reports due 
under Exhibit A. 

4. The Recipient must not request reimbursement for any Project Cost until such cost has been incurred and 
is currently due and payable by the Recipient, although the actual payment of such cost by the Recipient 
is not required as a condition of reimbursement. Supporting documentation (e.g., receipts) must be 
submitted with each Reimbursement Request. The amount requested for Recipient’s administration costs 
must include a calculation formula (i.e., hours or days worked times the hourly or daily rate = total amount 
claimed). Reimbursement of Project Funds will be made only after receipt of a complete, adequately 
supported, properly documented, and accurately addressed Reimbursement Request.  Upon request by 
the Division, supporting documents for professional and administrative services must include the 
employees’ names, classifications, labor rates, hours worked, and descriptions of the tasks performed.  
Reimbursement Requests submitted without supporting documents may be wholly or partially withheld at 
the discretion of the Division.   

5. The Recipient must spend Project Funds within 30 days of receipt.  If the Recipient earns interest earned 
on Project Funds, it must report that interest immediately to the State Water Board.  The State Water 
Board may deduct earned interest from future reimbursements. 

6. The Recipient shall not request a reimbursement unless that Project Cost is allowable, reasonable, and 
allocable.   

7. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, no reimbursement shall be required at any time or 
in any manner which is in violation of or in conflict with federal or state laws, policies, or regulations. 

 
(b) Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, the Recipient agrees that the State Water Board may 
retain an amount equal to ten percent (10%) of the Project Funding Amount until Project Completion. Any retained 
amounts due to the Recipient will be promptly disbursed to the Recipient, without interest, upon Project 
Completion.  
 
(c) Except as follows, construction costs and disbursements are not available until after the Division has approved 
the final budget form submitted by the Recipient. The Deputy Director of the Division may authorize the 
disbursement of up to ten percent (10%) of Project Funds for the reimbursement of eligible construction costs and 
pre-purchased materials prior to Division approval of the final budget form submitted by the Recipient.  All other 
construction costs are not eligible for reimbursement until after this the Division has approved the final budget 
form submitted by the Recipient. Construction costs incurred prior to the Eligible Construction Start Date are not 
eligible for reimbursement.   
 
B.7 REVERTING FUNDS AND DISENCUMBRANCE. 



 City of Porterville 
Project No.: 5410010-018C/ 5400655-001C 

Agreement No.: SWRCB0000000000D2002017 
Page 10 of 24 

 

 
Exhibit B 

 

In the event the Recipient does not submit Reimbursement Requests for all funds encumbered under this 
Agreement by the Final Reimbursement Request Date, any remaining funds revert to the State. The State Water 
Board may notify the Recipient that the project file is closed, and any remaining balance will be disencumbered 
and unavailable for further use under the Agreement. 



 City of Porterville 
Project No.: 5410010-018C/ 5400655-001C 

Agreement No.: SWRCB0000000000D2002017 
Page 11 of 24 

 

 
Exhibit C 

 

EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 2019-NOV 
 

GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 2019-NOV is incorporated by reference and is posted at 
https://www.waterboards.ca.gov/water_issues/programs/grants_loans/general_terms.html 
 
 

https://www.waterboards.ca.gov/water_issues/programs/grants_loans/general_terms.html


 City of Porterville 
Project No.: 5410010-018C/ 5400655-001C 

Agreement No.: SWRCB0000000000D2002017 
Page 12 of 24 

 

 
Exhibit D 

 

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL CONDITIONS 
 

1. Notwithstanding Exhibit C, the following terms have no meaning for the purposes of this Agreement: 
 

• Work Completion 
• Work Completion Date 

 
2. Each capitalized term used in this Agreement has the following meaning: 

 
• "Allowance" means an amount based on a percentage of the accepted bid for an eligible project to help 

defray the planning, design, and construction engineering and administration costs of the Project. 
• "Authorized Representative" means the duly appointed representative of the Recipient as set forth in the 

certified original of the Recipient’s authorizing resolution that designates the authorized representative by 
title.  

• "Completion of Construction" means the date, as determined by the Division after consultation with the 
Recipient, that the work of building and erection of the Project is substantially complete, and is established on 
the Cover Page of this Agreement.   

• “District Office” means District Office of the Division of Drinking Water of the State Water Board. 
• “Division of Drinking Water” means the Division of Drinking Water of the State Water Board. 
• “Eligible Construction Start Date” means the date set forth on the Cover Page of this Agreement, 

establishing the date on or after which construction costs may be incurred and eligible for reimbursement 
hereunder. 

• “Eligible Work Start Date” means the date set forth on the Cover Page of this Agreement, establishing the 
date on or after which any non-construction costs may be incurred and eligible for reimbursement 
hereunder. 

• “Enterprise Fund” means the enterprise fund of the Recipient in which Revenues are deposited. 
• “Event of Default” means, in addition to the meanings set forth in Exhibit C, the occurrence of any of the 

following events:  
a) A material adverse change in the condition of the Recipient, the Revenues, or the System, which 

the Division reasonably determines would materially impair the Recipient’s ability to satisfy its 
obligations under this Agreement. 

b) Failure to operate the System or the Project without the Division’s approval;  
• “Final Budget Approval” means the Division-approved final budget for the Project, as set forth in Exhibit B. 
• “Indirect Costs” means those costs that are incurred for a common or joint purpose benefiting more than 

one cost objective and are not readily assignable to the Project (i.e., costs that are not directly related to 
the Project).  Examples of Indirect Costs include, but are not limited to: central service costs; general 
administration of the Recipient; non-project-specific accounting and personnel services performed within 
the Recipient organization; depreciation or use allowances on buildings and equipment; the costs of 
operating and maintaining non-project-specific facilities; tuition and conference fees; generic overhead or 
markup; and taxes.   

• "Initiation of Construction" means the date that notice to proceed with work is issued for the Project, or, if 
notice to proceed is not required, the date of commencement of building and erection of the Project. 

• “Net Revenues" means, for any Fiscal Year, all Revenues received by the Recipient less the Operations 
and Maintenance Costs for such Fiscal Year. 

• "Operations and Maintenance Costs" means the reasonable and necessary costs paid or incurred by the 
Recipient for maintaining and operating the System, determined in accordance with GAAP, including all 



 City of Porterville 
Project No.: 5410010-018C/ 5400655-001C 

Agreement No.: SWRCB0000000000D2002017 
Page 13 of 24 

 

 
Exhibit D 

 

reasonable expenses of management and repair and all other expenses necessary to maintain and 
preserve the System in good repair and working order, and including all reasonable and necessary 
administrative costs of the Recipient that are charged directly or apportioned to the operation of the 
System, such as salaries and wages of employees, overhead, taxes (if any), the cost of permits, licenses, 
and charges to operate the System and insurance premiums; but excluding, in all cases depreciation, 
replacement, and obsolescence charges or reserves therefor and amortization of intangibles. 

• “Reimbursement Request” means the Recipient’s request for Project Funds from the State Water Board 
as set forth in Exhibit B. 

• "Revenues" means, for each Fiscal Year, all gross income and revenue received or receivable by the 
Recipient from the ownership or operation of the System, determined in accordance with GAAP, including 
all rates, fees, and charges (including connection fees and charges) as received by the Recipient for the 
services of the System, and all other income and revenue howsoever derived by the Recipient from the 
ownership or operation of the System or arising from the System, including all income from the deposit or 
investment of any money in the Enterprise Fund or any rate stabilization fund of the Recipient or held on 
the Recipient’s behalf, and any refundable deposits made to establish credit, and advances or 
contributions in aid of construction.  

• “System” means all drinking water collection, transport, treatment, storage, and delivery facilities, 
including land and easements thereof, owned by the City of Porterville, or its successor agency, and all 
other properties, structures, or works hereafter acquired and constructed by the Recipient and determined 
to be a part of the System, together with all additions, betterments, extensions, or improvements to such 
facilities, properties, structures, or works, or any part thereof hereafter acquired and constructed.    

• “Useful Life” means the economically useful life of the Project beginning at Project Completion and is set 
forth in Exhibit A. 
  

3. Acknowledgements. 

The Recipient must include the following acknowledgement in any document, written report, or brochure 
to be shared with the general public prepared in whole or in part pursuant to this Agreement: 

 
“Funding for this project has been provided in full or in part under the Drinking Water State Revolving 
Fund, which may include capitalization funding from the United States Environmental Protection 
Agency through an agreement with the State Water Resources Control Board. The contents of this 
document do not necessarily reflect the views and policies of the foregoing, nor does mention of 
trade names or commercial products constitute endorsement or recommendation for use.” 

4. Rates and Charges.  The Recipient must, to the extent permitted by law, fix, prescribe and collect rates, 
fees and charges for the System during each Fiscal Year which are reasonable, fair, and 
nondiscriminatory and which will be sufficient to generate Revenues in the amounts necessary to cover 
Operations and Maintenance Costs, and must ensure that Net Revenues are in an amount necessary to 
meet its obligations under this Agreement. The Recipient may make adjustments from time to time in 
such fees and charges and may make such classification thereof as it deems necessary, but shall not 
reduce the rates, fees and charges then in effect unless the Net Revenues from such reduced rates, fees, 
and charges will at all times be sufficient to meet the requirements of this section.  
 

5. [RESERVED]  
 

6. [RESERVED]. 
 
 
 



 City of Porterville 
Project No.: 5410010-018C/ 5400655-001C 

Agreement No.: SWRCB0000000000D2002017 
Page 14 of 24 

 

 
Exhibit D 

 

7. Environmental/Technical Special Conditions 
 
Technical: 

1. The Recipient shall submit its professional engineering services contract to the Division prior to 
disbursement of funds for costs incurred under such contract. 

2. The Recipient shall not solicit bids, award a contract, or commence construction activities until final plans 
and specifications are approved by the Division of Drinking Water Tulare District Office Engineer and the 
Project Manager. 

3. The Recipient must submit final consolidation agreements with Akin WC and Central MWC, in a form 
satisfactory to the Division, and receive written approval from the Project Manager to proceed before 
Project Funds may be disbursed for any Project Costs under the Agreement. 

4. Upon completion of the Project the Recipient shall submit a water supply permit amendment request for 
review to the Division of Drinking Water Tulare District Office. 

 
Environmental: 

1. The documents identified below are incorporated by reference and the Recipient shall comply with the 
conditions and recommendations therein: 

a. The Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program adopted by the State Water Board on June 16, 
2016 for the Project. The Recipient shall implement all mitigation measures therein. 

b. The letter dated February 12, 2020, from Patricia Cole of the United States Fish and Wildlife 
Service, San Joaquin Valley Division to Douglas E. Eberhardt of the United States Environmental 
Protection Agency, including, but not limited to, the following: 

i. Implement Avoidance and Minimization Measures and Best Management Practices prior 
to and during construction activities to minimize and avoid effects to the San Joaquin kit 
fox. 

c. The Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program adopted by the City of Porterville on April 21, 
2020 for the Central Mutual Water Company Consolidation Project. The Recipient shall 
implement all mitigation measures therein. 

2. In the Recipient’s Quarterly Reports submitted pursuant to this Agreement, the Recipient shall include a 
discussion of the status of its compliance with environmental measures identified in this Exhibit D, with 
separate sections clearly labeled and titled, discussing the status of Recipient’s compliance. 

3. In the Recipient’s Project Completion Report submitted pursuant to this Agreement, the Recipient shall 
include a discussion of its compliance with environmental measures identified in this Exhibit D, with 
separate sections clearly labeled and titled, discussing the status of Recipient’s compliance. 
 

8. [RESERVED]. 
 

9. Appointment of Receiver/Custodian.  Upon the filing of a suit or other commencement of judicial 
proceedings to enforce the rights of the State Water Board under this Agreement, the State Water Board 
may make application for the appointment of a receiver or custodian of the Revenues, pending such 
proceeding, with such power as the court making such appointment may confer.   
 

10. [RESERVED].     
 

11. Damages for Breach of Federal Conditions.  In the event that any breach of any of the provisions of this 
Agreement by the Recipient results in the failure of Project Funds to be used pursuant to the provisions of 
this Agreement, or if such breach results in an obligation on the part of the State or any subdivision or 
agency thereof to reimburse the federal government, the Recipient must immediately reimburse the State 
or any subdivision or agency thereof in an amount equal to any damages paid by or loss incurred by the 
State or any subdivision or agency thereof due to such breach. 



 City of Porterville 
Project No.: 5410010-018C/ 5400655-001C 

Agreement No.: SWRCB0000000000D2002017 
Page 15 of 24 

 

 
Exhibit D 

 

 
12.  [RESERVED].   

 
13. Operation and Maintenance. The Recipient shall sufficiently and properly staff, operate, and maintain the 

facility and structures constructed or improved as part of the project throughout the term of this 
Agreement, consistent with the purposes of this Agreement.  The Recipient assumes all operations and 
maintenance costs of the facilities and structures; the State Water Board shall not be liable for any cost of 
such maintenance, management or operation. 
 

14. Insurance.  The Recipient will procure and maintain or cause to be maintained insurance on the System 
and Project with responsible insurers, or as part of a reasonable system of self-insurance, in such 
amounts and against such risks (including damage to or destruction of the System or Project) as are 
usually covered in connection with systems similar to the System or Project.  Such insurance may be 
maintained by a self-insurance plan so long as such plan provides for (i) the establishment by the 
Recipient of a separate segregated self-insurance fund in an amount determined (initially and on at least 
an annual basis) by an independent insurance consultant experienced in the field of risk management 
employing accepted actuarial techniques and (ii) the establishment and maintenance of a claims 
processing and risk management program. In the event of any damage to or destruction of the System or 
Project caused by the perils covered by such insurance, the net proceeds thereof shall be applied to the 
reconstruction, repair or replacement of the damaged or destroyed portion of the System or Project.  The 
Recipient must begin such reconstruction, repair or replacement as expeditiously as possible, and must 
pay out of such net proceeds all costs and expenses in connection with such reconstruction, repair or 
replacement so that the same must be completed and the System and Project must be free and clear of 
all claims and liens. Recipient agrees that for any policy of insurance concerning or covering the 
construction of the Project, it will cause, and will require its contractors and subcontractors to cause, a 
certificate of insurance to be issued showing the State Water Board, its officers, agents, employees, and 
servants as additional insured; and must provide the Division with a copy of all such certificates prior to 
the commencement of construction of the Project. 

 
15. Notice Events. Upon the occurrence of any of the following events, the Recipient must notify the 

Division’s Deputy Director and Party Contacts by phone and email within the time specified below: 
 

a. The Recipient must notify the Division within 24 hours by phone at (916) 327-9978 and by email 
to DrinkingWaterSRF@waterboards.ca.gov of any discovery of any potential tribal cultural 
resource and/or archaeological or historical resource.  Should a potential tribal cultural resource 
and/or archaeological or historical resource be discovered during construction or Project 
implementation, the Recipient must ensure that all work in the area of the find will cease until a 
qualified archaeologist has evaluated the situation and made recommendations regarding 
preservation of the resource, and the Division has determined what actions should be taken to 
protect and preserve the resource.  The Recipient must implement appropriate actions as 
directed by the Division. 

b. The Recipient must notify the Division promptly of the occurrence of any of the following events: 

i. Bankruptcy, insolvency, receivership or similar event of the Recipient, or actions taken in 
anticipation of any of the foregoing; 

ii. Change of ownership of the Project (no change of ownership may occur without written 
consent of the Division); 

iii. Loss, theft, damage, or impairment to Project; 

iv. Events of Default, except as otherwise set forth in this section; 

mailto:DrinkingWaterSRF@waterboards.ca.gov


 City of Porterville 
Project No.: 5410010-018C/ 5400655-001C 

Agreement No.: SWRCB0000000000D2002017 
Page 16 of 24 

 

 
Exhibit D 

 

v. A proceeding or action by a public entity to acquire the Project by power of eminent 
domain.   

vi. Any litigation pending or threatened with respect to the Project or the Recipient’s 
technical, managerial or financial capacity or the Recipient’s continued existence;  

vii. Consideration of dissolution, or disincorporation; 

viii. Enforcement actions by or brought on behalf of the State Water Board or Regional Water 
Board. 

ix. The discovery of a false statement of fact or representation made in this Agreement or in 
the application to the Division for this funding, or in any certification, report, or request for 
reimbursement made pursuant to this Agreement, by the Recipient, its employees, 
agents, or contractors; 

x. Any substantial change in scope of the Project. The Recipient must undertake no 
substantial change in the scope of the Project until prompt written notice of the proposed 
change has been provided to the Division and the Division has given written approval for 
the change; 

xi. Any circumstance, combination of circumstances, or condition, which is expected to or 
does delay Completion of Construction for a period of ninety (90) days or more; 

xii. Any Project monitoring, demonstration, or other implementation activities required in this 
Agreement;  

xiii. Any public or media event publicizing the accomplishments and/or results of this 
Agreement and provide the opportunity for attendance and participation by state 
representatives with at least ten (10) working days’ notice to the Division;  

xiv. Any event requiring notice to the Division pursuant to any other provision of this 
Agreement. 

xv. Completion of work on the Project. 

xvi. The Recipient must promptly notify the Division and Party Contacts of cessation of all 
major construction work on the Project where such cessation of work is expected to or 
does extend for a period of thirty (30) days or more; 

xvii. The Recipient must promptly notify the Division and Party Contacts of the discovery of 
any unexpected endangered or threatened species, as defined in the federal Endangered 
Species Act.  Should a federally protected species be unexpectedly encountered during 
implementation of the Project, the Recipient agrees to promptly notify the Division.  This 
notification is in addition to the Recipient’s obligations under the federal Endangered 
Species Act;  

xviii. The Recipient must promptly notify the Division and Party Contacts of Completion of 
Construction, and Project Completion; 

xix. The Recipient must promptly notify the Division and Party Contacts of the award of the 
prime construction contract for the Project; and the Recipient must promptly notify the 
Division and Party Contacts of Initiation of construction of the Project. 



 City of Porterville 
Project No.: 5410010-018C/ 5400655-001C 

Agreement No.: SWRCB0000000000D2002017 
Page 17 of 24 

 

 
Exhibit D 

 

xx. The occurrence of a material breach or event of default under any Recipient obligation 
that results in the acceleration of principal or interest or otherwise requires immediate 
prepayment, repurchase or redemption. 

xxi. [RESERVED].  

16. Continuous Use of Project; No Lease, Sale, Transfer of Ownership, or Disposal of Project. The Recipient 
agrees that, except as provided in this Agreement, it will not abandon, substantially discontinue use of, 
lease, sell, transfer ownership of, or dispose of all or a significant part or portion of the Project during the 
Useful Life of the Project without prior written approval of the Division.  Such approval may be conditioned 
as determined to be appropriate by the Division, including a condition requiring repayment of all disbursed 
Project Funds or all or any portion of all remaining funds covered by this Agreement together with 
accrued interest and any penalty assessments that may be due. 

17. State Cross-Cutters. Recipient represents that, as applicable, it complies and covenants to maintain 
compliance with the following for the term of the Agreement: 

a) The California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA), as set forth in Public Resources Code 21000 et 
seq. and in the CEQA Guidelines at Title 14, Division 6, Chapter 3, Section 15000 et seq. 

 
b) Water Conservation requirements, including regulations in Division 3 of Title 23 of the California Code 

of Regulations.   
 
c) Monthly Water Diversion Reporting requirements, including requirements set forth in Water Code 

section 5103. 
 
d) Public Works Contractor Registration with Department of Industrial Relations requirements, including 

requirements set forth in Sections 1725.5 and 1771.1 of the Labor Code. 
 
e) Volumetric Pricing & Water Meters requirements, including the requirements of Water Code sections 

526 and 527.   
 
f) Urban Water Management Plan requirements, including the Urban Water Management Planning Act 

(Water Code, § 10610 et seq.).   
 
g) Urban Water Demand Management requirements, including the requirements of Section 10608.56 of 

the Water Code. 
 
h) Delta Plan Consistency Findings requirements, including the requirements of Water Code section 

85225 and California Code of Regulations, title 23, section 5002.   
 
i) Agricultural Water Management Plan Consistency requirements, including the requirements of Water 

Code section 10852. 
 
j) Charter City Project Labor Requirements, including the requirements of Labor Code section 1782 and 

Public Contract Code section 2503. 
 

k) The Recipient agrees that it will, at all times, comply with and require its contractors and 
subcontractors to comply with directives or orders issued pursuant to Division 7 of the Water Code. 

 
18. Financial Management Systems. The Recipient must comply with federal standards for financial 

management systems. The Recipient agrees that, at a minimum, its fiscal control and accounting 
procedures will be sufficient to permit preparation of reports required by the federal government and 
tracking of Project funds to a level of expenditure adequate to establish that such funds have not been 



 City of Porterville 
Project No.: 5410010-018C/ 5400655-001C 

Agreement No.: SWRCB0000000000D2002017 
Page 18 of 24 

 

 
Exhibit D 

 

used in violation of federal or state law or the terms of this Agreement.  To the extent applicable, the 
Recipient is bound by, and must comply with, the provisions and requirements of the federal Single Audit 
Act of 1984 and 2 CFR Part 200, subpart F, and updates or revisions, thereto. 
 

19. Access and Inspection. In addition to the obligations set forth in section 2 of the General Terms and 
Conditions incorporated in Exhibit C of this Agreement, the Recipient must ensure that the United States 
Environmental Protection Agency, the Office of Inspector General, any member of Congress, or any 
authorized representative of the foregoing, will have safe and suitable access to the Project site at all 
reasonable times during the term of the Agreement. 
 

20. Fraud, Waste, and Abuse. The Recipient shall prevent fraud, waste, and the abuse of Project Funds, and 
shall cooperate in any investigation of such activities that are suspected in connection with this 
Agreement.  The Recipient understands that discovery of any evidence of misrepresentation or fraud 
related to reimbursement requests, invoices, proof of payment of invoices, or other supporting 
information, including but not limited to double or multiple billing for time, services, or any other eligible 
cost, may result in referral to the Attorney General’s Office or the applicable District Attorney’s Office for 
appropriate action.  The Recipient further understands that any suspected occurrences of false claims, 
misrepresentation, fraud, forgery, theft or any other misuse of Project Funds may result in withholding of 
reimbursements and/or the termination of this Agreement requiring the immediate repayment of all funds 
disbursed hereunder. 
 

21. Disputes. The Recipient must continue with the responsibilities under this Agreement during any dispute.  
The Recipient may, in writing, appeal a staff decision within 30 days to the Deputy Director of the Division 
or designee, for a final Division decision. The Recipient may appeal a final Division decision to the State 
Water Board within 30 days. The Office of the Chief Counsel of the State Water Board will prepare a 
summary of the dispute and make recommendations relative to its final resolution, which will be provided 
to the State Water Board’s Executive Director and each State Water Board Member. Upon the motion of 
any State Water Board Member, the State Water Board will review and resolve the dispute in the manner 
determined by the State Water Board. Should the State Water Board determine not to review the final 
Division decision, this decision will represent a final agency action on the dispute.  This provision does not 
preclude consideration of legal questions, provided that nothing herein shall be construed to make final 
the decision of the State Water Board, or any official or representative thereof, on any question of law.  
This section relating to disputes does not establish an exclusive procedure for resolving claims within the 
meaning of Government Code sections 930 and 930.4.   

22. Additional Representations and Warranties.  The Recipient makes the following representations and 
warranties: 

a. [RESERVED].  

b. The Recipient has not made any untrue statement of a material fact in its application for this 
financial assistance, or omitted to state in its application, a material fact that makes the 
statements in its application not misleading.   

c. The Recipient agrees to fulfill all assurances, declarations, representations, and commitments in 
its application, accompanying documents, and communications filed in support of its request for 
funding under this Agreement. 

d. The execution, delivery, and performance by Recipient of this Agreement, including all 
incorporated documents, do not violate any provision of any law or regulation in effect as of the 
date set forth on the first page hereof, or result in any breach or default under any contract, 
obligation, indenture, or other instrument to which Recipient is a party or by which Recipient is bound 
as of the date set forth on the Cover Page. 



 City of Porterville 
Project No.: 5410010-018C/ 5400655-001C 

Agreement No.: SWRCB0000000000D2002017 
Page 19 of 24 

 

 
Exhibit D 

 

e. Except as set forth in this paragraph, there are, as of the date of execution of this Agreement by 
the Recipient, no pending or, to Recipient’s knowledge, threatened actions, claims, investigations, 
suits, or proceedings before any governmental authority, court, or administrative agency which 
materially affect the financial condition or operations of the Recipient, the Revenues, and/or the 
Project.  

f. There are no proceedings, actions, or offers by a public entity to acquire by purchase or the 
power of eminent domain any of the real or personal property related to or necessary for the 
Project.   

g. The Recipient is duly organized and existing and in good standing under the laws of the State of 
California.  Recipient must at all times maintain its current legal existence and preserve and keep 
in full force and effect its legal rights and authority.  Within the preceding ten years, the Recipient 
has not failed to demonstrate compliance with state or federal audit disallowances. 

h. Any financial statements or other financial documentation of Recipient previously delivered to the 
State Water Board as of the date(s) set forth in such financial statements or other financial 
documentation: (a) are materially complete and correct; (b) present fairly the financial condition of 
the Recipient; and (c) have been prepared in accordance with GAAP.  Since the date(s) of such 
financial statements or other financial documentation, there has been no material adverse change 
in the financial condition of the Recipient, nor have any assets or properties reflected on such 
financial statements or other financial documentation been sold, transferred, assigned, 
mortgaged, pledged or encumbered, except as previously disclosed in writing by Recipient and 
approved in writing by the State Water Board. 

i. The Recipient is current in its continuing disclosure obligations associated with its material debt, if 
any. 

j. The Recipient has no conflicting or material obligations, except as set forth in this paragraph.  

k. The Recipient legally possesses all real property rights necessary for the purposes of this 
Agreement, not subject to third party revocation, which rights extend at least to the Records 
Retention End Date of this Agreement, except as set forth in this paragraph. 

l. The Recipient and its principals, to the best of the Recipient’s knowledge and belief, are not 
presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or otherwise 
excluded from participation in any work overseen, directed, funded, or administered by the State 
Water Board program for which this grant funding is authorized; nor have they engaged or 
permitted the performance of services covered by this Agreement from parties that are debarred 
or suspended or otherwise excluded from or ineligible for participation in any work overseen, 
directed, funded, or administered by the State Water Board program for which this grant funding 
is authorized. 

m. The Recipient possesses all water rights necessary for this Project. 

23. Federal SRF Requirements. The Recipient acknowledges, warrants compliance with, and covenants to 
continuing compliance with the following federal terms and conditions for the Useful Life of the Project: 

a. Unless the Recipient has obtained a waiver from USEPA on file with the State Water Board or 
unless this Project is not a project for the construction, alteration, maintenance or repair of a 
public water system or treatment work, the Recipient shall not purchase “iron and steel products” 
produced outside of the United States on this Project.  Unless the Recipient has obtained a 
waiver from USEPA on file with the State Water Board or unless this Project is not a project for 
the construction, alteration, maintenance or repair of a public water system or treatment work, the 



 City of Porterville 
Project No.: 5410010-018C/ 5400655-001C 

Agreement No.: SWRCB0000000000D2002017 
Page 20 of 24 

 

 
Exhibit D 

 

Recipient hereby certifies that all “iron and steel products” used in the Project were or will be 
produced in the United States. For purposes of this section, the term "iron and steel products" 
means the following products made primarily of iron or steel: lined or unlined pipes and fittings, 
manhole covers and other municipal castings, hydrants, tanks, flanges, pipe clamps and 
restraints, valves, structural steel, reinforced precast concrete, and construction materials.  
“Steel” means an alloy that includes at least 50 percent iron, between .02 and 2 percent carbon, 
and may include other elements. 

b. The Recipient must include in full the Wage Rate Requirements (Davis-Bacon) language 
incorporated by reference in Section 2 of this Agreement in all construction contracts and 
subcontracts. 

c. The Recipient shall notify the State Water Board and the USEPA contact of public or media 
events publicizing the accomplishment of significant events related to this Project and provide the 
opportunity for attendance and participation by federal representatives with at least ten (10) 
working days’ notice. 

d. The Recipient shall comply with applicable EPA general terms and conditions found at 
http://www.epa.gov/ogd. 

e. No Recipient may receive funding under this Agreement unless it has provided its DUNS number 
to the State Water Board.    

f. [RESERVED]  

g. The Recipient represents and warrants that it and its principals are not excluded or disqualified 
from participating in this transaction as such terms are defined in Parts 180 and 1532 of Title 2 of 
the Code of Federal Regulations (2 CFR).  If the Recipient is excluded after execution of this 
Agreement, the Recipient shall notify the Division within ten (10) days and shall inform the 
Division of the Recipient’s exclusion in any request for amendment of this Agreement.  The 
Recipient shall comply with Subpart C of Part 180 of 2 CFR, as supplemented by Subpart C of 
Part 1532 of 2 CFR.  Such compliance is a condition precedent to the State Water Board’s 
performance of  its obligations under this Agreement.  When entering into a covered transaction 
as defined in Parts 180 and 1532 of 2 CFR, the Recipient shall require the other party to the 
covered transaction to comply with Subpart C of Part 180 of 2 CFR, as supplemented by Subpart 
C of Part 1532 of 2 CFR. 

h. To the extent applicable, the Recipient shall disclose to the State Water Board any potential 
conflict of interest consistent with USEPA’s Final Financial Assistance Conflict of Interest Policy 
at https://www.epa.gov/grants/epas-final-financial-assistance-conflict-interest-policy. A conflict of 
interest may result in disallowance of costs. 

i. USEPA and the State Water Board have the right to reproduce, publish, use and authorize others 
to reproduce, publish and use copyrighted works or other data developed under this assistance 
agreement.   

j. Where an invention is made with Project Funds, USEPA and the State Water Board retain the 
right to a worldwide, nonexclusive, nontransferable, irrevocable, paid-up license to practice the 
invention owned by the Recipient.  The Recipient must utilize the Interagency Edison extramural 
invention reporting system at http://iEdison.gov and shall notify the Division when an invention 
report, patent report, or utilization report is filed. 

http://www.epa.gov/ogd
https://www.epa.gov/grants/epas-final-financial-assistance-conflict-interest-policy
http://iedison.gov/


 City of Porterville 
Project No.: 5410010-018C/ 5400655-001C 

Agreement No.: SWRCB0000000000D2002017 
Page 21 of 24 

 

 
Exhibit D 

 

k. The Recipient agrees that any reports, documents, publications or other materials developed for 
public distribution supported by this Agreement shall contain the Disclosure statement set forth in 
Exhibit A.   

l. The Recipient acknowledges that it is encouraged to follow guidelines established under Section 
508 of the Rehabilitation Act, codified at 36 CFR Part 1194, with respect to enabling individuals 
with disabilities to participate in its programs supported by this Project. 

m. The Recipient, its employees, contractors and subcontractors and their employees warrants that 
it will not engage in severe forms of trafficking in persons, procure a commercial sex act during 
the term of this Agreement, or use forced labor in the performance of this Agreement.  The 
Recipient must include this provision in its contracts and subcontracts under this Agreement. The 
Recipient must inform the State Water Board immediately of any information regarding a violation 
of the foregoing.  The Recipient understands that failure to comply with this provision may subject 
the State Water Board to loss of federal funds. The Recipient agrees to compensate the State 
Water Board for any such funds lost due to its failure to comply with this condition, or the failure of 
its contractors or subcontractors to comply with this condition. The State Water Board may 
unilaterally terminate this Agreement if the Recipient that is a private entity is determined to have 
violated the foregoing.  

n. The Recipient certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that: 

i. No federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of the 
Recipient, to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee 
of any agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an 
employee of a Member of Congress in connection with the awarding of any federal 
contract, the making of any federal grant, the making of any federal loan, the entering into 
of any cooperative agreement, and the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or 
modification of any federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement.  

ii. If any funds other than federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any 
person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a 
Member of Congress in connection with this Agreement, the Recipient shall complete and 
submit Standard Form-LLL, “Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying,” in accordance with its 
instructions, and notify the State Water Board.  

iii. The Recipient shall require this certification from all parties to any contract or agreement 
that the Recipient enters into and under which the Recipient incurs costs for which it 
seeks disbursements under this Agreement.   
 

o. The Recipient must comply with the following federal non-discrimination requirements: 
 

i. Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, which prohibits discrimination based on race, 
color, and national origin, including limited English proficiency (LEP).  

ii. Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, which prohibits discrimination against 
persons with disabilities.  

iii. The Age Discrimination Act of 1975, which prohibits age discrimination.  
iv. Section 13 of the Federal Water Pollution Control Act Amendments of 1972, which 

prohibits discrimination on the basis of sex.  
v. 40 CFR Part 7, as it relates to the foregoing.   
vi. Executive Order 13798, including, to the greatest extent practicable and to the extent 

permitted by law, the requirement to respect and protect the freedom of persons 
and organizations to engage in political and religious speech 

vii. All applicable federal civil rights regulations, including statutory and national policy 
requirements (2 CFR section 200.300).  
 



 City of Porterville 
Project No.: 5410010-018C/ 5400655-001C 

Agreement No.: SWRCB0000000000D2002017 
Page 22 of 24 

 

 
Exhibit D 

 

 
p. Executive Order No. 11246.  The Recipient shall include in its contracts and subcontracts related 

to the Project the following provisions: 
 

"During the performance of this contract, the contractor agrees as follows:"(a) The contractor will 
not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, creed, color, 
or national origin. The contractor will take affirmative action to ensure that applicants are 
employed, and that employees are treated during employment, without regard to their race, 
creed, color, or national origin. Such action shall include, but not be limited to the following: 
employment, upgrading, demotion, or transfer; recruitment or recruitment advertising; layoff or 
termination; rates of pay or other forms of compensation; and selection for training, including 
apprenticeship. The contractor agrees to post in conspicuous places, available to employees and 
applicants for employment, notices to be provided by the contracting officer setting forth the 
provisions of this nondiscrimination clause. 

"(b) The contractor will, in all solicitations or advertisements for employees placed by or on behalf 
of the contractor, state that all qualified applicants will receive consideration for employment 
without regard to race, creed, color, or national origin. 

"(c) The contractor will send to each labor union or representative of workers with which he has a 
collective bargaining agreement or other contract or understanding, a notice, to be provided by 
the agency contracting officer, advising the labor union or workers' representative of the 
contractor's commitments under Section 202 of Executive Order No. 11246 of September 24, 
1965, and shall post copies of the notice in conspicuous places available to employees and 
applicants for employment. 

"(d) The contractor will comply with all provisions of Executive Order No. 11246 of Sept. 24, 1965, 
and of the rules, regulations, and relevant orders of the Secretary of Labor. 

"(e) The contractor will furnish all information and reports required by Executive Order No. 11246 
of September 24, 1965, and by the rules, regulations, and orders of the Secretary of Labor, or 
pursuant thereto, and will permit access to his books, records, and accounts by the contracting 
agency and the Secretary of Labor for purposes of investigation to ascertain compliance with 
such rules, regulations, and orders. 

"(f) In the event of the contractor's noncompliance with the nondiscrimination clauses of this 
contract or with any of such rules, regulations, or orders, this contract may be cancelled, 
terminated or suspended in whole or in part and the contractor may be declared ineligible for 
further Government contracts in accordance with procedures authorized in Executive Order No. 
11246 of Sept 24, 1965, and such other sanctions may be imposed and remedies invoked as 
provided in Executive Order No. 11246 of September 24, 1965, or by rule, regulation, or order of 
the Secretary of Labor, or as otherwise provided by law. 

"(g) The contractor will include the provisions of Paragraphs (1) through (7) in every subcontract 
or purchase order unless exempted by rules, regulations, or orders of the Secretary of Labor 
issued pursuant to Section 204 of Executive Order No. 11246 of Sept. 24, 1965, so that such 
provisions will be binding upon each subcontractor or vendor. The contractor will take such action 
with respect to any subcontract or purchase order as the contracting agency may direct as a 
means of enforcing such provisions including sanctions for noncompliance: Provided, however, 
That in the event the contractor becomes involved in, or is threatened with, litigation with a 
subcontractor or vendor as a result of such direction by the contracting agency, the contractor 
may request the United States to enter into such litigation to protect the interests of the United 
States." 



 City of Porterville 
Project No.: 5410010-018C/ 5400655-001C 

Agreement No.: SWRCB0000000000D2002017 
Page 23 of 24 

 

 
Exhibit D 

 

q. The Recipient agrees to comply with the requirements of USEPA’s Program for Utilization of 
Small, Minority and Women’s Business Enterprises as set forth in this Agreement. 
 

r. Procurement Prohibitions under Section 306 of the Clean Air Act and Section 508 of the Clean 
Water Act, including Executive Order 11738, Administration of the Clean Air Act and the Federal 
Water Pollution Control Act with Respect to Federal Contracts, Grants, or Loans; 42 USC § 7606; 
33 USC § 1368.  Except where the purpose of this Agreement is to remedy the cause of the 
violation, the Recipient may not procure goods, services, or materials from suppliers excluded 
under the federal System for Award Management:  http://www.sam.gov/ . 

 
s. Uniform Relocation and Real Property Acquisition Policies Act, Pub. L. 91-646, as amended; 42 

USC §§4601-4655.  The Recipient must comply with the Act’s implementing regulations at 49 
CFR 24.101 through 24.105. 

 
t. The Recipient agrees that if its network or information system is connected to USEPA networks to 

transfer data using systems other than the Environmental Information Exchange Network or 
USEPA’s Central Data Exchange, it will ensure that any connections are secure. 

 
u. All geospatial data created pursuant to this Agreement that is submitted to the State Water Board 

for use by USEPA or that is submitted directly to USEPA must be consistent with Federal 
Geographic Data Committee endorsed standards.  Information on these standards may be found 
at www.fgdc.gov. 

 
v. If the Recipient is a water system that serves 500 or fewer persons, the Recipient represents that 

it has considered publicly-owned wells as an alternative drinking water supply. 
 

w. The Recipient represents that it is not a corporation that has any unpaid Federal tax liability that 
has been assessed, for which all judicial and administrative remedies have been exhausted or 
have lapsed, and that is not being paid in a timely manner pursuant to an agreement with the 
authority responsible for collecting the tax liability; and it is not a corporation that was convicted of 
a felony criminal violation under a Federal law within the preceding 24 months.  

 
x. The Recipient agrees to immediately notify the Project Manager in writing about any allegation of 

research misconduct involving research activities that are supported in whole or in part with EPA 
funds under this Project, including fabrication, falsification, or plagiarism in proposing, performing, 
or reviewing research, or in reporting research results, or ordering, advising, or suggesting that 
subordinates engage in research misconduct. 

 
y. The Recipient agrees to comply with, and require all contractors and subcontractors to comply 

with, EPA’s Scientific Integrity Policy, available at https://www.epa.gov/osa/policy-epa-scientific-
integrity, when conducting, supervising, and communicating science and when using or applying 
the results of science. For purposes of this condition scientific activities include, but are not 
limited to, computer modelling, economic analysis, field sampling, laboratory experimentation, 
demonstrating new technology, statistical analysis, and writing a review article on a scientific 
issue.  

z. The Recipient shall not suppress, alter, or otherwise impede the timely release of scientific 
findings or conclusions; intimidate or coerce scientists to alter scientific data, findings, or 
professional opinions or exert non-scientific influence on scientific advisory boards; knowingly 
misrepresent, exaggerate, or downplay areas of scientific uncertainty; or otherwise violate the 
EPA’s Scientific Integrity Policy. The Recipient must refrain from acts of research misconduct, 
including publication or reporting, as described in EPA’s Policy and Procedures for Addressing 
Research Misconduct, Section 9.C, and must ensure scientific findings are generated and 

http://www.sam.gov/
http://www.fgdc.gov/
https://www.epa.gov/osa/policy-epa-scientific-integrity
https://www.epa.gov/osa/policy-epa-scientific-integrity


 City of Porterville 
Project No.: 5410010-018C/ 5400655-001C 

Agreement No.: SWRCB0000000000D2002017 
Page 24 of 24 

 

 
Exhibit D 

 

disseminated in a timely and transparent manner, including scientific research performed by 
contractors and subcontractors.  

aa. The Recipient agrees to comply with the Animal Welfare Act of 1966 (7 USC 2131-2156). 
Recipient also agrees to abide by the “U.S. Government Principles for the Utilization and Care of 
Vertebrate Animals used in Testing, Research, and Training,” available at 
http://grants.nih.gov/grants/olaw/references/phspol.htm#USGovPrinciples. 

bb. The Recipient certifies that no Project Funds will be used on:  

i. Video surveillance or telecommunications equipment produced by Huawei Technologies 
Company or ZTE Corporation (or any subsidiary or affiliate of such entities), 
telecommunications equipment produced by Hytera Communications Corporation, 
Hangzhou Hikvision Digital Technology Company, or Dahua Technology Company (or 
any subsidiary or affiliate of such entities);   

ii. Telecommunications or video surveillance services produced by such entities;  

iii. Telecommunications or video surveillance equipment or services produced or provided 
by an entity that the Secretary of Defense, in consultation with the Director of the National 
Intelligence or the Director of the Federal Bureau of Investigation, reasonably believes to 
be an entity owned or controlled by, or otherwise connected to, the government of a 
covered foreign country; or  

iv. Other telecommunications or video surveillance services or equipment in violation of 2 
CFR 200.216.  

 

http://grants.nih.gov/grants/olaw/references/phspol.htm#USGovPrinciples
https://gcc01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.ecfr.gov%2Fcgi-bin%2Ftext-idx%3FSID%3D2312b40f5181614169488e0699a25e61%26mc%3Dtrue%26node%3Dse2.1.200_1216%26rgn%3Ddiv8&data=02%7C01%7CLANCE.REESE%40WATERBOARDS.CA.GOV%7Cd6d0e2cba3814c86318a08d854c3ee92%7Cfe186a257d4941e6994105d2281d36c1%7C0%7C1%7C637352547795314432&sdata=ODbdzuHBpNzhOT%2FOXDk7%2F9EPsI5i9BITTxzRBoC7N0A%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.ecfr.gov%2Fcgi-bin%2Ftext-idx%3FSID%3D2312b40f5181614169488e0699a25e61%26mc%3Dtrue%26node%3Dse2.1.200_1216%26rgn%3Ddiv8&data=02%7C01%7CLANCE.REESE%40WATERBOARDS.CA.GOV%7Cd6d0e2cba3814c86318a08d854c3ee92%7Cfe186a257d4941e6994105d2281d36c1%7C0%7C1%7C637352547795314432&sdata=ODbdzuHBpNzhOT%2FOXDk7%2F9EPsI5i9BITTxzRBoC7N0A%3D&reserved=0


 

  Item No.  17. 

 
 
 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA – MAY 16, 2023 
   
  
SUBJECT: Public Hearing to Consider the Transition to Phase III of the City's Water 

Conservation Plan 
    
SOURCE: Public Works  
    
COMMENT: The City's Water Conservation Plan is structured in an effort to provide State-

mandated conservation results, reduce the overall residential consumption, and 
continue to provide uninterrupted services to the community without 
compromising the operation of the City's water distribution system. The City 
has been operating through the winter months in Phase IV of the City's Water 
Conservation Plan. As part of the Phase IV implementation, the City reduced 
watering days through the winter months to a one day per week watering 
schedule, based on address. If an address ends with an "odd" number, the 
watering day is Saturday; if an address ends with an "even" number, the 
watering day is Sunday. Watering is prohibited between the hours of 5 a.m. to 
10 a.m. and 5 p.m. to 10 p.m., with no watering allowed Monday, Tuesday, 
Wednesday, Thursday, or Friday. 
 
Conservation reduction guidelines presented in past Executive Orders and 
subsequent regulations adopted by the State Water Resources Control Board 
encourage conservation as a way of life. Taking into consideration the State 
Water Boards Self-Certification criteria for the City, the City Council approved 
maintaining a self-imposed conservation standard of twenty-six percent (26%) 
less than the production of 2013. The continuation of the current conservation 
goals keeps a standardized message that the City has worked to develop in 
public outreach, provides resiliency and capacity to ensure three years of supply 
under drought conditions, and meets the minimum twenty percent (20%) 
conservation standard defined in the City's Urban Water Management Plan, and 
assists the City toward meeting the requirements of the Sustainable 
Groundwater Management Act (SGMA). 
 
In response, the City has developed a Conservation Plan that has been effective 
while still allowing some flexibility throughout the community. The City's 
Conservation Plan is an Odd/Even watering schedule composed of Five Phases; 
Phase I is a Voluntary 3-Day Watering a week Schedule; Phase II, is a 
Mandatory 3-Day Watering a week Schedule; Phase III, is a Mandatory 2-Day 
Watering a week Schedule; Phase IV, is a Mandatory 1-Day Watering week 
Schedule; and Phase V, is a No Outdoor Watering schedule. 
 
Through the implementation of mandatory conservation, the City has been able 
to maintain a cumulative GPCD conservation total reduction of twenty-five 
percent (25%) from June 2015 through April 2023. In order to maintain 



 

  Item No.  17. 

conservation reductions while providing flexibility to local residents, it is the 
staff's recommendation that the seasonal changes in the temperature be 
evaluated and the need to transition from Phase IV to Phase III of the City's 
Water Conservation Plan (a Mandatory odd/even 2-day watering week 
schedule). Staff recommends Council conduct a Public Hearing to consider 
moving to Phase III of the City's Water Conservation Plan, which adds an 
additional day to the watering schedule for outdoor landscape. Phase III is a 
Mandatory odd/even 2-day watering week schedule. Odd addresses would be 
allowed to water on Tuesday and Saturday and even addresses on Wednesday 
and Sunday. The City's Water Conservation Plan applies to all water users 
within the City's service area. Given the ongoing historic drought conditions, it 
is staff's recommendation to commence with Phase III effective June 1, 2023, 
and continue this watering schedule through the summer and fall months until 
September  30, 2023. On October 1, 2023, the City would then transition back 
to Phase IV of the City's Water Conservation Plan (a Mandatory 1-day watering 
week schedule). 

    
RECOMMENDATION: That the City Council: 

1. Conduct a Public Hearing to consider the transition from Phase 
IV to Phase III of the City's Water Conservation Plan effective 
June 1, 2023; and 
2. Consider directing staff to transition from Phase III to Phase IV 
effective October 1, 2023. 

    
ATTACHMENTS: 1. Drought Response Phase III Flyer 

2. Drought Response Phase IV Flyer 
3. Monthly Production Status April 2023 
4. Monthly Production Status GPCD April 2023 
5. Standing Water Level Averages Chart 
6. Tulare Basin Precipitation Index 

  
Appropriated/Funded:  
  
Review By:  
  Department Director:  

Michael Knight, Public Works Director  
 
Final Approver: John Lollis, City Manager 

 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The City of Porterville has adopted Phase III of its Drought Response Plan.  
As part of the Phase III plan, the City has restricted watering days to two 
days per week, based on address. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Mandatory  
Odd/Even Watering 

Schedule 

 

Excessive water 

runoff prohibited 
 

 

The washing of 

sidewalks and driveways 

is prohibited 

 

Vehicles shall only be 

washed on designated 

watering days and with 

hoses equipped with a 

shut-off nozzle 

 

Ornamental water 

features are prohibited 

unless the fountain uses 

a recycling system 

 
WATERING PROHIBITED 

BETWEEN THE HOURS OF 

5:00 – 10:00 AM 

5:00 – 10:00 PM 

NO WATERING ON 
MONDAYS, THURSDAYS, 

AND FRIDAYS. 

 
 

 

 

ODD NUMBER ADDRESSES 

If your address ends with an  
“odd” number, 1, 3, 5, 7, or 9, 
your watering days are Tuesday 
and Saturday only. 
 
 

 

 

EVEN NUMBER ADDRESSES 
 
If your address ends with an 
“even” number, 0, 2, 4, 6, or 8, 
your watering days are 
Wednesday and Sunday only. 

OR 

 

 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The City of Porterville has adopted Phase IV of its Drought Response Plan.  
As part of the Phase IV plan, the City has restricted watering days to one day 
per week, based on address. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Mandatory  
Odd/Even Watering 

Schedule 

 

Excessive water 

runoff prohibited 
 

 

The washing of 

sidewalks and driveways 

is prohibited 

 

Vehicles shall only be 

washed on designated 

watering days and with 

hoses equipped with a 

shut-off nozzle 

 

Ornamental water 

features are prohibited 

unless the fountain uses 

a recycling system 

 
WATERING PROHIBITED 

BETWEEN THE HOURS OF 

5:00 – 10:00 AM 

5:00 – 10:00 PM 

NO WATERING  
MONDAY  THROUGH 

FRIDAY. 

 
 

 

ODD NUMBER ADDRESSES 

If your address ends with an  
“odd” number, 1, 3, 5, 7, or 9, 
your watering day is Saturday only. 
 
 

 

 

EVEN NUMBER ADDRESSES 
 
If your address ends with an 
“even” number, 0, 2, 4, 6, or 8, 
your watering day is Sunday only. 

OR 

 

 



0

100

200

300

400

500

600

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12

M
ill

io
n

 G
al

lo
n

s/
M

o
n

th

Monthly Production Status & Cumulative Total June 2015 Through 
April 2023 Production Comparison to 2013 & 5 Year Average

2013

2019

2020

2021

2022

2023

5 Year AVG



0.00

25.00

50.00

75.00

100.00

125.00

150.00

175.00

200.00

225.00

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12

G
al

lo
n

s
 P

e
r 

C
ap

it
a

 D
ay

Month

Monthly Production Status & Cumulative Total June 2015 Through
April 2023 Gallon Per Capita Day Comparison to 2013 & 5 Year Average

2013

2019

2020

2021

2022

2023

5 Year AVG



110
113

101

95
91

114

132

144

150

140
135

118

111

125 126

114

14,152
13,271

16,043
16,668 16,962

14,216

11,726

10,069 10,157

11,541
12,388

14,041
13,713

12,406
12,45712,629

-1,000

1,000

3,000

5,000

7,000

9,000

11,000

13,000

15,000

17,000

19,00080

90

100

110

120

130

140

150

160

2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

G
PM

St
an

di
ng

 W
at

er
 L

ev
el

Average Standing Water Level & Production Capacity

Average Standing Water Level Average Capacity GPM



Tulare Basin Precipitation: 6-Station Index, May 10, 2023

Oct 1 Nov 1 Dec 1 Jan 1 Feb 1 Mar 1 Apr 1 May 1 Jun 1 Jul 1 Aug 1 Sep 1 Oct 1
Water Year (October 1 - September 30)

0

5

1 0

1 5

2 0

2 5

3 0

3 5

4 0

4 5

5 0

5 5

6 0

6 5

7 0

  28.3
Average (1991-2020)

  10.91976-1977 Daily Precip (2nd driest)

  56.2

1982-1983 Daly Precip (2nd wettest)

  56.31968-1969 Daily Precip (wettest)

  36.8
2018-2019 Daily Precip

  18.6
2019-2020 Daily Precip

  9.9
2020-2021 Daily Precip (driest)

  17.0
2021-2022 Daily Precip

Percent of Average for this Date: 195%

 Current: 51.5 

Balch PH

Giant Forest

Ash Mt.

Springville.
Pascoes

Isabella Dam



 

  Item No.  18. 

 
 
 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA – MAY 16, 2023 
   
  
SUBJECT: Consider Resolutions of Opposition to Assembly Bill 1090 (Jones-Sawyer) and 

State Senate Bill 94 (Cortese) 
    
SOURCE: City Manager's Office  
    
COMMENT: 

During Other Matters at its meeting on April 18, 2023, the City Council 
approved Council Member Meister's request to consider draft Resolutions of 
Opposition to Assembly Bill 1090 (Jones-Sawyer) and Senate Bill 94 (Cortese) 
as a Scheduled Matter at its meeting on May 2, 2023.  After deliberation and 
discussion by the Council at its meeting on May 2nd, the item was continued to 
the Council's meeting of May 16, 2023. 

Assembly Bill 1090 (Jones-Sawyer) 
Assembly Bill 1090 (AB 1090) is an act that would authorize a county board of 
supervisors to remove a sheriff from office for cause, as defined, by a 4/5 vote, 
after the sheriff is served with a written statement of the alleged grounds for 
removal and the sheriff is provided a reasonable opportunity to be heard 
regarding an explanation or defense at a removal proceeding.  The bill would 
require provisions not be applied in a manner that interferes with the 
constitutional functions of a sheriff. 
 
Existing State law provides for the removal of public officers for willful or 
corrupt misconduct in office.  Existing State law further provides that an 
accusation in writing against any officer of a district, county, or city for willful 
or corrupt misconduct in office may be presented by the grand jury of the 
county for, or in, which the officer accused is elected or appointed.  Existing 
State law requires that the court pronounce judgment that the officer be 
removed from office upon a conviction and at the time appointed by the court. 
 
Senate Bill 94 (Cortese) 
Senate Bill 94 (SB 94) is an act that would authorize an individual sententenced 
to death or life imprisonment without the possibility of parole for a conviction 
in which one or more special circumstances were found to be true to petition for 
recall and resentencing if the offense occurred before June 5,1990, and the 
individual has served at least twenty (20) years in custody.  The bill would 
authorize the court to modify the petitioner's sentence to impose a lesser 
sentence and apply any changes in law that reduces sentences or provide for 
judicial discretion, or to vacate the petitioner's conviction and impose judgment 
on a lesser included offense, as specified.  The bill would require a court to 
consider and afford great weight to evidence offered by the petitioner to prove 
that specified mitigating circumstances are present.  The bill would provide that 



 

  Item No.  18. 

proof of the presence of one or more specified mitigating circumstances weights 
greatly in favor of dismissing a special circumstance, unless the court finds that 
petitioner is currently an unreasonable risk of danger to public safety, as 
defined. 
 
Existing State law provides for various specified special circumstances, 
including murder committed for financial gain or committed during the 
commission or attempted commission of certain felonies, which, if found true 
as specified, require a defendant found guilty of murder in the first degree to be 
sentenced to death or imprisonment for life without the possibility of parole. 
 Existing State law, added by Proposition 115 of the June 5, 1990, statewide 
primary election, prohibits a judge from striking or dismissing any special 
circumstance that is admitted by plea or found true by a jury or court, as 
specified.  Existing State law generally authorizes a court to dismiss an action 
or to strike or dismiss an enhancement in the furtherance of justice, except is 
dismissal of that enhancement is prohibited by any initiative statute. 

    
RECOMMENDATION: That the City Council consider Resolutions of Opposition to 

Assembly Bill 1090 (Jones-Sawyer) and Senate Bill 94 (Cortese). 
    
ATTACHMENTS: 1. Draft Resolution of Opposition - Assembly Bill 1090 

2. Assembly Bill No. 1090 (Jones-Sawyer) 
3. Assembly Bill No. 1090 Analysis 
4. Draft Resolution of Opposition - Senate Bill 94 
5. Senate Bill No. 94 (Cortese) 
6. Senate Bill No. 94 Analysis 

  
Appropriated/Funded:  
  
Review By:  
  Department Director:  

John Lollis, City Manager 
 
Final Approver: John Lollis, City Manager 

 
 



Page 1 of 2 

 

RESOLUTION NO.____-2023 
 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PORTERVILLE, 
IN OPPOSITION TO ASSEMBLY BILL 1090 

 
  

WHEREAS, existing State law requires the Legislature to provide for an elected county 

sheriff and provides for the duties of the sheriff; and 

 

WHEREAS, existing State law requires the county board of supervisors to supervise all 

county officers, except as provided; and 

 

WHEREAS, existing State law provides for the removal of public officers for willful or 

corrupt misconduct in office.  Existing law provides that an accusation in writing against any 

officer of a district, county, or city for willful or corrupt misconduct in office may be presented 

by the grand jury of the county for, or in, which the officer accused is elected or appointed.  

Existing law requires that the court pronounce judgement that the officer be removed from office 

upon a conviction and at the time appointed by the court. 

 

WHEREAS, Assembly Bill 1090 (AB 1090) would authorize the board of supervisors to 

remove a sheriff from office for cause, as defined as: (1) violation of a law related to the 

performance of a sheriff’s duties; (2) flagrant or repeated neglect of a sheriff’s duties; (3) 

misappropriation of public funds or properties committed by a sheriff or their direct reports in 

the course and scope of their duties; (4) willful falsification of a relevant official statement or 

document committed by a sheriff in the course and scope of their duties; and (5) obstruction of 

an investigation into the conduct of a sheriff or a sheriff’s department by a governmental agency, 

office, or commission with jurisdiction to conduct an investigation. And 

 

WHEREAS, AB 1090 would authorize the board of supervisors to remove a sheriff from 

office for cause by a 4/5 vote, after the sheriff is served with a written statement of the alleged 

grounds for removal and the sheriff is provided a reasonable opportunity to be heard regarding 

an explanation or defense at a removal proceeding.  AB 1090 would authorize the board of 

supervisors to establish procedures for a removal proceeding.  AB 1090 require that these 

provisions not be applied in a manner that interferes with the constitutional functions of a sheriff. 

 
 



Resolution No. ___-2023 

Page 2 of 2 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, it is hereby DECLARED and ORDERED, that the City Council of 
the City of Porterville does hereby oppose Assembly Bill 1090. 
 

This Resolution shall take effect from and after the date of its passage and adoption by 
this Council. 

 
PASSED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED this 2nd day of May, 2023. 
 
 
 
 
 
            

       Martha A. Flores, Mayor 
 
 

ATTEST: 
John D. Lollis, City Clerk 
 
 
 
By:        
Patrice Hildreth, Chief Deputy City Clerk 



AMENDED IN ASSEMBLY APRIL 13, 2023 

AMENDED IN ASSEMBLY APRIL 4, 2023 

california legislature—2023–24 regular session 

ASSEMBLY BILL  No. 1090 

Introduced by Assembly Member Jones-Sawyer 

February 15, 2023 

An act to add Section 25303.8 to the Government Code, relating to 
county officers. 

legislative counsel’s digest 

AB 1090, as amended, Jones-Sawyer. County officers: sheriffs. 
Existing law requires the Legislature to provide for an elected county 

sheriff and provides for the duties of the sheriff. Existing law requires 
the board of supervisors to supervise all county officers, except as 
provided. 

Existing law provides for the removal of public officers for willful 
or corrupt misconduct in office. Existing law provides that an accusation 
in writing against any officer of a district, county, or city for willful or 
corrupt misconduct in office may be presented by the grand jury of the 
county for, or in, which the officer accused is elected or appointed. 
Existing law requires that the court pronounce judgment that the officer 
be removed from office upon a conviction and at the time appointed by 
the court. 

This bill would authorize the board of supervisors to remove a sheriff 
from office for cause, as defined, by a 4⁄5  vote, after the sheriff is served 
with a written statement of the alleged grounds for removal and the 
sheriff is provided a reasonable opportunity to be heard regarding an 
explanation or defense at a removal proceeding. The bill would authorize 

  

 97   



the board of supervisors to establish procedures for a removal 
proceeding. The bill would require that these provisions not be applied 
in a manner that interferes with the constitutional functions of a sheriff. 

Vote:   majority.   Appropriation:   no.  Fiscal committee:   no.​

State-mandated local program:   no.​

The people of the State of California do enact as follows: 

 line 1 SECTION 1. Section 25303.8 is added to the Government 
 line 2 Code, to read: 
 line 3 25303.8. (a)  For purposes of this section, “for cause” means 
 line 4 all of the following: 
 line 5 (1)  Violation of a law related to the performance of a sheriff’s 
 line 6 duties. 
 line 7 (2)  Flagrant or repeated neglect of a sheriff’s duties. 
 line 8 (3)  Misappropriation of public funds or properties committed 
 line 9 by a sheriff or their direct reports in the course and scope of their 

 line 10 duties. 
 line 11 (4)  Willful falsification of a relevant official statement or 
 line 12 document committed by a sheriff in the course and scope of their 
 line 13 duties. 
 line 14 (5)  Obstruction of an investigation into the conduct of a sheriff 
 line 15 or a sheriff’s department by a governmental agency, office, or 
 line 16 commission with jurisdiction to conduct an investigation. 
 line 17 (a)  
 line 18 (b)   The board of supervisors may remove a sheriff from office 
 line 19 for cause, by a four-fifths vote, after both of the following have 
 line 20 occurred: 
 line 21 (1)  The sheriff is served with a written statement of the alleged 
 line 22 grounds for removal. 
 line 23 (2)  The sheriff is provided a reasonable opportunity to be heard 
 line 24 regarding an explanation or defense at a removal proceeding. 
 line 25 (b) 
 line 26 (c)  The board of supervisors may establish procedures for a 
 line 27 removal proceeding held pursuant to this section. 
 line 28 (c) 
 line 29 (d)  This section shall not be applied in a manner that interferes 
 line 30 with the constitutional functions of a sheriff. 

O 

97 

— 2 — AB 1090 

  



AB 1090 

 Page  1 

Date of Hearing:  April 11, 2023 

Counsel:               Liah Burnley 

 

 

ASSEMBLY COMMITTEE ON PUBLIC SAFETY 

Reginald Byron Jones-Sawyer, Sr., Chair 

 

AB 1090 (Jones-Sawyer) – As Amended  April 4, 2023 

 

As Proposed to Be Amended In Committee  

 

SUMMARY: Authorizes the board of supervisors of a county to remove a sheriff from office for 

cause. Specifically, this bill:  

 

1) Provides that the board of supervisors may remove a sheriff from office for cause, by a four-

fifths vote, after both of the following have occurred: 

 

a) The sheriff is served with a written statement of the alleged grounds for removal; and, 

 

b) The sheriff is provided a reasonable opportunity to be heard regarding an explanation or 

defense at a removal proceeding. 

 

2) Defines “cause” as: 

 

a) Violation of any law related to the performance of a sheriff’s duties; 

 

b) Flagrant or repeated neglect of a sheriff’s duties; 

 

c) Misappropriation of public funds or properties committed by a sheriff or their direct 

reports in the course and scope of their duties; 

 

d) Willful falsification of a relevant official statement or document committed by a sheriff 

in the course and scope of their duties; or, 

 

e) Obstruction of an investigation into the sheriff or a sheriff’s department. 

 

3) States that the board of supervisors may establish procedures for a removal proceeding held 

pursuant to these provisions. 

 

4) Provides that these provisions shall not be applied in a manner that interferes with the 

constitutional functions of a sheriff. 

EXISTING LAW: 

1) Requires the Legislature to provide for county powers, elected sheriffs, district attorneys, 

assessors, and the governing bodies in each county. (Cal. Const., art. XI, § 1, subd. (b).)  

 

2) Provides that the Legislature may provide for the recall of local officers, including sheriffs. 

(Cal. Const., art II, § 19.)  



AB 1090 

 Page  2 

 

3) Requires charters of charter counties to provide for the appointment, compensation, terms 

and removal of elected sheriffs. (Cal. Const., art. IX, § 4.)  

 

4) Provides that a sheriff is an officer of a county. (Gov. Code, § 24000.)  

 

5) States that the county officers to be elected by the people include the sheriff, among others. 

(Gov. Code, § 24009, subd. (a).)  

 

6) Provides that elected county officers shall hold their office until their successors are elected 

or appointed and qualified. (Gov. Code, § 24201.)  

 

7) Sets forth the duties of sheriffs. (Gov. Code, §§ 26600 et seq; Pen. Code, §§ 4000 et seq.)  

 

8) Requires each county to have a board of supervisors consisting of five members. (Gov. Code, 

§ 25000.)  

 

9) Requires each county board of supervisors to publish notices of proceedings to the public and 

requires that all meetings of a legislative body, including county board of supervisors, be 

open and public, pursuant to the Ralph M. Brown Act, as specified. (Gov. Code, §§ 25150, 

25151, & 54950 et seq.) 

 

10) Authorizes county boards of supervisors to do and perform all acts and things required by 

law to the full discharge of the duties of the legislative authority of the county government. 

(Gov. Code, § 25207.) 

 

11) Provides that the board of supervisors shall supervise the official conduct of all county 

officers, particularly insofar as the functions and duties of such county officers relate to the 

assessing, collecting, safekeeping, management, or disbursement of public funds. It shall see 

that they faithfully perform their duties. (Gov. Code, § 25303.) 

 

12) States that the board of supervisors shall not obstruct the investigative function of the sheriff. 

(Gov. Code, § 25303.) 

 

13) Allows counties to create a sheriff oversight board, comprised of civilians to assist the board 

of supervisors with its duties that relate to the sheriff. (Gov. Code, § 25303.7.)  

 
14) Allows counties to establish an office of the inspector general, appointed by the boards of 

supervisors, to assist the board of supervisors with its duties that relate to the sheriff. (Gov. 

Code, § 25303.7.) 

 
15) Allows an accusation to be brought by a grand jury for the removal of any officer of a 

county, including a sheriff, for willful or corrupt misconduct in office. The trial shall be by a 

jury, and conducted in all respects in the same manner as the trial of an indictment. Upon a 

conviction the officer shall be defendant be removed from office. (Gov. Code, §§ 3060, et 

seq.)  

 
FISCAL EFFECT:  Unknown 

 



AB 1090 

 Page  3 

COMMENTS: 

 

1) Author's Statement: According to the author, “No government official should have 

unchecked power. Regardless of the office or role, public officials take an oath to support 

and respect the rights of their constituents and represent the common good. But when a 

Sheriff abuses their power, our tools for meaningful accountability are tragically far and few. 

As such, AB 1090 ensures government accountability by authorizing a county board of 

supervisors to remove a sheriff from office for cause.” 

 

2) Removal Must Be For Cause: This bill would provide that a board of supervisors may 

remove a sheriff from office for cause, by a four-fifths vote. Consequently, this bill would 

not allow a county board of supervisors to vote to remove a sheriff at their will, for any 

reason whatsoever.  

 

This bill would define “for cause” as a violation of any law related to the performance of a 

sheriff’s duties, flagrant or repeated neglect of duties, misappropriation of public funds, 

willful falsification of a official statement or document, or, obstruction of a investigation into 

the conduct of a sheriff. This bill would further provide that authority to remove cannot be 

applied to interfere with the constitutionally designated function of a sheriff. Therefore, a 

sheriff could not be removed for performing law enforcement functions. In addition, 

Government Code section 25303 expressly bars the local governing body from obstructing 

the sheriff’s investigative functions.  

 

3) Due Process Afforded to Sheriffs: The due process right, established by the Fourteenth 

Amendment, guarantees that the government cannot take a person’s basic rights to “life, 

liberty, or property, without due process of law.” The right is designed to protect citizens 

from actions taken by state government, counties, towns, and cities. At a minimum, due 

process means that a citizen who will be affected by a government decision must be given 

advance notice and an opportunity to be heard. (Mullane v. Central Hanover Bank & Trust 

Co. (1950) 339 U.S. 306, 314.) 

 

The provisions of this bill affords sheriff’s such procedures prior to their removal. 

Specifically, a sheriff cannot be removed unless (1) the removal is for cause only; (2) there is 

a supermajority (four-fifths) vote by the county board of supervisors to remove the sheriff; 

(3) the sheriff is served with a written statement of the alleged grounds for removal; (4) the 

sheriff is provided a reasonable opportunity to be heard and present an explanation or defense 

at a removal proceeding; and, (5) the county supervisors may establish additional procedures 

for a the removal proceedings. In addition, under existing law, the public must be given 

notice, all meetings and meetings of the board of supervisors must generally be held in public 

and pursuant to the Ralph M. Brown Act. (Gov. Code, §§ 25150, 25151, & 54950 et seq.) 

 

Thus, it is likely that this bill comports with the requirements of due process in that sheriffs 

may only be removed from office after the board has provided reasonable notice, to both the 

officer and the general public, and only after the sheriff has had an opportunity to be heard.  

 



AB 1090 

 Page  4 

4) Similar Local Measures: Relying on their powers as charter counties1, Los Angeles and San 

Bernardino Counties have adopted local measures that would authorize them to remove an 

elected sheriff for cause. This bill would provide the statutory authority for all counties to 

remove their sheriff for cause. This bill would further set minimum guidelines across all 

county boards of supervisors for the sheriff’s removal. 

 

a) Los Angeles County - Measure A “Charter Amendment – Providing Authority to 

Remove an Elected Sheriff for Cause” (November 8, 2022): In the November 2022 

Elections, Los Angeles County Measure A was on the ballot and was approved by 

71.84% of the vote. (Los Angeles County Registrar-Recorder/County Clerk, LA County 

Election Results <https://results.lavote.gov/#year=2022&election=4300> [as of April 3, 

2023].) Measure A amended the Los Angeles County Charter to authorize the Los 

Angeles County Board of Supervisors to remove the sheriff from office for cause, by a 

four-fifths vote. (Ibid.)  

 

This bill is substantially similar to Measure A. 

 

b) San Bernardino County - Ordinance No. 3875 (2002):  In 2002, the San Bernardino 

County Board of Supervisors adopted Ordinance No. 3875, (involving the removal of 

county officers, including the sheriff. (San Bernardino County Code § 13.0404.) The 

ordinance provides, in part, that removal for cause may be accomplished by a four-fifths 

vote of the board: “Any County officer other than supervisor may be removed from office 

in the manner provided by law; also any such officer may be removed by a four-fifths 

vote of the Board of Supervisors, for cause, after first serving upon such officer a written 

statement of alleged grounds for such removal, and giving him a reasonable opportunity 

to be heard in the way of explanation or defense.” (Ibid.) The ordinance also clarified that 

it could “not be applied to interfere with the independent and constitutionally and 

statutorily designated investigative and prosecutorial functions of the sheriff and the 

district attorney.” (Ibid.)   

 

In response to the ordinance, the San Bernardino District Attorney sought an opinion 

from the California Attorney General, of whether a county may “grant the board of 

supervisors the authority to remove for cause by a four-fifths vote the sheriff […] upon 

due notice and opportunity to be heard.” (84 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 88 (2001).) In response, 

the Attorney General found “that the removal of county officers is a subject that may be 

contained in a county charter” and “the Constitution has not expressly provided 

otherwise. (Ibid.)  

 

The San Bernardino County Sheriff also filed a civil complaint, contending that the 

ordinance is unconstitutional. The California Court of Appeal rejected the Sheriff’s 

challenges and held that the ordinance is facially constitutional and valid. (Penrod v. 

County of San Bernardino (2005) 126 Cal.App.4th 185, 188.) The court determined that 

the ordinance is specifically authorized by the California Constitution, and is consistent 

                                                 

1 The Legislature provides for the recall of local officer in general law counties. (Cal. Const. art II, § 19.) The 

charter of charter counties provide for the “compensation, terms and removal” of the sheriff.” (Cal. Const., art. XI, § 

4.) 

https://results.lavote.gov/#year=2022&election=4300


AB 1090 

 Page  5 

with the Government Code. (Ibid.)  

 

5) Other Existing Options for Removing Sheriffs:  

 

a) Grand Jury Accusation and Trial: An accusation against any officer of a district, 

county, or city, including a sheriff, for willful or corrupt misconduct in office, may be 

presented by the grand jury of the county for, or in, which the officer accused is elected 

or appointed. (Gov. Code, §§ 3060 et seq.) These grand jury accusations are usually 

initiated by the district attorney who is statutorily authorized to present evidence of crime 

or official misconduct to the grand jury. The district attorney will have had the offense 

investigated and will have marshalled the evidence relevant thereto prior to its 

presentation to the grand jury. The grand jury then evaluates the evidence in secret 

deliberations and decides by vote whether to issue an accusation. An accusation can be 

found only with the concurrence of 12 grand jurors (8 for 11 member grand juries and 14 

for 23 member grand juries.) (Ibid.)  

 

b) Quo Warranto Removal: Quo warranto (Latin for “by what authority”) is a legal action 

most typically brought to resolve disputes concerning the right to hold public office.  

(Code Civ. Proc., §§ 803 et seq.) In California, a Quo warranto proceeding may be 

brought by the Attorney General to determine whether holders of a public officer are 

legally entitled to hold that office or exercise those powers. The court may not hear the 

action unless it is brought or authorized by the Attorney General. (Cooper v. Leslie Salt 

Co. (1969) 70 Cal.2d 627, 633.) Quo warranto tries title to public office, i.e. the right to 

hold public office; it may not be used to remove an incumbent for misconduct in office. 

(Wheeler v. Donnell (1896) 110 Cal. 655.) 

 

c) Vacancies for Reasons other than Misconduct: Death, resignation, mental or physical 

incapacity, relocating, and other such situations that may create vacancies in the office of 

an elected sheriff law. Courts have ruled that vacancies for reasons other than removal 

may be filled without any sort of hearing or proceeding. (Klose v. Superior Court in & for 

San Mateo County (1950) 96 Cal.App.2d 913, 917; People ex rel. Tracy v. Brite (1880) 

55 Cal. 79.)  

 

d) Recall by Voters: A county sheriff can be recalled by the voters under the terms set forth 

in the Election Code. Article II, section 19 of the California Constitution requires the 

Legislature to “provide for recall of local officers.”2 Accordingly, the Legislature 

established a statutory recall procedure for recalling sheriffs and other general law county 

officers. (Elec. Code, § 11000, et seq.)  

 

Nothing in this bill limits any of these existing options for the removal of a sheriff. 

However, this bill would extend to circumstances in which a board of supervisors may 

                                                 

2 General law counties possess only those powers expressly conferred upon them by the California Constitution and 

the Legislature, and therefore they cannot create their own recall or removal procedures absent statutory 

authorization. (Younger v. Board of Supervisors (1979) 93 Cal.App.3d 864, 870.) A charter county, on the other 

hand, has authority to adopt its own procedure to recall its sheriff. (Cal. Const., art. XI, § 4.) When presented with a 

county charter contains no recall procedure, the California Supreme Court held that “in such a situation the recall 

proceedings must conform to the general law” as set forth in statute. (Muehleisen v. Forward (1935) 4 Cal.2d 17, 

19.)  



AB 1090 

 Page  6 

need to act expeditiously to remove a county sheriff, rather than wait for a grand jury to 

convene or a recall election to be held.  

 

6) Argument in Support: According to Oakland Privacy, “In recent years, many county 

sheriffs have taken actions and run their departments in ways that have caused friction in the 

community and distress on elected county boards of supervisors. Prominent examples include 

Alameda County, where for a number of years the former Sheriff Gregory Ahern continued 

to voluntarily detain inmates on behalf of ICE despite Board of Supervisor resolutions and 

strong community sentiments to end the practice, and Los Angeles where former sheriff Alex 

Villanueva obstructed an investigation into an in-custody death and threatened criminal 

charges against a reporter, before walking that back. In addition, some sheriffs throughout the 

state declined to enforce public health mandates put into place by county health officers and 

supervisors. 

 

“According to current law, the remedy for such situations is an electoral one, with voters 

having the power to administer a rebuke to a current sheriff by voting for another candidate 

for the position in the next election, which can be as long as four years into the future. In the 

cases cited above, voters did exactly that by replacing Sheriff Gregory Ahern with Sheriff 

Yesenia Sanchez and replacing Sheriff Alex Villanueva with Sheriff Robert Luna. 

 

“However, such remedies are not always available to the voters, especially in the smaller 

counties of California. The majority of sheriff elections are uncontested, meaning there is 

only one candidate, and voters can only vote yes or abstain. California’s rural and small 

counties deserve an equal level of accountability to that of California’s larger counties, and it 

is far from guaranteed that in all cases, even large and urban counties will have a regular 

voter referendum on their sheriff. In Alameda County, prior to 2022, the then-incumbent 

sheriff Ahern faced no opposition for four consecutive election cycles, a period of sixteen 

years beginning in 2006. 

 

“The current accountability measures in place, apart from elections, derive from the Board of 

Supervisor’s power of the purse in setting a sheriff’s department budget. This is not an 

insignificant source of leverage, but it risks distorting the budget process to address issues of 

policy and accountability that are not primarily financial in nature. We would argue that good 

governance dictates not shoving misconduct issues into the budgetary process. 

 

“There is no doubt that is a sobering thing to allow one elected body to potentially remove an 

elected officer. Nonetheless, our State and Federal governments permit such through the 

process of impeachment - with a 2/3rds vote. AB 1090 is simply a recognition that an elected 

sheriff, unlike an elected body of more than one person, has no collegial process to address 

issues of misconduct that are addressed by a removal process on a board, council or 

commission, or by impeachment at the State and Federal levels, and that the electoral remedy 

is often not practicably available to the voters. 

 

“In essence, AB 1090 asks what is misconduct by a sheriff, and if and when it occurs, where 

is the remedy that is available in a timely and consistent manner? Under current law, there 

really isn’t one. Here in Alameda County, the former sheriff’s declaration that policy 

mandates from the Board of Supervisors and overwhelming public sentiment would not 

impact the conduct of the sheriff’s office with regard to ICE became a long-term public 

wound. It did enormous damage to the faith of the county’s voters in the sheriff’s department 



AB 1090 

 Page  7 

and in the efficacy of the Board of Supervisors. After a decade of no available remedy, the 

damage had already been done and the new sheriff has a big job to restore trust and 

relationships. 

 

“We would argue that the democratic process i.e. what the voters wanted, was delayed for an 

unforgivably long time due to the limitations of current law and held hostage to the “personal 

beliefs” of the former sheriff and the difficulty of finding candidates willing to run against a 

powerful incumbent. 

 

“Unlike sheriffs, it is a rare occasion, although not unheard of, that a county supervisor 

position is elected in an uncontested election. The voter “check and balance” is more 

consistent and AB 1090 allows for a county board of supervisors to develop a due process 

procedure that can include additional steps to protect against an ideologically-based removal 

process. We encourage making that process as robust as possible, but given the limitations in 

current law, *a* process beyond waiting for the next election should be implemented.” 

 

7) Argument in Opposition:  According to the California Statewide Law Enforcement 

Association (CSLEA), “Sheriffs, like county boards of supervisors are elected and held 

accountable by the voters. 

 

“Shifting power and accountability from the voters to the Board risks injecting politics and 

petty disagreements into the removal of a Sheriff, overriding the will of the voters. 

 

“By nullifying the will of the voters, the Board of Supervisors will become the judge, jury, 

and executioner for the Office of the Sheriff. We believe these decisions are best left to the 

voters.” 

 

8) Related Legislation: AB 797 (Weber), would require the governing body of each city and 

county to, by January 15, 2025, create an independent community-based commission on law 

enforcement officer practices.  

 

9) Prior Legislation: AB 1185 (McCarty), Chapter 342, Statutes of 2020, authorized counties 

to create a sheriff’s oversight board and an office of inspector general.  

 

REGISTERED SUPPORT / OPPOSITION: 

 

Support 

 

Black Lives Matter – Los Angeles  

Initiate Justice 

Oakland Privacy 

Secure Justice 

 

Opposition 

 

Association of Orange County Deputy Sheriffs 

California Fraternal Order of Police 

California State Sheriffs' Association 

California Statewide Law Enforcement Association 



AB 1090 

 Page  8 

Deputy Sheriffs Association of San Diego County 

Long Beach Police Officers Association 

Sacramento County Deputy Sheriffs' Association 

San Bernardino County Sheriff's Employees' Benefit Association 

 

Analysis Prepared by: Liah Burnley / PUB. S. / (916) 319-3744 



Page 1 of 2 

 

RESOLUTION NO.____-2023 
 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PORTERVILLE, 
IN OPPOSITION TO STATE SENATE BILL 94 

 
  

WHEREAS, existing State law provides for various specified special circumstances, 

including murder committed for financial gain or committed during the commission or attempted 

commission of certain felonies, which, if found true as specified, require a defendant found 

guilty of murder in the first degree to be sentenced to death or imprisonment for life without the 

possibility of parole; and 

 

WHEREAS, existing State law added by Proposition 115 of the June 5, 1990, statewide 

primary election, prohibits a judge from striking or dismissing any special circumstance that is 

admitted by plea or found true by a jury or court, as specified; and 

 

WHEREAS, existing State law generally authorizes a court to dismiss an action or to 

strike or dismiss an enhancement in the furtherance of justice, except if dismissal of that 

enhancement is prohibited by any initiative statute; and 

 

WHEREAS, Senate Bill 94 (SB 94) would authorize an individual sentenced to death or 

life imprisonment without the possibility of parole for a conviction in which one or more special 

circumstances were found to be true to petition for recall and resentencing if the offense occurred 

before June 5, 1990, and the individual has served at least twenty (20) years in custody; and 

 

WHEREAS, SB 94 would authorize the court to modify the petitioner’s sentence to 

impose a lesser sentence and apply any changes in law that reduce sentences or provide for 

judicial discretion, or to vacate the petitioner’s conviction and impose judgement on a lesser 

included offense, as specified; and 

 

WHEREAS, SB 94 would require a court to consider and afford great weight to evidence 

offered by the petitioner to prove that specified mitigating circumstances are present, and 

 

WHEREAS, SB 94 would provide that proof of the presence of one or more specified 

mitigating circumstances weighs greatly in favor of the dismissing a special circumstance, unless 

the court finds that petitioner is currently an unreasonable risk of danger to public safety, as 



Resolution No. ___-2023 

Page 2 of 2 

 

defined; and 

 

WHEREAS, SB 94 would require the court to appoint the State Public Defender or other 

qualified counsel for an indigent petitioner. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, it is hereby DECLARED and ORDERED, that the City Council of 

the City of Porterville does hereby oppose Senate Bill 94. 
 

This Resolution shall take effect from and after the date of its passage and adoption by 
this Council. 

 
PASSED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED this 2nd day of May, 2023. 
 
 
 
 
 
            

       Martha A. Flores, Mayor 
 
 

ATTEST: 
John D. Lollis, City Clerk 
 
 
 
By:        
Patrice Hildreth, Chief Deputy City Clerk 



AMENDED IN SENATE MARCH 23, 2023 

SENATE BILL  No. 94 

Introduced by Senator Cortese 
(Principal coauthor: Senator Becker)

(Coauthors: Senators Skinner and Wiener)
(Coauthors: Assembly Members Jackson and Weber)

January 18, 2023 

An act to add Section 1172.5 to the Penal Code, relating to sentencing. 

legislative counsel’s digest 

SB 94, as amended, Cortese. Recall and resentencing: special 
circumstances. 

Existing law provides for various specified special circumstances, 
including murder committed for financial gain or committed during the 
commission or attempted commission of certain felonies, which, if 
found true as specified, require a defendant found guilty of murder in 
the first degree to be sentenced to death or imprisonment for life without 
the possibility of parole. Existing law, added by Proposition 115 of the 
June 5, 1990, statewide primary election, prohibits a judge from striking 
or dismissing any special circumstance that is admitted by plea or found 
true by a jury or court, as specified. Existing law generally authorizes 
a court to dismiss an action or to strike or dismiss an enhancement in 
the furtherance of justice, except if dismissal of that enhancement is 
prohibited by any initiative statute. 

This bill would authorize an individual sentenced to death or life 
imprisonment without the possibility of parole for a conviction in which 
one or more special circumstances were found to be true to petition for 
recall and resentencing if the offense occurred before June 5, 1990, and 
the individual has served at least 20 years in custody. The bill would 

  

 98   



authorize the court to modify the petitioner’s sentence to impose a lesser 
sentence and apply any changes in law that reduce sentences or provide 
for judicial discretion, or to vacate the petitioner’s conviction and impose 
judgment on a lesser included offense, as specified. The bill would 
require a court to consider and afford great weight to evidence offered 
by the petitioner to prove that specified mitigating circumstances are 
present. The bill would provide that proof of the presence of one or 
more specified mitigating circumstances weighs greatly in favor of 
dismissing a special circumstance, unless the court finds that petitioner 
is currently an unreasonable risk of danger to public safety, as defined. 
The bill would require the court to appoint the State Public Defender 
or other qualified counsel for an indigent petitioner. 

Vote:   majority.   Appropriation:   no.  Fiscal committee:   yes.​

State-mandated local program:   no.​

The people of the State of California do enact as follows: 

 line 1 SECTION 1. The Legislature finds and declares all of the 
 line 2 following: 
 line 3 (a)  In the last 10 years, the Legislature has enacted numerous 
 line 4 reforms to require judges to consider mitigating factors in 
 line 5 sentencing, including: whether the individual to be sentenced is 
 line 6 or was a victim of intimate partner violence, sexual violence, or 
 line 7 human trafficking (AB 124 enacted in 2021); whether the 
 line 8 individual experienced childhood trauma, including abuse, neglect, 
 line 9 exploitation, or sexual violence (AB 124 enacted in 2021); whether 

 line 10 the individual was young, meaning under 26 years of age, at the 
 line 11 time of the offense (AB 124 enacted in 2021, SB 260 enacted in 
 line 12 2013, SB 261 enacted in 2015); whether the individual was a 
 line 13 veteran and the conduct was related to trauma experienced in the 
 line 14 military (AB 2098 enacted in 2014, AB 865 enacted in 2018, SB 
 line 15 1209 enacted in 2022); whether the individual suffers from 
 line 16 cognitive impairment, intellectual disability, or mental illness (AB 
 line 17 2512 enacted in 2020, SB 215 enacted in 2018); and whether there 
 line 18 was racial bias in the proceedings (AB 2542 enacted in 2021, AB 
 line 19 256 enacted in 2022). 
 line 20 (b)  In the last 10 years, the Legislature has also enacted reforms 
 line 21 recognizing that individuals are capable of redemption and 
 line 22 requiring judges, when reviewing previously imposed sentences, 
 line 23 to consider changed circumstances such as an individual’s 

98 

— 2 — SB 94 

  



 line 1 rehabilitation while in custody, that the passage of time may 
 line 2 significantly change the relevance of factors previously considered 
 line 3 in sentencing, and that other changed circumstances may mean 
 line 4 that an originally imposed sentence is no longer in the interest of 
 line 5 justice (AB 1812 enacted in 2018, AB 2942 enacted in 2018, AB 
 line 6 1540 enacted in 2021, AB 960 enacted in 2022). 
 line 7 (c)  It is necessary to correct sentences that would not be imposed 
 line 8 today because of legal reforms enacted since an individual’s 
 line 9 conviction. Judges should have the opportunity to take a second 

 line 10 look at these sentences in light of evolving standards of decency 
 line 11 and reforms that mandate the consideration of mitigating factors 
 line 12 at sentencing such as youth, childhood trauma, victimization, race, 
 line 13 military service and mental illness, and in light of changed 
 line 14 circumstances, including an individual’s rehabilitation. 
 line 15 (d)  While individuals sentenced to parole-eligible sentences 
 line 16 have an opportunity for some of these mitigating factors and 
 line 17 changed circumstances to be considered in the parole process, 
 line 18 individuals sentenced to life without parole or death do not. 
 line 19 (e)  It is the intent of the Legislature that judges be given an 
 line 20 opportunity to review sentences of life without parole or death for 
 line 21 offenses prior to before June 5, 1990, to exercise their discretion 
 line 22 in sentencing, considering mitigating factors and changed 
 line 23 circumstances as now required in sentencing. 
 line 24 SEC. 2. Section 1172.5 is added to the Penal Code, to read: 
 line 25 1172.5. (a)  An individual who has been sentenced to death or 
 line 26 life imprisonment without possibility of parole for a conviction in 
 line 27 which one or more of the special circumstances enumerated in 
 line 28 Section 190.2 has been found true, may petition the court to recall 
 line 29 the sentence and resentence to a lesser sentence if: 
 line 30 (1)  The offense occurred before June 5, 1990. 
 line 31 (2)  The individual has served at least 20 years in custody. 
 line 32 (b)  (1)  The petition shall be filed with the court that sentenced 
 line 33 the petitioner and served on the district attorney, or on the agency 
 line 34 that prosecuted the petitioner. The presiding judge shall designate 
 line 35 a judge to rule on the petition. The petition shall include all of the 
 line 36 following: 
 line 37 (A)  A declaration by the petitioner that the petitioner is eligible 
 line 38 for relief pursuant to subdivision (a). 
 line 39 (B)  The superior court case number and date of the petitioner’s 
 line 40 offense and conviction. 

98 

SB 94 — 3 — 

  



 line 1 (C)  Whether the petitioner currently has counsel and, if not, 
 line 2 whether the petitioner is indigent. 
 line 3 (2)  If any of the information required by this subdivision is 
 line 4 missing from the petition and cannot be readily ascertained by the 
 line 5 court, the court may deny the petition without prejudice to the 
 line 6 filing of another petition and advise the petitioner that the matter 
 line 7 cannot be considered without the missing information. 
 line 8 (c)  The court shall review the petition and determine if it alleges 
 line 9 the elements set forth in subdivision (a). If the subject of the 

 line 10 petition does not have counsel and is indigent, the court shall 
 line 11 appoint the State Public Defender or other qualified counsel to 
 line 12 represent the individual. If counsel is newly appointed, they may 
 line 13 file a supplementary petition within 60 days. The prosecutor may 
 line 14 file and serve a response within 60 days of service of the petition 
 line 15 or supplementary petition and the petitioner may file and serve a 
 line 16 reply within 30 days after the prosecutor response is served. These 
 line 17 deadlines shall be extended for good cause. 
 line 18 (d)  (1)  Within 60 days after the reply is filed, the court shall 
 line 19 hold a hearing to determine whether to recall the sentence and 
 line 20 resentence the petitioner. This deadline may be extended for good 
 line 21 cause. 
 line 22 (2)  The resentencing court may, in the interest of justice and 
 line 23 regardless of whether the original sentence was imposed after a 
 line 24 trial or plea agreement, do the following: 
 line 25 (A)  May modify the petitioner’s sentence to impose a lesser 
 line 26 sentence, and apply any changes in law that reduce sentences or 
 line 27 provide for judicial discretion. 
 line 28 (B)  May vacate the petitioner’s conviction and impose judgment 
 line 29 on any necessarily included lesser offense, whether or not that 
 line 30 offense was charged in the original pleading, and then resentence 
 line 31 the petitioner to a lesser sentence. 
 line 32 (3)  The parties may waive a resentencing hearing and stipulate 
 line 33 that the petitioner is eligible for recall and resentencing. 
 line 34 (4)  A petitioner who is resentenced pursuant to this section shall 
 line 35 be given credit for time served. 
 line 36 (5)  Resentencing under this subdivision shall not result in the 
 line 37 imposition of a term longer than the original sentence. 
 line 38 (6)  The court shall state on the record the reasons for its decision 
 line 39 to grant or deny recall and resentencing. 

98 

— 4 — SB 94 

  



 line 1 (e)  (1)  In considering a petition pursuant to this section, the 
 line 2 court shall consider and afford great weight to evidence offered 
 line 3 by the petitioner to prove that any of the following mitigating 
 line 4 circumstances are present: 
 line 5 (A)  The petitioner was a victim of intimate partner violence, 
 line 6 sexual violence, or human trafficking. 
 line 7 (B)  The petitioner experienced childhood trauma, including 
 line 8 abuse, neglect, exploitation, or sexual violence. 
 line 9 (C)  The petitioner is a veteran and the conduct involved in the 

 line 10 offense related to trauma experienced in the military. 
 line 11 (D)  The petitioner has been diagnosed with cognitive 
 line 12 impairment, intellectual disability, or mental illness. 
 line 13 (E)  The petitioner was a youth, as defined under subdivision 
 line 14 (b) of Section 1016.7 at the time of offense. 
 line 15 (F)  The sentence violates Section 745 (the California Racial 
 line 16 Justice Act). 
 line 17 (G)  The petitioner’s age, time served, or diminished physical 
 line 18 condition reduces the petitioner’s risk for future violence. 
 line 19 (2)  Proof of the presence of one or more of these circumstances 
 line 20 weighs greatly in favor of dismissing the special circumstance, 
 line 21 unless the court finds that the petitioner is currently an 
 line 22 unreasonable risk of danger to public safety, as defined in 
 line 23 subdivision (c) of Section 1170.18. 
 line 24 (f)  The court shall consider postconviction factors, including, 
 line 25 but not limited to, the disciplinary record and record of 
 line 26 rehabilitation of the petitioner while incarcerated, and evidence 
 line 27 that reflects that circumstances have changed since the original 
 line 28 sentencing so that the sentence originally imposed is no longer in 
 line 29 the interest of justice. 
 line 30 (g)  This section does not diminish or abrogate any rights or 
 line 31 remedies otherwise available to the subject of the petition. 
 line 32 (h)  If the judge declines to impose a reduced sentence, a 
 line 33 subsequent petition pursuant to this section may be filed if at least 
 line 34 two years have passed from the denial of the prior application. 
 line 35 (i)  The petitioner may appear remotely, and the court may 
 line 36 conduct the hearing through the use of remote technology, unless 
 line 37 counsel requests their physical presence in court and if not 
 line 38 otherwise prohibited by state law. 

O 

98 

SB 94 — 5 — 

  



SENATE COMMITTEE ON PUBLIC SAFETY 
Senator Aisha Wahab, Chair 

2023 - 2024  Regular  

Bill No: SB 94   Hearing Date:    April 11, 2023     

Author: Cortese 

Version: March 23, 2023      

Urgency: No Fiscal: Yes 

Consultant: MK 

Subject:  Recall and resentencing:  special circumstances 

HISTORY 

Source: Ella Baker Center for Human Rights 

Prior Legislation: SB 300 (Cortese) not heard Assembly floor 2021-2022  

 SB 1437 (Skinner) Chapter 105, Stats. 2018 

 SCR 48 (Skinner) Chapter 175, Stats. 2017  

SB 878 (Hayden) Failed Senate Floor 1999 

 

Support: 8th Amendment Project; A New Way of Life Reentry Project; Alliance for Boys 

and Men of Color; American Friends Service Committee; Amnesty International 

USA; Asian Pacific Islander Re-entry and Inclusion Through Support and 

Empowerment; Asian Prisoner Support Committee; Bend the Arc: Jewish Action 

California; Black Women Organized for Political Action (BWOPA); Blameless 

and Forever Free Ministries; California Attorneys for Criminal Justice; California 

Catholic Conference; California Coalition for Women Prisoners; California 

Families Against Solitary Confinement; California Immigrant Policy Center; 

California Native Vote Project; California Public Defenders Association (CPDA); 

Californians for Safety and Justice; Californians United for A Responsible 

Budget; Center for Employment Opportunities; Center on Juvenile and Criminal 

Justice; City of Oakland Mayor Sheng Thao; Communities United for Restorative 

Youth Justice (CURYJ); Community Agency for Resources, Advocacy and 

Services; Community Legal Services in East Palo Alto; Courage California; Cure 

California; Decarcerate Sacramento; Drop LWOP Coalition; Drug Policy 

Alliance; Ella Baker Center for Human Rights; Empowering Pacific Islander 

Communities (EPIC) Fiscally Sponsored by Community Partners; End Solitary 

Santa Cruz County;  FUEL - Families United to End LWOP; Fair Chance Project; 

Faith in Action East Bay; Families Against Mandatory Minimums Foundation; 

Felony Murder Elimination Project; Foundation Aussergewöhnlich Berlin; 

Friends Committee on Legislation of California; Holy Cross Lutheran Church, 

Livermore, CA; Housing and Economic Rights Advocates; Human Rights Watch; 

If/When/How: Lawyering for Reproductive Justice; Individual; Indivisible CA 

Statestrong; Indivisible Sacramento; Indivisible San Francisco; Indivisible Yolo; 

Initiate Justice; Inland Equity Partnership; Interfaith Movement for Human 

Integrity; Islamic Shura Council of Southern California; John Burton Advocates 

for Youth; Justice2jobs Coalition; La Defensa; Latinojustice Prldef; Law 

Enforcement Action Partnership; Lawyers' Committee for Civil Rights of The San 



SB 94  (Cortese )    Page 2 of 8 

 
Francisco Bay Area; Legal Services for Prisoners With Children; Long Beach 

Immigrant Rights Coalition; Milpa (motivating Individual Leadership for Public 

Advancement); National Association of Social Workers, California Chapter; 

National Center for Lesbian Rights; National Harm Reduction Coalition; North 

Bay Jobs With Justice; Peninsula Multifaith Coalition; Prosecutors Alliance 

California; Restore Oakland, INC.; Root & Rebound; Safe Return Project; San 

Francisco Public Defender; Santa Cruz Barrios Unidos INC.; Secure Justice; 

Showing Up for Racial Justice (SURJ) Bay Area; Showing Up for Racial Justice 

Santa Cruz County; Silicon Valley De-bug; Sister Warriors Freedom Coalition 

Smart Justice California; Social Change; Starting Over, INC.; Survived & 

Punished; Techequity Collaborative; The Place4grace; The Resistance 

Northridge-indivisible; The San Diego Lgbt Community Center; The 

Transformative In-prison Workgroup; Unapologetically Hers; Uncommon Law; 

Underground Grit; Underground Scholars Initiative At the University of 

California, Irvine; United Core Alliance; White People 4 Black Lives; Young 

Women's Freedom Center 

 

Opposition: California Association of Highway Patrolman; California District Attorneys 

Association; California State Sheriffs' Association; Crime Victims United of 

California; San Diegans Against Crime; San Diego County District Attorney's 

Office; San Diego Deputy District Attorneys Association 

   

PURPOSE 

The purpose of this bill is to set up a process for a person who has been sentenced to death or 

life imprisonment before June 5, 1990 can seek a recall of their sentence and be resentenced 

to a lesser sentence. 

 

Existing law defines murder as the unlawful killing of a human being, or a fetus, with malice 

aforethought.  (Penal Code, § 187(a))   

 

Existing law defines malice for this purpose as either express or implied and defines those terms.  

 It is express when there is manifested a deliberate intention unlawfully to take away the 

life of a fellow creature.  

 

 It is implied, when no considerable provocation appears, or when the circumstances 

attending the killing show an abandoned and malignant heart. (Penal Code § 188)   

 

Existing law defines first degree murder, in part, as all murder that is committed in the 

perpetration of, or attempt to perpetrate, specified felonies.  (Penal Code § 189.)   

 

Existing law, as enacted by Proposition 7, approved by the voters at the November 7, 1978, 

statewide general election, prescribes a penalty for that crime of death, imprisonment in the state 

prison for life without the possibility of parole, or imprisonment in the state prison for a term of 

25 years to life. (Penal Code § 190)   

 

Existing law provides that the penalty for a defendant who is found guilty of murder in the first 

degree is death or imprisonment in the state prison for life without the possibility of parole if one 

or more of 22 special circumstances are found to be true. (Penal Code § 190.2) 

 



SB 94  (Cortese )    Page 3 of 8 

 
This bill provides that an individual who has been sentenced to death or life imprisonment 

without possibility of parole for a conviction in which one or more special circumstance has been 

found true, may petition the court to recall the sentence and resentence to a lesser sentence if: 

1) The offense occurred before June 5, 1990. 

2) The individual has served at least 20 years in custody. 

 

This bill provides that the petition shall be filed with the court that sentenced the petitioner and 

served on the district attorney or on the agency that prosecuted the petitioner. 

 

This bill provides that the presiding judge shall designate a judge to rule on the petition. 

 

This bill provides that the petition shall include all the following: 

1) A declaration by the petitioner that the petitioner is eligible for relief. 

2) The superior court case number and date of the petitioner’s offense and conviction. 

3) Whether the petitioner currently has counsel, and if not, whether the petitioner is 

indigent. 

 

This bill provides that if any of the information required by this subdivision is missing from the 

petition and cannot be readily ascertained by the court may deny the petition without prejudice to 

the filing of another petition and advise the petitioner that matter cannot be considered without 

the missing information. 

 

This bill provides that he court shall review the petition and determine if it alleges the elements 

required. 

 

This bill provides that if the court does not have counsel and is indigent, the court shall appoint 

the State Public Defender or other qualified counsel to represent the individual. 

 

This bill provides if counsel is newly appointed, they may file a supplementary petition within 60 

days. 

 

This bill provides that the prosecutor may file and serve a response within 60 days of service of 

the petition or supplementary petition and the petitioner may file and serve a reply within 30 

days after the prosecutor response is served. 

 

This bill provides that the deadlines may be extended for good cause. 

 

This bill provides that within 60 days after the reply is filed, the courts hall hold a hearing to 

determine whether to recall the sentence and resentence the petitioner.   

 

This bill provides that the resentencing court may in the interest of justice and regardless of 

whether the original sentence was imposed after a trial or plea agreement, do the following: 

1) May modify the petitioner’s sentence to impose a lesser sentence, and apply any changes 

in law that reduce sentences or provide for judicial discretion. 

2) May vacate the petitioner’s conviction and impose judgment on a necessarily included 

lesser offense, wither or not that offense was charged in the original pleading, and then 

resentence the petitioner to a lesser sentence. 

 

This bill provides that the parties may waive a resentencing hearing and stipulate that the 

petitioner is eligible for recall and resentencing. 



SB 94  (Cortese )    Page 4 of 8 

 
 

This bill provides that a petitioner who is resentenced shall be given credit for time served. 

 

This bill provides that resentencing under this subdivision shall not result in the imposition of a 

term longer than the original sentence. 

 

This bill provides that the court shall state on the record the reasons for its decision to grant or 

deny recall and resentencing. 

 

This bill provides that in considering a petition pursuant to this section, the court shall consider 

and afford great weight to evidence offered by the petitioner to prove that nay of the following 

mitigating circumstances are present: 

1) The petitioner was the victim of intimate partner violence, sexual violence, or human 

trafficking; 

2) The petitioner experienced childhood trauma, including abuse, neglect, exploitation, or 

sexual violence. 

3) The petitioner is a veteran and the conduct involved in the offense related to trauma 

experienced in the military. 

4) The petitioner has been diagnosed with cognitive impairments, intellectual disability, or 

mental illness. 

5) The petitioner was under the age of 26 at the time of the offense. 

6) The sentence violates the California Racial Justice Act. 

7) The petitioner’s age, time served, or diminished physical condition reduces the 

petitioner’s risk for future violence. 

 

This bill provides that proof of the presence of one or more of the above circumstances weighs 

greatly in favor of dismissing the special circumstance, unless the court finds that the petitioner 

is currently an unreasonable risk of danger to public safety. 

 

This bill provides that the court shall consider postconviction factors, including, but not limited 

to, the disciplinary record and record of rehabilitation of the petitioner while incarcerated, and 

evidence that reflects that circumstances have changed since the original sentence so that the 

sentence originally imposed I no longer in the interest of justice. 

 

This bill provides that it does not diminish or abrogate any rights or remedies otherwise available 

to the subject of the petition. 

 

This bill provides that if the judge declines to impose a reduced sentence, a subsequent petition 

pursuant to this section may be filed if at least two years have passed for the denial of the prior 

application. 

 

This bill provides that the petitioner may appear remotely, and the court may conduct the hearing 

through the use of remote technology, unless counsel requests their physical presence in court 

and if not otherwise prohibited by state law. 

 

This bill contains uncodified Legislative findings and declarations. 

 

 



SB 94  (Cortese )    Page 5 of 8 

 
COMMENTS 

1.  Need for This Bill 

According to the author: 

Existing law provides that when a prosecutor charges a special circumstance 

enhancement and it is found true, a person found guilty of first degree murder with 

special circumstances shall be punished by death or LWOP.  (Pen. Code, § 190.2.)   

Prop 115, passed by the voters on June 5, 1990, removed from judges the discretion 

to dismiss a special circumstance finding after it has been found true. Judges retain 

the power to dismiss special circumstances after they have been found true for 

offenses that occurred before June 5, 1990.  

 

Penal Code section 1172.1 permits a judge, prosecutor or CDCR to recall a 

sentence for reconsideration. This code section does not permit an individual to 

petition for recall and reconsideration of a sentence. 

The majority of people serving a life without parole sentence are classified as low 

risk according to California Department of Corrections and Rehabilitation 

(CDCR)’s own California Static Risk Assessment tool - 88% of people serving life 

without parole have been assessed with the lowest risk score on that scale. 

Research also conclusively demonstrates that there is little risk for elderly 

individuals to re-offend or recidivate upon release. For individuals previously 

sentenced to life without parole who were granted a commutation and released, the 

recidivism rate is zero percent. Based on CDCR data, an analysis from the Special 

Circumstances Conviction Project of UCLA Center for the Study of 

Women, estimates that this reform might qualify 200 death penalty cases, and 600 

LWOP cases for review. 
 

2.  Proposition 115 

 

Existing law, as enacted by Proposition 115, approved by California voters on June 6, 1990, 

made a number of procedural changes to criminal law in California including changes to 

discovery and the allowance of hearsay testimony by peace officers at preliminary hearings.  It 

also added additional special circumstances to those for which the death penalty applies and 

removed from judges the discretion to dismiss a special circumstance finding after it has been 

found true. Judges retain the power to dismiss special circumstances after they have been found 

true for offenses that occurred before June 5, 1990.  

 

3.  Recall and resentence for cases before June 5, 1990. 

 

Because Judges retain the power to dismiss special circumstances after they have been found true 

for offenses that occurred before June 5, 1990, this bill sets up a process for people who were 

sentenced to death or life without the possibility of parole and the offense occurred prior to June 

5, 1990 to petition a court to recall the sentence and resentence to a lesser sentence.  The person 

must also have already served at least 20 years in custody. 

 

 

 



SB 94  (Cortese )    Page 6 of 8 

 
a. Petition Filed in sentencing court 

 

The petition is to be filed with the court that sentenced the petitioner and served on the 

district attorney. The presiding judge shall assign a judge to hear a petition, it has been over 

20 years so it is unlikely, but not impossible, that the judge who originally heard the case is 

still on the bench.  If the petition does not include required information it can be denied 

without prejudice. 

 

If the petition is denied, without prejudice, because of something lacking in the petition, 

should this only occur after an indigent defendant has been appointed counsel?  

 

b. Indigent defendants. 

 

The petition shall include a statement as to whether the petitioner has counsel or if the 

petitioner is indigent.  If the petitioner is indigent, the court shall appoint the State Public 

Defender or other qualified counsel to represent the defendant.  The newly appointed counsel 

may have 60 days to file a supplementary petition and the district attorney has 60 days to 

respond to the original or supplementary petition. 

 

c. Actions the court may take 

 

The resentencing court may, in the interest of justice do any of the following: 

 Modify the petitioner’s sentence to impose a lesser sentence, and apply any changes 

in law that reduce sentences or provide for judicial discretion. 

 Vacate the petitioner’s conviction and impose judgement on any necessarily included 

lesser offense, whether or not that offense was charged in the original pleading, and 

then resentence the petitioner to a lesser sentence. 

 

d. Considerations by the court 

 

In considering the petion, the court shall consider and afford great weight to evidence offered 

by the petitioner to prove any of the following mitigating circumstances are present 

 

 The petitioner was victim of intimate partner violence, sexual violence, or human 

trafficking. 

 The petitioner experienced childhood trauma, including abuse, neglect, exploitation, 

or sexual violence. 

 The petitioner is a veteran and conduct involved in the offense related to trauma 

experienced in the military. 

 The petitioner has been diagnosed with cognitive impairment, intellectual disability, 

or mental illness. 

 The petitioner was under the age of 26 at the time of the offense. 

 The sentence violates the California Racial Justice Act. 

 The petitioner’s age, time served, or diminished physical condition reduces the 

petitioner’s risk for future violence. 

 

The bill provides that proof of one of the above weighs greatly in favor of dismissing the 

special circumstance, unless the court finds that the petitioner is currently at risk to public 

safety. 



SB 94  (Cortese )    Page 7 of 8 

 
 

The court shall also consider postconviction factors including disciplinary record while 

incarcerated, rehabilitation of the petitioner while incarcerated, and evidence that reflects the 

circumstances have changed. 

 

e. Procedural issues 

 

This bill also sets forth a number of procedural considerations: 

 The parties may waive a resentencing hearing and stipulate that the petitioner is 

eligible. 

 The petitioner may appear remotely and the court may conduct the hearing using 

remote technology, unless counsel requests their physical presence. 

 A petitioner who is resentence shall be given credit for time served. 

 Resentencing under this section should not result in a longer sentence. 

 The court shall state on the record the reasons for its decision to grant or deny recall 

and sentencing. 

 

4.  Argument in Support 
 

Supporters of this bill note that nothing in this bill guarantees a person will be resentenced or 

leave prison, but it is consistent with some of the other recent criminal justice reforms in 

recognizing that people may change while incarcerated and may no longer pose a threat to 

society.  Specifically the Alliance for Boys and Men of Color states: 

 

There are people languishing in state prisons, that were they in court today, would 

receive a more just sentence. In the last ten years, the Legislature has enacted 

several reforms to restore judicial discretion and to allow judges to consider 

mitigating factors at sentencing, including whether the person was a victim of 

intimate partner violence or human trafficking or had experienced childhood 

trauma, exploitation or sexual abuse. 

 

Although individuals sentenced to LWOP or death have no path to parole today, 

many have exhibited decades of exemplary behavior, participated in extensive 

positive programming, have come to understand the contributing factors which led 

to their incarceration, and have devoted themselves to becoming positive members 

of society. The majority of people serving a life without parole sentence are 

classified as low risk according to California Department of Corrections and 

Rehabilitation’s own California Static Risk Assessment tool - 88% of people 

serving life without parole have been assessed with the lowest risk score on that 

scale. Research also conclusively demonstrates that there is little risk for elderly 

individuals to re-offend or recidivate upon release. For individuals previously 

sentenced to life without parole in California who were granted a commutation and 

released, the recidivism rate is zero percent. 

 

This bill does not guarantee resentencing or release. Any individual who is granted 

resentencing by a judge will then need to go before the parole board, who will 

make a determination about their suitability for release. This bill allows courts to 

consider old cases in light of changes in law, thereby applying the law more fairly. 



SB 94  (Cortese )    Page 8 of 8 

 
This will mean that individuals that deserve a second chance won’t have to die 

behind bars. For these reasons, our organization strongly supports SB 94 (Cortese). 

 

5.  Argument in Opposition 

 

The California District Attorneys oppose this bills stating: 

 

First, SB 94 subverts the will of The People of the State of California, who voted to 

prohibit the dismissal of special circumstances in 1990 via Proposition 115. Your 

bill acknowledges this fact. However, the bill then seeks to avoid this declaration 

by providing dismissal of special circumstances to sentences not covered by the 

Proposition. While this is technically legal, it is in direct conflict with the will of 

the People. Rather than govern through technicality, we suggest you bring the issue 

back to the voters to see if they agree with you, or abide by the conditions in their 

initiative–specifically a ⅔ vote in both houses. As it stands, we must oppose.  

 

Second, your bill would impose a substantial and unwarranted burden on the 

judicial system, limiting access and extending wait times for individuals in order to 

allow individuals who have committed the most egregious offenses to seek 

resentencing. This measure makes no distinction between those who have 

demonstrated some indicators of redemption or rehabilitation and those who have 

not. Instead, it would burden the state’s already overburdened judicial system and 

retraumatize the families of murder victims with resentencing hearings for 

individuals who have shown few or no signs of redemption, and who jurors did not 

believe were worthy of the opportunity for parole based on the nature of their 

crimes. 

 

 

-- END – 

 



 

  Item No.  19. 

 
 
 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA – MAY 16, 2023 
   
  
SUBJECT: Bid Results - Tule River Parkway, Phase 3 Project 
    
SOURCE: Engineering and Project Management  
    
COMMENT: On February 9, 2023, staff received three bids for the Tule River Parkway, 

Phase 3 Project. The Project consists of the construction of a Class I Bicycle 
and Pedestrian Trail between Main and Plano Streets. This phase of a multi-
phase trail system will extend 1.25 miles of existing trail to the east, thereby 
continuing the development of a system of linkages that will provide for 
alternate modes and routes of travel. The trail will include solar lighting 
fixtures, bridges, retaining walls, trail signage and markings, and other related 
appurtenances. 
 
This Project is funded by a federal Congestion Mitigation and Air Quality 
Improvement (CMAQ) grant, and a required component of that grant is the 
utilization of Disadvantaged Business Enterprises (DBEs). A project goal is set 
that must be met or the bidding contractor must demonstrate that all reasonable 
steps were taken to solicit and encourage DBE participation in the Project. On a 
project of this size, staff must evaluate each contractor's Good Faith Effort 
(GFE) package and then submit its findings to Caltrans for review. 
 
The DBE participation goal for this project was set at fifteen percent (15%). 
The only bidder that met the said goal was bidder number three, Cal Valley 
Construction, Inc., and its bid was 43.17% higher than the Engineer's Estimate 
of Probable Cost of $1,998,950. Since the apparent low bidder, MAC General 
Engineering, did not meet the DBE participation goal for this project, an 
evaluation of its GFE package was required. Staff completed its review and 
submitted its findings to Caltrans as required, and Caltrans agreed that the GFE 
submitted did not meet the full guidelines of the program. The next apparent 
low bidder, American Paving Co., did not meet the DBE participation goal for 
the project either and, as such, an evaluation of its GFE package was also 
required. Staff completed its review and submitted its findings to Caltrans as 
required, with the findings that it did meet the full guidelines of the program 
and all reasonable steps to encourage and obtain DBE participation were 
completed. 
 
All three bids received are over the Engineer's Estimate; however, deadlines for 
the grant will make it difficult to rebid this project without jeopardizing the 
funding. It is also important to note that this is the second attempt at advertising 
for bids for this Project and the bids received the second time were in-line with 
the first set of bids in regard to pricing, but the City did receive fewer bids this 
time. It is reasonable to believe that further attempts would not prove any more 



 

  Item No.  19. 

successful. 
 
Bid Results:   
Contractor Bid Amount DBE 

Participation 
GFE 
Compliant 

Percent Over 
Estimate 

MAC General 
Engineering, 
Inc 
Exeter, CA 

$2,285,014.93 0% No 14.31% 

American 
Paving Co. 
Fresno, CA 

$2,536,720 5.02% Yes 26.9% 

Cal Valley 
Construction, 
Inc 
Fresno, CA 

$2,861,850 32.098% N/A 43.17% 

 
Staff has found the second bid acceptable, as represented by American Paving 
Co. of Fresno, in the amount of $2,536,720. An additional $253,672 is 
necessary for construction contingency (10%). It is anticipated that an 
additional $253,672 is required for construction staking, construction 
management, quality control and inspection services (10%) for a total project 
cost of $3,044,064. In addition to the base project costs, the recent storms have 
caused damage to the banks of the Tule River in the area of this Project that will 
require additional funding for re-design and construction stabilization repairs so 
that this Project can be successfully completed. The Tulare County Association 
of Governments (TCAG) has authorized up to $500,000 of Measure R 
Alternative Transportation (AT) funds for this additional work. The additional 
work brings the overall project total to $3,544,064. 
 
This Project is funded by a federal Congestion Mitigation and Air Quality 
Improvement (CMAQ) grant in the amount of $1,825,000. An additional 
$124,500 is funded through a previously approved Measure R Supplemental 
Agreement. TCAG has pledged up to $500,000 additional Measure R AT funds 
for the needed repairs, leaving a shortfall of $1,091,564. Funding for the 
additional $1,091,564 is available from Local Transportation Funds (LTF) and 
would fully fund the Project. 

    
RECOMMENDATION: That the City Council consider: 

1. Award of the Tule River Parkway, Phase 3 Project to American 
Paving Co. in the amount of $2,536,720: 
2. Authorize progress payments up to one hundred percent 
(100%) of the contract amount; 
3) Authorize a contingency in the amount of $253,672; 
4) Authorize ten percent (10%) for construction staking, 
construction management, quality control and inspection services; 
5) Authorize an additional appropriation of $1,091,564 in Local 
Transportation Funds to fully fund the project. 



 

  Item No.  19. 

    
ATTACHMENTS: 1. Locator Map 
  
Appropriated/Funded:  
  
Review By:  
  Department Director:  

Javier Sanchez, Engineering & Project Management Director 
 
Final Approver: John Lollis, City Manager 

 
 



M
A

I
N

 
S

T
R

E
E

T

P
L
A

N
O

 
S

T
R

E
E

T

T

U

L

E

 
R

I
V

E

R

P

O

P

L

A

R

 

D

I

T

C

H

T
O

P
 O

F
 B

A
N

K

0

.

0

0

 

 

A

P

 

N

E

 

C

O

R

0

.

0

0

 

 

A

P

0

.

0

0

 

 

A

P

 

N

E

 

C

O

R

0

.

0

0

 

 

A

P

0

.

0

0

 

 

A

P

0

.

0

0

 

 

A

P

 

N

W

 

C

O

R

4

5

8

.

2

4

 

 

1

X

2

P

O

P

L

A

R

 

D

I

T

C

H

TU
LE

 R
IV

E
R

f
l
o

o

d

 
l
i
n

e

f
l
o

o

d

 
l
i
n

e

FALLEN

HEROES

PARK

T

O

P

 
O

F

 
B

A

N

K

T

O

P

 
O

F

 
B

A

N

K

T

O

P

 

O

F

 

B

A

N

K

FUTURE

PICNIC AREA

 PROPOSED 10'

WIDE ALIGNMENT

PROPOSED

STAGING

AREA

S
T

A
:
0

+
0

0

S

T

A

:
1

+

0

0

S
T

A
:
2
+

0
0

S
T

A
:
3
+

0
0

S

T

A

:
4
+

0
0

S

T

A

:
5
+

0
0

S
T

A
:
6
+

0
0

S
T

A
:
7
+

0
0

S
T

A
:
8
+

0
0

S
T

A
:
9
+

0
0

S
T

A
:
1
0

+
0

0

S

T

A

:

1

1

+

0

0

S
T

A
:
1
2
+

0
0

S
T

A
:
1
3
+

0
0

S

T

A

:

1

4

+

0

0

S

T

A

:
1

5

+

0

0

S
T

A
:
1
6
+

0
0

S

T

A

:

1

7

+

0

0

S
T

A
:
1
8
+

0
0

S

T

A

:
1

9

+

0

0

S

T

A

:
2

0

+

0

0

S

T

A

:
2

1

+

0

0

S

T

A

:
2

2

+

0

0

S

T

A

:
2

3

+

0

0

S
T

A
:
2
4
+

0
0

S
T

A
:
2
5
+

0
0

S
T

A
:
2
6
+

0
0

S

T

A

:

2

7

+

0

0

S

T

A

:
2

8

+

0

0

S

T

A

:
2

9

+

0

0

S

T

A

:
3

0

+

0

0

S

T

A

:

3

0

+

3

4

 12' x 100' PED /

BIKE BRIDGE

PROPOSED

RETAINING

WALLS

 EXISTING 8'

CONCRETE

WALKWAY

CONNECTION

TO EXISTING

TRAIL

 20' x 60' HEAVY

VEHICLE BRIDGE

 12' x 60' PED /

BIKE BRIDGE

FUTURE TRAIL

EXTENSION

PROPOSED

STAGING

AREA

PROPOSED

STAGING

AREA

PROPOSED

STAGING

AREA

 PROPSED TRAIL

LENGTH 3034 LF

 PROPOSED 10'

WIDE ALIGNMENT

 
3
.
1
%

 0.05%

 
1
.
5
%

 0.005%

 

1

.

5

%

 

1

.

5

%

 
1
.
5
%

 
.
0

0

5

%

 5
.3

%

 
8

.
3

%

 
4
.
1
%

 

1

.

5

%

CITY OF PORTERVILLE
ENGINEERING DIVISION

291 N. MAIN ST. PORTERVILLE, CALIFORNIA 93257  559 782-7462

N

O
R T

H

2001000

SCALE: 1"=100'

AutoCAD SHX Text_16
x

AutoCAD SHX Text_17
x

AutoCAD SHX Text_18
456.9

AutoCAD SHX Text_19
x

AutoCAD SHX Text_20
462.7

AutoCAD SHX Text_21
x

AutoCAD SHX Text_22
460.7

AutoCAD SHX Text_23
x

AutoCAD SHX Text_24
459.7

AutoCAD SHX Text_25
x

AutoCAD SHX Text_26
454.9

AutoCAD SHX Text_27
x

AutoCAD SHX Text_28
458.4

AutoCAD SHX Text_29
x

AutoCAD SHX Text_30
457.5

AutoCAD SHX Text_31
x

AutoCAD SHX Text_32
458.3

AutoCAD SHX Text_33
x

AutoCAD SHX Text_34
458.7

AutoCAD SHX Text_35
x

AutoCAD SHX Text_36
461.3

AutoCAD SHX Text_37
x

AutoCAD SHX Text_38
444.4

AutoCAD SHX Text_39
x

AutoCAD SHX Text_40
455.4

AutoCAD SHX Text_41
x

AutoCAD SHX Text_42
455.6

AutoCAD SHX Text_43
x

AutoCAD SHX Text_44
458.5

AutoCAD SHX Text_45
x

AutoCAD SHX Text_46
456.4

AutoCAD SHX Text_47
x

AutoCAD SHX Text_48
458.1

AutoCAD SHX Text_49
x

AutoCAD SHX Text_50
457.3

AutoCAD SHX Text_51
x

AutoCAD SHX Text_52
457.8

AutoCAD SHX Text_53
x

AutoCAD SHX Text_54
456.5

AutoCAD SHX Text_55
x

AutoCAD SHX Text_56
457.1

AutoCAD SHX Text_57
x

AutoCAD SHX Text_58
456.9

AutoCAD SHX Text_59
x

AutoCAD SHX Text_60
456.3

AutoCAD SHX Text_61
x

AutoCAD SHX Text_62
458.8

AutoCAD SHX Text_63
x

AutoCAD SHX Text_64
457.2

AutoCAD SHX Text_65
x

AutoCAD SHX Text_66
457.1

AutoCAD SHX Text_67
x

AutoCAD SHX Text_68
456.8

AutoCAD SHX Text_69
x

AutoCAD SHX Text_70
457.1

AutoCAD SHX Text_71
x

AutoCAD SHX Text_72
459.1

AutoCAD SHX Text_73
x

AutoCAD SHX Text_74
456.9

AutoCAD SHX Text_75
x

AutoCAD SHX Text_76
457.9

AutoCAD SHX Text_77
x

AutoCAD SHX Text_78
458.1

AutoCAD SHX Text_79
x

AutoCAD SHX Text_80
458.2

AutoCAD SHX Text_81
x

AutoCAD SHX Text_82
460.3

AutoCAD SHX Text_83
x

AutoCAD SHX Text_84
459.8

AutoCAD SHX Text_85
x

AutoCAD SHX Text_86
458.4

AutoCAD SHX Text_87
x

AutoCAD SHX Text_88
458.4

AutoCAD SHX Text_89
x

AutoCAD SHX Text_90
458.5

AutoCAD SHX Text_91
x

AutoCAD SHX Text_92
451.5

AutoCAD SHX Text_93
x

AutoCAD SHX Text_94
459.1

AutoCAD SHX Text_95
x

AutoCAD SHX Text_96
461.1

AutoCAD SHX Text_97
x

AutoCAD SHX Text_98
458.5

AutoCAD SHX Text_99
x

AutoCAD SHX Text_100
458.3

AutoCAD SHX Text_101
x

AutoCAD SHX Text_102
460.1

AutoCAD SHX Text_103
x

AutoCAD SHX Text_104
460.1

AutoCAD SHX Text_105
x

AutoCAD SHX Text_106
459.5

AutoCAD SHX Text_107
x

AutoCAD SHX Text_108
460.7

AutoCAD SHX Text_109
x

AutoCAD SHX Text_110
461.1

AutoCAD SHX Text_111
x

AutoCAD SHX Text_112
459.2

AutoCAD SHX Text_113
x

AutoCAD SHX Text_114
459.6

AutoCAD SHX Text_115
x

AutoCAD SHX Text_116
460.7

AutoCAD SHX Text_117
x

AutoCAD SHX Text_118
460.3

AutoCAD SHX Text_119
x

AutoCAD SHX Text_120
461.4

AutoCAD SHX Text_121
x

AutoCAD SHX Text_122
460.2

AutoCAD SHX Text_123
x

AutoCAD SHX Text_124
462.1

AutoCAD SHX Text_125
x

AutoCAD SHX Text_126
461.1

AutoCAD SHX Text_127
x

AutoCAD SHX Text_128
462.1

AutoCAD SHX Text_129
x

AutoCAD SHX Text_130
461.3

AutoCAD SHX Text_131
x

AutoCAD SHX Text_132
453.2

AutoCAD SHX Text_133
x

AutoCAD SHX Text_134
453.2

AutoCAD SHX Text_135
x

AutoCAD SHX Text_136
453.1

AutoCAD SHX Text_137
x

AutoCAD SHX Text_138
453.2

AutoCAD SHX Text_139
x

AutoCAD SHX Text_140
452.8

AutoCAD SHX Text_141
x

AutoCAD SHX Text_142
460.3

AutoCAD SHX Text_143
x

AutoCAD SHX Text_144
460.3

AutoCAD SHX Text_145
x

AutoCAD SHX Text_146
450.3

AutoCAD SHX Text_147
x

AutoCAD SHX Text_148
460.1

AutoCAD SHX Text_149
x

AutoCAD SHX Text_150
458.9

AutoCAD SHX Text_151
x

AutoCAD SHX Text_152
458.9

AutoCAD SHX Text_153
x

AutoCAD SHX Text_154
457.5

AutoCAD SHX Text_155
x

AutoCAD SHX Text_156
453.8

AutoCAD SHX Text_157
x

AutoCAD SHX Text_158
458.4

AutoCAD SHX Text_159
x

AutoCAD SHX Text_160
447.2

AutoCAD SHX Text_161
x

AutoCAD SHX Text_162
450.9

AutoCAD SHX Text_163
x

AutoCAD SHX Text_164
445.2

AutoCAD SHX Text_165
x

AutoCAD SHX Text_166
460.7

AutoCAD SHX Text_167
x

AutoCAD SHX Text_168
447.2

AutoCAD SHX Text_169
x

AutoCAD SHX Text_170
443.9

AutoCAD SHX Text_171
x

AutoCAD SHX Text_172
459.7

AutoCAD SHX Text_173
x

AutoCAD SHX Text_174
460.9

AutoCAD SHX Text_175
x

AutoCAD SHX Text_176
461.1

AutoCAD SHX Text_177
x

AutoCAD SHX Text_178
462.5

AutoCAD SHX Text_179
x

AutoCAD SHX Text_180
462.3

AutoCAD SHX Text_181
x

AutoCAD SHX Text_182
461.3

AutoCAD SHX Text_183
x

AutoCAD SHX Text_184
460.2

AutoCAD SHX Text_185
x

AutoCAD SHX Text_186
462.1

AutoCAD SHX Text_187
x

AutoCAD SHX Text_188
463.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_189
x

AutoCAD SHX Text_190
463.7

AutoCAD SHX Text_191
x

AutoCAD SHX Text_192
462.6

AutoCAD SHX Text_193
x

AutoCAD SHX Text_194
463.1

AutoCAD SHX Text_195
x

AutoCAD SHX Text_196
462.9

AutoCAD SHX Text_197
x

AutoCAD SHX Text_198
461.4

AutoCAD SHX Text_199
x

AutoCAD SHX Text_200
461.6

AutoCAD SHX Text_201
x

AutoCAD SHX Text_202
460.1

AutoCAD SHX Text_203
x

AutoCAD SHX Text_204
461.8

AutoCAD SHX Text_205
x

AutoCAD SHX Text_206
460.7

AutoCAD SHX Text_207
x

AutoCAD SHX Text_208
460.9

AutoCAD SHX Text_209
x

AutoCAD SHX Text_210
462.5

AutoCAD SHX Text_211
x

AutoCAD SHX Text_212
461.7

AutoCAD SHX Text_213
x

AutoCAD SHX Text_214
461.5

AutoCAD SHX Text_215
x

AutoCAD SHX Text_216
457.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_217
x

AutoCAD SHX Text_218
457.9

AutoCAD SHX Text_219
x

AutoCAD SHX Text_220
456.1

AutoCAD SHX Text_221
x

AutoCAD SHX Text_222
456.1

AutoCAD SHX Text_223
x

AutoCAD SHX Text_224
456.2

AutoCAD SHX Text_225
x

AutoCAD SHX Text_226
455.9

AutoCAD SHX Text_227
x

AutoCAD SHX Text_228
455.5

AutoCAD SHX Text_229
x

AutoCAD SHX Text_230
456.4

AutoCAD SHX Text_231
x

AutoCAD SHX Text_232
459.9

AutoCAD SHX Text_233
x

AutoCAD SHX Text_234
457.9

AutoCAD SHX Text_235
x

AutoCAD SHX Text_236
461.1

AutoCAD SHX Text_237
x

AutoCAD SHX Text_238
467.2

AutoCAD SHX Text_239
x

AutoCAD SHX Text_240
466.7

AutoCAD SHX Text_241
x

AutoCAD SHX Text_242
464.7

AutoCAD SHX Text_243
x

AutoCAD SHX Text_244
465.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_245
x

AutoCAD SHX Text_246
467.1

AutoCAD SHX Text_247
x

AutoCAD SHX Text_248
465.3

AutoCAD SHX Text_249
x

AutoCAD SHX Text_250
466.4

AutoCAD SHX Text_251
x

AutoCAD SHX Text_252
457.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_253
x

AutoCAD SHX Text_254
459.4

AutoCAD SHX Text_255
x

AutoCAD SHX Text_256
459.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_257
x

AutoCAD SHX Text_258
464.9

AutoCAD SHX Text_259
x

AutoCAD SHX Text_260
465.1

AutoCAD SHX Text_261
x

AutoCAD SHX Text_262
465.3

AutoCAD SHX Text_263
x

AutoCAD SHX Text_264
465.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_265
x

AutoCAD SHX Text_266
464.9

AutoCAD SHX Text_267
x

AutoCAD SHX Text_268
464.8

AutoCAD SHX Text_269
x

AutoCAD SHX Text_270
464.6

AutoCAD SHX Text_271
x

AutoCAD SHX Text_272
464.5

AutoCAD SHX Text_273
x

AutoCAD SHX Text_274
463.1

AutoCAD SHX Text_275
x

AutoCAD SHX Text_276
463.5

AutoCAD SHX Text_277
x

AutoCAD SHX Text_278
463.1

AutoCAD SHX Text_279
x

AutoCAD SHX Text_280
462.3

AutoCAD SHX Text_281
x

AutoCAD SHX Text_282
461.1

AutoCAD SHX Text_283
x

AutoCAD SHX Text_284
461.2

AutoCAD SHX Text_285
x

AutoCAD SHX Text_286
461.3

AutoCAD SHX Text_287
x

AutoCAD SHX Text_288
460.7

AutoCAD SHX Text_289
x

AutoCAD SHX Text_290
458.8

AutoCAD SHX Text_291
x

AutoCAD SHX Text_292
459.2

AutoCAD SHX Text_293
x

AutoCAD SHX Text_294
459.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_295
x

AutoCAD SHX Text_296
460.8

AutoCAD SHX Text_297
x

AutoCAD SHX Text_298
459.3

AutoCAD SHX Text_299
x

AutoCAD SHX Text_300
456.4

AutoCAD SHX Text_301
x

AutoCAD SHX Text_302
458.7

AutoCAD SHX Text_303
x

AutoCAD SHX Text_304
459.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_305
x

AutoCAD SHX Text_306
459.2

AutoCAD SHX Text_307
x

AutoCAD SHX Text_308
452.1

AutoCAD SHX Text_309
x

AutoCAD SHX Text_310
461.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_311
x

AutoCAD SHX Text_312
459.5

AutoCAD SHX Text_313
x

AutoCAD SHX Text_314
461.1

AutoCAD SHX Text_315
x

AutoCAD SHX Text_316
462.4

AutoCAD SHX Text_317
x

AutoCAD SHX Text_318
462.1

AutoCAD SHX Text_319
x

AutoCAD SHX Text_320
461.3

AutoCAD SHX Text_321
x

AutoCAD SHX Text_322
460.5

AutoCAD SHX Text_323
x

AutoCAD SHX Text_324
461.2

AutoCAD SHX Text_325
x

AutoCAD SHX Text_326
460.8

AutoCAD SHX Text_327
x

AutoCAD SHX Text_328
462.7

AutoCAD SHX Text_329
x

AutoCAD SHX Text_330
462.6

AutoCAD SHX Text_331
x

AutoCAD SHX Text_332
465.4

AutoCAD SHX Text_333
x

AutoCAD SHX Text_334
465.3

AutoCAD SHX Text_335
x

AutoCAD SHX Text_336
467.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_337
8-13

AutoCAD SHX Text_338
N 1904000

AutoCAD SHX Text_339
N 1903500

AutoCAD SHX Text_340
N 1903000

AutoCAD SHX Text_341
N 1904000

AutoCAD SHX Text_342
N 1903500

AutoCAD SHX Text_343
N 1903000

AutoCAD SHX Text_344
460

AutoCAD SHX Text_345
460

AutoCAD SHX Text_346
460

AutoCAD SHX Text_347
460

AutoCAD SHX Text_348
460

AutoCAD SHX Text_349
ALAMO      COURT

AutoCAD SHX Text_350
TULE COURT

AutoCAD SHX Text_351
RIO        VISTA

AutoCAD SHX Text_352
AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_353
RIO      BONITO STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_354
CAMELLIA        STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_355
SPRINGVILLE COURT

AutoCAD SHX Text_356
THIRD 

AutoCAD SHX Text_357
PLACE

AutoCAD SHX Text_358
CHASE AV.

AutoCAD SHX Text_359
CHASE

AutoCAD SHX Text_360
AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_361
GRACE      COURT

AutoCAD SHX Text_362
STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_363
ROCHE 

AutoCAD SHX Text_364
CORNELL   STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_365
MAIN     STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_366
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_367
CHECKED BY

AutoCAD SHX Text_368
DRAWN BY

AutoCAD SHX Text_369
DESIGN BY

AutoCAD SHX Text_370
PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR

AutoCAD SHX Text_371
R.C.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text_372
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_373
CITY ENGINEER

AutoCAD SHX Text_374
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_375
OF

AutoCAD SHX Text_376
SHEET

AutoCAD SHX Text_377
REVISION NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text_378
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_379
C0

AutoCAD SHX Text_380
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_381
TRAIL LAYOUT & ALIGNMENT 

AutoCAD SHX Text_382
TULE RIVER PARKWAY - PHASE III

AutoCAD SHX Text_383
PROJECT OVERVIEW 



 

  Item No.  20. 

 
 
 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA – MAY 16, 2023 
   
  
SUBJECT: Status and Review of Declaration of Local Flood Emergency 
    
SOURCE: City Manager's Office  
    
COMMENT: On March 13, 2023, Mayor Martha A. Flores in conjunction with the Acting 

City Manager Patrice Hildreth declared the existence of a local emergency 
within the City of Porterville.  Said Declaration was made pursuant to Chapter 9 
of the Porterville Municipal Code, and in response to the increasing threat to 
life and property in the city caused by a series of storm systems striking 
California and in particular the Porterville area, impacting Success Lake and 
significantly increasing flows of the Tule River.  Pursuant to the California 
Emergency Services Act (California Government Code 8558 et seq.), 
emergency declarations must be ratified by the governing body within seven 
days of being declared.  At its Special Meeting on March 17, 2023, the City 
Council acted to ratify the Declaration of Local Emergency.  The Act also 
requires that the emergency declaration be renewed every sixty (60) days to 
remain in effect, which at its meeting on May 2, 2023, the Council reviewed 
and acted to renew the emergency declaration. 
 
On March 10, 2023, due to the volume of water added to Success Lake from 
significant storm activity, Tulare County Sheriff Mike Bourdreaux issued an 
Evacuation Warning for both the north and south sides of the Tule River, and 
the Tulare County Office of Emergency Services (TCOES) established a 
Temporary Evacuation Point (TEP) and Emergency Shelter in the gymnasium 
at Porterville College. 
 
On March 15, 2023, due to the water level of Success Lake rising to the point of 
running over the spillway of the Richard L. Schafer Dam, Sheriff Boudreaux 
issued a Mandatory Evacuation Order for the residences, businesses and 
structures between Schafer Dam and Road 284, east of the city of Porterville. 
 On March 18, 2023, due to water levels dropping on the Tule River, Sheriff 
Boudreaux reduced the Mandatory Evacuation Order back to an Evacuation 
Warning. 
 
On March 15, 2023, due to rising flood waters, Sheriff Boudreaux issued a 
Mandatory Evacuation Order for the area between Olive Avenue (Avenue 152) 
to Avenue 144 and the Friant-Kern Canal and the Tule River and Westwood 
Street, west of the city of Porterville.  On March 25, 2023, Sheriff Boudreaux 
reduced the Mandatory Evacuation Order back to an Evacuation Warning. 
 
On March 15, 2023, due to rising water levels of the Tule River, City Public 
Works Department staff took extraordinary measures to protect the 



 

  Item No.  20. 

neighborhood north of River Springs Drive, avoiding potentially catastrophic 
flooding of the area. 
 
On March 16, 2023, due to the historic water levels and flows of the Tule River 
causing erosion to the river banks, Police Chief Jake Castellow issued a 
Mandatory Evacuation Order for eight residences along Rio Vista Avenue, 
providing information on the TEP and Emergency Shelter established at 
Porterville College.  City Public Works Department staff took extraordinary 
measures over the next several days to mitigate and protect the river banks from 
affecting the residences.  On March 24, 2023, Chief Castellow reduced the 
Mandatory Evacuation Order of the eight residences back to an Evacuation 
Warning. 
 
On March 19, 2023, due to continued erosion of the banks of the Tule River and 
the performance of immediate necessary mitigation efforts by Public Works 
Department personnel, Chief Castellow issued a Mandatory Evacuation Order 
for both the north and south banks of the Tule River within City limits (not 
including permanent structures with a designated address), and provided 
information on the TEP and Emergency Shelter established at Porterville 
College.  The Public Works Department continues to work diligently in shoring 
the banks of the Tule River. 
 
To accommodate upcoming ceremonies and events in the gymnasium at 
Porterville College, the TEP and Emergency Shelter at the College closed at 
noon on April 11, 2023, and thirty (30) individuals were successfully 
transitioned to the new TEP at the Porterville Army National Guard Armory.  A 
Special Meeting of the Council was scheduled for April 14, 2023, to consider a 
draft License agreement for the City's temporary use of the State facility.  The 
American Red Cross continued to provide shelter services at the TEP, but 
transitioned out on May 5, 2023.  With the authority granted to the City 
Attorney and City Manager at its meeting on April 18, 2023, the City and 
County drafted a Memorandum of Understanding in an effort to continue TEP 
shelter services until May 5, 2023, while the Mandatory Evacuation Order 
remained in place along the banks of the Tule River in city limits.  On April 14, 
2023, the County transmitted a letter to the California Governor's Office of 
Emergency Services (Cal OES), requesting continued financial support for the 
Armory TEP, which the County reported that Cal OES did not approve. 
 
Given the lack of continued financial support by Cal OES, the County notified 
the City that it would discontinue its support of the Armory TEP at noon on 
May 5, 2023, and American Red Cross would vacate the facility as well, 
leaving the City alone to determine the function of the Armory TEP after noon 
on May 5th.  The significant threat of local emergency continued to exist with 
the estimated over three hundred percent (300%) of normal snow pack in the 
Sierra Nevada mountains and the potential for a warm storm or heat wave this 
Spring to again inundate the Tule River, described as a "loaded locomotive at 
the top of the hill."  Given the forecasts of potential widespread flooding 
damage to west Tulare County and significant portions of Kings County later 
this Spring and early Summer, Red Cross representatives strongly believe they 



 

  Item No.  20. 

will be returning to the Armory TEP and other Tulare County locations (e.g. 
Porterville Developmental Center) to assist those displaced from homes due to 
flooding.  Until such time that Cal OES makes the determination that 
emergency conditions again exist in Tulare County, the Council was left to 
determine if local emergency conditions existed to continue operating the 
Armory TEP, which expenditures would not be reimbursable given the lack of 
approval by Cal OES. 
 
Given the continued mandatory evacuation order along the Tule River in city 
limits and the legal implications of the Martin v. Boise federal 9th Circuit Court 
of Appeals decision (2018), and the announced departure of the American Red 
Cross and County support at noon on May 5, 2023, City staff developed an 
operational plan for the Armory TEP, cognizant of the lack of federal and State 
reimbursement of costs.  As of April 27, 2023, eighteen (18) individuals were 
receiving shelter services at the Armory TEP, with most individuals only at the 
facility in the evening.  Given the limited daytime TEP population, and daily 
meal services provided at the nearby Porterville Welcome Center, staff 
recommended to limit the Armory TEP hours from 7:00 P.M. to 7:00 A.M. 
daily, providing temporary staffing of two individuals (including a security 
guard).  Temporary staffing had been quoted at $25 per hour, for a daily 
expense of $600 (or $18,000 per month).  At its meeting on May 2, 2023, the 
Council authorized the continued operation of the Armory TEP for a 12-hour 
operational period over the evenings, and also directed that the Armory 
restrooms and shower facilities be used by the individuals at the TEP, which 
although not ADA-compliant, are not required for non-reimbursable shelter 
activities while under a Declaration of Local Emergency.  The contract for the 
on-site mobile shower and portable restroom facilities that are ADA-compliant 
expired on May 11, 2023, which the rental cost was approximately $18,000 per 
month.  However, the City Attorney recommended maintaining a single ADA-
portable restroom at the facility.  Beginning at noon on May 5, 2023, the City 
assumed administrative and financial responsibility for the Armory, which has 
established operational hours of 8:00 P.M. to 8:00 A.M. and averaged between 
10 and 15 individuals each evening. 
 
On May 4, 2023, the City received an updated draft License agreement for the 
use of the Armory, proposing a 1-year lease for exclusive use by the City 
effective May 5, 2023, through May 4, 2024.  The draft agreement proposes no 
fee for the use of the facility, but that the City assume responsibility for the 
facility's utilities.  On Monday, May 8th, the last remaining Army personnel left 
the facility, with the City now having complete exclusive use of the facility. 
 
On March 31, 2023, Governor Newsom issued Executive Order N-6-23 to 
support Tulare Lake Basin flood response, which streamlines State preparation, 
response and recovery actions and supports local flood response efforts and 
assist in preparing communities for the impacts of snowmelt runoff in the 
months ahead. 
 
On April 3, 2023, President Biden granted a Major Disaster Declaration for the 
State of California, triggering the release of Federal funds to help individuals 



 

  Item No.  20. 

and communities recover from Severe Winter Storms, Straight-line Winds, 
Flooding, Landslides and Mudslides that occurred February 21, 2023, and 
continuing.  Monterey and Tulare counties were designated in the Major 
Disaster Declaration for both Individual and Public Assistance, as well as 
Hazard Mitigation. 
 
At its meeting on April 4, 2023, the Council approved Resolution No. 15-2023, 
which authorized the appropriation of funds from the Catastrophic/Emergency 
Reserve Fund for the costs associated with the response to the local emergency 
including personnel, equipment, services and other necessary expenditures.  At 
its meeting on April 18, 2023, the Council approved two emergency 
expenditures that exceeded $5,000 in their acquisition, which included 
additional Water Rescue Equipment for the Fire Department ($6,417.70) and 
the 30-day rental of two mobile shower/restroom units ($13,151) for the 
Armory TEP due to the facility's restrooms and showers not being compliant 
with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA).  At its meeting on May 2, 
2023, the Council approved two additional emergency expenditures that 
exceeded $5,000 in their acquisition, which included a trailer-mounted 6" 
dewatering and sewage pump ($77,396.67), and local trucking services of 
riprap material ($5,436.00), both for the Public Works Department. 

    
RECOMMENDATION: That the City Council:  

1. Receive the report of status and review of the Declaration of 
Local Emergency and determine the need exists to continue said 
Declaration; and 
2. Consider approval of the draft License to Use State Property 
Agreement with the California Military Department. 

    
ATTACHMENTS: 1. Declaration of Local Emergency - March 13, 2023 

2. Resolution No. 11-2023 
3. Rio Vista Avenue Mandatory Evacuation Order - March 16, 

2023 
4. Tule River Banks Mandatory Evacuation Order - March 19, 

2023 
5. Governor Newsom Executive Order N-6-23 
6. Federal Disaster Declaration Fact Sheet - April 3, 2023 
7. City and County Memorandum of Understanding for 

Shelter Support 
8. County of Tulare CalOES Shelter Support Request Letter - 

April 14, 2023 
9. Draft License to Use State Military Property 
10. Resolution No. 15-2023 
11. Rescue Source & Rescue 3 Invoice: Water Rescue 

Equipment 
12. Royal Restrooms Invoice: Mobile Shower-Restroom Units 
13. Rain for Rent Pump Invoice 
14. Mike Clark Trucking Invoice 
15. Municipal Code Chapter 9 - Civil Defense and Disaster 



 

  Item No.  20. 

16. California Government Code 8558 
  
Appropriated/Funded:  
  
Review By:  
  Department Director:  

John Lollis, City Manager 
 
Final Approver: John Lollis, City Manager 

 
 











Police Department 
350 North "D" Street 

Porterville, CA 93257 

(559) 782-7400/FAX (559) 784-1070

www.PortervillePolice.com

Porterville Police Department Mission Statement 

Jake Castellow 
Chief of Police 

The members of the Porterville Police Department are committed to the safety and security of the community 
while providing quality service with excellence, honesty and integrity. 



Police Department 
350 North "D" Street 

Porterville, CA 93257 

(559) 782-7400/FAX (559) 784-1070

www.PortervillePolice.com

Porterville Police Department Mission Statement 

Jake Castellow 
Chief of Police 

The members of the Porterville Police Department are committed to the safety and security of the community 
while providing quality service with excellence, honesty and integrity. 



 

E X E C U T I V E D E P A R T M E N T 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

 

 

 

EXECUTIVE ORDER N-6-23 

 

WHEREAS on March 1, 2023, March 8, 2023, March 12, 2023, March 14, 

2023, and March 28, 2023, I proclaimed a State of Emergency to exist in 47 

counties, cumulatively, as a result of a series of ongoing winter storms that 

initially struck California beginning in late February and continue to significantly 

impact the counties identified in my Proclamations; and 

 

WHEREAS the State has experienced over a dozen atmospheric rivers 

since December 2022, resulting in compounding and cumulative impacts across 

California, including what are expected to be record amounts of snow in the 

Sierra Nevada, in particular in the southern Sierra, and current and forecasted 

precipitation are expected to add to historic snowpack levels already 

composed of several million acre-feet of snow water content; and 

  

WHEREAS reservoirs into which the Sierra snowpack runoff would flow are 

already impacted by runoff, which is expected to greatly exceed available 

storage capacity in the reservoirs in and around the Tulare Lake Basin and the 

San Joaquin River Basin, and much of the ground in the area has reached 

saturation due to the series of ongoing winter storms; and  

 

WHEREAS the Tulare Lake Basin is the terminal point for the Kings, Kaweah, 

Tule, and Kern Rivers, and several smaller streams, meaning that water from 

additional expected rains and Sierra snowpack runoff that cannot be stored in 

reservoirs or absorbed into the ground will flow into the basin; and 

  

WHEREAS recent storms have already caused flooding in the Tulare Lake 

Basin, leading to emergency rescues and evacuation orders in Allensworth, 

Alpaugh, and other communities in Tulare and Kings Counties, and leading to 

dozens of levee breaks and local agencies directing strategic cuts to canals 

and levees to prevent further flooding of communities; and  

  

WHEREAS runoff from the snowpack caused by the winter storms could 

result in flood conditions in the Tulare Lake Basin resembling those last 

experienced in the historic floods of 1969 and 1983, following historic snowpacks 

in those years; and 

  

WHEREAS local flood control districts and other local governments 

generally have flood control responsibility in the Tulare Lake Basin, but state 

agencies such as the California Department of Forestry and Fire Protection (CAL 

FIRE), the California Department of Water Resources, and the Governor’s Office 

of Emergency Services are actively engaged in supporting this local effort, and 

state agencies will continue to provide technical advice and other resources 

and support as needed, with a particular priority on protecting the lives and 

health of local communities; and 

 

WHEREAS stretches of the San Joaquin River have been or are at flood 

stage this spring, river stages are expected to stay high throughout the spring as 

snowpack melts, and multiple levee repairs are underway on the lower San 

Joaquin River; and  



 

WHEREAS the Tulare Lake Basin is hydrologically connected to the San 

Joaquin River Basin and that connection has the potential to exacerbate the 

flood risk in the San Joaquin River Basin, and so further emergency response 

efforts may become necessary in the San Joaquin River Basin as well; and 

 

WHEREAS heavy accumulation of snowfall on the roof of Bear Valley 

Elementary School, located in Alpine County, currently renders instructional 

space unsafe for use; and 

 

WHEREAS frequent flooding and flood evacuation orders have resulted in 

school closures and low student attendance in Pajaro Middle School, Hall District 

Elementary School and Ohlone Elementary, located in Pajaro Valley Unified 

School District in Santa Cruz County; and 

 

WHEREAS it is critical that displaced students are back in school facilities as 

quickly as possible to ensure continuity in education; and 

 

WHEREAS the State of California and local governments, in collaboration 

with the Federal government, continue sustained efforts to respond to and 

mitigate the effects of these storms; and 

 

WHEREAS on March 9, 2023, I requested a Presidential Emergency 

Declaration related to these late winter storms, which was expeditiously 

approved by President Joseph R. Biden, Jr.; and 

 

WHEREAS on March 15, 2023, I requested the addition of 9 counties to the 

existing Presidential Emergency Declaration related to these late winter storms, 

which was expeditiously approved by the President; and 

 

WHEREAS on March 28, 2023, I also requested the President issue a Major 

Disaster Declaration related to these late winter storms for counties that met the 

validated damage threshold; and 

 

WHEREAS under the provisions of Government Code section 8571, I find 

that strict compliance with various statutes and regulations specified in this order 

would prevent, hinder, or delay the mitigation of the effects of these ongoing 

winter storms. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, I, GAVIN NEWSOM, Governor of the State of California, 

in accordance with the authority vested in me by the State Constitution and 

statutes, and in particular, Government Code sections 8567, 8571, and 8627, do 

hereby issue the following Order to become effective immediately: 

 

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED THAT:  

 

1. All provisions contained in the above-referenced Proclamations of a 

State of Emergency shall remain in full force and effect. 

 

2. To protect health, safety, and the environment, and to reduce the risks 

of local catastrophic flooding in the Tulare Lake Basin, Chapter 6 

(commencing with section 1600) of Division 2 of the Fish and Game 

Code, and regulations adopted pursuant to that Chapter, are 



suspended for activities that meet all of the requirements in Paragraph 

3. 

 

3. The suspension created by Paragraph 2 shall apply to floodwater 

diversion, debris removal, and levee repair and breech in the Tulare 

Lake Basin, on the condition that the actions cease when the flood 

conditions have abated to the point there is no longer flooding outside 

of defined streambeds and levees. Additionally, the suspension 

created by Paragraph 2 shall apply to floodwater diversion only if all of 

the following additional conditions are met: 

 

a. The diversion of floodwater from the Tulare Lake Basin or rivers or 

streams flooding the Tulare Lake Basin must occur between 

March 31, 2023, and August 1, 2023, for flood management 

purposes.  

 

b. For diversions directly from rivers or streams, a local or regional 

flood control agency, city, or county has given notice via its 

internet website, electronic distribution list, emergency 

notification service, or another means of public notice that flows 

downstream of the point of diversion are at imminent risk of 

flooding and inundation of land, roads, or structures. 

 

c. For diversion of floodwaters in the Tulare Lake Basin (that is, 

waters no longer contained within a defined streambed or 

levee), a local or regional flood control agency, city, or county 

has given notice via its internet website, electronic distribution 

list, emergency notification service, or another means of public 

notice that areas from which the floodwaters are diverted are 

either at imminent risk of flooding or already flooded, with 

potential or existing inundation of land, roads, or structures. 

 

d. Any water diverted is not diverted to and will not be applied to 

any area that has not been in active irrigated agricultural 

cultivation within the past three years, including grazing lands, 

annual grasslands, and natural habitats. This limitation does not 

apply to facilities already constructed for the purposes of 

groundwater recharge or managed wetlands. 

 

4. In addition to the mandatory conditions set forth in Paragraph 3, any 

person conducting planned levee breaches or controlled inundation 

to prevent further catastrophic flooding pursuant to the suspension 

created by Paragraph 2 should take care, wherever feasible, to 

protect above-ground infrastructure and drinking water and 

wastewater infrastructure such as drinking water well field sites, 

wastewater discharge ponds, and other water resources that are 

necessary for the protection of human health and the recovery of 

impacted communities. 

 

5. For purposes of conducting emergency flood preparation and 

response activities, for any (a) actions taken by state agencies, (b) 

actions taken by a local agency where the Secretary of the Natural 

Resources Agency concurs that local action is required, and (c) 

permits necessary to carry out actions under (a) and (b), Public 



Resources Code, Division 13 (commencing with Section 21000) and 

regulations adopted pursuant to that Division, are suspended to the 

extent necessary to address flood impacts in the Tulare Lake Basin. 

 

6. To support adequate state staffing for all state agencies and 

departments with an assigned response and/or recovery role related 

to flooding in the Tulare Lake Basin, consistent with applicable federal 

law, work hour limitations for retired annuitants, permanent and 

intermittent personnel, and state management and senior supervisors 

are suspended. Furthermore, reinstatement and work hour limitations in 

Government Code sections 21220, 21224(a), and 7522.56(b), (d), (f), 

and (g), and the time limitations in Government Code section 19888.1 

and California Code of Regulations, title 2, sections 300-303 are 

suspended. All other restrictions must be adhered to for retired 

annuitants. The Director of the California Department of Human 

Resources must be notified of any individual employed in state 

government pursuant to these suspensions. The suspension of statutes 

identified in this Paragraph shall also apply to local governments, as 

applicable, to ensure adequate staffing to appropriately respond to 

the flooding in the Tulare Lake Basin. Local governmental agencies 

shall notify the California Public Employees' Retirement System of any 

individual employed by an agency pursuant to this Paragraph. 

 

7. The limitation for the period of employment for State Personnel Board 

emergency appointments, as provided in Government Code section 

19888.1, is suspended for positions required for emergency response 

and/or recovery operations related to flooding in the Tulare Lake Basin. 

The requirements and period of employment for such appointments 

will be determined by the Office of Emergency Services but shall not 

extend beyond the termination date of the State of Emergency. 

    

8. To the extent the Alpine County Office of Education and Alpine 

County Unified School District are required to use temporary facilities 

such as the Alpine County Public Library due to extraordinary 

snowpack on the roof of Bear Valley Elementary School, rendering 

instructional space unsafe, the requirements of Education Code 

sections 17280, et seq., 17365, et seq., and Government Code sections 

4453 and 14963 are suspended with respect to those temporary 

facilities. The requirements of the California Building Code (codified in 

Title 24 of the California Code of Regulations), as adopted and 

enforced by the local building and fire agencies with jurisdiction over 

the area, shall apply to these temporary facilities. 

 

9. To the extent the Alpine County Office of Education and Alpine 

County Unified School District are required to temporarily use buildings, 

as defined in the California Building Code (California Code of 

Regulations, Title 24, Part 2, Chapter 2, section 202), such as the Alpine 

County Public Library due to extraordinary snowpack on the roof of the 

Bear Valley Elementary School, rendering instructional space unsafe, 

local planning and zoning regulations shall be suspended to allow 

immediate occupancy of such buildings for use as public school 

facilities. In addition, the requirements of the California Building Code, 

as adopted and enforced by the local building and fire agencies with 

jurisdiction over the area, shall apply, except that the requirements 



relating to Change of Use or Occupancy Classification in the California 

Building Code (California Code of Regulations, Title 24, Part 2, Chapter 

1, section 111) shall not trigger immediate code upgrades, and a 

Certificate of Occupancy shall not be withheld for such immediate 

and temporary use of the facilities as a public school, as long as such 

facilities met building code requirements at the time of their 

construction, are accessible to individuals with disabilities, and are 

judged safe for use by the local building official. 

 

10. Education Code section 60641(a) requiring that all pupils be 

administered academic assessments in mathematics, English language 

arts, and science, as provided for in Education Code section 60640, is 

suspended for the 2022-2023 school year for Pajaro Middle School, Hall 

District Elementary School and Ohlone Elementary School of the Pajaro 

Valley Unified School District, if a federal waiver is approved by the 

United States Department of Education. 

 

I FURTHER DIRECT that as soon as hereafter possible, this Order be filed in 

the Office of the Secretary of State and that widespread publicity and notice 

be given of this Order. 

 

This Order is not intended to, and does not, create any rights or benefits, 

substantive or procedural, enforceable at law or in equity, against the State of 

California, its agencies, departments, entities, officers, employees, or any other 

person. 

 

      IN WITNESS WHEREOF I have    

      hereunto set my hand and caused   

      the Great Seal of the State of    

      California to be affixed this 31st day   

      of March 2023. 

      

 

 

 

________________________________  

 GAVIN NEWSOM 

Governor of California 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

 

________________________________ 

SHIRLEY N. WEBER, Ph.D. 

Secretary of State 

 

 

       































Matter No. 2023359



Office of Emergency Services 
 

5957 South Mooney Boulevard, Visalia, California 93277 

(559) 624-7495 Telephone          (559) 737-4692 Facsimile 

April 14, 2023 
 
Ms. Nancy Ward 
Director, Governor’s Office of Emergency Services 
3650 Schriever Avenue 
Mather, CA  95655 
 
Dear Director Ward, 
 

Tulare County appreciates the Office of Emergency Services’ tireless work to support 
the response to and recovery from DR-4699 in our County and the surrounding region. 
Specifically, your negotiation of an ongoing incident period and the expeditious approval of 
individual assistance programs have been particularly valuable to the affected communities as 
we continue to recover from storm damages, repair distressed and weakened waterways, and 
prepare for the impending historic snowmelt runoff.   

 
As current snow moisture content in local watersheds is estimated at over 300% of the 

historical average, total inflows to local reservoirs through April and July are expected to 
exceed three times the reservoir capacity. Local reservoir and waterway operators continue to 
aggressively release water at or near full capacity to make space for the anticipated inflows 
and prevent a return to spillway flows, while balancing needs of downstream operators to 
conduct emergency repairs. As a result, a number of homes, agricultural properties, and public 
spaces remain inundated with floodwater, and more homes may be affected because of the 
new snowmelt conditions. Specifically, we anticipate similar or worse conditions as a result of 
the snowmelt. 
 

Tulare County is concerned that current sheltering for individuals affected by inundation 
and/or evacuation orders, including previously displaced individuals who remain under an 
evacuation order, may be limited in duration, especially during the current intervening period 
between storm and snowmelt-induced flooding incidents within the disaster.  

 
Tulare County has entered into an agreement with the City of Porterville to maintain the 

last remaining emergency evacuation shelter site in the County. The California Department of 
Social Services and Volunteer Emergency Services Team have pledged support to provide 
staff and services for only two weeks at this shelter. Forty Tulare County residents who have 
been displaced due to flood activities are staying at this site. Because the support from CDSS 
and VEST is limited, the County is concerned that it may not be able to continually fund and 
staff the ongoing shelter projects. Our concern is the ongoing financial and logistical burden to 
the County and the incorporated cities therein. 
 

As we are sure that you are aware, emergency protective measures, flood control 
activities, and damage assessments are being conducted because of the flood conditions in 
Tulare County. These efforts go hand-in-hand with ensuring that County residents are safe, 



Office of Emergency Services 
 

5957 South Mooney Boulevard, Visalia, California 93277 

(559) 624-7495 Telephone          (559) 737-4692 Facsimile 

fed, and warm. The State’s cooperation in keeping funding and support from the Department of 
Social Services and VEST beyond the initial two weeks available for emergency sheltering of 
Tulare County Residents is vital. Your support in ensuring ongoing funding and logistical 
support for these critical emergency protective measures is greatly appreciated. 
  
 
Sincerely, 
 

 
Andrew Lockman 
Office of Emergency Services Manager 



 
LICENSE NUMBER 1221 

LICENSE TO USE STATE MILITARY PROPERTY 

BETWEEN 

CALIFORNIA MILITARY DEPARTMENT 

AND 

The City of Porterville 

FOR 

USE OF READINESS CENTER IMPROVEMENTS AND GROUNDS 

 
This AGREEMENT, dated for reference the 10th day of April 2023, by and between the 
California Military Department (CMD), hereinafter called STATE, and the City of 
Porterville, 291 North Main Street, Porterville, CA 93257, hereinafter called LICENSEE, 
without distinction as to number or gender, and effective upon execution by STATE.  
STATE and LICENSEE are sometimes referred to individually as a “party” or collectively 
as the “parties”. 

RECITALS 

WHEREAS, the STATE has under its jurisdiction, certain real property known as the 
Porterville armory, located at 29 N. Plano St. Porterville, CA 93257, 
hereinafter called PREMISES, identified in Exhibit "B", consisting of one 
(1) page and attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference.; 
and, 

WHEREAS, it is essential that STATE have a secure facility and surrounding grounds; 
and, 

WHEREAS, PREMISES may be made available to meet the needs of the local civil 
authority when not required to meet immediate operational requirements; 

NOW THEREFORE, STATE and LICENSEE agree as follows: 

WITNESSETH 
 

I. GENERAL PROVISIONS 

 
1. AGREEMENT is for non-exclusive weekday or weekend use throughout the 

license term. 

2. Upon declaration of emergency by the STATE or federal government, STATE 
reserves the right to reoccupy PREMISES, including all parking areas, with 
twenty-four (24) hours written or electronic (voice or email) notice to LICENSEE 
at the notification address/number below in Section III; “Notification”. 



 

Page 2 of 8 
 

3. LICENSEE shall comply with all applicable statutes, laws, ordinances and rules or 
regulations adopted by the Federal, State or any City, City and County, County or 
other body politic pertaining to use of said premises or any provisions of the 
License. 

4. LICENSEE shall comply with such reasonable rules and regulations as may be 
prescribed by STATE for the reasonable use and occupation of State Facilities. 

5. LICENSEE understands and agrees the California Legislature may impose 
additional restrictions, limitations or conditions affecting AGREEMENT provisions 
or terms; however, any such changes become effective no sooner than 30 days 
after the legislature has acted. 

6. This agreement shall not be assigned or sublet or otherwise encumbered, in whole 
or in part, without STATE’S prior written consent. 

7. STATE infrastructure shall supply PREMISES with utilities, but LICENSEE will 
transfer utility accounts into its name for payment: electric, sewer, water, refuse 
collection. 

8. LICENSEE shall have use of the offices, storage areas, drill floor, latrines, 
showers, parking areas for placement of storage containers (if required), and 
kitchen counters solely for food preparation or distribution (no oven or stove top 
use).  All food will be stored and surfaces cleaned on a daily basis when shelter 
operations are underway. 

9. STATE is not responsible for losses or damage to personal property, equipment 
or materials of LICENSEE, its employees, agents or clients. LICENSEE shall 
report to STATE all losses immediately upon discovery. 

10. LICENSEE shall not drive any nails, tacks, pins or other objects into the walls, 
ceilings, partitions, windows, woodwork, or any other part of PREMISES, nor in 
any manner move or change any fixture, nor make any alterations to PREMISES 
without STATE’S prior written consent. 

11. Upon completion of use, LICENSEE shall remove all decorations, display, signs, 
and equipment on PREMISES. 

12. Upon license expiration, LICENSEE will surrender PREMISES to STATE with 
appurtenances and fixtures in good order, condition, and repair, reasonable use 
and wear thereof, or Acts of God excepted. 

13. LICENSEE shall not permit any alcoholic beverage to be offered for sale, stored, 
given away or otherwise disposed or consumed on any part of PREMISES, nor 
shall LICENSEE permit any use of tobacco products on any part of PREMISES or 
within twenty (20) feet of entrances, doorways or opening windows, except in a 
sufficiently distanced controlled area under LICENSEE supervision. 

14. LICENSEE acknowledges PREMISES may not be fully ADA compliant and agrees 
to implement or improve, at its sole cost and expense, those necessary 
compliance measures required for the duration of its use.  Furthermore, 
LICENSEE agrees to provide any and all required temporary emergency lighting 
required by State, County or City laws or ordinances. 

II. AUTHORIZED ACTIVITIES 



 

Page 3 of 8 
 

 
1. In order to provide a variety of health, medical or other services to homeless 

citizens, LICENSEE may provide on-site program management through either 
LICENSEE employees, agents, volunteers or contracted services. 

2. The armory facility will be available twenty-four (24) hours each day unless 
otherwise amended in writing by the STATE. 

3. LICENSEE is solely responsible for protecting employees, patrons, agents, 
clients, or invitees from acts of third parties, and agrees to notify STATE and 
appropriate law enforcement agencies as required. 

4. LICENSEE agrees to maintain PREMISES in a clean and habitable condition, 
which includes exterior landscape maintenance and removal of all litter, trash, 
cans, bottles, etc. from the site not less than once per day. 

5. Any damage to PREMISES will be inspected by STATE representatives (CMD 
Area Coordinator) and LICENSEE to determine the character and extent of 
damage (with photographs).  Repairs should be completed within twenty-four (24) 
hours if an emergency or seventy-two (72) hours if urgent. 

6. The STATE Area Coordinator will contract for necessary repair or restoration 
services using appropriate state or federal guidance, while coordinating and 
collaborating closely with LICENSEE.  LICENSEE may not undertake repairs or 
restoration using its own forces or contract services without the prior written 
consent of STATE’S Area Coordinator. 

7. Within thirty (30) days of being presented a demand (invoice) for payment, 
LICENSEE shall make STATE whole for the cost of repairing or restoring any 
improvement or utility damaged as a result of PREMISES use. 

8. If significant plumbing issues occur due to continued actions of clients, LICENSEE 
will provide portable latrines, at its sole cost and expense, for the duration of the 
contract. 

9. LICENSEE shall take all necessary steps to ensure clients do not constitute a 
nuisance in the immediate vicinity of the facility during hours of operation.  If at 
any time the STATE is dissatisfied with the LICENSEE efforts, the LICENSEE and 
STATE shall meet to explore means and methods of compliance. 

10. LICENSEE shall supply consumable sanitary items and paper products, which 
include, but not limited to:  cleaning/sanitizing supplies and equipment, liquid soap, 
paper towels, and toilet paper.  If requested (necessary), the County Health 
Department shall provide periodic health screenings and consultation on issues 
pertaining to sanitation  

11. Pets of clients occupying PREMISES or participating in provided services are 
prohibited inside the PREMISES, with the exception of those meeting the 
definition of “service animal” in Section XV below. 

12. LICENSEE shall ensure clients provide valid vehicle registration and insurance 
BEFORE parking their vehicle in PREMISES parking area. 

13. Vehicles parked on PREMISES without appropriate approval shall be towed away 
by STATE's order and at LICENSEE's risk and expense. 

 



 

Page 4 of 8 
 

III. NOTIFICATION 

 
All notices or other communications required or permitted hereunder shall be in writing, 
and shall be personally delivered (including by means of professional messenger service) 
or sent by overnight courier, or sent by registered or certified mail, postage prepaid, return 
receipt requested to the addresses set forth below. All such notices or other 
communications shall be deemed received upon the earlier of (i) if personally delivered or 
sent by overnight courier, the date of delivery to the address of the person to receive such 
notice, (ii) if mailed as provided above, on the date of receipt or rejection, when received 
by the other party if received Monday through Friday between 6:00 a.m. and 5:00 p.m. 
Pacific Standard Time. so long as such day is not a State or Federal holiday and otherwise 
on the next day provided that if the next day is Saturday, Sunday, or a state or federal 
holiday, such notice shall be effective on the following business day. 

To LICENSEE: 
City of Porterville 
Attn: City Manager 
291 North Main Street 
Porterville, CA 93257 
(559) 782-7466 

To STATE: 
California Military Department 
9800 Goethe Road, Box 18 
Sacramento, CA  95826 
(916) 854-3788 

PROGRAM MANAGER: 
SSG Monica Estrada 
(916) 541-8160 
 

Notice of change of address or telephone number shall be given by written notice in the 
manner described in this section. LICENSEE is obligated to notice State offices listed 
above and the failure to provide notice to do so shall constitute a lack of notice. Nothing 
contained herein shall preclude the giving of any such notice by personal service. 

IV. INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 

 
LICENSEE is a public entity, which is self-insured and will be responsible for any damage 
caused to PREMISES.  Additionally, LICENSEE shall indemnify STATE against any 
injuries caused by use of PREMISES.  LICENSEE has furnished the necessary Certificate 
of Self-Insurance, Exhibit “D” attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference, 
demonstrating the required insurance coverage will be in effect during the complete term 
of AGREEMENT, and shall include, but not be limited to: 

 Combined single limit liability of $2,000,000, or 
 Special event coverage with a limit of $2,000,000, and 
 A statement naming the United States, State of California, its officers, 

agents, employees, and servants as additional insured, but only with respect 
to the activities of the named insured. 



 

Page 5 of 8 
 

V. HOLD HARMLESS INDEMNIFICATION 

 The PREMISES are provided in “AS-IS” and “WITH ALL FAULTS” condition, and STATE 
and its employees, representatives and agents disclaim all warranties, expressed or 
implied, regarding the PREMISES, including, but not limited to, all implied warranties of 
merchantability or fitness for a particular purpose or compliance with Applicable Law.  
LICENSEES acknowledges and agrees that STATE and its employees, representatives 
and agents have made no representations or warranties for the PREMISES, including, 
without limitation, any representations or warranties regarding, (a) the condition or repair 
of the PREMISES, (b) whether such PREMISES are sufficient for the purposes of 
LICENSEE, or (c) whether the PREMISES comply with Applicable Laws (as defined 
below), including without limitation the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) or other 
accessibility laws, (d) whether there are any facts or conditions affecting the PREMISES 
that might, individually or in the aggregate, interfere with the use or occupancy of the 
PREMISES or any portion thereof by LICENSEE. 

The use of the PREMISES by LICENSEE shall be conclusive evidence that LICENSEE 
accepts the same “AS IS and WITH ALL FAULTS” and that the PREMISES are suited for 
the use intended by LICENSEE and are in good and satisfactory condition at the time 
such possession was taken.  LICENSEE represents and warrants to STATE that (a) its 
sole intended use of the PREMISES is for temporary sheltering (the “Permitted Use”) and 
(b) prior to using the PREMISES it has made such investigations as it deems appropriate 
with respect to the suitability of the PREMISES for its intended use and has determined 
that the PREMISES are suitable for such intended use. 

LICENSEE shall comply with all applicable statutes, laws, ordinances and rules and 
regulations adopted by the Federal, State or any City, City and County, County or other 
body politic, including without limitation all building codes, the ADA or other accessibility 
laws (“Applicable Laws”) and which pertains to use of the PREMISES or any provisions 
of the License, and will indemnify, defend and hold STATE free and harmless from and 
against any violations thereof and any and all liabilities, suits, causes of action, 
judgments, demands and claims for damages, including all reasonable costs of any 
litigation and attorney’s fees and expenses, arising out or by reason of any such violation. 

LICENSEE shall indemnify, defend and hold STATE its employees, representatives and 
agents free and harmless from and against any and all suits, causes of action, demands, 
proceedings, claims, damages, judgments, obligations liabilities, liens, fines, costs, and 
expenses (including, but not limited to, attorneys’ fees and costs) (collectively “Losses”) 
which arise from or are related to (a) use or occupancy of the PREMISES by LICENSEE 
or its Representatives, including, but not limited to, damage to property of any kind 
whatsoever and to whomsoever belonging, including LICENSEE, from any cause or 
causes whatsoever during the term of this License or any occupancy hereunder, holdover 
periods or any other occupancy of the PREMISES during the term of this License, except 
(i) those Losses that are ultimately determined  by a court or administrative tribunal of 
competent jurisdiction to be caused by sole gross negligence of the STATE or its 
employees, or (ii) to the extent any such Losses are ultimately determined by a court or 
administrative tribunal of competent jurisdiction to be caused by the willful misconduct of 
the STATE or its employees; provided, however, any condition of the PREMISES that is 
found to be in violation of any Applicable Law by a court or administrative tribunal of 
competent jurisdiction shall not be deemed gross negligence or willful misconduct on the 



 

Page 6 of 8 
 

part of the STATE or its employees; (b) breach of LICENSEE’S obligations under the 
AGREEMENT, (c) negligence or other wrongful act by LICENSEE or its Representatives, 
(d) violation of Applicable Law by LICENSEE or its Representatives, (e) any allegation 
that the PREMISES do not comply with Applicable Law.  “Representatives” means 
LICENSEE’S agents, employees, representatives, contractors, or any other person or 
persons acting within the direct control or authority of such party or its agents, employees, 
representatives or contractors. 

VI. FEES 

 
1. The use fee is waived based on Services in Kind as per California Army National 

Guard Regulation 210-2 paragraph 9. 

2. Utility accounts will be transferred to LICENSEE, which will directly pay utility 
costs on an as-incurred basis. 

VII. TERM 

 
License shall take effect no earlier than May 5, 2023 or upon execution by STATE, 
whichever is later, and shall expire no later than 0800 (8:00 A.M.) May 4, 2024. 

VIII. AMENDMENT AND TERMINATION 

 
AGEEMENT cannot be amended or modified in any way except by a written 
AGREEMENT duly executed by STATE and LICENSEE.  Any proposal for amendment or 
modification must be delivered for review and approval by the Chief, Realty Operations or 
her/his delegatee. 

AGEEMENT may be terminated by either party upon 30 days’ written notification to the 
other party at the addresses previously given in Section III; “Notification”.  Upon 
termination, the activities of the parties shall be governed by the applicable provisions of 
the Military and Veterans Code.  STATE is not obligated to reimburse LICENSEE any fees 
should it terminate this AGREEMENT before reaching its full term. 

IX. ENTIRE AGREEMENT 

 
AGREEMENT, along with any exhibits attached hereto, constitutes the entire covenant 
and understanding between STATE and LICENSEE for PREMISES.  AGREEMENT 
supersedes all prior and contemporaneous routine activity agreements, representations 
or understandings, if any, whether oral or written. 

X. DURATION & RENEWAL 

 
AGREEMENT shall remain in effect through the termination date and will not be extended, 
but may be renewed annually subsequent to renegotiation required to protect the parties. 

XI. RIGHT TO ENTER 

 
During continuance in force of AGREEMENT, there shall be, and is hereby expressly 
reserved to STATE and to any of its contractors, agents, employees, representatives, or 
licensees, the right at any and all reasonable times, and any and all places to temporarily 
enter upon said PREMISES for inspection or other lawful STATE purposes. 

XII. ENVIRONMENTAL LAWS AND REGULATIONS 

 
LICENSEE must comply with all applicable local, State or Federal environmental 



 

Page 7 of 8 
 

provisions, requirements, ordinances, regulations or laws.  AGREEMENT does not 
constitute any form of authorization, permit, or opinion with respect to the satisfaction 
thereof. LICENSEE agrees that it shall comply with all laws, federal, state, or local, existing 
during the term of this license pertaining to the use, storage, transportation, and disposal 
of any hazardous substance as that term is defined in such applicable law. 

1. In the event STATE or any of its affiliates, successors, principals, employees, or 
agents should incur any liability, cost, or expense, including attorney's fees and 
costs, as a result of the LICENSEE’S illegal use, storage, transportation, or 
disposal of any hazardous substance, including any petroleum derivative, the 
LICENSEE shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless any of these individuals 
against such liability.  

2. Where the LICENSEE is found to be in breach of this Paragraph due to the 
issuance of a government order directing the LICENSEE to cease and desist any 
illegal action in connection with a hazardous substance, or to remediate a 
contaminated condition caused by the LICENSEE or any person acting under 
LICENSEE’S direct control and authority, LICENSEE shall be responsible for all 
costs and expenses of complying with such order, including any and all expenses 
imposed on or incurred by STATE in connection with or in response to such 
government order. 

XIII. DEFAULT 

LICENSEE shall make all required payments to the STATE without deduction, default or 
delay.  In the event of the failure of LICENSEE to do so, or in the event of a breach of any 
of the other terms, covenants or conditions herein contained on the part of LICENSEE to 
be kept and performed, and if such default continues for a period of thirty (30) days after 
receipt of written notice from STATE to LICENSEE of such default, this License may, at 
the STATE’S sole discretion, be terminated. 

In the event of termination of this License, it shall be lawful for STATE to reenter into and 
upon the PREMISES and every part thereof and to remove and store at LICENSEE’s 
expense all property therefrom and to repossess and occupy the PREMISES.  In the event 
STATE terminates this License pursuant to this Paragraph, the STATE shall not be 
required to pay LICENSEE any sum or sums whatsoever. 

XIV. SERVICE ANIMALS 

 Service Animal Defined by Title II and Title III of the ADA: (from the ADA National 
Network) 

Under Title II and III of the ADA, service animals are limited to dogs individually trained 
to do work or perform tasks for the benefit of an individual with a disability, including a 
physical, sensory, psychiatric, intellectual, or other mental disability. 

Emotional support animals, comfort animals, and therapy dogs are not service 
animals under Title II and Title III of the ADA.  Other species of animals, whether wild 
or domestic, trained or untrained, are not considered service animals either. The work or 
tasks performed by a service animal must be directly related to the individual’s disability. 
A doctor’s letter does not turn an animal into a service animal. 

Examples of animals fitting the ADA’s definition of “service animal” because they have 
been specifically trained to perform a task for the person with a disability: 



 

Page 8 of 8 
 

Guide Dog or Seeing Eye® Dog1 is a carefully trained dog that serves as a travel tool for 
persons who have severe visual impairments or are blind. 

Hearing or Signal Dog is a dog that has been trained to alert a person who has a significant 
hearing loss or is deaf when a sound occurs, such as a knock on the door. 

Psychiatric Service Dog is a dog that has been trained to perform tasks that assist 
individuals with disabilities to detect the onset of psychiatric episodes and lessen their 
effects. 

SigDOG (sensory signal dogs or social signal dog) is a dog trained to assist a person with 
autism. The dog alerts the handler to distracting repetitive movements common among 
those with autism, allowing the person to stop the movement (e.g., hand flapping). 

Seizure Response Dog is a dog trained to assist a person with a seizure disorder.  The 
dog may stand guard over the person during a seizure or the dog may go for help. A few 
dogs have learned to predict a seizure and warn the person in advance to sit down or 
move to a safe place. 

While Emotional Support Animals or Comfort Animals are often used as part of a medical 
treatment plan as therapy animals, they are not considered service animals under the 
ADA. These support animals provide companionship, relieve loneliness, and sometimes 
help with depression, anxiety, and certain phobias, but do not have special training to 
perform tasks that assist people with disabilities and are not covered by federal laws 
protecting the use of service animals. 

A public facility is not allowed to ask for documentation or proof a dog has been 
certified, trained, or licensed as a service animal.  Staff on site may ask the following 
questions:  

1. Is the dog a service animal required because of a disability? 

2. What work or task has the dog been trained to perform? 

No further questions should be asked regarding the disability or the animal, nor is it 
permissible to ask that the dog perform the task that grants it to be a service animal. 

 

 

CONCURRENCE 

    

    

FOR THE ADJUTANT GENERAL  CITY OF PORTERVILLE  

    

DATE:   DATE:  

    

 







Calwen Inc. dba Rescue Source & Rescue 3
P.O. Box 1050
Wilton, CA  95693
Phone: 916-687-6556
Fax: 916-687-6717
Email: info@rescuesource.com

Calwen Inc. dba Rescue Source &
Rescue 3 Intl

Invoice
Order # Date
131282 03/20/2023

PORTERVILLE FIRE DEPARTMENT
40 W CLEVELAND
PORTERVILLE, CA  93257
Phone: 559-782-7526
Email: jrodriguez@ci.porterville.ca.us

Contact: JANIE RODRIGUEZ
PO Number: 23-22733

Ship To:Bill To:
PORTERVILLE FIRE DEPARTMENT
40 W CLEVELAND
PORTERVILLE, CA  93257

Customer: PORTERVILLE FIRE DEPARTMENT

Sales Rep Payment Terms FOB Point Carrier Ship Service Date Scheduled
MELISSA NET 30 Origin UPS Next Day Air 03/20/2023

Item
# Type Number Description Unit Price

Qty
Ordered Total Price

1 Kit KT2210 PFD TYPE V PACKAGE $250.00 20 ea $ 5,000.00
2 Sale      PF4026R NRS 2022 RAPID RESCUER RED $0.00 20 ea $ 0.00
3 Sale      KN2556OR NRS PILOT KNIFE ORANGE $0.00 20 ea $ 0.00
4 Sale      WH7905 WHISTLE-RESCUE 3 LOGO WITH COIL $0.00 20 ea $ 0.00
5 Sale HL7050HVL/XL RQ3 STORM PRO HELMET HI VIS

LARGE/XLARGE
$32.00 20 ea $ 640.00

6 Shipping Freight Freight Out $256.00 1 ea $ 256.00
7 Sale Tax Expense Tax Expense $521.70 1 ea $ 521.70

Total:

Subtotal:
Sales Tax:

$6,417.70
$0.00

$6,417.70

Page 1 ofMarch 20, 2023 10:55:08 AM PDT 1

Thank you for your order.
If you have any questions please call 800-457-3728
or e-mail info@rescuesource.com.





Rain For Rent 

Bakersfield
4001 State Rd 

Bakersfield CA 93308 

United States

661-399-1724

24/7 Emergency 800-742-7246

www.rainforrent.com

Your sales person

JESSE PINTOR

REMIT PAYMENTS TO:

RAIN FOR RENT

FILE 52541

LOS ANGELES, CA 90074-2541

INVOICE Rain for Rent

3/30/2023 23-22734

112354

CITY OF PORTERVILLE

PAYMENT 

DUE
PO or JOB#

 1854595 4/29/2023

PLEASE PAY

ADDRESS

ADDRESS

NAME

CUSTOMER #

CUSTOMER

CONTRACT # 1169502

CITY OF PORTERVILLE

CITY OF PORTERVILLENAME

SHIPPED TO JOBSITE:

291 N MAIN ST

PORTERVILLE CA 93257

INVOICE DATEINVOICE#

Corporation Yard 

555 N Prospect St 

Porterville CA 93257

$77,396.67 

PHONE PHONE

Notes: 
 

Requested by: Michael Knight

PO Number: 23-22734

QTY UOM DESCRIPTION PRODUCT # STATUS DATE

OUT

BILLED

THRU

PRICE AMOUNT TAXABLEDAYS

BILLED

EA  0.00 $65,685.06 Y 1.00 Pump BA150E D285 Tlr Mt Diesel 

Eng Hatz 4H50TIC

1022734 $65,685.06SALES

EA  0.00 $5,158.57 Y 1.00 Shipping/Handling

Freight

M240 $5,158.57SERVICES

TOTAL RENTALS:

TOTAL SALES:

TOTAL SERVICES:

SUBTOTAL:

$65,685.06 

$5,158.57 

$70,843.63 

$0.00 

TOTAL OTHER: $0.00 

TAX: $6,553.04 

FOR PROPER CREDIT, PLEASE INCLUDE INVOICE NUMBER ON YOUR PAYMENT.

 PAST DUE AMOUNTS ARE SUBJECT TO A SERVICE CHARGE OF 1.50%

 CUSTOMER, (RENTEE OR BUYER as context requires), shall be deemed to accept

 all terms, conditions and provisions hereof upon execution of this agreement;

 ordering; or delivery of equipment to customer, whichever comes first.

SIGNATURE: _____________________________ DATE: ___________________

TOTAL: $77,396.67 

PAYMENT TERMS:  NET 30

Page 1 of 1Printed Date: 3/30/2023













State of California 

GOVERNMENT CODE 

Section  8558 

8558. Three conditions or degrees of emergency are established by this chapter: 
(a)  “State of war emergency” means the condition that exists immediately, with 

or without a proclamation thereof by the Governor, whenever this state or nation is 
attacked by an enemy of the United States, or upon receipt by the state of a warning 
from the federal government indicating that an enemy attack is probable or imminent. 

(b)  “State of emergency” means the duly proclaimed existence of conditions of 
disaster or of extreme peril to the safety of persons and property within the state 
caused by conditions such as air pollution, fire, flood, storm, epidemic, riot, drought, 
cyberterrorism, sudden and severe energy shortage, electromagnetic pulse attack, 
plant or animal infestation or disease, the Governor’s warning of an earthquake or 
volcanic prediction, or an earthquake, or other conditions, other than conditions 
resulting from a labor controversy or conditions causing a “state of war emergency,” 
which, by reason of their magnitude, are or are likely to be beyond the control of the 
services, personnel, equipment, and facilities of any single county, city and county, 
or city and require the combined forces of a mutual aid region or regions to combat, 
or with respect to regulated energy utilities, a sudden and severe energy shortage 
requires extraordinary measures beyond the authority vested in the Public Utilities 
Commission. 

(c)  (1)  “Local emergency” means the duly proclaimed existence of conditions of 
disaster or of extreme peril to the safety of persons and property within the territorial 
limits of a county, city and county, or city, caused by conditions such as air pollution, 
fire, flood, storm, epidemic, riot, drought, cyberterrorism, sudden and severe energy 
shortage, deenergization event, electromagnetic pulse attack, plant or animal infestation 
or disease, the Governor’s warning of an earthquake or volcanic prediction, or an 
earthquake, or other conditions, other than conditions resulting from a labor 
controversy, which are or are likely to be beyond the control of the services, personnel, 
equipment, and facilities of that political subdivision and require the combined forces 
of other political subdivisions to combat, or with respect to regulated energy utilities, 
a sudden and severe energy shortage or deenergization event that requires extraordinary 
measures beyond the authority vested in the Public Utilities Commission. 

(2)  A local emergency proclaimed as the result of a deenergization event does not 
trigger the electric utility obligations set forth in Public Utilities Commission Decision 
19-07-015 or its successor decisions as related to deenergization events. A local 
emergency proclaimed as the result of a deenergization event does not alter the electric 



utilities’ Public Utilities Commission-approved cost-recovery mechanisms for their 
own costs associated with deenergization events. 

(Amended by Stats. 2022, Ch. 537, Sec. 1.  (SB 468)  Effective January 1, 2023.) 


	AGENDA
	STAFF INFORMATIONAL REPORTS 
	 1.  Water Conservation Phase IV Status Update - April 2023
	Staff Report
	Monthly Production Status April 2023
	Monthly Production Status GPCD April 2023
	Drought Response Phase IV Flyer


	 CONSENT CALENDAR
	1. City Council Minutes of April 14, 2023, and May 02
	Staff Report
	2023-04-14 Draft Minutes
	2023-05-02 Draft Minutes

	2. Purchase of Personal Protective Equipment
	Staff Report
	Curtis Quote

	3. Authorization to Advertise for Bids - Main Street 
	Staff Report
	Locator Map
	Engineer's Estimate

	4. Authorization to Distribute Request for Qualificat
	Staff Report
	Draft Request for Qualifications
	Locator Map

	5. Authorization to Award Freedom Fest Fireworks Contract
	Staff Report
	Zambelli Fireworks Proposal
	Fireworks & Stage FX America Proposal
	Pyro Spectaculars Proposal

	6. Authorization to Apply and Receive Financing for the Consolidation of Del Oro Water Company
	Staff Report
	Draft Resolution 
	Preliminary Funding Award Notification
	Resolution No. 38-2015
	Resolution No. 74-2014
	Resolution No. 75-2014
	Location Map

	7. Approval of State Senate Bill 1 (SB1) Project List
	Staff Report
	Draft Resolution
	Fiscal Year 2023-2024 RMRA Projected Revenues by City
	Locator Map

	8. Consideration of Funding Recommendations and Reope
	Staff Report
	PLHA Year 3 Funding Recommendations
	PLHA Year 3 RFP & Addendum 1
	PLHA Approved 5-Year Plan

	9. A Resolution Approving the Application for State O
	Staff Report
	Draft Resolution 
	Locator Map: Proposed New OHV Park

	10. Authorization of Street Closures for KJUG Free Sum
	Staff Report
	Traffic Control Diagram

	11. Authorization of Street Closure for Military Banner
	Staff Report
	Internal Civic Event Application

	12. Parks and Leisure Services Commission Meetings
	Staff Report
	Chapter 19, Article I

	13. Cancellation of Public Hearing to Consider Annexat
	Staff Report

	14. Rescinding and Replacing Resolution No. 16-2023 Co
	Staff Report
	Draft Resolution
	Resolution No. 16-2023

	15. Cancellation of July 4, 2023, City Council Meeting
	Staff Report

	16. Status and Review of Local Drought Emergency
	Staff Report
	City of Porterville Resolution Declaring Local Drought Emergency: May 5, 2015
	United States Department of Agriculture Drought Natural Disaster Area Designation: March 5, 2021
	State of California State of Emergency Proclamation: April 21, 2021
	County of Tulare Drought Local Emergency Resolution: April 27, 2021
	State Water Resources Control Board: Emergency Regulation - Water Conservation; January 4, 2022
	Governor Newsom Executive Order N-7-22: March 28, 2022
	State Water Resources Control Board: Emergency Regulation - Water Conservation; June 10, 2022
	Governor Newsom Executive Order N-5-23: March 24, 2023
	State Water Resources Control Board Funding Agreement: Akin/Central Water Consolidation Project


	 PUBLIC HEARINGS
	17. Public Hearing to Consider the Transition to Phase
	Staff Report
	Drought Response Phase III Flyer
	Drought Response Phase IV Flyer
	Monthly Production Status April 2023
	Monthly Production Status GPCD April 2023
	Standing Water Level Averages Chart
	Tulare Basin Precipitation Index


	 SCHEDULED MATTERS
	18. Consider Resolutions of Opposition to Assembly Bil
	Staff Report
	Draft Resolution of Opposition - Assembly Bill 1090
	Assembly Bill No. 1090 (Jones-Sawyer)
	Assembly Bill No. 1090 Analysis
	Draft Resolution of Opposition - Senate Bill 94
	Senate Bill No. 94 (Cortese)
	Senate Bill No. 94 Analysis

	19. Bid Results - Tule River Parkway, Phase 3 Project
	Staff Report
	Locator Map

	20. Status and Review of Declaration of Local Flood Em
	Staff Report
	Declaration of Local Emergency - March 13, 2023
	Resolution No. 11-2023
	Rio Vista Avenue Mandatory Evacuation Order - March 16, 2023
	Tule River Banks Mandatory Evacuation Order - March 19, 2023
	Governor Newsom Executive Order N-6-23
	Federal Disaster Declaration Fact Sheet - April 3, 2023
	City and County Memorandum of Understanding for Shelter Support
	County of Tulare CalOES Shelter Support Request Letter - April 14, 2023
	Draft License to Use State Military Property
	Resolution No. 15-2023
	Rescue Source & Rescue 3 Invoice: Water Rescue Equipment
	Royal Restrooms Invoice: Mobile Shower-Restroom Units
	Rain for Rent Pump Invoice
	Mike Clark Trucking Invoice
	Municipal Code Chapter 9 - Civil Defense and Disaster
	California Government Code 8558


	 AB 1234 REPORTS
	 1. Military Banner Program Committee - April 25, 2
	 2. Local Initiatives Navigation Center (LINC) Comm
	 3. Easter Tule Groundwater Sustainability Agency (
	 4. Tulare County Water Commission - May 8, 2023
	 5. Tulare County Association of Governments One Vo
	 6. Social Services Transportation Advisory Council
	 7. Transit Forum - May 10, 2023
	 8. CalVans Board - May 11, 2023
	 9. Tulare County Economic Development Corporation 
	 10. Tulare County Association of Governments (TCAG
	 11. Tulare County Regional Transit Authority (TCRT


	Text1:  
 
 
 March 16th, 2023
 
 
 
This is a message from Tulare County & the City of Porterville. Due to the recent storm events, and the water levels in the Tule River, there is erosion to the bank of the river. An Evacuation order has been issued for all residences, businesses, and structures that are on the south side of Rio Vista Ave with the addresses of 191  Rio Vista Avenue, 201 Rio Vista Avenue, 211 Rio Vista Avenue, 221 Rio Vista Avenue, 231 Rio Vista Avenue, 241 Rio Vista Avenue, and 245 Rio Vista Avenue.  
 
An evacuation order, also known as a mandatory evacuation, means that all residents and visitors should leave now before the water causes unsafe conditions for the residence. If you are unable to evacuate and require assistance, please call 9-1-1. For additional resources or information, please call 2-1-1. Please refer to the map on the Tulare County website, emergencies page, at TulareCounty.CA.gov/emergencies. 
 
A Temporary Evacuation point has been set up at Porterville College, 100 E College Avenue. Thank you. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
Jake Castellow 
Chief of Police
	Text11:  
March 19, 2023
 
This is a message from Tulare County & the City of Porterville. Due to the recent storm events, there is erosion to the banks of the Tule River. 
An Evacuation Order has been issued for the north bank and south bank of the Tule River, from Westwood Street, to the Plano bridge, but does not include the south bank from Westwood Street, east to the bridge of State Route 65.  This evacuation order does not include permanent structures with a designated address, other than those for which a previous evacuation order has been issued. 
An evacuation order, also known as a mandatory evacuation, means that all residents and visitors should leave immediately due to the unsafe conditions of the river banks. If you are unable to evacuate and require assistance, please call 9-1-1. For additional resources or information, please call 2-1-1. Please refer to the map on the Tulare County website, emergencies page, at TulareCounty.CA.gov/emergencies. 
A Temporary Evacuation point has been set up at Porterville College, 100 E College Avenue. 
 
Jake Castellow
Chief of Police
 
 
		2022-12-22T01:03:10-0800
	SACRAMENTO
	The Legislative Counsel attests that this document has not been altered since the document was released by the Legislative Counsel Bureau to this public web site.




